
63552023v2 

2024 Spherion FDD  

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company) 

One Overton Park 
3625 Cumberland Blvd., Suite 500 

Atlanta, GA 30339 
(770) 303-6770 

franchiseinfo@spherion.com
www.spherion.com

Spherion Staffing, LLC offers franchises in the business of providing clients with high 
quality general staffing services.  

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Spherion General Staffing 
franchise ranges from $214,325 to $342,575. This includes $40,000 that must be paid to Spherion 
or its affiliates.  

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and 
other information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying 
agreements carefully. You must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days 
before you sign a binding agreement with, or make payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in 
connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however that no governmental agency has 
verified the information contained in this document. You may wish to receive your Disclosure 
Document in another format that is more convenient for you. To discuss the availability of 
disclosures in different formats, contact the franchising department at One Overton Park, 3625 
Cumberland Blvd., Suite 500, Atlanta, GA 30339 and (770) 303-6770.  

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the 
Disclosure Document alone to understand your contract. Read your entire contract carefully. 
Show your contract and this Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.  

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document 
can help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide 
to Buying a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is 
available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by 
writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit 
the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit 
your public library for other sources of information on franchising. 

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your agencies about them. 

Issuance Date:  April 29, 2024
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document 

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to 
find more information: 

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION 

How much can I earn? 

Item 19 may give you information about outlet 
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try 
to obtain this information from others, like 
current and former franchisees. You can find 
their names and contact information in Item 20 
or Exhibit K. 

How much will I need to invest? 

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the 
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 
describes the suppliers you must use. 

Does the franchisor have the financial 
ability to provide support to my 
business? 

Item 21 or Exhibit N includes financial 
statements. Review these statements carefully. 

Is the franchise system stable, growing, 
or shrinking? 

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the 
number of company-owned and franchised 
outlets. 

Will my business be the only Spherion 
Staffing business in my area? 

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the 
franchise agreement describe whether the 
franchisor and other franchisees can compete 
with you. 

Does the franchisor have a troubled legal 
history? 

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or 
its management have been involved in material 
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings. 

What’s it like to be a Spherion Staffing 
franchisee? 

Item 20 or Exhibit K lists current and former 
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about 
their experiences. 

What else should I know? 

These questions are only a few things you should 
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in 
this disclosure document to better understand 
this franchise opportunity. See the table of 
contents. 
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even 
if you are losing money. 

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change 
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to 
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise 
business. 

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited 
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than 
similar items you could buy on your own. 

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a 
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. 
Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what 
you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation. 

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the 
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory. 

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you 
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to 
continue to operate your franchise business. 

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a 
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord 
or other creditors. 

Some States Require Registration 

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register 
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state 
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out 
if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency 
information in Exhibit M. 

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made 
to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the 
Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise 

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted: 

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to 
resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or 
litigation only in Georgia. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation 
may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also 
cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Georgia 
than in your own state. 

2. Mandatory Minimum Payment. You must maintain minimum sales 
performance levels or you will be required to pay a Gross Profit Quota 
Shortfall Fee. Your inability to make this payment may result in termination 
of your franchise and loss of your investment. 

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific 
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted. 
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NOTICE 

The State of Michigan prohibits certain unfair provisions that are sometimes in franchise 
documents. If any of the following provisions are in these franchise documents, the provisions are void 
and cannot be enforced against you. 

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents relating 
to a franchise: 

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees. 

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or 
estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude 
a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims. 

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its 
term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any 
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice 
thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure. 

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly 
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of 
expiration of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized 
materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and 
furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to 
compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the 
franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the 
same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising or other 
commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does 
not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise. 

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally 
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not 
require a renewal provision. 

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This 
shall not preclude the franchises from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct 
arbitration at a location outside this state. 

(g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a 
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of 
first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to: 

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current reasonable 
qualifications or standards. 

(ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is competitor of the franchisor or 
subfranchisor.  
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(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with 
all lawful obligations. 

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the 
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time 
of the proposed transfer. 

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not 
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a 
franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions 
as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a 
provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or 
appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise 
agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c). 

(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or 
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchise unless provision has 
been made for providing the required contractual services. 

The fact that there is a notice of this offering on file with the attorney general does not 
constitute approval, recommendation or endorsement by the attorney general. 

Any questions regarding the notice should be directed to the Michigan Department of Attorney 
General, Franchise Unit, P.O. Box 30213, Lansing, MI 48909, (517) 373-7117. 
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ITEM 1 
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES 

Franchisor 

The franchisor is Spherion Staffing, LLC (“Spherion”). To simplify the language of this Disclosure 
Document, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “ours” and “the Company” refer to Spherion. “You,” “your” and 
“yours” refer to the individual awarded the franchise, the entity formed by that individual for the 
operation of the business described in this Disclosure Document, the shareholders or members of that 
entity if it is a corporation or limited liability company and the partners of that entity if it is a partnership. 
We will be your franchisor. 

We are Spherion Staffing, LLC, a successor-in-interest to SFN Professional Services, LLC, which was 
previously known as Spherion Atlantic Enterprises, LLC. We are a Delaware limited liability company 
incorporated October 22, 2008. Our principal business address is One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland 
Blvd., Suite 500, Atlanta, GA 30339.  

Parents 

We are a single-member LLC, and our sole member is SFN Group, LLC. SFN Group, LLC’s sole 
member is Randstad North America, Inc. (“Randstad North America”). The sole shareholder of Randstad 
North America is Randstad Luxembourg UK Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Randstad Group UK. 
Randstad Group UK is wholly owned by Randstad Luxembourg North America S.a.r.l., which in turn is 
wholly owned by Randstad Group Luxembourg S.a.r.l. 

Randstad Group Luxembourg S.a.r.l. is wholly owned by our ultimate parent entity, Randstad N.V. 
(“Randstad Holding”).  

The formation date, jurisdiction of formation, and principal business address of each of our parent 
entities are as follows:  

Parent Formation Date 
Jurisdiction of 

Formation Principal Business Address 

SFN Group, LLC 09/15/1987 Delaware 
One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd., 
Ste 500, Atlanta, GA 30339 

Randstad North 
America, Inc. 

08/24/1998 Delaware 
One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd., 
Ste 500, Atlanta, GA 30339 

Randstad Luxembourg 
UK Limited 

12/20/2013 United Kingdom 
1st Floor Randstad Court, Laporte Way, Luton, 
Bedfordshire, LU4 8SB, United Kingdom 

Randstad Group UK 08/20/1999 United Kingdom 
1st Floor Randstad Court, Laporte Way, Luton, 
Bedfordshire, LU4 8SB, United Kingdom 

Randstad Luxembourg 
North America, S.a.r.l. 

07/21/2008 Luxembourg 145 rue du Kiem, L-8030, Strassen, Luxembourg 

Randstad Group 
Luxembourg S.a.r.l. 

05/29/2008 Luxembourg 145 rue du Kiem, L-8030, Strassen, Luxembourg 

Randstad N.V. 12/29/1989 Netherlands Diemermere 25, NL-1112 TC Diemen, Netherlands
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Predecessors 

Our predecessors within the last ten years are Spherion Atlantic Enterprises, LLC (the former name 
of SFN Professional Services, LLC) and Spherion Corporation (the former name of SFN Group, Inc.). The 
principal business address for both of these entities was 2050 Spectrum Boulevard, Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 
33309.  

Affiliates 

Our affiliate Temp Force, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, was formed October 30, 1998, 
and its principal business address is One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd., Suite 500, Atlanta, GA 
30339. Employees of Randstad and its related companies perform administrative services and other 
services for and on behalf of Spherion and other affiliates pursuant to agreements between these 
companies. Our affiliates also include SFN’s wholly owned subsidiary Spherion Financial Corporation 
(“SFC”), a Delaware corporation incorporated July 11, 1990. SFC has its principal business offices at One 
Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd, Suite 500, Atlanta, GA 30339.  

Name Franchisor Uses to Conduct Business 

We offer the franchise models described in this Disclosure Document under the name Spherion®.  

Agents for Service of Process 

Our agents for service of process are listed in Exhibit M.  

Type of Business Organization Used by Franchisor 

We are a Delaware limited liability company. 

Franchisor’s Business and Franchises Offered 

Our Business. Our principal business is staffing through identifying, recruiting, assessing and 
deploying talent for a wide variety of customers. We provide a range of workforce solutions including 
temporary staffing, permanent placement and related staffing and employment services. We provide 
these services to our customers solely through franchised offices. Offices may be free standing or located 
at a client location (client location offices are variously referred to as “on-site,” “on-premise” or “in-
house”).  

The Franchises Offered. We offer to enter into a franchise agreement (the “Franchise 
Agreement”) with you by which you will provide temporary staffing and permanent placement services 
as a Spherion “General Staffing” franchise.  

Our Spherion General Staffing franchises provide temporary staffing and permanent placement 
services in office, clerical, non-clinical scientific, non-clinical health care and administrative occupations, 
and semi-skilled and unskilled industrial occupations, such as assembly, food service, materials handling, 
warehouse and distribution logistic personnel, primarily to commercial establishments (the “General 
Staffing Services”). Spherion General Staffing franchisees may place temporary employees or permanent 
placement candidates in any of the positions and occupations that comprise the General Staffing Services 
(with the exception of certain high risk prohibited occupations designated by us). The term “Temporary 
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Employees” is specifically defined in the Franchise Agreements attached to this Disclosure Document as 
Exhibits A and B and generally refers to the employees of Spherion that you place on assignment with 
customers on our behalf.  

Under the Franchise Agreement, the franchisee will operate as a Spherion General Staffing 
franchise within a specified geographical area described in the Franchise Agreement (the “Area”). The 
franchisee will develop and support customers, applicants for permanent placement and Temporary 
Employees on our behalf using our trademarks, service marks, trade names, procedures, techniques and 
the goodwill associated with them. The customers, applicants for permanent services and Temporary 
Employees belong to us. We will pay the franchisee a commission calculated as a percentage of gross 
profit from the franchisee’s sales of these services. 

Professional Services Addendum. For certain Spherion General Staffing franchisees, we may elect 
to offer an addendum to their agreements that expands the services that the franchisee can provide to 
include some or all of the following professional services: contract and permanent placement services of 
legal, paralegal, finance and accounting, engineering, marketing, information technology, management, 
non-clinical healthcare and non-clinical scientific personnel (“Professional Services”). To be offered the 
addendum, the factors that we will discretionarily consider, among other things, are that the franchisee 
must be in a market where there is no Professional Services segment office; satisfy us that they have the 
management skills and financial wherewithal to successfully operate this additional business; designate 
or hire a full time professional services person for their staff; attend the necessary training; provide the 
necessary office space and telephone for their professional services person; and strictly adhere to all 
policies and procedures applicable to the professional services business. The Professional Services 
Addendum, which is available to you only if we elect to offer the Addendum and you meet the criteria 
above, is attached as Exhibit B to this Disclosure Document. 

Territory Development Program. For certain prospective Spherion franchisees, we may offer our 
“Territory Development Program,” which is designed to allow a franchisee to develop multiple Areas over 
a specified period of time. The Territory Development Program is, as of now, only offered in certain 
metropolitan areas as we may from time to time designate and only to prospective franchisees who meet 
the qualifications that we may require. If you are allowed to participate in our Territory Development 
Program, you will be required to sign the Territory Development Agreement (the “Territory Development 
Agreement”) attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit C.  

TempForce/AccuStaff Conversion Program. Our affiliate, Temp Force, LLC, has franchised offices 
in the Staffing Services business that operate under the TempForce® and AccuStaff® trade names and 
marks. Temp Force no longer offers franchises under these brand names. However, Spherion is currently 
offering a conversion option to this franchise community by which these franchisees would have the 
opportunity to convert their franchised businesses to operate under the Spherion trade name and mark. 
As part of this conversion program, these franchisees may enter into Spherion franchise agreements with 
modified terms, including how commissions are divided between these franchisees and Spherion, and 
such other conversion terms as may be negotiated by the parties. 

Area-Based Franchise Program. We no longer offer the “Area-Based Franchise” program, but we 
still have some franchisees operating under this program and under the Spherion® trademark in 
association with this program, so that program is briefly discussed here so that you will be aware of that 
program and its difference to the programs being offered under this Disclosure Document. Under our 
Area-Based Franchise Program, the franchisee provides staffing services within a specified area, just like 
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our Spherion General Staffing programs. The area-based franchisee develops and supports customers, 
applicants for direct hire placement and temporary employees using our trademarks, service marks, trade 
names, procedures, techniques and the goodwill associated with them. However, unlike the Spherion 
General Staffing programs being offered through this Disclosure Document, the area-based franchisee 
contracts directly with customers and employs the temporary employees placed on assignment. All 
obligations the area-based franchisee incurs during the term of the area-based franchise agreement are 
exclusively the area-based franchisee’s obligation. During the term of the area-based franchise 
agreement, the area-based franchisee pays us a royalty calculated as a percentage of its sales of the 
franchised staffing services. Our area-based franchisees made a substantially larger working capital 
investment than our other franchisees because the area-based franchisee must cover temporary 
employee wages and direct costs associated with the temporary employees until the corresponding 
account receivables are collected. This Disclosure Document applies to the Spherion General Staffing 
programs and not the Area-Based Franchise program.  

Company-Owned Offices. Company-owned Spherion® branded offices formerly operated by an 
affiliate of SFN Group, Inc. were transitioned to the Randstad® brand during 2012, and are now operated 
by an affiliate of Randstad North America. We do not currently operate any company-owned Spherion 
branded offices. 

The Market and the Competition. The market for the services you provide is developed and 
continues to evolve. You will compete with local and national companies that provide staffing services 
and permanent placement services that are the same as those which we provide. And, you may compete 
with the offices of Randstad North America or its affiliates.  

Industry-Specific Regulations. You must comply with all local, state and federal laws that apply to 
your operations, including, for example, regulations set forth by the EEOC, OSHA and other administrative 
agencies, as well as laws and regulations relating to discrimination, employment and sexual harassment. 
Some states require you to obtain a license to provide employment services. You should consult with your 
attorney concerning these and other laws and ordinances that may affect your operations. 

Prior Business Experience of Franchisor, Predecessors and Affiliates 

We or our predecessors have been in the staffing business since 1946. We or our predecessors 
have been franchising and operating in the staffing business since 1956. 

Our affiliate Temp Force, LLC, whose 99.9% member is Randstad North America, Inc., has 
franchised offices in the Staffing Services business under the TempForce® and AccuStaff® names, but is 
not offering new franchises. It or a predecessor has been in the staffing business since the 1970’s and first 
franchised in 1986.  

SFC is a Delaware corporation which formerly offered financing to our franchisees, except in 
California. It does not franchise. 

We, our predecessors and affiliates have not offered franchises in any lines of business other than 
the staffing business.  
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ITEM 2 
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE 

Chief Executive Officer of Randstad North America, Inc.: Marc-Etienne Julien

Mr. Julien has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Randstad North America, Inc. since October 
2023, and has been an integral part of the Randstad family for over 20 years, serving in various roles, 
including Chief Talent Officer, CEO of Randstad Canada, Managing Director of Global Talent and Global 
Perm Managing Director. He is also the founder of the Ride for Myriam, a charitable bike ride created to 
honor one Randstad employee’s fight against cancer.    

President: Kathryn George 

Ms. George became our President in February of 2024. Prior to her current role, she served as 
Executive Vice President of Franchise Development and Growth from October 2022 to February 2024, 
Director of Operations, Franchise/License Division at Spherion from January 2010 to July 2012, Regional 
Vice President from July 2012 to December 2014, and Senior Vice President from December 2014 to 
October 2022. Ms. George has been located in New York and New Jersey that entire time, and her work 
with the Company and its predecessors totals more than 18 years. 

Executive Vice President, Franchise Business Enablement: Jamie Cirrito 

Mr. Cirrito has over 23 years of experience in staffing and became our Executive Vice President of 
Franchise Business Enablement in October of 2022. Prior to his current role, he served as SVP of Franchise 
Operations at Spherion from June 2019 to October 2022. He spent 2 years at The Intersect Group from 
2015 to 2017, and then led Sixcel’s consulting practice from 2017 to 2019. He also has held various roles 
within recruiting, sales, consulting and executive leadership at TEKsystems, CareWorks Technologies, and 
Kforce. Mr. Cirrito’s areas of staffing expertise include operations, leader development, sales and 
recruiting, training, new market entry, data analytics and staffing technology. 

General Counsel: Ross Goldstein 

Mr. Goldstein became our General Counsel on October 1, 2021, and has been specializing in 
franchising, corporate transactions and real estate matters for over 20 years. Prior to joining Spherion, 
from September 2012 to September 2021, Mr. Goldstein was Chief Legal Officer of BurgerFi International, 
Inc., a fast casual better burger concept headquartered in North Palm Beach, FL. 

Senior Vice President: Lynn Billing 

Ms. Billing became our Regional Vice President in May 2010 and our Senior Vice President in 
December 2014. From November 2006 to May 2010 Ms. Billing was Regional Vice President, Atlanta 
Market, for SFN and has been located in the Company’s Atlanta area offices that entire time. She has 
worked with the Company and its predecessors for more than 18 years. 

Senior Vice President: Debbie Fogarty 

Ms. Fogarty joined Spherion in January 2021 as a Senior Vice President supporting our Midwest 
Region. She has over 35 years of staffing experience. From October 2018 to June 2020, Ms. Fogarty was 
the Vice President of the Mid-America Region for Adecco which included running company-owned 
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branches in 17 states. From May 2015 to October 2018, Ms. Fogarty led the Mountain West Region for 
Adecco as a Regional Vice President. She was responsible for the Franchise/License Group for Adecco and 
Olsten for an 8 year period between April 2007 and April 2015.  

Senior Vice President, Franchise Development: Dan Brunell 

Mr. Brunell joined our franchise development team in November of 2021 and has over 30 years 
of experience in the staffing and franchising arenas. He was previously the President of Dearborn West, 
LLC, a franchise brokerage he founded in Temecula, CA, that specialized in recruiting candidates for 
staffing franchises, from 2004 to November 2021. 

Senior Director, Owner Relations: Nanci Schulman 

Ms. Schulman became our Senior Director, Owner Relations in February 2017. From September 
2008 to February 2017, Ms. Schulman was our Director, Owner Relations. Ms. Schulman is located in the 
Fort Lauderdale, FL area, and has worked with the Company and its predecessors for more than 27 years.  

Vice President, Marketing: Doug DeLor 

Mr. DeLor became our Vice President of Brand Marketing in February 2021. He has over 25 years 
of senior marketing leadership experience at some of the most respected and valued brands including 
McDonald’s, GE, RCA and Technicolor. Prior to joining Spherion, Mr. DeLor was Vice President of Sales, 
Marketing & Customer Success at Givelify, the leading mobile charitable giving brand headquartered in 
Indianapolis, IN from January 2019 to October 2020. He was Vice President of Marketing at Marseille 
Networks, one of Silicon Valley’s leading video technology companies based in Santa Clara, CA from 
December 2017 to January 2019. Mr. DeLor also founded the brand marketing consulting agency 
Department of Branding and was President and Owner from January 2012 to December 2018.  

Director of Finance, Franchise Business: Erika Stovall 

Ms. Stovall became our Director of Franchise Finance in April 2020. She has broad experience in 
several financial disciplines, including strategic and corporate finance as well investment banking and 
mergers & acquisitions (M&A). Prior to joining Spherion, Ms. Stovall was an Integration Finance Consultant 
at Change Healthcare (contracted through The Intersect Group, a professional services consulting and 
staffing firm headquartered in Atlanta, GA) from March 2019 to Feb 2020. She has also held finance 
leadership positions at several prominent corporations. These include First Data Corporation (now Fiserv), 
a global leader in payment technology and commerce solutions headquartered in Atlanta, GA, where she 
served as Director of Finance from May 2016 to December 2018, and Cox Communications, a national 
provider of digital cable television, telecommunications and Home Automation services headquartered in 
Atlanta, GA, where she served as Director of Technology Finance from May 2012 to May 2016.  

Chief Legal Officer, Randstad North America, Inc.; Secretary, Spherion Staffing, LLC: Jay Ferguson 

Mr. Ferguson became Chief Legal Officer of Randstad North America in 2012 and became our 
Secretary in 2013. Before that, he served as General Counsel of Randstad General Staffing in Atlanta, GA 
from 2009 to 2012, and was a Partner at Duane Morris, LLP in Atlanta, Georgia, where he was employed 
between 2003 and 2009.  
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CFO US Randstad North America; Vice President & Treasurer, Spherion Staffing, LLC: Ben Elliott 

Mr. Elliott became Managing Director of Finance & Administration of Randstad General Staffing 
in Atlanta, Georgia in 2001 and CFO US Randstad North America in March of 2015.  

ITEM 3 
LITIGATION 

Pending Actions Involving the Franchise Relationship 

Spherion Staffing, LLC v. Hart & Associates, LLC and Patrick A. Hart, filed April 7, 2023, in the United 
States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, Case No. 1:23-cv-01508-TWT. On July 14, 2022, 
Spherion terminated a franchise agreement for breach of contract based on alleged fraudulent activity by 
its franchisee Hart & Associates, LLC and its owner Patrick Hart (collectively, “Hart”) in connection with a 
loan that Hart received for its franchised business through the United States Small Business Association’s 
Federal Paycheck Protection Program. Subsequently, Spherion issued a supplemental notice of default 
and termination for later discovered payment defaults and misappropriation of funds by Hart. On April 7, 
2023, Spherion filed an action against Hart seeking declaratory judgment that Hart’s breaches constitute 
good cause for terminating the Franchise Agreement and asserting a breach of contract claim for failing 
to pay Spherion amounts owed.  On June 12, 2023, Hart filed an answer, affirmative defenses, and 
counterclaims against Spherion. Hart asserted a breach of contract claim against Spherion, seeking 
monetary damages, by alleging that Spherion wrongly terminated the Franchise Agreement and failed to 
pay Hart owed commissions.  Spherion disputes the merits of Hart’s counterclaims and plans to vigorously 
defend them.  Spherion then filed an amended complaint on July 3, 2023, to include an additional breach 
of contract claim that alleges that Hart is in breach of its post-termination obligations by working for a 
competing business, holding himself out as a former Spherion franchisee, and using confidential 
information, all in violation of the Franchise Agreement. The parties are currently in the discovery phase 
as of the issuance date of this disclosure document. 

Pending Actions – Other 

None. 

Prior Actions 

Cross & Associates of Gainesville, Inc. v. SFN Professional Services, LLC f/k/a Spherion Atlantic 
Enterprises, LLC, filed May 8, 2012, and as amended on September 4, 2012, in the Circuit Court of the 17th 
Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, FL, Case No. 12-13271 (25). Cross & Associates sued SFN 
Professional Services for breach of agreement. Plaintiff is a former franchisee which sold its business to 
us in May 2007 and entered into an Agreement to Terminate License. Plaintiff contended that its sole 
owner, director and officer was, at the time of the sale and as a result of developments in his personal 
life, so mentally deficient, unsound in mind, and of such diminished intellectual capacity that he was 
incapable of managing the ordinary affairs of his life, including the business. Plaintiff claimed that it was 
damaged in the sale of the business in the amount of $381,036.23. We answered as the franchisor and 
denied the allegations. On November 5, 2012, based upon language contained in the License Agreement 
and common law indemnification, we filed a third-party complaint against Trenchard M. Cross, the sole 
director and officer of Cross & Associates. We alleged that Trenchard M. Cross’s acts, errors, or omissions 
were the cause of any damages that may have been suffered by the plaintiff. The case was settled in 
September of 2014 with the payment by Spherion of $26,000 to Cross & Associates of Gainesville, Inc. 
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Other than this action, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.  

ITEM 4 
BANKRUPTCY 

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.  

ITEM 5 
INITIAL FEES 

Initial Franchise Fee 

You must pay us an initial franchise fee when you sign the Franchise Agreement. The initial 
franchise fee varies as described in the following paragraphs. 

A purchaser of an undeveloped market will pay us a franchise fee of $40,000. However, we offer 
the following discounts to eligible franchisees:  

Minority Discount: 25% 

If you are of a minority ethnic group under the US Small Business Administration rules, we offer a 
25% discount on the franchise fee—so you would pay us $30,000.  

Veteran Discount: 25% 

As a member of the International Franchise Association, we participate in the IFA’s VetFran 
program, offering a 25% discount on our initial franchise fee to veterans of the US armed forces who 
otherwise meet the requirements of the VetFran program—so if you meet those requirements, you would 
pay us $30,000.  

Staffing Industry Discount: 25% 

If you have a minimum of 5 years’ experience working within the general staffing industry and 
meet certain other criteria in our discretion, then we may offer a 25% discount on our franchise fee—so 
you would pay us $30,000. 

Multiple Agreement Discount: 25% to 35%  

If you, as the principal owner of a franchise with us, enter into another Franchise Agreement for 
a different undeveloped market location, also as the principal owner, we will reduce the initial franchise 
fee by 25% for the second Franchise Agreement and by 35% for each additional Franchise Agreement 
thereafter.  

If you enter into the Territory Development Agreement with us, your initial franchise fee will be 
calculated in accordance with this discount schedule. So, for example, if you enter into a Territory 
Development Agreement for 3 franchised store locations, your initial fee would be $96,000. You must pay 
the initial fee in full when signing the Territory Development Agreement, but thereafter you will not be 
required to pay an initial franchise fee when you sign the remaining franchise agreements that are 
required for the opening of the additional franchise office locations. 
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Conversion Discount:  

The owner of an existing business that provides services similar to those the Franchise Agreement 
authorizes and that wishes to convert to our franchise will pay a conversion fee of $10,000, in leiu of the 
$40,000 initial franchise fee, when we sign the Franchise Agreement.  

Affiliate Employee Discount: 

If you are an employee of a Randstad affiliated company and have been employed with the 
company for 3 or more years, for a new market we offer a 100% discount on the initial franchise fee if you 
sign a Spherion General Staffing Franchise Agreement, so you would not owe us any franchise fee.   

Area with Existing Business Discount: 

If you are an employee of a Randstad affiliated company and have been employed with the 
company for 3 or more years, or if you are an existing Spherion franchisee, and purchase an Area with 
existing business, then we offer a 100% discount on the initial franchise fee if you sign a Spherion General 
Staffing Franchise Agreement, so you would not owe us any franchise fee.   

* * * * * 

Only one of the eligible discounts described in this Item 5 will apply per Franchise Agreement. 

* * * * * 

If you sign the Professional Services Addendum, then you must pay us a $5,000 fee (the 
“Professional Services Fee”). The Professional Services Fee is due in a lump sum payment at the time you 
sign the Professional Services Addendum, is nonrefundable, and is fully earned by us upon receipt. 

* * * * * 

There is a transfer fee if you purchase an existing franchisee’s business. If you purchase the 
existing business of another Spherion franchisee, the transfer fee is e 50% of the then current 
undiscounted initial franchise fee for a Spherion franchise. The purchaser must deliver to us a signed copy 
of the purchase agreement, along with a certified or cashier’s check in the amount of the transfer fee, 
which we will keep as a deposit. If we approve the purchase, we will keep the deposit as a nonrefundable 
transfer fee, in lieu of the initial franchise fee described above. If we do not approve the purchase, or if 
we timely exercise our right of first refusal, we will immediately return the deposit. No discounts are 
available for the transfer fee.  

We will not refund any portion of the initial franchise fee after we sign the Franchise Agreement, 
but we reserve the right to do so in cases of hardship or unusual economic circumstances. Except as 
described in this Item 5, we have no intention, now or in the future, of reducing the initial franchisee fee 
for any prospective franchisee, although we reserve the right to do so in our sole discretion on a case-by-
case basis. 

Except as noted above, initial franchise and transfer fees are payable in lump sum. 
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ITEM 6 
OTHER FEES 

Name of Fee(1) Amount Date Due(2) Remarks 

Temporary Sales Fee  See Note 3. 

Within 30 days after 
the end of each 
Accounting Period (as 
defined in Note 2).  

See Note 4 for the definition of 
Temporary Gross Profits. 

Full-Time Placement Fee See Note 5. 
Within 30 days after 
the end of each 
Accounting Period. 

Computer System Support 
Fee 

$200 per site (subject to change 
on 30 days’ notice) 

We deduct this 
monthly from your 
commission. 

This fee for your “front office” 
system covers software upgrades 
and user support services from our 
corporate office (See Note 6). 

Management Information 
Services and Technology 
Enhancement Fee 
(MISTEF) 

1.5% of total gross payroll and full-
time placement sales  

We deduct this 
monthly from your 
commission. 

This fee for your “back office” 
system covers the payroll and billing 
services we perform (See Note 6). 

SHL Talent Central license 
fee 

Not currently passed on, but at 
this time the license fee is $484 
per site plus any applicable sales 
tax; and is subject to vendor 
increases. 

If we change our policy, 
we will deduct this 
from your commission 
annually. 

We currently pay this license fee for 
the computer software we provide 
to you for applicant testing. We 
may change this policy in the future, 
and charge it back to you (See Item 
11, Computer Systems). 

Candidate Management 
System Fee 

Currently, the cost to purchase 
additional licenses are: 
Non recruiter View Only License is 
$15 per month per license 
Non-Recruiter License is $110 per 
month per license  
Additional Franchisee Admin 
License is $110 per month per 
license  

We deduct this 
monthly from your 
commission. 

This is the mandatory AI driven 
candidate management system.  
We will cover the licenses for all of 
your recruiters, and one admin 
license. You may purchase 
additional licenses. 

Electronic Onboarding 
Package 

Not currently passed on at this 
time, but the current cost per 
onboarding package is as follows 
(subject to vendor increases): 
Tier 1 - .68 cents (500,001 - 
999,999) 
Tier 2 - .55 cents (1,000,000 - 
1,300,000) 
Tier 3 - .50 cents (1,300,000 +)  

If we change our policy, 
we will deduct this 
from your commission. 

We currently pay this transaction 
fee for each onboarding package 
you send. We may change this 
policy in the future, and charge it 
back to you. 

The Work Number (TWN) 

On average $56.00 per Verification 
of Employment Check (subject to 
vendor increases and package 
selected) 

We will deduct this 
from your commission 
statement monthly. 

The cost is the responsibility of the 
Franchisee and represented on the 
commission statement under Other 
Direct Expenses. 
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Name of Fee(1) Amount Date Due(2) Remarks 

Time and Expense 
Transaction Fee 

Not currently passed on at this 
time, but the current fees are as 
follows (subject to vendor 
increases): 
Proximity Card Dock: Monthly 
Employee Fee $1.10 per Active 
Employee per Month 
Virtual Time Capture: Fee $1.10 
per Active Employee per Month  

If we change our policy, 
we will deduct this 
from your commission. 

We currently pay this transaction 
fee for each employee. We may 
change this policy in the future, and 
charge it back to you.  

Gross Profit Quota 
Shortfall Fee 

Will vary under circumstances (see 
note 7) 

Within 30 days after 
billing 

Payable in each Fiscal Year in which 
you fail to attain the Gross Profit 
Quota contained in Schedule 2 of 
Franchise Agreement (See note 7). 

Spherion Marketing Fund 0.25% of Sales  
We deduct this from 
your commission or we 
may bill you monthly. 

We match your contributions by 
spending an equal amount on name 
awareness (See Item 11). 

Accounts Receivable 
Funding Fee on accounts 
receivable over 60 days 
old 

See Note 8. 
We deduct this from 
your monthly 
commission. 

Uncollectible customer 
billings 

Will vary under circumstances 
We deduct this from 
your monthly 
commission. 

See Note 9. 

Area Expansion 
Fee will be determined based on 
the market tier size of your 
franchised Area 

Upon signing an 
amendment to the 
Franchise Agreement 

You must pay this fee if we allow 
you to expand your Area. 

Temporary Employee 
wages 

Will vary under circumstances 
We deduct this from 
your monthly 
commission. 

We deduct from your commission 
any Temporary Employees’ wages 
we paid which we determine were 
based on forged, fraudulent, 
erroneous or improper time slips. 

Purchases from us or our 
affiliates 

Will vary under circumstances 
We deduct this from 
your monthly 
commission. 

We deduct from your commission 
all amounts you owe us or our 
affiliates for materials and services 
(See Note 10). 

Release from non-
competition covenants 

See Note 11. See Note 11. 
Applicable to Spherion General 
Staffing franchisees only. 

Indemnification Will vary under circumstances Upon demand 

You must reimburse us for any 
Losses and Expenses (as defined in § 
19(d) of the Franchise Agreement) 
resulting from certain of your acts 
or omissions. 

Materials or courses for 
additional (post initial) 
training 

Will vary depending on what is 
provided 

We deduct from your 
commission after you 
attend training. 

To cover the cost of courses or 
materials we may purchase from a 
third party vendor (See Note 12).  

Revenue sharing  
Amount of revenue sharing varies 
depending upon the 
circumstances.  

Reflected on your 
monthly commission 

Cooperative placements between 
Randstad and other Spherion 
franchisees may result in revenue 
sharing (See Note 13). 
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Notes to Item 6 Chart: 

1.  We impose and collect all fees. All fees are non-refundable. If you operate more than one 
office under the Franchise Agreement, all commissions will be consolidated and calculated as one office.  

2.  Except as otherwise noted, we will deduct fees from your commission within 30 days after 
the end of each Accounting Period or bill you directly for the amount you owe us. “Accounting Period” 
means one of twelve periods, which may be four, five or six week periods, approximately coinciding with 
the calendar months, as we specifically determine. We pay you your commission on (and we retain the 
balance of) the Temporary Gross Profits for the Accounting Period.  

3.  The commission split that we will pay you depends upon several factors. We pay new 
franchisees 75% and retain 25% of the Temporary Gross Profits. In addition, if an Area with existing 
business is sold to a new Franchisee, then we will pay 60% and retain 40% of the Temporary Gross Profits 
on the revenue generated from the existing business (all other business will be subject to the standard 
75%/25% split). In all other instances (new franchisees that are Company employees, the Area sold 
includes existing business and is sold to a current Franchisee or a Company employee, or you are an 
existing staffing company converting to Spherion), then we pay 60% and retain 40% of the Temporary 
Gross Profits. Please see the Chart below for reference:   

New Area sold to a 
new or existing 

Franchisee 

New Area sold to 
Company 
Employee 

Area with existing 
business sold to 

existing Franchisee or 
Company employee 

Area with existing 
business sold to new 

Franchisee 

Existing 
staffing 

company 

Commission split on 
Temporary Gross Sales 
Profits 

We pay you 75%, 
we retain 25% 

We pay you 60%, 
we retain 40% 

We pay you 60%, we 
retain 40% 

We pay you 60% 
generated from 

existing business, we 
retain 40% generated 

from 

We pay you 
60%, we retain 

40% 

If the net commission for any Accounting Period is less than zero, you must pay us the amount 
within 30 days after receiving notice of the amount due. If the amount remains unpaid we may deduct it 
from subsequent commission payments or collect it directly from you. 

In certain instances, we may adjust the commission for a specific franchisee for a temporary 
period of time to achieve specific objectives. 

4.  “Gross Profits” means the difference between Sales and Direct Costs during any 
Accounting Period or Fiscal Year. “Sales” means the U.S. Dollar equivalent of all billings (whether collected 
or not) to customers for services rendered by you, including Temporary Sales and Full-Time Placement 
Sales, and excluding only sales taxes or other taxes which applicable law may require you to collect from 
customers in connection with the provision of the services, and adjustments or refunds which we have 
authorized. “Direct Costs” means the sum of: (i) the temporary employee gross payroll and other direct 
labor costs (including payroll taxes, local, county or state headcount taxes and taxes based on sales or 
gross receipts which are not separately collected from customers); (ii) our accrued expenses (as we 
determine) relating to workers’ compensation, liability, bonding or other insurance and related allocations 
and deductibles, transportation, vacation, holiday or sick pay, profit sharing, health insurance or other 
fringe benefit costs, and any other tax or cost which is levied on or directly measured by headcount, sales, 
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hours, temporary employee wages which we pay or incur (including gross receipts tax) with respect to 
any Accounting Period or Fiscal Year; and (iii) the costs of any services, non-standard benefits, materials, 
equipment, products or other consumables which customers have agreed to pay and for which there is a 
separate charge on the invoice. “Temporary Sales” means the U.S. Dollar equivalent of all billings (whether 
collected or not) to customers for goods sold or services rendered by Temporary Employees you provide 
on our behalf,  and excluding only sales taxes or other taxes which you are required by law to collect from 
customers for the services you provide and adjustments or refunds which we have authorized. 
“Temporary Gross Profit” means the difference between Temporary Sales and Direct Costs associated 
with Temporary Sales during any Accounting Period or Fiscal Year.  

Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

We allocate back to you the costs we incur for providing workers’ compensation for the 
Temporary Employees as part of our Direct Costs (see above). Workers’ compensation is a significant cost, 
and can be a significant factor in determining your commission. The current Worker’s Compensation 
allocation system (in place since FY 2003) is described in the following five paragraphs:  

The basic premise of our workers’ compensation allocation system is that we allocate among our 
franchisees our Franchise Division’s workers’ compensation costs annually. We have determined it to be 
cost effective to purchase workers’ compensation insurance with a $2 million deductible (comprised of a 
$1 million deductible per claim and a $1 million “corridor” deductible). We buy insurance to cover claims 
over that. So the cost to be allocated is the premium for that insurance, plus the accrual for estimated 
costs of claims occurring during the year under $2 million, plus other costs to administer the program such 
as the cost of outside administration of the claims. That cost is allocated back to individual offices. 

Here is how we arrive at that cost to be allocated. There is a modifier (currently 1.0) which is 
multiplied times a composite state base rate for the type of position being filled by a Temporary Employee. 
Then there is the deductible per claim that is charged back to an individual office, plus the lost time 
surcharge that is also charged back to the office. The modifier is designed to allocate all program costs 
over and above the deductible and lost time surcharges. Each year, our Risk Management and Accounting 
Departments perform a financial analysis, estimate what the cost of the entire program will be for the 
coming year with the help of our outside actuaries, and using that cost estimate then calculate what the 
workers’ compensation burden rates need to be by job classification in order to cover the costs. At the 
end of the year, they do another analysis with the actuaries to determine an updated cost for the year 
(which includes, among other items, amounts paid on claims occurring during the year and estimates of 
the future costs of any of those claims which remain unresolved at year end) and compares that to what 
was charged during the year based on the initial estimates. In that end of year analysis, we determine 
whether we are over or under in the amounts allocated on your commission statements during the year 
for the workers’ compensation costs for the Division (see the next paragraph for more detail)—if the 
division allocation is over or under we will calculate a rebate or charge respectively for each owner based 
on the premiums paid during the year. Deficits will be charged out on your commission statements equally 
over the subsequent 12 month period. Once we have established the cost for a year, we do not adjust it 
in subsequent years up or down, even if subsequent actuarial reviews of prior years’ unresolved claims go 
up or down.  

On an Accounting Period basis, the allocation system is comprised of premium, deductible, and 
lost time charges. In each Accounting Period your commission statement will reflect premium amounts 
based on the job classifications in which the Temporary Employees are working. These classifications are 
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grouped together in segments to reduce the number of classifications. Each classification corresponds 
with your state’s rates (based on the most recent data available at budgeting time each year). 
Administrative and premium costs incurred by our insurer are added to the rates, which are then 
multiplied by the payroll and a modifier (presently at 1.0) to determine your premium charges. Deductible 
charges are presently $27,500 per claim of the incurred loss amount as determined by our third party 
adjustor. Lost Time surcharges are $2,500 per 30 days an employee is out of work, up to 150 days. The 
net result is that if you have serious claims, you can be charged up to $40,000 per claim, including lost 
time charges. The deductible amount can be substantially higher (up to $50,000 of the incurred loss 
amount, rather than $27,500) if an employee is injured while performing a “Restricted Task” without our 
express written consent. A “Restricted Task” is a particular job we have determined presents an inordinate 
risk of injury to our employees or for damages claims (see Schedule 2 to Exhibits A and B of this Disclosure 
Document, the Franchise Agreements) and cannot be filled without our approval. Additionally, for claims 
associated with Temporary Employees who have been placed or assigned by you to light industrial 
positions, we may add $1500 to your deductible for each claim where Company safety requirements 
related to such light industrial assignments have not been followed. 

The monthly workers’ compensation charges under this allocation system can result in cash flow 
problems if you do not plan accordingly. We offer two different financing options if you wish us to assist 
in smoothing cash flow problems which result from significant workers’ compensation claims out of your 
office.  

We may change this workers’ compensation allocation system from time to time. If you are in a 
state where there is a state mandated workers’ compensation program (such as Washington, North 
Dakota, Wyoming or West Virginia) our allocation system will not apply, and your premiums will be 
calculated in accordance with applicable state laws and regulations. 

Business Insurance 

We also deduct from payroll and thus allocate back to you as part of our Direct Costs those 
amounts needed to acquire insurance and to cover the costs, legal fees and expenses which are incurred 
before the insurance coverage is available (i.e. the “deductible”) and, in some cases, to also cover largely 
uninsurable risks such as claims under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). The insurance acquired is 
General Liability, Professional Liability, Auto, Fidelity and Employment Practices Liability insurance.  

General Liability and Professional Liability insurance coverage provides protection for the 
company against third party claims associated with Customers or the Temporary Employees. General 
Liability insurance covers the Company if someone were injured on a franchisee’s property (i.e., slip and 
fall), or if a Spherion Temporary Employee causes injury to someone else or damages the Customer’s 
property due to a negligent act. Professional Liability insurance covers the Company against third party 
claims for financial loss arising out of a negligent error or omission committed by a Temporary Employee 
in the course of their employment. Fidelity bond insurance protects the Company against Temporary 
Employee theft claims. Automobile insurance protects the Company against claims from automobile 
accidents involving owned and non-owned vehicles and automobile claims arise due to accidents that 
involve, not only our owned vehicles, but also uninsured or underinsured vehicles being driven by the 
Temporary Employees. Employment Practices Liability insurance coverage protects the Company against 
gender, race, ethnicity or age discrimination claims and discrimination in hiring, termination or benefits 
of employment claims and in some instances may protect the Company against certain large-scale wage 
and hour claims. 
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The Direct Costs for 2024 which are charged to franchisees in association with this are calculated 
so as to maintain a $500,000 reserve after all administration, insurance and forecasted claim expenses 
are paid. We may, from time to time on a year to year basis, change this amount. As noted above, the 
payroll amounts charged to franchisees are used (i) to purchase the above-described insurance and (ii) to 
cover the costs, legal fees and expenses (including settlements, judgments and penalties and so forth) 
which are incurred as part of the “retainage,” that is, the amount which must be paid before the insurance 
coverage becomes available and (iii) to also cover largely uninsurable risks such as claims under the Fair 
Labor Standards Act (FLSA).  

With respect to non-workers’ compensation claims associated with Temporary Employees who 
have been placed or assigned by you, a separate “deductible” is applied which you are first required to 
pay before payment from the collected funds and insurance coverage is invoked. Your general liability 
“deductible” is $25,000 per claim and is charged quarterly based on the incurred amounts of the claims. 
Your Professional/Fidelity Liability deductible is $25,000 per claim ($50,000 if the Temporary Employee 
was assigned to a Restricted Task) and is charged monthly based on incurred claim cost. The monthly rate 
charged for Automobile insurance has been incorporated into the General Liability/Professional 
Liability/Fidelity rate and the deductible is $25,000 per claim. Your Employment Practices Liability and 
FLSA-type claims deductible is $25,000 per claim ($50,000 if the employee was assigned to a Restricted 
Task) and is charged quarterly based on the incurred amounts of the claims.  

Healthcare and Benefits Coverage 

We allocate back to all franchisees, as a Direct Cost, the costs incurred in offering and providing 
healthcare and related benefits coverage (including, but not limited to, mandatory coverage under the 
Affordable Care Act (“ACA”)) to the Temporary Employees. We have worked with our franchisees to try 
to assist them in achieving such price increases from Customers as are necessary to cover the additional 
costs associated with providing healthcare and related benefits coverage, including the costs associated 
with ACA compliance. The suggested price increases were determined by estimating the total number of 
Temporary Employees who would enroll in benefits coverage against our estimated costs of providing 
coverage plus giving due consideration for increases in enrollments due to the ACA’s individual mandate, 
increases in our employer contributions due to the ACA’s affordability requirements for “full-time 
employees” (as that term is defined by the ACA) and anticipated annual cost increases for medical care 
and healthcare benefits generally. We also have additional administrative, reporting and communication 
costs with respect to the provision of healthcare and benefits coverage which are on top of these benefit 
costs and which also result in an increase in the Direct Cost allocation, and these were also built into the 
suggested price increases. It is our intention to continue to provide timely information to our franchisees 
regarding healthcare and related benefits costs so that efforts may be made to try to ensure that these 
amounts may be fully recovered by pricing to the Customers.  

It has been our experience that professional staffing placements are of a longer duration than 
general staffing placements and therefore the demand and the participation rates for professional staffing 
temporary employees are higher. As a result, in order to remain competitive in the recruitment and 
retention of professional temporary employees, we offer enhanced health insurance options for 
Temporary Employees placed in Professional Services positions. The higher cost for this coverage will be 
allocated to the owners with professional staffing placements. 

5.  We pay our Spherion General Staffing franchisees an 88% commission on (and we retain 
the 12% balance of) the Full-Time Placement Sales in each Fiscal Year.  
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“Full-Time Placement Sales” means the U.S. Dollar equivalent of all billings (whether collected or 
not) during an Accounting Period for all fees due from Full-Time Placements and retainer searches, 
including any liquidated damages and buy-outs relating to those Temporary Employees and excluding only 
sales taxes or other taxes which you are required by law to collect from customers in connection with the 
services you provide, and less any refund(s) or adjustment(s) given during that same Accounting Period. 
“Fiscal Year” means the 12 Accounting Periods currently beginning on or about January 1 of any year and 
ending on or about December 31 of such year, or any other period consisting of 12 Accounting Periods 
which we establish as our fiscal year. 

6.  We will begin providing on-line electronic data processing services at the time you open 
your office. As a Spherion General Staffing franchisee, you will pay us the Management Information 
Services and Technology Enhancement Fee (MISTEF) at the rate of 1.5% of the total gross payroll for 
Temporary Employees plus 1.5% of Full-Time Placement Sales in each Accounting Period. This fee covers 
full access and use of Spherion’s “back office” system for payroll processing and customer billing, back-up 
and data maintenance services, payroll checks, direct deposit and debit card transactions, time and payroll 
data entry and all accounts receivable. We have the right to deduct the MISTEF from your monthly 
commission, but this right will not limit your liability for the fee if we do not make this deduction, or if the 
fee exceeds the amount of your monthly commission. Currently, we pay the monthly communication and 
connectivity charges for the on-line electronic data processing. This practice may change in the future. 

We will also provide you with access and use of our “front office” Computer System (as defined 
in the Franchise Agreement). Our Spherion General Staffing franchisees will pay us a per site Computer 
System support fee of $200 per Accounting Period. This fee covers software upgrades and user support 
services provided by our Support Center via online chat, telephone or email.  

7.  We will establish Gross Profit Quotas based on temporary help payroll in your Area and 
the type of staffing services you are authorized to provide. You must attain or surpass these Gross Profit 
Quotas during each full calendar year. Gross Profit Quotas in U.S. Dollars for franchisees opening a new 
office, rather than buying an existing office, are: 

Market Size

GP 

Tier 4 Tier 3 Tier 2 Tier 1

General Staffing

Year 1 56,784 56,784 56,784 56,784

Year 2 113,568 113,568 113,568 113,568

Year 3 227,136 227,136 227,136 227,136

Year 4 340,704 340,704 340,704 340,704

Year 5 454,272 454,272 454,272 454,272

Year 6 467,900 499,699 511,056 567,840

Year 7 481,937 537,177 562,162 681,408

Year 8 491,576 564,035 604,324 783,619

Year 9 501,407 580,957 634,540 861,981

Year 10 511,436 598,385 653,576 905,080

The Gross Profit Quota Shortfall Fee you pay, if you do not attain the Gross Profit Quota, is an 
amount equal to our percentage of the Gross Profit Quota established for the particular Fiscal Year for 
which it would be due, calculated per Section 12(a) of the Franchise Agreement (and included in Note 3 
above), less our percentage of the actual Gross Profit for such year, calculated in the same way. The four 
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tiers are the largest markets to the smallest (largest being Tier 1) in temporary help payroll. The quotas 
will be set for each Fiscal Year, but will be determined using the above chart depending on the month you 
sign the Franchise Agreement. If you sign the Franchise Agreement in the November or December 
Accounting Period and you are opening a new office rather than buying an existing office, your quota for 
the first Fiscal Year will be waived, since there would be only one or two Accounting Periods for you in 
that Fiscal Year. If you are buying an existing office, the quota will be established using the above chart, 
factoring in the number of years the office has been open and factoring in the current gross profit levels 
of the office. For our existing franchisees, the quota for the renewal term will be established by 
considering several factors including, but not limited to, the market tier in which the franchisee operates 
as represented by the above chart, the quota in effect for the term immediately prior to the renewal term, 
the number of years the office has been open and the current gross profit levels of the office. Upon the 
transfer or termination of your Franchise Agreement, you will also be responsible for paying a pro-rated 
amount of the Gross Profit Quota Shortfall Fee.  

8.  We will reduce your commission by an Accounts Receivable Funding Fee, based on 
accounts receivable which are more than 60 days old at the end of each Accounting Period. The rate is 
calculated by multiplying the variable annual rate (which is the Prime Rate of interest quoted on the first 
business day of each Accounting Period in The Wall Street Journal plus one-and-a-half percentage points) 
by 30/365, with the result multiplied by the amount over 60 days ([Prime Rate + 1.5%] x 30/365 x AR over 
60 days). 

9.  We also will deduct from your commission: (i) the amount of previous billings to a 
customer that both you and we determine are uncollectible within 270 days from the date we billed the 
customer (except that a Customer’s bankruptcy or equivalent proceeding will automatically cause all 
previous billings to be considered uncollectible); and (ii) the amount of previous billings to a customer 
which remain uncollected 270 days from the date we billed the customer, regardless of any agreement 
between you and us, or evidence as to the ultimate collectability. We also will deduct from your 
commission the amount by which any customer account receivable over 90 days old exceeds the credit 
limit established according to our procedures for the customer by either 25% or $50,000. If we 
subsequently collect accounts receivable after we have deducted the applicable amounts from your 
commission, we will reimburse you for the net recovery. 

10.  We have relationships with certain affiliates, vendors and suppliers that provide materials 
and services that may be beneficial to you in the operation of your franchise. In many instances, we are 
able to leverage these relationships in order to make these services available to you, often at discounted 
rates. In these instances, we may pay for the cost of the materials or services and then deduct these costs 
from your commission, should you choose to take advantage of these opportunities. We have been able 
to offer a number of innovative and useful services to our franchisees in this way, including candidate 
video interviewing, work scheduling software, reference check services, social media and job board access 
and others.  

11.  If you are Spherion General Staffing franchisee and you elect to terminate the Franchise 
Agreement without cause after the initial term, you must provide us notice that you: (a) will discontinue 
operating the Franchised Business and abide by the non-competition provisions in the Franchise 
Agreement; or (b) request us to exercise our option described in Section 15(c) of the Franchise Agreement. 

If you notify us as in (a) above, you must discontinue your business and abide by the non-
competition provisions. If you fail to do so, we are entitled to either (i) pursue our rights at law and in 
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equity for your breach of contract which rights include, but are not be limited to, all damages plus the 
right to require that you immediately discontinue your operation of the Franchised Business, and 
thereafter faithfully honor and abide by each of the terms and conditions set forth in Sections 5 and 18 of 
the Agreement or (b) require that you pay to us upon demand, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, 
an amount equal to eight (8) times the Sales of the Franchised Business for the twelve (12) full Accounting 
Periods immediately preceding the date of expiration, or the effective date of termination, as applicable, 
of this Agreement multiplied by 9.5%. 

If you notify us as in (b) above, we may either (i) allow you to continue operating, if you pay us 
four times (4x) 6.5% of the Sales of your business for its last 12 accounting periods, with a minimum 
required payment of $75,000 (which you must pay in four equal quarterly payments, plus interest, with a 
pledge of your trade receivables and the personal guarantee of your shareholders) and you discontinue 
the use of the Spherion trademark, abide by certain of the non-competition provisions, and you execute 
documents of transfer and comply with other conditions as set forth more fully in Section 15(c)(1) of the 
Franchise Agreement; or (ii) purchase the assets of your business (except cash and accounts and notes 
receivable) from you for the lesser of either the Gross Profit of your business for its last 6 monthly 
accounting periods or ½ of the Gross Profit of your business for its last 12 monthly accounting periods. In 
that case you must transfer all assets free from any liens or other defects of title; and we will assume no 
liabilities of your business, may deduct from the purchase price any amounts you owe us or other creditors 
and shall pay the purchase price in eight equal quarterly payments, plus interest. Certain provisions of the 
Franchise Agreement will remain in effect for the period described in the Franchise Agreement, or the 
period during which the purchase price is payable, whichever is longer. 

12.  We sometimes ask you to reimburse us for the cost of a course or training materials we 
offer after your initial training and we may require that you pay any and all charges associated with such 
continuing training programs as we may reasonably require. Further, if your operations are such that it is 
deemed by us to be necessary that we send a company representative to your location to conduct training 
for you and your staff, you will be required to pay all travel, hotel and meal expenses associated with that 
representative’s visit plus an additional training fee which is described in the Manual (as described below 
in Item 11 and as defined in the Franchise Agreement).  

13.  The Area that you have been granted under your Franchise Agreement may be in close 
proximity to another Spherion franchised office and/or a Randstad office. In such cases, if you engage a 
temporary employee or an applicant/candidate who is or has been engaged by another Spherion 
franchisee or Randstad, your engagement of the temporary employee/applicant/candidate may be 
subject to revenue sharing in accordance with the Company’s protocols for such circumstances, which will 
be made available to you as part of our Manual (as described below in Item 11 and as defined in the 
Franchise Agreement). 
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ITEM 7 
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

Type of Expenditure Amount 
Method of 
Payment When Due 

To Whom Payment is to be 
Made 

Initial Franchise Fees1/ $40,000 Lump sum Execution Us 

Computer System 
Hardware2/ $0 to $7,300 Lump sum 

Debited Against 
Monthly Commission 

Statement 

Dell Computer Corporation, 
Hewlett-Packard, other 
suppliers and us 

Real Property3/ $3,500 to $7,000 Monthly As Arranged Lessor 

Furniture and Fixtures4/ $15,500 to $35,000 As Arranged As Incurred Suppliers, Contractors 

Leasehold Improvements5/ $10,000 to $15,000 As Arranged As Incurred Suppliers, Contractors 

Signs6/ $2,000 to $8,000 As Arranged As Incurred Suppliers, Contractors 

Equipment7/ $500 to $15,000 As Arranged As Incurred Suppliers 

Opening Advertising8/ $7,500 to $12,500 As Arranged As Incurred Suppliers 

Training Expenses9/ $5,625 to $9,375 As Arranged As Arranged Suppliers 

Start-up Supplies10/ $510 to $1,050 As Arranged As Arranged As Arranged 

Insurance11/ $2,100 to $7,850 As Arranged As Incurred Insurers 

Utility Expenses12/ $160 to $1,100 As Arranged As Incurred Lessor, Utility Companies 

Professional Fees13/ $1,050 to $5,200 As Arranged As Incurred Professionals 

Business Licensees14/ $160 to $1,100 As Arranged As Incurred Government Agency  

Hardware Installation  $720 to $1,100 As Arranged As Incurred Spherion Preferred Vendor 

Additional Funds for 11 
months15/ $125,000 to $176,000 

TOTAL16/ $214,325 to $342,575 

Notes to Item 7: The amount in the charts represent pre-opening expenses for a new market; 
however these expenses will vary if you are purchasing an existing location. Except as otherwise described 
below, all expenses are non-refundable. 

1. Item 5 of this Disclosure Document describes the initial franchise fee and the 
circumstances in which it may be discounted. Neither we nor our affiliates provide financing for the initial 
franchise fee. If you enter into our Territory Development Program, your initial franchise fee will be higher, 
depending on the number of additional franchised store locations that are included with your Territory 
Development Agreement.  

2. As of the issuance date of this disclosure document through December 31, 2024, we are 
offering an incentive for people to sign a new Franchise Agreement for a General Staffing Franchise, 
wherein we will provide you with the Computer System Hardware for up to 3 people that you will need in 
order to operate your business. The estimated low amount reflects your estimated initial investment if 
you accept this incentive package. The estimated high amount reflects your estimated cost if you elect to 
purchase your Computer Hardware System or if you sign a Franchise Agreement when we are no longer 
offering the incentive.  

3. You do not need to purchase real estate for your business. You may operate your business 
from an office that is located in a place suitable for conducting your business. The location, size, 
appearance and layout of each office are subject to our approval and must meet our established 
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standards. The cost of leasing space will vary depending primarily upon the location. For our Spherion 
General Staffing franchisees, you will need approximately 1,500 square feet of space for your business, 
and we estimate that average annual lease cost for the premises of your business will range from $25 to 
$45 per square foot. The estimates provided in the chart above are for one (1) month. To quick start your 
opening, we may approve a short term lease for shared office or coworking space. 

4. This estimate is for the furniture and fixtures you will need to operate your business, such 
as desks, chairs, file cabinets and other common office furniture. Each office must be appropriately 
furnished, subject to our standards and guidelines. We have made arrangements with a third party office 
furniture supplier to provide you with approved options for furnishing your office.  

5. Leasehold improvements will vary on a case by case basis and may depend on many 
factors, including, but not limited to, the size, current condition of the premises and, if applicable, your 
landlord’s willingness to include such terms. Financing may be available through your landlord/lessor or 
third parties. If you finance, the costs incurred will be yours.  

6. You must purchase and display an exterior sign that complies with our standards and 
requirements, if such rights can be obtained at your approved office location. All office signs must meet 
our standards, including signs placed on the exterior or interior of the office, and are subject to our 
approval.  

7. You will need to purchase or lease certain items of equipment including a telecom system 
and similar office equipment. You must purchase the telecom system from us, the costs of which will be 
a pass through, and therefore, the price of the telecom system will vary depending upon market 
conditions. If you provide light industrial services, you may need to purchase safety equipment for your 
employees. You are not required to purchase a security system, but the high estimate assumes that you 
will purchase one.  

8. Before opening your business, you may place office opening print ads, internet/social 
media ads or radio ads. Actual cost will depend on the type of advertising you choose. In addition, 
Spherion will provide (at no cost to you) a supply of miscellaneous promotional materials, which will 
include a mix of promotional giveaway items, as well as free press releases. 

9. You will incur expenses associated with our initial training program. For this training 
program, we provide instructors and instructional materials. You must pay for transportation, lodging, 
food and wages for you and your employees. The cost will depend on the distance you must travel to the 
training location and the type of accommodations you choose. 

10. We will provide, at no cost to you, electronic access to a supply of forms, manuals, 
supplies and printed materials. You will need to purchase other general office supplies. 

11. You must obtain and maintain the types and amounts of insurance described in Section 
7(q) of the Franchise Agreement. The amount in the chart represents pre-opening expenses. In rare 
circumstances, you may need to pay the entire annual premium initially.  

12. You will need to arrange for service and provide deposits for utilities (telephone 
electricity, water, etc.). Accounts for utilities must be in your name or if applicable in your corporate 
entity’s name and cannot be in the name of Spherion. The amount of the deposits will vary depending 
upon the location of your business and the practices of the utility companies and Lessor. 
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13. We recommend that you employ an attorney, accountant and other consultants. 

14. You must obtain a license to provide employment services in certain states.  

15. You will need to support ongoing expenses, such as advertising fees, and office payroll, to 
the extent these costs are not covered by commissions. These numbers include estimated salaries for one 
salesperson and one recruiter for general staffing franchisees, and one salesperson and two recruiters for 
General Staffing franchisees with a Professional Staffing Services Addendum, which will be affected by 
external factors such as local market conditions, experience of the workers, and the economy. New 
businesses often initially generate negative cash flow. We estimate that the amount stated will be 
sufficient to cover on-going expenses for the first eleven (11) months you are in business. However, you 
may need additional funds during or after this initial phase. Local market conditions will affect the amount 
of additional funds you need.  

16. We relied on our years of experience. The figures in the chart are only estimates. Your 
actual investment and costs may vary depending on many factors including where your office is located, 
the size of your office, your ability to negotiate with your landlord and the amount contributed by your 
landlord, if any. Additionally, your costs will depend on factors such as local economic conditions, your 
management skill, your business experience and business acumen, the prevailing wage rate and the 
growth of your franchise during the initial period.  

Start-up financing is offered by us for franchisees opening new markets, subject to credit analysis 
and availability of funds and other criteria that we may require. We may finance a portion of your start-
up expenses, up to a total financed amount of $200,000 (a “Start-up Loan”), or, if you buy an existing 
office of Spherion or one of our affiliated companies, we may finance a portion of the purchase price (a 
“Purchase Loan”), in either case depending on our analysis of your credit needs and the credit risk 
involved.  

ITEM 8 
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

You must have our advance approval of the location, size, appearance and layout of each office. 
Approval comes from the pre-opening manager working with you to open your office or the field manager 
assigned to support you. If you lease the premises for your office, the lease should specifically provide 
that it will be assignable to us at our sole discretion, upon termination of the Franchise Agreement for any 
reason. Each office must be appropriately furnished, subject to our standards and guidelines.  

You must use our proprietary software which is licensed to you as part of the Spherion System 
under the Franchise Agreement (Exhibits A and B to this Disclosure Document). You must also lease or 
purchase computer hardware and license third party software from us and other suppliers as specified by 
us. (Item 11 lists the software and hardware that make up the Computer System.) The Computer System 
will serve as the “front office” system for your business and will also access the “back office” functions of 
payroll and invoicing. We provide online and telephone support for the Computer System, and we require 
that the Computer System components be supplied only from the suppliers specified in Item 11 and us. 
Not only does this arrangement give us a uniform and reliable system to work with, but it also allows you 
and us to purchase or lease components of the Computer System from suppliers at a quantity discount 
price. Otherwise, we do not provide any material benefit to you based on your use of suppliers. We 
develop specifications and standards for the Computer System based on our experience with prior 
systems, and we anticipate we will occasionally modify, upgrade or enhance the front office and back 
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office software and Computer System requirements. We will communicate any modifications in the 
specifications and standards in sufficient time for you to make required changes.  

You must purchase all your business forms, advertising, signs, brochures, promotional material 
and similar materials in accordance with our specifications and prior approval. You may purchase them 
from another supplier or from us. We will provide you with certain manuals that describe our 
specifications for the proper use of the trade names and service marks in advertising materials.  

You must purchase and display an exterior sign that complies with our standards and 
requirements, if such rights can be obtained at your approved office location.  

You must purchase and continuously maintain certain insurance coverage for the operation of 
your business. We do not require you to buy coverage from any particular vendor. The required insurance 
coverage you must obtain is set forth in Section 7(q) of the Franchise Agreements, attached to this 
Disclosure Document as Exhibits A and B.  

For our Spherion General Staffing franchisees, we estimate that your purchases and leases in 
accordance with our specifications will represent approximately 35% to 50% of your total purchases and 
leases in connection with establishing your business and 21% to 81% of your total purchases and leases 
in the continuing operation of your business.  

Spherion does not derive revenue from required purchases and leases of products and services 
to its franchisees. All amounts collected from franchisees are generated from fees disclosed in Items 5 
and 6, or are pass-through amounts and are reported as a reduction of operating expenses, rather than 
revenue. 

We reserve the right to receive payments from suppliers based on their sales to our franchisees. 
As of the issuance date of this disclosure document, we receive a rebate from American Express in 
connection with a select number of franchisees or their employees that use a designated Randstad 
American Express card in an amount that on average is equal to approximately 1% of the total card spend 
(but in some cases it may be higher). We have negotiated purchase arrangements, including price terms, 
with suppliers for the benefit of our franchisees. We may periodically assist our franchisees in organizing 
purchasing cooperatives. No Spherion officer owns any interest in any supplier.  

We consider a variety of factors when determining whether to renew or grant additional 
franchises. Among the factors we consider is compliance with the requirements described above.  

ITEM 9
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help 
you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this 
Disclosure Document. 
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Obligation Section in Agreement 
Item in Disclosure 

Document 

a.   Site selection and 
acquisition/lease 

§§ 4 and 7 of Franchise Agreement  Items 7 and 8  

b.   Pre-opening purchases/leases  §§ 7 and 9 of Franchise Agreement Items 5, 7 and 8  

c.   Site development and other pre-
opening requirements 

§ 7 of Franchise Agreement  Items 5, 7 and 8  

d.   Initial and ongoing training § 7 of Franchise Agreement Items 7 and 11 

e.   Opening § 7 of Franchise Agreement Item 11 

f.   Fees 
§§ 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13 of Franchise Agreement, and 
Schedule 1 of Franchise Agreement  

Items 5, 6, 7 and 10 

g.   Compliance with standards and 
policies/Manual 

§§ 3, 7 and 22 of Franchise Agreement Items 8, 11 and 14 

h.   Trademarks and proprietary 
information 

§§ 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 17, 18, 21 and 26 of Franchise Agreement Items 13 and 14 

i.   Restrictions on products/services 
offered 

§ 4 of Franchise Agreement, and Schedule 2 of Franchise 
Agreement (Restricted Jobs) 

Items 8 and 16 

j.   Warranty and customer service 
requirements 

§ 7 of Franchise Agreement Item 16 

k.   Territorial development and gross 
profit quotas 

§§ 4 and 7 and Schedule 3 of Franchise Agreement Items 6, 12 and 17 

l.   Ongoing product/service 
purchases 

§ 7 of Franchise Agreement Items 6, 7, 8 and 11 

m.   Maintenance, appearance and 
remodeling requirements 

§§ 7, 9 and 10 of Franchise Agreement Item 7 

n.   Insurance § 7 of Franchise Agreement Items 5, 7 and 8 

o.   Marketing & Advertising §§ 7 and 10 of Franchise Agreement Items 5, 6, 7 and 8  

p.   Indemnification § 19 of Franchise Agreement Item 6 

q.   Owner’s participation, 
management and staffing 

§ 7 of Franchise Agreement Item 15 

r.   Records/reports § 7 of Franchise Agreement Item 6 

s.   Inspections/audits § 7 of Franchise Agreement None 

t.   Transfer §§ 5 and 14 of Franchise Agreement Item 17 

u.   Renewal 
§ 13 of Franchise Agreement; § 16 of Franchise Agreement 
(General Staffing franchisees only) 

Item 17 

v.   Post-termination obligations 
§§ 17 and 18 of Franchise Agreement; § 16 of Franchise 
Agreement (General Staffing franchisees only) 

Item 17 

w.   Non-competition covenants §§ 5 and 18 of Franchise Agreement Item 17 

x.   Dispute resolution § 27 of Franchise Agreement Item 17 

y.   Taxes/permits § 7 of Franchise Agreement Items 6, 7 and 10 

ITEM 10 
FINANCING

Generally, you must secure your initial and continuing capital from your own sources. You should 
note that because of the structure of our franchise we do, in effect, finance the temporary payroll, since 
we pay the Temporary Employees, and then bill the clients. Your monthly remittance from us is based on 
the amounts billed the client. You do not pay a carrying charge on this “float” until you begin to pay 
interest on your share of the receivable after the account is 60 days old. If we write off the account, or if 
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the account remains outstanding after 270 days, we charge you back 100% of the account. (Accounts 
Receivable Funding Fee on Accounts Receivable over 60 days old and Uncollectible Customer Billings.) 

Start-Up Financing  

Start-up financing is offered by us for franchisees opening new markets, subject to credit analysis 
and availability of funds and other criteria that we may require in our sole discretion. We may finance a 
portion of your start-up expenses, up to a total financed of $200,000 (a “Start-up Loan”). If you buy an 
existing office operated by us or one of our affiliated companies, we may, in our discretion, finance a 
portion of the purchase price (a “Purchase Loan”), depending on our analysis of your credit needs and the 
credit risk involved. In either case, you repay the amount financed in installments over 5 years with 
interest at the Prime Rate as published in The Wall Street Journal plus a set percentage (the “Additional 
Percentage”) at the closing. The Additional Percentage will depend on our Start-up Loan/Purchase Loan 
program at the time you sign your franchise agreement with us and additional factors relating to our 
analysis of your individual credit risk. As of the date of this Disclosure Document, the Additional 
Percentage for our Start-up/Purchase Loan program is 5%. As of March 21, 2024, the Prime Rate was 8.5%. 
As a result, the initial monthly interest rate for a Start-up or Purchase Loan funded on that date would 
have been 13.5%. Because there are no fees associated with this loan other than interest, this translates 
into an “Annual Percentage Rate,” as defined under the Federal Consumer Credit Protection Act, of 13.5%, 
assuming you paid no fees other than interest, and agreed to repay the loan in 60 EQUAL monthly 
installments. 

For a Start-up Loan, funds are available either in a lump sum of the approved amount or can be 
requested in minimum draws of $25,000 (“Line of Credit”), not to exceed the approved amount. If a lump 
sum is elected, the loan will be funded simultaneous with the execution of a Promissory Note.  If a Line of 
Credit is elected, the initial draw must be made within 90 days of execution of the Line of Credit 
documentation, and subsequent draws up to the full approved amount must be requested within 2 years. 
For both the lump sum and Line of Credit options, the interest rate will be determined as described above, 
and all principal and interest must be repaid within 60 months of initial funding. 

For a Purchase Loan, you pay the principal and interest in equal monthly payments over 60 
months.  

If we grant you a Start-up Loan or a Purchase Loan, you must sign a promissory note (“Promissory 
Note”), a security agreement (“Security Agreement”) and a Guaranty with us. The promissory note 
requires Spherion to notify you of a default in payment and permits you no cure period (Promissory Note). 
The following are also defaults under the Promissory Note: 

(a) Termination of the Franchise Agreement; 

(b) Sale, assignment, transfer, subfranchise or encumbrance of the Franchise Agreement or 
right of franchisee in the Franchise Agreement; 

(c) Default under any other Franchise Agreement franchisee has with us; 

(d) Default under the Security Agreement. 

You waive any requirements that we take formal steps before we can obtain payment from you 
(Promissory Note). The note contains no other waiver of defenses or similar provisions. If you are 
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incorporated, the shareholders must guarantee the note (Promissory Note). The Guaranty is 
unconditional, so upon default, Spherion may proceed directly against the individual guarantors without 
first suing the corporate franchisee (Promissory Note). The Guaranty involves no other waiver of defenses 
or similar provisions. You may prepay the note without penalty (Promissory Note). Payment of the note 
may accelerate on default in payment (Promissory Note). In all loans, you must give us a security interest 
in the going concern value of your franchise, the furniture, fixtures and equipment used in your franchised 
business, and all other assets of the franchised business, including any other intangible assets, such as any 
lease you have for the franchised business, and the telephone numbers of your franchise. You agree that 
Spherion will always have a first priority security interest unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Spherion 
and you. A copy of the Promissory Note, Guaranty and Security Agreement used in both the Purchase 
Loan and Start-up Loan are found at Exhibits E and F, respectively, to this Disclosure Document.  

Workers’ Compensation Financing 

We offer two financing options in connection with our workers’ compensation allocation 
program, as discussed in Footnote 4 to Item 6 of this Disclosure Document. Workers’ compensation is a 
significant cost and can be a significant factor in determining your commission. The workers’ 
compensation charges under this allocation system can result in cash flow problems, if you do not plan 
accordingly. We offer two different financing options if you wish us to assist in that regard. The first is a 
leveling system, which is referred to as our standard financing option or our pay-as-you-go option, where 
we spread repayment of the amount due by capping the amount charged back to you in any Accounting 
Period at 150% of your average historical workers’ compensation expense as a % of payroll for the rolling 
previous 12 Accounting Periods, then deducting any excess over that amount in the following Accounting 
Period(s) (subject to the cap) until the full amount has been deducted. This cap may be increased to 200% 
if your amount due exceeds your amount paid for 3+ months. In the second option, which is referred to 
as our loss fund option, we would project what your anticipated workers’ compensation costs might be 
under the allocation system during the coming Fiscal Year, and then deduct 1/12th of that amount per 
Accounting Period during the course of the Fiscal Year. The calculation is adjusted at the beginning of the 
year and at mid-year. We reserve the right to adjust the calculation if it appears there will be a significant 
shortfall. At the end of the Fiscal Year, we compare the amount deducted to your actual charges under 
the allocation system, and refund to you any overage, or charge you for any shortfall. Under option 2, we 
would not pay or charge you interest related to the amount accrued during the year, regardless of 
whether you were over or under at the end of the year. 

If you have chosen option 2 under the workers’ compensation program and you owe us money at 
the end of the year, you must pay it in a lump sum. In cases where you cannot pay the balance, you may 
apply for up to a 12 month loan. The terms of the financing would be the same as those discussed above 
relating to the purchase of an existing office, except it would be financed only over 12 months, and must 
give us a security interest in the going concern value of your franchise, the furniture, fixtures and 
equipment used in your franchised business, and all other assets of the franchised business, such as any 
lease you have for the franchised business, and the telephone numbers of your franchise. The purchase 
loan is also cross-defaulted to the Franchise Agreement and to the Security Agreement, while this loan is 
not. Under this loan, you have a 10-day notice and right to cure period, which is not available in the 
purchase loan. A copy of the Promissory Note, Guaranty and Security Agreement used with this workers’ 
compensation year-end loan are included in this Disclosure Document as Exhibit F.  
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Computer System Purchase Loan 

Subject to our prior approval, we will finance all or part of the cost of your Computer System (a 
“Computer System Purchase Loan”). The terms of financing would be the same as for the financing for 
option 2 under the workers’ compensation program discussed immediately above (up to 12 months 
financing, with a security interest in the going concern value of your franchise, the furniture, fixtures and 
equipment used in your franchised business, and all other assets of the franchised business, such as any 
lease you have for the franchised business, and the telephone numbers of your franchise). The Promissory 
Note, Guaranty and Security Agreement used with the Computer System Loan are substantially similar to 
those used for the workers’ compensation year-end loan that is included in this Disclosure Document as 
Exhibit F.  

Sale and Assignment of Loan Documents 

We presently do not sell or assign franchisee loans to others nor have we done so in the past. We 
reserve the right to change this policy in the future. 

* * * * * 

As described above, we receive interest income from franchisees that obtain financing from us. 
We do not receive payments from any lenders as a result of any financing extended by them to our 
franchisees. We do not guarantee any obligations you may make to others. 

We may change or discontinue our financing program at any time. In isolated cases, we may also 
offer financing arrangements outside of our regular programs. The terms and conditions of financing in 
these isolated situations will depend on the circumstances of each case. You should not assume we would 
be willing to offer any special financing to you. 

ITEM 11 
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING 

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance. 

Below are our obligations to you if you are entering a new undeveloped market. Except as listed 
below, we need not provide any assistance to you. 

Pre-Opening Obligations 

Before you open for business, we will provide the following assistance and services to you. 

1. We will provide you with the training, instruction, confidential memoranda, manuals, 
software, security policy and other materials we deem necessary and proper for your conduct of your 
business. (Franchise Agreement Section 6(a)) 

2. Installation and testing of the Computer System at your premises. (Franchise Agreement 
Section 9) 

3. We will assist you in selecting an area in which you must establish a location for the office, 
subject to our approval. In approving the location, we will look at such things as the proximity to potential 
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temporary staffing employees and direct hire candidates, appearance and atmosphere of the location, 
ease of access, etc. We will provide you with guidance on the layout of the office based on your market, 
subject to our specifications and approval. Other than the agreed-upon deadline for establishing your 
office, the Franchise Agreement does not specify a time limit for us to approve or disapprove your selected 
site. Each office lease is to be signed by Franchisee or Franchisee’s entity. (Franchise Agreement Sections 
4 and 7) 

Continuing Obligations 

During your operation of your business, we must provide the following assistance and services to 
you: 

1. Make available for your purchase and use the forms, supplies and printed materials 
necessary to provide the goods and services authorized by the Franchise Agreement. (Franchise 
Agreement Section 6) 

2. Make available for your purchase and use standardized sales and promotional programs, 
campaigns and materials to assist you in recruiting Temporary Employees and permanent placement 
candidates and/or marketing the services the Franchise Agreement authorizes. (Franchise Agreement 
Section 6) 

3. List you on the advertising materials we deem appropriate. (Franchise Agreement 
Section 6) 

4. Based on information you provide to us, prepare and pay the weekly payroll for 
Temporary Employees, including payroll taxes and other direct labor costs, prepare and deliver invoices 
to the customer for full-time placements and for services performed by Temporary Employees, and 
provide all other management information services and equipment previously discussed. (Franchise 
Agreement Sections 6 and 8) 

5. Remit to you your commission on temporary sales gross profits and full-time placement 
sales and provide you with a monthly commission statement. (Franchise Agreement Sections 8 and 12) 

6. Provide advice and guidelines in handling customer collections. (Franchise Agreement 
Section 6) 

7. Arrange and pay for accrued expenses relating to insurance, as we deem necessary and 
proper. We determine the amount of accrued workers’ compensation expense to be included in Direct 
Costs so that the accrued expense reflects, in our sole judgment, an appropriate allocation of your share 
of our total workers’ compensation expense. This allocation may be based on experience rating formulas 
we select and/or may include adjustments for Sales volume, exposure and experience. Workers’ 
compensation expense includes insurance premiums, claim costs, the cost of any self-insurance program 
and other administrative expenses directly related to workers’ compensation. (Franchise Agreement 
Section 6) 

8. Provide access to market data to support the identification of prospective customers and 
candidates. (Franchise Agreement Section 6) 

9. Match the Marketing Fund fee you pay. (Franchise Agreement Section 10) 
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Marketing & Advertising 

As a Spherion General Staffing franchisee, you must contribute 0.25% of your Sales each month 
to a national marketing and advertising fund that we maintain (the “Marketing Fund”). We match the 
contributions by our franchisees to the Fund by spending an equal amount on marketing and advertising. 
The Franchise Agreement does not require our company-owned offices (if any) to contribute to the 
program. As a result of the merger reorganization in fiscal 2012, we do not have any company-owned 
offices. The only exception will be if we temporarily operate an office that we acquired through re-
purchase or franchise agreement termination, pending re-sale. (Franchise Agreement Section 10) 

We may commingle the funds that you and we contribute for marketing and advertising and use 
these funds to purchase, rent or otherwise acquire media space, social media programs, online and public 
relation programs or time for advertising, or for production costs. We may use the funds for research, 
development and execution of thought leadership initiatives and supporting materials and for branded 
promotional products and materials. We will have complete and absolute discretion in the conduct of 
marketing and advertising, and in the expenditure of all marketing and advertising funds, including those 
you contribute. We retain the right to discontinue the marketing and advertising program, but if we do, 
we will notify you and also discontinue the fees you pay for the program. 

We disseminate the Marketing Fund through marketing, advertising, thought leadership, social 
media, public relations, digital marketing (including SEO, SEM & SEA), and direct marketing programs, and 
make materials available for your use in your local and/or regional advertising needs. We use our in-house 
staff, as well as national and regional advertising and marketing agencies, to produce marketing initiatives 
such as advertisements, direct mail and digital marketing materials. If we do not spend all of the funds in 
the year in which they accrue, we will spend them in the next fiscal year. We do not have the Marketing 
Fund audited. We discuss the way in which we spend the marketing and advertising funds at our semi-
annual meetings or you can get that information from us on request. We are not required to spend any 
amount on advertising in your Area. We do not use any money you contribute to the Marketing Fund that 
is principally a solicitation for the sale of franchises. Except as described above, neither we nor any affiliate 
receives any payment for providing goods or services to our marketing and advertising program. We do 
not require you to participate in local or regional advertising cooperatives or other advertising funds. 

As of the issuance date of this disclosure document, we do not have a formal advertising council 
composed of franchisees. 

Our Franchisee contributions to the Marketing Fund in the fiscal year ended 2023 were 
$1,214,868. Our total marketing and advertising expenditures for the fiscal year ended 2023 were 
approximately $2,565,888, broken down as follows:*  

Public Relations and Research $70,602 2.8%
Web/SEO $2,765 0.1%
Administration $849,027 33.1%
Recruiting/Sales Campaigns $948,088 36.9%
Branding $521,492 20.3%
Technologies $173,914 6.8%
Total: $2,565,888 100%
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* We had a carryover from 2022 which was spent in 2023. If we do not spend all of the funds in 
the year in which they accrue, we will spend them in the next fiscal year. Note that up until 2019, the 
Marketing Fund had been referred to as the “Brand Awareness Fund.” In 2019, it was rebranded in name 
only. 

In addition to your contribution to the Marketing Fund, you are expected to invest in local 
marketing. Local marketing expenditures may include local customer advertising in various media 
including SEM (search engine marketing), SEO (search engine optimization) & other digital advertising, 
social media, email & text/SMS marketing, out-of-home/billboard, TV/cable/YouTube video ads, radio, 
grass-roots marketing (flyers, posters and other traditional & digital collateral), sponsorships and event-
related marketing, or such other methods as permitted in accordance with our Manual. If you do not 
purchase marketing and advertising materials from us or our affiliate, the materials you use must follow 
our official brand guidelines and conform to the theme, design and content of the marketing we use. You 
must obtain our approval of the materials in writing before using them. Periodically we may implement 
incentive programs in which we may reimburse a portion of your local advertising expenses if you meet 
certain criteria. We may change or eliminate these programs at any time. Items 6, 8 and 9 provide more 
information on marketing and advertising. 

Computer Systems  

We use a sophisticated and integrated PeopleSoft front and back office system. It is a web-based 
system with all data and primary application programs residing in a Tier 1 data center. The Computer 
System is an integrated front and back office web-based PeopleSoft system for applicant tracking, 
retrieval, order fulfillment, pay/bill functions and financial reporting. 

In addition, we use an AI driven candidate management system designed to manage the front end 
of the recruiting process with functionality to source, match, engage, and qualify candidates through a 
combination of tech and touch. This candidate management system is fully integrated with the PeopleSoft 
front and back office system.

You must obtain the PC hardware, third party software components and printers through us. We 
reserve the right in the future to change our standard specifications and sources of supply. PC hardware 
must conform to Spherion’s standard image. You will be responsible for all maintenance on your 
hardware. The approximate cost for a standard laptop is $1,200 plus tax and shipping. 

The current hardware installation pricing is as follows:  

● Standard Installation includes communications equipment, 3 laptops, 2 Chromebases and 
1 Printer. The cost is between $700 and $1000.

● Installation for each additional PC will cost approximately $120 each; any other devices 
will cost approximately $100 each.

We will initially install and configure the Computer System hardware and software at your office 
location. You must reimburse us for the direct costs involved in that installation. We will provide hardware 
support for warranty issues while the device is covered by the manufacturer’s warranty (e.g. hard drive 
replacement). After the manufacturer’s warranty has expired, for up to one year, we will continue to 
provide software updates and security patching only, but no hardware items will be covered. 
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We will loan to you a router and a switch to enable you to connect to our network for the duration 
of your Franchise Agreement. You must provide the network cabling and a suitable operating environment 
for the Computer System as uniformly specified by us with respect to utilities, temperature, cabling, 
hardware and Internet access.  

You must also convert any of your pre-existing files, databases and other information to be used 
with the Computer System if you are converting an existing office from any other system. We recommend 
purchasing additional computers per office to allow for workstations for applicant application and testing. 

Our testing/assessment program that is used for applicant and candidate testing is SHL Talent 
Central, which is a web-based application. Currently, there is an annual license fee of $484 per physical 
site from SHL, but we do not pass this on to you. That policy may change, and we may begin passing the 
charges on to you in the future. 

We make training available to you through various sources including computer-based, phone or 
the Internet. We may provide additional training, either on-site or at one of our training locations, at your 
cost. The Computer System training is mandatory for each person using it in your office and must be 
completed to our satisfaction. We may later have mandatory or optional training or refresher courses for 
the Computer System in the future, but we do not know whether and where these courses will occur or 
if there will be a cost associated with them. 

You will need to understand and accept Spherion’s security policy. 

Our Support Center will provide support services by online chat, toll-free telephone or email. We 
will not handle problem resolution for any hardware, software or peripherals unless they are on our 
approved listing, nor can you use the Computer System to run software that is not on our approved listing. 
Your Computer System Support Fee entitles you to all improvements, enhancements, modifications and 
updates to the Computer System software uniformly deployed by us or by third party software suppliers. 
We are not responsible for the maintenance of your hardware and during the term of your franchise with 
us, we may require you to upgrade or add to your hardware. Due to changes in our specifications or 
standards or because of technological enhancements, your hardware components may become obsolete. 
We cannot presently estimate when or how often this may occur, and there are no contractual limitations 
on the frequency or the cost of any required hardware changes or upgrades. You must update your 
systems on our rollout schedule.  

We will begin providing on-line electronic data processing services at the time you open your 
office. Your Management Information Services Technology Enhancement Fee (MISTEF) covers full access 
and use of Spherion’s software for payroll processing and customer billing, backup and data maintenance 
services, payroll checks, direct deposit and debit card transactions, time and payroll data entry, and all 
accounts receivable. We determine what constitutes delivered tables and custom tables in the software, 
with us having exclusive control over the structure and use of all system data tables and you being able 
to create/edit data within appropriate tables via the field facing applications/integrations at your 
discretion.  

The Computer System collects and generates business information about clients (such as name, 
address, telephone number, and contact name), employees (such as name, address, telephone number, 
employment, education, pay history, tax withholding, references, and skill assessment scores), orders 
(such as job requirements, start and end dates), client order activity (such as turnover, jobs ordered, and 
business needs), performance results, billing, and payroll. Because all the data resides in our Tier 1 data 
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center, we will have independent access to the information on the Computer System, and there are no 
contractual limitations on our right to access this information. We have contractually obligated ourselves 
to provide you with the support described above. Item 7, footnote 2 provides the cost of the hardware 
and third party software; and Item 6 provides the cost of the MISTEF and the Computer System Support 
Fee.  

Hardware Refresh Policy 

We have established a Hardware Refresh Policy to adhere to hardware industry standards in order 
to maintain a reliable and efficient computing environment for all users on the Spherion network. The 
primary considerations for hardware standards are to: mitigate security risk to the user and the 
enterprise, keep up with the rapid pace of technology development and innovation, provide an 
outstanding colleague experience, and optimize the levels of IT support to end users. 

In order to achieve these objectives: all Spherion standard hardware includes a 36-month 
warranty from the date of purchase with a maximum life term of 48 months (with the exception of printers 
which are 1 year); Spherion IT will provide additional support for months 36-48 beyond the 36 month 
warranty period, and hardware (as made available by the manufacturer) will be repaired at the expense 
of the licensee during this time; at the end of life term (48 months), the hardware will no longer be 
supported and must be removed from the network. 

Spherion IT will maintain a list of all hardware including model and serial number in a tracking 
system, and will be responsible for communicating the following information to the Spherion licensees on 
a quarterly basis: number of hardware devices currently on the Spherion network, including type of device 
and the assigned user; the remaining term of each hardware device (life term is based on 48 months from 
date of purchase); when hardware will be out of warranty (standard warranty is 36 months from date of 
purchase for laptops and desktops and 1 year for printers).  

Spherion IT will also send each licensee a 30-day notice prior to any device reaching end of life. 
This policy may change at any time at our discretion. 

Site Selection 

We will assist you in selecting an area in which you must establish a location for the office, subject 
to our approval. In approving the location, we will look at such things as the proximity to potential 
temporary staffing employees and direct hire candidates, appearance and atmosphere of the location, 
ease of access, etc. When you sign the Franchise Agreement, we will provide you with guidance on the 
appearance and layout of the office, in accordance with our specifications and requirements. Other than 
the agreed-upon deadline for establishing your office, the Franchise Agreement does not specify a time 
limit for us to approve or disapprove your selected site. Each office lease is to be signed by Franchisee.  

Opening Your Business 

We estimate that the typical length of time between signing the Franchise Agreement and 
opening your business will range from 90 to 120 days from the time that you sign a lease. Factors which 
may affect this time period include your ability to obtain a lease, financing and building permits; securing 
any necessary business licenses; the timing of office build-out; zoning and local ordinances; installation of 
equipment, network cables, fixtures, signs, etc.; and your ability to hire a full-time staff and the availability 
of training classes. By the time you sign the Franchise Agreement, we will have agreed with you on a date 
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for you to open an office in your Area. If you fail to open within the agreed upon time frame, you will be 
in breach of your agreement with us and we will have all the remedies we would normally have if there is 
a breach, including termination of the agreement. 

We will provide you with some initial marketing and promotional materials when you open an 
office in a new Spherion market at no cost to you, including a mix of promotional giveaway items, as well 
as a free press release. Other than these initial materials, you must purchase all of your business forms, 
advertising, brochures, promotional material and similar opening inventory materials in accordance with 
our specifications and prior approval. You are also responsible for the purchase and installation of the 
furniture, fixtures and equipment that will be used in your franchised business, as well as the purchase, 
installation and display of signs that identify your franchised business as a business operating under the 
Spherion brand and that further comply with our specifications, which we will provide.  

Training 

In the same timeframe as the opening/purchase date of your business, we will provide you with 
mandatory training. You must personally attend and successfully complete such initial and ongoing 
training as Company shall deem necessary. Should you be permitted to hire (i) a full time employee to act 
as a manager and have responsibility for the operation of the business authorized by this Agreement, and 
(ii) a full time employee to serve as a business development manager, staffing consultant and/or recruiter, 
these employees shall be trained by Company (at your expense). Training curriculum and timeline to 
complete such training will be determined by the Company. The Managing Owner of your franchise must 
personally attend and successfully complete the initial and ongoing training that we require. The 
“Managing Owner” is described in the Franchise Agreements attached to this Disclosure Document as 
Exhibits A and B and is applicable where there is more than one (1) individual franchisee listed on the 
Franchise Agreement.  

We also will provide role based training for one or more of your representatives. This training will 
be provided, at our discretion, through a combination of our systems, manuals, phone based or in person 
at either your office location or in Atlanta or at a designated training location.  

You must successfully complete our training program as prescribed by the Company. We will 
conduct our training program as follows: 

TRAINING PROGRAM 

Training Topic 
Hours Of 
Training Location Completion Timeline 

New Franchisee Launch (NFL) Program 
- Existing Franchisee office visit at discretion of Company 
- Comprehensive sales, recruiting, marketing, operations 

and legal compliance training 
- Establishment of a regular management cadence 
- Weekly activity tracking & review 
- Series of 360 business reviews conducted periodically 
- Franchisee and colleagues are required to fully participate 

in this program per the direction of Company 

Franchisee 
Minimum of 

380 + hrs 

Colleague 
Minimum of 

120 + hrs 

Atlanta, Georgia  
& Online  

Pre and Post Office 
Opening 
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Training Topic 
Hours Of 
Training Location Completion Timeline 

Advanced Recruiter Training 

This advanced recruiting session provides a more in-depth 
approach to market and recruiting analysis, candidate sourcing, 
engagement, effective communications, pipeline strategies, 
utilization of recruiting technologies and overall development of a 
recruiting strategy. Session consists of four (4) days of in-person 
training followed by virtual reinforcement sessions. 

Requirements to Attend: 
- Must be in an active recruiting or leadership role 
- At least three (3) months of Spherion recruiting 

experience 
- Successful completion of Spherion New Colleague 

Delivery Accelerator 

Minimum of 
40 hours 

Atlanta, Georgia  
& Online 

Typically offered 2-3 
times annually 

depending on business 
need 

Advanced Sales Training 

This advanced sales session consists of three (3-5) days of in-
person training followed by virtual reinforcement training. During 
the in-person session, participants will learn the Sandler selling 
methods.  

Requirements to Attend: 
- Must be in an active sales or leadership role 
- At least three (3) months of Spherion selling experience 
- Must commit to 3-5 day in-person training and the  virtual 

reinforcement training sessions 
- Successful completion of Spherion New Colleague Sales 

Accelerator 

Minimum of 
40 hours 

Atlanta, Georgia  
& Online 

Typically offered 2-3 
times annually 

depending on business 
need, must be 

completed within 18-24 
months of office 

opening 

Various instructors will conduct our training program. Our instructors generally have ten to thirty 
years’ experience either in our business or the subjects for which they are responsible in the training 
program. The calendar, course names, timeframes and locations of the training program are subject to 
change. 

In addition to the training programs detailed in the table above, we will make additional training 
available to you or your employees throughout your time as a franchisee. These trainings may be offered 
online, by phone, via webinar or in-person.  

In addition, we periodically conduct national and/or regional meetings covering subjects relevant 
to your business, including sales, advertising, operating procedures, insurance and legal developments. 
The meetings range from a half day to four (4) days in duration. We do not charge a fee to attend these 
programs, but we may do so in the future. These meetings may be in Atlanta, Georgia or in other locations 
across the country. We may make your attendance at any of these meetings mandatory.  

For all required pre-opening and initial training courses we provide instruction and training 
materials at no charge to you. For all training and meetings we require that you and your employees pay 
the expenses they incur in attending the courses, including the cost of transportation, lodging, meals and 
wages. We may also require that you pay for training materials for certain required training courses or 
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our then-current training fees (other than the pre-opening and initial training courses that are provided 
at no cost to you). Further, if your operations are such that it is deemed by us to be necessary that we 
send a company representative to your location to conduct training for you and your staff, you will be 
required to pay all travel, hotel and meal expenses associated with that representative’s visit plus an 
additional training fee which is described in the Manual. 

Manual 

We will make available to you an electronic copy of, or grant electronic access to, our systems and 
operations manual, which contains the specifications, standards, policies, procedures, instructions and 
written directives from us related to the operation of your franchise (the “Manual”). The Manual may be 
maintained in the form of physical documents or in the form of on-line accessible electronic files and 
internet postings and related communications. The Manual is confidential and proprietary and remains 
our property. We have the right to modify the Manual as we deem appropriate, and we will notify you of 
changes in a reasonable and appropriate manner. You must comply with all modifications to the Manual 
within the time frames specified by us. The modifications will not alter your status and rights under the 
Franchise Agreement. A copy of the table of contents for the Manual is attached as Exhibit J to this 
Disclosure Document.  

ITEM 12 
TERRITORY 

The Franchise Agreement will define the Area in which you will conduct your business. Except 
under unusual circumstances, your Area will consist of a political jurisdiction such as a city, county, parish 
or township, or multiple contiguous political jurisdictions in one or more states, or a list of zip codes. You 
must establish and maintain within your Area one or more offices from which you will operate your 
business. You may provide the services authorized by the Franchise Agreement only to customers at 
locations within your Area. You may use our plans, procedures, trade names, and service marks only 
within your Area.  

For our Spherion General Staffing franchisees, we will not establish an office in your Area under 
the Spherion® name that provides General Staffing Services, but we have the right, and we may franchise 
or franchise others, to establish and operate businesses outside your Area under the same proprietary 
marks we franchise to you. However, we will not franchise another licensee or franchisee to provide the 
same set of staffing services under the Spherion® trademark in an existing franchisee’s Area. We or our 
affiliates may provide services in your Area that are under a different trademark and we or our affiliates 
may provide services in your Area which are different from those services authorized by the Franchise 
Agreement. Examples of the latter are payroll, billing, collection and accounting services for other staffing 
businesses; outsourcing of human resources services such as testing, screening, and training; executive 
staffing and new services which we may decide to offer in the future.  

As stated in the Franchise Agreement, we have the right to negotiate and enter into contracts 
with customers for whom we are to provide services at locations both within and outside your Area 
(“Strategic or National Account Customers”). Immediately after we accept a contract or bid by a Strategic 
or National Account Customer to provide services within your Area, we may, at our option, provide you 
with a copy of the contract or bid and require you to provide services to the Strategic or National Account 
Customer utilizing the trademarks, service marks or trade names which you are authorized to use 
pursuant to the Franchise Agreement within the Area according to the contract or bid. If you fail to provide 
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the services in a manner satisfactory to both us and the Customer, and in accordance with the contract, 
we may, without compensation to you: (a) provide services to the Strategic or National Account Customer 
at locations within the Area, using the same trade names and service marks you use or the names and 
marks of our affiliates; and (b) contract with another party to provide services to the Strategic or National 
Account Customer at locations within the Area, using the same trade names and service marks you use, 
or any other trade names or service marks. In light of the foregoing, you will not receive an exclusive 
territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other 
channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. 

Your territorial rights do not depend on sales volume, market penetration or other contingencies, 
except that we may terminate the entire Franchise Agreement if you fail to meet Gross Profit Quotas (and 
do not timely pay the deficiency amount) or for any other default. If you have a multiple market Area, we 
may take away one or more markets from you without terminating the entire Franchise Agreement if you 
fail to maintain a full service office in the market or fail to meet the Gross Profit Quota for the market and 
do not timely pay the deficiency amount. Similarly, if you have multiple franchised offices under a Territory 
Development Agreement, we may take away one or more Areas covered under your Territory 
Development Agreement without terminating all of the Areas covered under the Territory Development 
Agreement, provided you have met your Gross Profit Quota and other requirements for those Areas.  

We may in our sole discretion expand the Area by amending the Franchise Agreement upon your 
payment to us of an amount to be determined by us, in our sole discretion, not to exceed $20,000. We 
consider a variety of factors when determining whether to grant additional franchise outlets. Among the 
factors we consider is compliance with the requirements described in the Franchise Agreement. We may 
not otherwise alter the Area without your consent.  

As a Spherion General Staffing franchisee, if you are granted the additional rights in the 
Professional Services Addendum, you will not have any exclusivity rights in those services in your territory. 
That is, you will have the right to perform those additional services in your territory, but we or any 
Randstad affiliate may also perform those services in your territory, whether through an office we 
establish there, or otherwise. 

You have the right to relocate your business within the Area. In the event of relocation, your 
territory will only be modified if we, in our sole discretion, agree to do so by amendment to the Franchise 
Agreement, and in such event, you will be required to pay us an amount to be mutually agreed upon 
between us and you. 

Unless you have entered into the Territory Development Program with us, the Franchise 
Agreement does not grant you any options, rights of first refusal, or similar rights to acquire additional 
franchises within the Area or contiguous territories.   

Please note that our affiliates also operate businesses under different trademarks which provide 
the same or similar services as those that you will offer and we have also, in very limited circumstances, 
franchised others to provide the same services as those authorized by the Franchise Agreement under a 
couple of these different trademarks. With respect to each of these marks, the descriptions detailed below 
describe, in each case, the identity of the mark, the nature of the services offered under that mark, the 
current operations, and operating ownership related to the mark, as well as details regarding locations of 
principal offices and resolution of conflicts.  
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Randstad  

Randstad® is the core brand of our U.S. affiliates, all of which are directly or indirectly owned by 
Randstad North America, Inc. Many of these affiliates operate under the Randstad® name and mark, or 
related Randstad names and marks, but there are other Randstad-owned affiliates who operate under 
separate, non-Randstad trade names and marks. In the U.S., the Randstad name and trademark are used 
only by company-owned offices. 

Randstad offers both General Staffing Services and Professional Services (as each of these terms 
are defined in this Disclosure Document in Item 1 above) through its various lines of business. Randstad 
also offers a number of specialty offerings that you may not be authorized to provide as a Spherion 
franchisee.  

Accordingly, the Professional Services and General Staffing Services portions of Randstad’s U.S. 
business are each covered separately below.  

Professional Services Offered Through Randstad Affiliates 

The Professional Services offered through Randstad affiliates may include staffing services that 
are similar to some of those services provided by your franchise if you have been granted the right to offer 
Professional Services under the Professional Services Addendum. Randstad affiliates offer Professional 
Services and operate as separate and distinct brands from Spherion. Spherion may cooperate from time 
to time with Randstad’s professional affiliates in marketing and providing client services, but please 
understand and recognize that these affiliates may and, depending on the geographic territory of your 
Spherion franchise, likely will compete with you in a number of commercial settings. If there is a conflict 
between offices of the two different systems regarding territory, customers or support, we will determine 
the resolution.  

As stated above in Item 1, you have no rights to provide Professional Services unless you have 
been given the Professional Services Addendum, and if you are granted the additional rights in the 
Professional Services Addendum, you will not have any exclusive rights in those services in your Area. That 
is, as a Spherion General Staffing Franchisee you will have the right to perform those additional services 
in your Area, but we or any Randstad affiliate may also perform those services in your territory, whether 
through an office we or an affiliate establish there, or otherwise. Thus, under the terms of the Professional 
Services Addendum, Randstad offices operating under the trademarks and trade names identified below 
may solicit or accept orders from your Area, and Randstad may establish an office in your Area under the 
trademarks and trade names identified below even if there is not one there now.  

 The Professional Services portion of Randstad’s U.S. business operates under trademarks and 
trade names such as Randstad Digital, Randstad Engineering, Randstad Life Sciences, Randstad Federal 
and others, and the services that they offer may include staffing services similar to some of those services 
provided by your franchise if you have been granted the right to offer Professional Services under the 
Professional Services Addendum.  

Randstad offers Professional Services under the “Randstad” name and marks primarily through 
the following brands, although there may be others: 

 Randstad Digital. Randstad Digital, LLC is the legal entity for this business. Randstad 
Digital is a total technology workforce solutions partner offering strategic support, tech 
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talent and other innovative business solutions. They are a technology workforce solutions 
partner offering temporary, direct hire and solutions based services to clients. 

 Randstad Engineering. Randstad Engineering is an end-to-end engineering talent and 
solutions provider within manufacturing, product development, EPC (engineering, 
procurement and construction), medical device, and automotive industries. They offer 
full-service capabilities, including contract, direct hire and project-based solutions. 

 Randstad Life Sciences. Randstad Life Sciences provides business solutions and talent 
candidates in the pharmaceutical, scientific and outsourcing spaces, services such areas 
as biotechnical, environmental science, chemical, food science, clinical research, personal 
care, pharmaceutical and medical devices. 

 Randstad Federal. Randstad Federal (formerly operated under the “B2B Workforce” 
name) is another Randstad brand of our affiliate Randstad Professionals US, LLC. Randstad 
Federal provides expert consultants and IT solutions specializing in the areas of Enterprise 
Resource Planning, Customer Relationship Management, and Business Intelligence, as 
well as emerging technologies such as cloud computing, server virtualization, security, 
mobility solutions and collaboration tools. Even if you have been granted the right to 
provide Professional Services under the Professional Services Addendum, you may 
provide only a few services which may be similar to those provided by Randstad Federal.  

Staffing Services Offered Through Randstad Affiliates 

Randstad generally operates under the “Randstad” brand name, through one of its two divisions, 
Operational Talent Solutions (OTS) and Professional Talent Solutions (PTS). Randstad also has specialty 
offerings, such as“Randstad In-House Services” (or “RIS”), which provides staffing services solutions in-
house (“on-site” or “on-premise”) at client locations, for industrial and manufacturing positions. As a 
Spherion franchisee, you will have the right to offer and run on-premise business for the staffing services 
you have been authorized to provide.  

Randstad uses the OTS brand and name for lower level office and administrative placements. 
These services are included in the General Staffing suite of services offered by Spherion. Further, Randstad 
has the right under the franchise agreements to operate and to open Randstad branded general staffing 
offices within your Area, but shortly after the Randstad-Spherion merger, Randstad North America 
elected, as a special circumstance regarding franchisees who were associated with the Spherion® brand 
at the time of the merger and shortly thereafter, that if Randstad did not have existing customers in any 
county in their Area at the time of the Randstad-Spherion merger, then Randstad would not initiate 
general staffing services (office, clerical and administrative personnel, and semi-skilled and unskilled 
industrial personnel) to customers in any county in that Area while Randstad North America owns 
Spherion. This election by Randstad in 2012 is referred to as the “no-fly policy.” The “no-fly policy” 
provides that if Randstad OTS serviced customers in a county in the franchisee’s Area at the time of the 
Randstad-Spherion merger, then Randstad may continue to provide staffing services in that county, they 
may open additional Randstad® offices in that county and they may otherwise continue to conduct their 
business operations both outside of and within the Area in the manner that they see fit.  

In accordance with this overall no-fly policy approach, Randstad may solicit and accept orders 
from the franchisee’s Area through recruitment process outsourcing (“RPO”) operations and/or conduct 
on-site operations in the event that an on-site existed before the Randstad-Spherion merger, or in the 
event that the franchisee declined to service an on-site opportunity offered to it, or failed to meet 
required standards or those of the customer in servicing the customer through an on-site location. If the 
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customer will not permit Randstad OTS to offer the franchisee a new on-site opportunity in its Area 
through no fault of the franchisee’s, and they provide the requested on-site services, then for franchisees 
operating within the “no-fly policy,” Spherion will pay to them annually with the commission for the last 
Accounting Period for that fiscal year two (2%) to five (5%) percent of the profit contribution of the on-
site business, that is, the Gross Profit of that business less the direct expenses of that business, such as 
salaries and rent, among others, depending on the scope and size of the opportunity. This payment does 
not apply to on-site accounts that existed in the franchisee’s Area prior to the franchisee becoming a 
franchisee or prior to the merger between SFN and Randstad North America discussed in Item 1.  

The no-fly policy obligations stated in the paragraphs immediately above will cease in the event 
that Randstad North America no longer owns Spherion and are granted in favor only of those persons or 
entities who were Spherion franchisees at the time of the Randstad-Spherion merger and relate only to 
those Areas which were the defined as “Areas” under such person’s Franchise Agreements at the time of 
the Randstad-Spherion merger. The no-fly policy is not applicable to areas with a Professional Services 
Addendum and will never apply to new General Staffing franchisees, but they will apply to renewals 
relating to, and transfers by those person or entities who were, Spherion franchisees at the time of the 
Randstad-Spherion merger.  

In the event that either we, Randstad or another affiliated company acquire, merge with or are 
acquired by a business which provides similar services then you will continue to have the protections 
provided under the Franchise Agreement in connection with the use of the Spherion trademark within 
your area but there are no other protections offered under the Franchise Agreement and there can be no 
expectation whatsoever that the special circumstance described above which Randstad General Staffing 
offered in association with the Spherion® brand will be offered to you in connection with any other 
Competitive Business.  

If you are purchasing an Area which already includes a Randstad OTS, Randstad PTS or another 
Randstad affiliated office (such Area being referred to herein as the “Overlap Area”), you will be required 
to execute the Full Compete Overlap Acknowledgment Agreement (for a Full Compete Market) attached 
to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit Q. In the Full Compete Overlap Acknowledgment Agreement, you 
will acknowledge your understanding your Area contains an open and operating office of Randstad or one 
of its subsidiaries or affiliates, and you will acknowledge your understanding that after your purchase of 
the Spherion franchise the Randstad or Randstad affiliated office will continue to provide staffing services 
in that Overlap Area, that Randstad may open additional Randstad offices in that Overlap Area, that 
Randstad may provide additional, new and different services within the Overlap Area and, in general, that 
Randstad will continue to conduct its operations within the Overlap Area in the manner that Randstad 
sees fit.  

In the Full Compete Overlap Acknowledgement Agreement, you will also acknowledge your 
recognition that we at Spherion do not presently solicit and obtain Strategic or National Account 
Customers independent of Randstad and that we currently rely upon Randstad to provide all of our 
business services related to Strategic and National Account Customers. You will acknowledge that 
Randstad has the right to make decisions, in its discretion, regarding its strategic account efforts and you 
will acknowledge that the existence of the operating Randstad or Randstad affiliated office will mean that 
your access to Strategic and National Account Customers within the Overlap Area will be extremely limited 
and may very well be nonexistent because of the substantial likelihood that Randstad will, acting within 
its discretionary rights, direct Strategic and National Account Customers to their local Randstad branded 
or affiliated offices.  
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Finally, in the Full Compete Overlap Acknowledgment Agreement, you will acknowledge your 
understanding that the Randstad or Randstad affiliated offices will very likely, in Randstad’s discretion, 
elect to compete with you in a number of commercial settings including, but not limited to, settings in 
which staffing customers are obtained through a bidding or similar process. 

Randstad officers report to the Randstad geographic leader for the area in which they are located. 
They ultimately report to the CEO of Randstad North America. Our management team ultimately reports 
to the Spherion Division President, who reports to the CEO of Randstad North America. If there is a conflict 
between offices of the two different companies regarding temporary employees, customers or support, 
we will work through the CEO of Randstad North America to negotiate a resolution, but we retain the 
right to determine the ultimate resolution. Your operational support is provided by us.  

TempForce and AccuStaff. TempForce® and AccuStaff® are the brands of the Staffing Services 
business franchised offices of our affiliate Temp Force, LLC. Our affiliates no longer offer new franchises, 
under those brands or otherwise.  

Other Affiliated Brands 

Randstad Enterprise. SourceRight Solutions® (“SourceRight”) was launched in 2009 as an 
independently branded business unit of Spherion, which had, since 2000, operated as Spherion RPO, 
focusing on delivering a client’s direct hire recruitment processes on an outsourced basis. Now operating 
under the “Randstad Enterprise” and “Randstad RiseSmart” names, Randstad Enterprise has expanded its 
services to include strategic talent optimization, managed services provider (MSP) programs, recruitment 
process outsourcing (RPO), Randstad Sourceright Payroll Solutions (“RSPS”) (which formerly operated as 
Payrolling and Independent Contractor Solutions or “PICS”) and other contingent workforce solutions. 
Randstad Enterprise’s services are provided virtually or at client sites. Randstad Corporate Services (or 
“RCS”) is also part of Randstad Enterprise’s portfolio of service offerings and provides office and 
administrative staffing solutions “in-house” at client locations (we have previously referred to such in-
house opportunities as “on-site” or “on-premise” in this Disclosure).  

Randstad Enterprise is an operating division of our affiliate, Randstad Professionals US, LLC and is 
headquartered in Atlanta, GA. Randstad Enterprise operates offices in Atlanta, GA, Dallas, TX (recruiting 
hub) and certain other client sites. Randstad Enterprise provides certain services that you are not 
authorized to provide, although you may interact with it and promote its services to your clients. 

Tatum. Tatum (“Tatum”) was acquired by SFN in 2010. Tatum focuses on the office of the CFO 
and offers deep expertise in finance, operations and information technology, which may include staffing 
services similar to some of those provided by your franchise if you are granted the rights to provide 
Professional Services in a Professional Services Addendum. 

Tatum operates under the Tatum® name and trademark and is headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia. 
Tatum has only company-owned and operated locations. Tatum offices may solicit or accept orders from 
your Area, and Randstad may establish a Tatum office in your Area if there is not one there now.  

Tatum and Spherion operate as two different brands, but may cooperate from time to time in 
marketing and providing client services. If there is a conflict between offices of the two different systems 
regarding territory, customers or support, we will determine the resolution. You have no rights to provide 
the services Tatum provides unless you have been given the right to provide Professional Services in a 
Professional Services Addendum, and in that case you only have rights to provide certain of those services 
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as specified by us, and you have no exclusivity as to any of the Professional Services you have been 
permitted to provide.  

Randstad RiseSmart. RiseSmart was acquired by Randstad N.V. in 2015, and up until 2020 
operated as “RiseSmart,” but now operates as “Randstad RiseSmart.” Based in San Jose, California, 
Randstad RiseSmart is a market leader in innovative, technology-led career transition (outplacement) 
services. Randstad RiseSmart operates as a wholly owned, independent operating unit of Randstad and 
falls within the Randstad Enterprise organization. Randstad RiseSmart offers services that you are not 
authorized to provide, although you may interact with it and promote its services to your clients.  

Monster. Monster Worldwide, Inc. (“Monster”) was acquired by Randstad N.V. in 2016. Monster 
is a global online and mobile employment solution for people seeking jobs and employers with 
recruitment needs. Monster offers an array of job seeking, career management, recruitment, and talent 
management products and services, including through its website Monster.com®.  

Monster, a wholly owned subsidiary, continues to operate as a separate and independent entity 
under the Monster name and is headquartered in Weston, Massachusetts.  

Celerity. Randstad N.V. acquired Celerity as part of its acquisition of AUSY in 2017. Effective as of 
December 31, 2020, Celerity has become part of Randstad’s U.S. operating structure. Celerity is a business 
and technology consulting firm dedicated to helping businesses respond to change – efficiently, quickly, 
and with focus on the customer. Celerity specializes in digital experience, change management, 
operational efficiency, and the integration between them all, helping businesses thrive in a changing 
environment. 

Celerity is a wholly owned subsidiary that operates as a brand within Randstad Digital. Celerity is 
headquartered in McLean, Virginia. 

* * * * * 

Other than the trademarks and trade names described above, neither we nor an affiliate operate 
or have current plans to operate or franchise a business under a different trademark where that business 
sells or will sell goods or services similar to those you will offer.  

ITEM 13 
TRADEMARKS 

As a Spherion franchisee, you are granted the right to use Spherion’s proprietary marks, as 
outlined below, in the operation of your business. We own those marks.  
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Franchisee may use the following marks as outlined in this Disclosure Document, each of said 
marks has been registered on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office, 
and we have filed all required affidavits for said marks: 

Mark Registration Number Registration Date Renewal

SPHERION 2,497,002 10/09/2001 10/12/2031

SPHERION logo in black and White 2,566,686 05/07/2002 05/09/2022

Spherion logo with three color Matrix 2,888,096 09/28/2004 09/28/2024

S Design 6,860,308 9/27/2022 9/27/2028

S Design 6,860,310 9/27/2022 9/27/2028

SPHERION STAFFING & RECRUITING and Design 6,860,311 9/27/2022 9/27/2028

SPHERION STAFFING & RECRUITING and Design 6,860,309 9/27/2022 9/27/2028

SPHERION STAFFING & RECRUITING Design 7,164,661 9/12/2022 9/12/2028

In addition to the above marks, we also claim service mark rights and common law ownership in 
the formatives of SPHERION as well as to all its brand names, domain names and product names 
(collectively referred to as the “Marks”). 

There are presently no pending material infringements, oppositions or cancellation proceedings 
or federal or state court litigation involving the Marks. Additionally, there are presently no effective 
determinations of the Patent and Trademark Office, Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark 
administrator of any state or any court involving the Marks. 

To the best of Spherion’s knowledge and belief, no agreements are currently in effect and no 
conflict exists which would significantly limit your use as a franchisee of the Marks in any state in a manner 
material to the franchise. 

As a Spherion franchisee, you agree to promptly notify Spherion of the existence or assertion of 
any claim based upon or any attempt, questionable or otherwise, by another person or firm to use any of 
the Marks. You further agree to obtain written permission from Spherion prior to incorporating the Marks 
into any domain name, website or other venue outside the scope of this Agreement. Spherion is not 
obligated to take any action to protect the Marks, however, should Spherion determine such action is 
warranted, you agree to fully cooperate and sign any and all documents necessary to effectuate any 
requested changes (e.g., a change in ownership). Spherion has the right to control all litigation involving 
the Marks. Spherion is not obligated under the terms of the Franchise Agreement, or otherwise, to protect 
any rights you have to use the Marks, nor is Spherion obligated to protect or indemnify you for any cost 
or liability you incur from claims of infringement or unfair competition or any required modifications with 
respect to the Marks. 

Spherion reserves the right, at any time, to substitute different proprietary marks for use in 
identifying its system and the businesses and will notify you in writing of each change, providing a 
minimum conversion period of no less than sixty (60) days. You will not have any specific rights under the 
Franchise Agreement if we require you to modify or discontinue using our marks.  

Spherion continually monitors the use of the Marks for Spherion’s benefit as well as for the benefit 
of its franchisees and Spherion actively pursues any misuse of the Marks. To the best of Spherion’s 
knowledge and belief, no superior rights or infringing uses conflict exists which would materially affect 
your use as a franchisee of the Marks in any state. 
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ITEM 14 
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Spherion owns no rights in, or licenses to, patents that are material to your business. Spherion 
claims common law copyright protection for its Manual, proprietary software, training and testing 
materials and other written materials which are made available to you for use under the terms of the 
Franchise Agreement. 

There are not any current material determinations of the United States Patent and Trademark 
Office, the United States Copyright Office, or a court regarding Randstad North America’s or our patent 
or copyrights. 

To the best of Spherion’s knowledge and belief, no agreements are currently in effect and no 
conflict exists which would limit your use as a franchisee of the patent or the copyrights. 

Spherion is not obligated to take any action to protect its patents and copyrights. Spherion is not 
obligated under the terms of the Franchise Agreement, or otherwise, to protect any rights you have to 
use its patents or copyrights, nor is Spherion obligated to defend or indemnify you for any cost or liability 
you incur from your use of Randstad North America’s patented item. However, should Spherion 
determine that any action to protect or defend its patents or copyrights is warranted, you agree to fully 
cooperate. As a Spherion franchisee, you agree to promptly notify Spherion of the existence or assertion 
of any claim involving our patents (or those of Randstad North America) or copyrights, but such notice 
shall not trigger any duty on Spherion or Randstad North America. Randstad North America has the right 
to control all litigation involving its patent, and we have the right to control all litigation involving our 
copyrights. You will not have any specific rights under the Franchise Agreement if we require you to 
modify or discontinue using any patents or copyrights. 

The Manual serves as a reference source for the operation of your business and you may 
download its various components from Spherion’s internal website and other locations during the term 
of the Franchise Agreement and any renewal period thereafter. These materials, as well as all the details 
or provisions of Spherion’s system(s), the existence or content of any written or oral agreement(s) 
between us and/or any other firm or person, any statistical data, customer data, applicant or employee 
lists, sales, promotional or financial information, procedures or other proprietary or confidential 
information you may have created in operating under our name, or which Spherion created on your behalf 
or which may have otherwise come to your attention as a result of your association with Spherion, shall 
be considered Spherion owned confidential information (collectively referred to as “Confidential 
Information”). During the term of the Franchise Agreement and for a period of three (3) years thereafter, 
you agree to treat all Confidential Information as proprietary and confidential information of Spherion 
and you will not use or disclose any Confidential Information to any third party. Upon termination of the 
Franchise Agreement, you agree to return to Spherion any copy of the Manual and any other Confidential 
Information, whether on a disk, hard drive or other electronic storage or printed form or otherwise. 

ITEM 15 
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS 

If your Franchise Agreement includes more than one individual, then you must designate one 
individual as the “Managing Owner” for purposes of clear communication with us and to facilitate your 
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franchise operations and its ability to make commitments to the Company. If you are the only Franchisee 
under the Franchise Agreement then you will be deemed the Managing Owner.  

The Managing Owner must personally attend and successfully complete the initial and ongoing 
training that we require. The Managing Owner must devote full time and best efforts on a day-to-day 
basis to the management and operation of the Franchised Business and may not own, operate or 
otherwise engage in any other business without our consent. If we permit the Managing Owner to devote 
less than full time to the Franchised Business, the Managing Owner must still remain actively involved in 
the operations and management of the business and will be required to hire, at a minimum, (i) a full-time 
employee to act as the day-to-day manager and have responsibility for the operation of the business 
(specifically including acting in a sales capacity) and (ii) a full-time employee to serve as a recruiter, each 
of whom we must approve in advance and who must successfully complete all required training. Either 
the Managing owner or your hired manager must at all times provide in-person supervision of your 
business. The hired manager need not have an equity interest in your business. 

In signing the Franchise Agreement, you agree to operate the business in the Area, and provide 
the services required in the business for the entire Term of the Franchise Agreement therein. You are also 
agreeing to maintain confidentiality of the materials described in Item 14 and to conform to the covenants 
not to compete described in Item 17. 

You must employ a competent and fully trained staff to operate your business, in compliance with 
our minimum staffing requirements as set forth in the Manual. Each employee must sign an employment 
contract that will prohibit disclosure of trade secrets and impose certain covenants against competition. 

ITEM 16 
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You may offer your customers only the services authorized by the Franchise Agreement, as listed 
in Schedule 2. Due to the increased risk of injury or damage in certain occupations and the resulting effect 
on the cost or availability of insurance, you may not assign Temporary Employees to perform any of the 
Restricted Jobs listed on Schedule 2. We may amend, add to or delete from the list of Restricted Jobs at 
any time with written notice to you. 

You may not own, operate or otherwise engage in any other business without our prior written 
consent. If you form a legal entity, such as a corporation or limited liability company (“LLC”), for the 
operation of your business, the legal entity may not engage in any other business transactions. In addition, 
the legal entity name may not contain the word Spherion or be confusingly similar in any way. No business 
other than the one described in this Disclosure Document may be advertised or operated from your office, 
or otherwise in connection with your business, without our prior written consent. 

You must maintain the regular office hours we establish, with a means for twenty-four (24) hour 
response to provide your customers with the authorized services.  

We do not restrict the customers to whom you may provide services, except that: (1) we may 
require you to provide services to Strategic or National Account Customers under the terms and 
conditions of a Strategic or National account contract we negotiate (and, if we elect to require that you 
provide the services and you fail to provide the services, then Spherion can provide the services or 
contract with someone else to provide the services); (2) you are authorized to provide only the franchised 
services to customers located within the Area and you must utilize our plans, policies, procedures, trade 
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names, trademarks and service marks only within the Area as we require and as set forth in the Franchise 
Agreement and the Manual; (3) you may not, without our prior written consent, provide services to any 
organization in which you, a member of your family or any entity you own or partially own, has a financial 
interest greater than 10%, or to a customer which is delinquent in payments to us, provided that we have 
notified you of the delinquency; and (4) you must follow our policies and procedures, including those 
pertaining to credit, safety, risk management and legal compliance, so you may have to turn down 
business occasionally.  

ITEM 17 
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should read 
these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.  

Provision 
Section in 

Franchise Agreement Summary 

a. Term of the franchise § 13 of Franchise Agreement 10 years 

b.  Renewal or extension 
of the term 

§ 13 of Franchise Agreement 

Renewal means that your franchise continues for a 5-year period 
under our then current franchise agreement form, which may 
include materially different terms and conditions from those found 
in the franchise agreement you are being offered now. 

c.  Requirements for you 
to renew or extend 

§ 13 of Franchise Agreement 
Notice, performance, sign new Franchise Agreement, you must 
sign a general release and others. 

d. Termination by you 
§§ 17 and 15 of Franchise 
Agreement 

Any reason, but only during a renewal term and with notice. 

e.  Termination by us 
without cause 

None Not Applicable 

f. Termination by us with 
cause 

§ 17 of Franchise Agreement 
We may terminate the franchise agreement if you commit one of 
several violations under the Franchise Agreement.  

g. “Cause” defined - 
defaults which can be 
cured 

§ 17 of Franchise Agreement 
Breach of Franchise Agreement except as otherwise provided; 
failure to pay sums you owe us; failure to achieve Gross Profit 
Quota. 

h. “Cause” defined - 
defaults which cannot 
be cured 

§ 17 of Franchise Agreement 

Violation of sale or transfer provisions; bankruptcy; conviction of 
felony; failure to operate your business for 5 or more successive 
days; willful material misrepresentation as to matters affecting the 
Franchised Business; competing with Franchisee or Company; 
disclosure of confidential information; 3 payment defaults or 3 
curable defaults within any 12 month period; and other grounds. 

i. Your obligations on 
termination/non-
renewal 

§ 18 of Franchise Agreement 
Obligations include complete de-identification, payment of 
amounts due and orderly transition; see r. below for non-
competition covenants. 

j. Assignment of 
contract by us 

§ 14 of Franchise Agreement 
We may freely assign at our option and our assignee must agree to 
assume our obligations under the Franchise Agreement. 
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Provision 
Section in 

Franchise Agreement Summary 

k. “Transfer” by you –
definition 

§§ 2 and 14 of Franchise 
Agreement 

Includes sale, assignment, sublicense, grant of a security interest 
or other transfer of the Franchise Agreement, the business, any 
shares or other equity in the business or any right of interest the 
Franchise Agreement grants you; and the issuance of any capital 
stock or securities, or transfer of any stock or interest, in the entity 
used for your business. Any change in voting control of the 
business is considered a transfer of your entire interest in the 
Franchise Agreement and the business. 

l. Our approval of 
transfer by you 

§ 14 of Franchise Agreement We must approve transfers in advance. 

m. Conditions for our 
approval of transfer 

§ 14 of Franchise Agreement 

Includes payment of money owed; transferee meet or exceed new 
owner qualifications and agree to attend training; execution of our 
then-current Franchise Agreement for either, at our option, (i) the 
remaining term of your Franchise Agreement or (ii) an initial Ten 
Year term or (iii) a five year Renewal Term, and transferee must 
reside in Area, must not own or be associated with a competitor 
and must meet with us. You must pay a transfer fee. You and the 
transferee must sign a general release. 

n.  Our right of first 
refusal to acquire your 
business 

§ 14 of Franchise Agreement We can match any offer within 60 days. 

o. Our option to 
purchase your 
business 

§§ 15 and 16 of Franchise 
Agreement (for Spherion 
General Staffing franchisees 
only) 

We can elect to purchase your business if you terminate the 
Franchise Agreement after the initial term, or on expiration of the 
initial term or any renewal term. Payment is made in 8 quarterly 
payments with interest at the Prime Rate plus 1%. 

p. Death or incapacity of 
Managing Owner 

§ 17 of Franchise Agreement 

A successor Managing Owner must be named. If a successor 
Managing Owner is not put in place within one (1) year after the 
death or incapacity of the Managing Owner, then the Franchise 
Agreement will terminate. 

q. Non-competition 
covenants during the 
term of the franchise 

§ 5 of Franchise Agreement 

Prohibits owning or operating a substantially similar business 
within the Area and any contiguous county or parish and within 
the United States; engaging in activity that is the same as or 
substantially similar to that activity which you are conducting on 
behalf of the Franchised Business, attempting for a competitor to 
solicit our customers or hire our permanent placement applicants 
or employees; engaging an employee who has failed to sign a non-
competition agreement; using or disclosing to a third party 
proprietary information; or assigning an interest in your business 
to anyone who has failed to sign a non-competition agreement. 

r.  Non-competition 
covenants after the 
franchise is terminated 
or expires 

§§ 5 and 18 of Franchise 
Agreement 

Prohibits for 12 months either (i) owning or operating a 
substantially similar business; or (ii) engaging in activity that is the 
same as or substantially similar to that activity which you were 
conducting on behalf of the Franchised Business, all (a) within the 
Area and (b) any contiguous county or parish ; or (iii) attempting 
for a competitor to solicit our customers or hire our permanent 
placement applicants or employees; also prohibits using or 
disclosing to a third party our proprietary information. 
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Provision 
Section in 

Franchise Agreement Summary 

s.  Modification of the 
agreement 

§§ 22 and 28 of Franchise 
Agreement 

We may make system-wide changes applied on a uniform and 
consistent basis to each franchisee, and we must notify you of the 
change. We must give you at least 60 days prior written notice for 
the adoption or discontinuance of any line of business, trademark, 
service mark or trade name. Any other modification must be made 
by written agreement signed by you and us. 

t.  Integration/merger 
clause 

§ 28 of Franchise Agreement 

Only terms of Franchise Agreement and other related written 
agreement are binding (subject to applicable state law). No other 
representations or promises will be binding. Nothing in the 
Franchise Agreement or in any other related written agreement is 
intended to disclaim representations made in the Franchise 
Disclosure Document. 

u. Dispute resolution by 
arbitration or 
mediation 

§ 27 of Franchise Agreement 
Non-binding mediation required before litigation (with limited 
exceptions). 

v.  Choice of forum § 27 of Franchise Agreement 
Mediation in the state in which we have our principal place of 
business, and litigation in the federal district where we have our 
principal place of business, subject to state law. 

w.  Choice of law § 27 of Franchise Agreement Georgia, subject to state law. 

ITEM 18 
PUBLIC FIGURES 

We do not use any public figures to promote our franchises. 

ITEM 19 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential 
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets if there is a reasonable basis for 
the information and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document. Financial performance 
information that differs from that included in this Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides 
the actual records of an existing outlet that you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements 
the information provided in this Item 19 by providing, for example, information about possible 
performance of a particular location or under particular circumstances. 

Spherion believes it will be helpful for a prospective franchisee to know the average Gross Profit 
Percentage, the average per Franchise Agreement Sales, and the average per Franchise Agreement Gross 
Profit of its franchises in Fiscal Year 2023. The first set of below charts presents that data for franchisees 
grouped by the number of years that they have been operating, followed by a chart that combines the 
information for all of the represented franchisees. “Gross Profit” (“GP” in the below table) and “Sales” 
have the meanings given them in the Franchise Agreement. As used in this Item 19, “Gross Profit 
Percentage” (“GP %” in the below table) means the percent determined by dividing Gross Profit by Sales. 

The following figures are for our Spherion General Staffing franchises (many of which have the 
right to provide Professional Services through the Professional Services Addendum) for Fiscal Year 2023: 
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1-5 Years

Sales Gross Profit Gross Profit %

Average $1,892,661 $443,773 29.5%

Median $1,010,448 $244,440 24.7%

Max $8,961,615 $1,944,691 76.5%

Min $99,569 $65,024 11.7%

6-10 Years

Sales Gross Profit Gross Profit %

Average $4,218,907 $843,845 21.1%

Median $2,613,467 $621,803 20.4%

Max $19,033,556 $3,488,062 27.1%

Min $849,673 $152,861 16.0%

10+ Years

Sales Gross Profit Gross Profit %

Average $8,184,714 $1,786,038 22.3%

Median $3,863,996 $925,403 21.6%

Max $41,265,475 $9,328,290 47.5%

Min $311,832 $44,916 14.0%

All Franchisees (At Least 1 Year)

Sales Gross Profit Gross Profit %

Average $6,004,383 $1,303,941 23.7%

Median $3,188,311 $764,398 21.9%

Max $41,265,475 $9,328,290 76.5%

Min $99,569 $44,916 11.7%

Some outlets have earned these amounts. Your individual results may differ. There is no 
assurance that you’ll earn as much. 
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In order to be included in the above information, the Spherion franchise must have been in 
operation for the entire fiscal year. The information for Sales and Gross Profits is on a per franchisee      
basis. That is, if a franchisee has more than one Franchise Agreement with us, then the numbers achieved 
under each Franchise Agreement are combined. If a franchisee has more than one office under the same 
Franchise Agreement, these offices are aggregated to determine the Sales and Gross Profit numbers for 
that Franchise Agreement. The above charts exclude eight existing franchisees as of December 31, 2023 
because they were not open and operating for the entire 2023 calendar year.  

In FY 2023, four of the fifteen (26.7%) franchisees with tenure of 1-5 years under contract 
surpassed the average Gross Profit Percentage stated above. Five of the fifteen General Staffing 
franchisees (33.3%) surpassed the average annual Sales stated above, and five of the fifteen General 
Staffing franchisees  (33.3%) surpassed the average annual Gross Profit stated above. 

In FY 2023, five of the twelve (41.7%)  franchisees with tenure of 6-10 years under contract 
surpassed the average Gross Profit Percentage stated above. Four of the twelve General Staffing 
franchisees (33.3%) surpassed the average annual Sales stated above, and three of the twelve General 
Staffing franchisees (25.0%) surpassed the average annual Gross Profit stated above. 

In FY 2023, eighteen of the forty (45.0%)  franchisees with tenure of 10+ years under contract 
surpassed the average Gross Profit Percentage stated above. Eleven of the forty General Staffing 
franchisees (27.5%) surpassed the average annual Sales stated above, and twelve of the forty General 
Staffing franchisees (30.0%) surpassed the average annual Gross Profit stated above.  

In FY 2023, twenty-three of the sixty-seven (34.3%) franchisees of at least 1 year tenure under 
contract surpassed the average Gross Profit Percentage stated above. Eighteen of the sixty-seven 
franchisees (26.9%) surpassed the average annual Sales stated above, and eighteen of the sixty-seven 
General Staffing franchisees (26.9%) surpassed the average annual Gross Profit stated above 

The information in this Item 19 includes franchisees operating mature offices, and a number of 
franchisees who bought existing offices, either from us or from a franchisee, as opposed to starting a new 
office. The information is for all of our Spherion branded franchised operations. However, the information 
does not include any of the “Area-Based Franchise Agreement” program franchises, described further in 
Item 1, which operate under a fundamentally different relationship and agreement.  

Your results will likely differ from the results presented above, depending on your efforts and 
those of your staff, your particular market size and makeup, and the competition. Other factors that could 
impact your numbers include, but are not limited to local, regional, national, and international general 
economic conditions, your business mix (temporary staffing vs. permanent placement, clerical vs. light 
industrial, and the amount of professional staffing you have, if you receive the right to offer professional 
staffing services), etc.  

The financial performance representations above do not reflect the costs of sales, operating 
expenses, or other costs or expenses that must be deducted from the gross revenues or gross sales figures 
to obtain your net income or profit. As stated below, you should conduct an independent investigation of 
the costs and expenses you will incur in operating your franchised business. Franchisees or former 
franchisees listed in the Disclosure Document may be one source of information. To help you analyze what 
your expenses might be on a monthly basis, we have listed below what we believe to be your normal 
monthly expense items.   
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Salaries and Wages 
Commission/bonus accrual 
Employee Benefits (including payroll taxes and health, life and disability insurance) 
Franchise Data Processing Allocation (MISTEF fee-Section 8 of the Franchise Agreement) 
Insurance (for example, see the required insurances in Section 7(q) of the Franchise Agreement) 
SEM (Search Engine Marketing) 
SEO (Search Engine Optimization) 
Internet/online and social media advertising 
Email & text/SMS marketing 
Out-of-home/billboard advertising 
TV/Cable/YouTube video advertising 
Radio advertising 
Grass roots marketing (flyers, posters and other traditional & digital collateral) 
Meetings/seminars/courses/conventions 
Office supplies 
Equipment/software repair/maintenance 
Bank/credit card fees 
Rent (premises lease) 
Rent (equipment) 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Utilities 
Interest Expense (includes interest on AR over 60 days charged by Spherion) 
Professional fees 
Telecommunications 
Automobile & parking 
Other Travel 
Customer relations/development 
Bad debt expense 
Taxes & franchises 
Miscellaneous 

This expense listing may not be a complete listing for you, and we do not make any 
representations to you as to what the actual expenses in each category will be. The answers to those 
questions will depend on your market and how you set up your business. You should consult with your 
financial advisor, as well as discuss the list and the expenses involved with our other franchisees, and 
former franchisees, which are listed at Exhibit K to this Disclosure Document. 

Written substantiation of the data used in the preparation of this Item 19 will be made available 
to you upon reasonable request. 

Other than the above financial performance representations, we do not make any 
representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past financial performance of 
any company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to 
make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, 
however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial 
performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor’s 
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management by contacting Kathy George at 3625 Cumberland Blvd., Suite 500, Atlanta, GA 30339, (770) 
303-6770, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies. 

ITEM 20 
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 

All year-end numbers appearing in the tables below are as of December 31. 

Item 20 Table No. 1 
System Wide Outlet Summary 

For Years 2021 to 2023 

Outlet Type Year 
Outlets at the Start of 

the Year 
Outlets at the End of 

the Year Net Change 

Franchised* 

2021 200 208 8

2022 208 215 7

2023 215 209 -6

Company-Owned 

2021 1 0 -1**

2022 0 0 0

2023 0 2*** 2

Total Outlets 

2021 201 208 7

2022 208 215 7

2023 215 211 -4

*This number includes our traditional and Area-Based Franchised outlets. The Area-Based 
Franchise program is described in Item 1. This number also includes two (2) Spherion Professionals 
franchised outlets that opened in 2021 and closed in 2023. 

**On December 24, 2020, Spherion reacquired the Mississippi franchise outlet from its owner-
franchisee and then transferred it on February 24, 2021 to an existing owner-franchisee. 

***Effective December 31, 2023, Spherion franchisee Emmanuel Olanipekun closed his Spherion 
Professional Staffing Dallas, TX location and exited the Dallas, TX market area. Effective November 12, 
2023, Spherion franchisee Dan and Tammy Heinowski closed their Spherion General Staffing Appleton, 
WI location and exited the Appleton, WI market area.  

Note: These figures include On-Premise (sometimes termed “on-site”) locations. 

Item 20 Table No. 2 
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners 
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(Other than the Company) 
For Years 2021 to 2023 

State Year Number of Transfers 

Alabama 

2021 0

2022 1

2023 0

California 

2021 0

2022 2

2023 1

Florida 

2021 2

2022 0

2023 0

Illinois 

2021 0

2022 0

2023 1

Massachusetts 

2021 0

2022 1

2023 0

Minnesota 

2021 0

2022 0

2023 2

Montana 

2021 0

2022 1

2023 0

New Jersey 

2021 0

2022 3

2023 0

Ohio 

2021 0

2022 0

2023 7

Pennsylvania 

2021 0

2022 1

2023 0

Tennessee 

2021 0

2022 2

2023 0

Texas 

2021 7

2022 0

2023 0
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State Year Number of Transfers 

Washington 

2021 1

2022 0

2023 0

Totals 

2021 10

2022 11

2023 11

Note: These figures include On-Premise locations. 

Item 20 Table No. 3 
Status of Franchised Outlets 

For Years 2021 to 2023*

State Year 
Outlets at Start 

of Year 
Outlets 
Opened Terminations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by Company 

Ceased 
Operations – 

Other Reasons 

Outlets at 
End of the 

Year 

Alabama 

2021 4 2 0 0 0 1 5

2022 5 2 0 0 0 2 5

2023 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

Arkansas

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 1 0 0 0 0 2

California

2021 13 0 0 0 0 0 13

2022 13 3 0 0 0 2 14

2023 14 3 0 0 0 1 16

Colorado

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 1 0 0 0 0 2

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

Connecticut

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Florida

2021 17 2 0 0 0 2 17

2022 17 1 0 0 0 0 18

2023 18 0 0 0 0 1 17

Georgia

2021 10 1 0 0 0 2 9

2022 9 1 0 0 0 0 10

2023 10 2 0 0 0 2 10

Hawaii

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Idaho

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Illinois

2021 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

2022 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

2023 5 2 0 0 0 2 5

Indiana
2021 13 5 0 0 0 2 16

2022 16 2 0 0 0 2 16
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State Year 
Outlets at Start 

of Year 
Outlets 
Opened Terminations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by Company 

Ceased 
Operations – 

Other Reasons 

Outlets at 
End of the 

Year 

2023 16 2 0 0 0 5 13

Iowa

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Kentucky

2021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2022 2 1 0 0 0 1 2

2023 2 0 0 0 0 1 1

Louisiana

2021 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

2022 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

2023 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

Maryland

2021 2 1 0 0 0 0 3

2022 3 1 0 0 0 0 4

2023 4 0 0 0 0 2 2

Massachusetts

2021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

2022 3 2 0 0 0 2 3

2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

Michigan

2021 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

2022 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

2023 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

Minnesota

2021 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

2022 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

2023 5 3 0 0 0 2 6

Mississippi

2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 1 0

Montana

2021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

2022 3 1 0 0 0 1 3

2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

Nevada

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

New Jersey

2021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

2022 3 3 0 0 0 3 3

2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

New Mexico

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

North Carolina

2021 2 1 0 0 0 0 3

2022 3 1 0 0 0 0 4

2023 4 0 0 0 0 1 3

North Dakota

2021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

Ohio

2021 22 0 0 0 0 3 19

2022 19 0 0 0 0 1 18

2023 18 8 0 0 0 7 19
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State Year 
Outlets at Start 

of Year 
Outlets 
Opened Terminations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by Company 

Ceased 
Operations – 

Other Reasons 

Outlets at 
End of the 

Year 

Oklahoma

2021 1 1 0 0 0 0 2

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

Pennsylvania

2021 24 2 0 0 0 3 23

2022 23 1 0 0 0 3 21

2023 21 3 0 0 0 0 24

Rhode Island

2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

South Carolina

2021 8 0 0 0 0 2 6

2022 6 1 0 0 0 0 7

2023 7 0 0 0 0 2 5

South Dakota

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Tennessee

2021 2 1 0 0 0 0 3

2022 3 2 0 0 0 2 3

2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

Texas

2021 21 9 0 0 0 8 22

2022 22 3 0 0 0 0 25

2023 25 4 0 0 1 3 25

Utah

2021 10 2 0 0 0 0 12

2022 12 0 0 0 0 0 12

2023 12 0 0 0 0 1 11

Vermont

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Virginia

2021 1 3 0 0 0 0 4

2022 4 0 0 0 0 0 4

2023 4 0 0 0 0 1 3

Washington

2021 1 1 0 0 0 1 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 1 0 0 0 0 2

West Virginia

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Wisconsin

2021 6 0 0 0 0 0 6

2022 6 0 0 0 0 0 6

2023 6 0 0 0 1 1 4

Totals

2021 200 31 0 0 0 23 208

2022 208 26 0 0 0 19 215

2023 215 29 0 0 2 33 209

*If multiple events occurred affecting an outlet, this table shows the event that occurred last in time.  

The counts above are for all of our franchised outlets, including our “Area-Based Franchise” outlets. The 
Area-Based Franchise Program is described in Item 1. The Area-Based Franchise Program franchisees are 
not included in the contact listing in Exhibit K other than those who have left the system in the past fiscal 
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year since they are under a different program. This number also includes two (2) Spherion Professionals 
franchised outlets that opened in 2021 and closed in 2023.    

Note: These figures include On-Premise locations.  

Item 20 Table No. 4 
Status of Company-Owned Outlets 

For Years 2021 to 2023* 

State Year 
Units at Start 

of Year 
Units 

Opened 
Units Reacquired 
From Franchise 

Units 
Closed 

Units Sold to 
Franchisee 

Units at End of 
the Year 

Mississippi 

2021 1 0 0 0 1** 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0

Texas 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 1*** 0 0 0

Wisconsin 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 1**** 0 0 0

Totals 

2021 1 0 0 0 1 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 2 0 0 2

Note: These figures include On-Premise locations.  

*In 2012, Randstad North America phased out of use of the Spherion names and marks by the Company-
owned outlets, changing them to the Randstad names and marks. Former Company-owned outlets are 
now owned and operated by an affiliate of Randstad North America. As noted elsewhere in this Disclosure 
Document, in 2012 all of the Franchisor’s Company-owned units discontinued the utilization of the 
Spherion trademark.  

** On December 24, 2020, Spherion reacquired the Mississippi franchise outlet from its owner-franchisee 
and then transferred it on February 24, 2021 to an existing owner-franchisee. 

***Effective December 31, 2023, Spherion franchisee Emmanuel Olanipekun closed his Spherion 
Professional Staffing Dallas, TX location and exited the Dallas, TX market area.   

****Effective November 12, 2023, Spherion Franchisee Dan and Tammy Heinowski closed their Spherion 
General Staffing Appleton, WI location and exited the Appleton, WI market area. 
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Item 20 Table No. 5 
Projected Openings as of December 31, 2023 for Fiscal Year 2024*

State 
Franchise Agreements Signed 

But Outlet Not Opened 
Projected New Franchises Outlet In 

The Next Fiscal Year 
Projected New Company -Owned 

Outlet In The Next Fiscal Year 

California 0 3 0

Florida 0 1 0

Illinois 0 1 0

Michigan 0 1 0

Missouri 0 1 0

North Carolina 0 1 0

Tennessee 0 1 0

Texas 0 1 0

Total 0 10 0

The names of all current franchisees and the address and telephone numbers of each of their 
outlets is listed in Exhibit K to this Disclosure Document. 

The name, city and state and current business telephone number, or if unknown, the last known 
home telephone number of every franchisee, as well as Area-Based Franchise program, who had an outlet 
terminated, canceled, not renewed or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under 
the Franchise Agreement during the most recently completed fiscal year or who has not communicated 
with us within 10 weeks of the issue date of this Disclosure Document is listed in Exhibit K to this Disclosure 
Document. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you 
leave the franchise system. 

We do not currently have any previously owned franchised outlets under our control to offer or 
sell.  

None of our franchisees signed confidentiality clauses with us during the last three fiscal years 
that would restrict their ability to speak with you about their experience with Spherion. 

There are no trade-mark specific franchisee associations associated with our franchise system. 

ITEM 21 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit N are the audited financial statements of 
Spherion Staffing, LLC (“Spherion”). The financial statements include the Spherion Balance Sheet as of 
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, and the Statement of Operations, of Changes in Member’s 
Equity and of Cash Flows for the three years ended December 31, 2023.  
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ITEM 22 
CONTRACTS 

We have attached a copy of the following contracts as Exhibits to this Disclosure Document: 

A Spherion General Staffing Franchise Agreement 
B Professional Services Addendum  
C Territory Development Agreement 
D Purchase Loan Documents: 

Promissory Note 
Guaranty 
Security Agreement 
Asset Sale Agreement 

E Start-up Loan Documents 
Promissory Note 
Guaranty 
Security Agreement 

F Workers’ Compensation Loan Documents: 
Promissory Note 
Guaranty 
Security Agreement 

G Confidentiality Agreement 
H Assignment of Spherion Franchise Agreement 
I Agreement and General Release 

ITEM 23 
RECEIPT 

Exhibit S of this Disclosure Document contains a detachable document (the “Receipt”), in 
duplicate, acknowledging receipt of this entire Disclosure Document (along with the exhibits) by a 
prospective franchisee. You should sign both copies of the Receipt. You should retain one signed copy for 
your records and return the other signed copy to us. 
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EXHIBIT A 
SPHERION GENERAL STAFFING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
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SPHERION GENERAL STAFFING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

This SPHERION GENERAL STAFFING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) made and 
entered into as of the _____ day of ________________, 202_ (the “Effective Date”), by and between 
SPHERION STAFFING, LLC a Delaware limited liability company, having its principal place of business at 
One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd., Suite 600, Atlanta, GA 30339 (hereinafter referred to as 
“Company”), and ____________________ (hereinafter referred to as “Franchisee”). 

WHEREAS, Spherion Staffing, LLC owns and has the right to license others to use (i) certain 
proprietary plans, systems, procedures and methods, all of which constitute the unique and valuable 
SPHERION® System for recruiting and supplying personnel to provide temporary help and full-time 
placement services to others, and (ii) certain trademarks, service marks, trade names and other 
intellectual property, and the goodwill attached thereto, in the operation of the SPHERION System 
(collectively, the “Intellectual Property”); and 

WHEREAS, Franchisee desires to acquire a franchise from Company to market and provide on 
behalf of Company those services which are specifically described herein, to use the applicable plans, 
systems, procedures and methods constituting a part of the SPHERION System, to use Company’s 
trademarks, service marks and trade names authorized herein (or such other trademarks, service marks 
or trade names as Company shall authorize in addition to such trademarks, service marks or trade names, 
or in substitution of such trademarks, service marks or trade names), and to utilize Company’s goodwill in 
connection therewith; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the execution of this Agreement and of the covenants and 
conditions herein contained, it is mutually agreed and understood as follows: 

1. Definitions. As used in this Agreement: 

(a) “Accounting Period” means one of twelve four, five, or six week periods approximately 
coinciding with the calendar months as shall be specifically determined by Company. 

(b) “Accounts Receivable Funding Fee” means the dollar fee assessed Franchisee for 
accounts receivable over sixty (60) days as of the end of each Accounting Period.  

(c) “Area” means the geographic area in which Franchisee is authorized to market and 
provide the services described herein, which is attached as Schedule 1, and made a part 
of this Agreement. 

(d)  A “Competitive Business” means a business that provides general or specific personnel 
staffing services, with respect to temporary and/or permanent placement or hiring, in any 
industry or sub-industry or class of services or workers, regardless of whether the 
employees or workers are the employees of the business or entity that is providing the 
personnel or staffing services, including, services that are the same or substantially similar 
to those services offered or permitted to be offered by Franchisee as described in 
Schedule 2 to this Agreement, or services that are the same or substantially similar to the 
services offered, or are permitted to be offered by Company, its affiliates, or other 
franchisees under the Intellectual Property. 
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(e) “Computer System” shall mean the computer system hardware, equipment and 
software, as specified by Company, for the operation of the front office of the Franchised 
Business (defined below).

(f) “Customer(s)” means existing and potential users of the services that are authorized by 
this Agreement to be marketed and provided by Franchisee on behalf of Company.  To 
the extent applicable, Customers shall also include Strategic or National Account 
Customers as defined below. 

(g) “Direct Costs” means the sum of: 

(1) the Temporary Employees’ gross payroll and other direct labor costs with respect 
thereto (including, without limitation, payroll taxes, local, county, or state 
headcount taxes, and taxes based on sales or gross receipts which are not 
separately collected from Customers); 

(2) Company’s accrued expenses (as determined by Company) relating to workers’ 
compensation, liability, bonding or other insurance, deductibles or reserves, 
transportation, vacation, holiday or sick pay, profit sharing, health insurance or 
other fringe benefit costs, and any other tax or cost which is levied on or directly 
measured by headcount, Sales, hours or Temporary Employee wages paid or 
incurred by Company with respect to any Accounting Period or Fiscal Year as well 
as such deductions, surcharges, deductibles and other payments as are currently 
required from and charged to Franchisee under the Company’s policies and 
procedures regarding worker’s compensation, general liability, 
professional/fidelity liability, auto liability, employment practices liability and 
other liabilities, all as set forth from time to time in the Manual and in other 
communications, including email communications and internet postings directed  
from Company to Franchisee; and 

(3) the costs of any services, non-standard benefits, materials, equipment, products 
or other consumables Customers have agreed to pay and for which there is a 
separate charge on the invoice. 

(h) “Fiscal Year” means the twelve Accounting Periods currently beginning on or about 
January 1 of any year and ending on or about December 31 of such year, or such other 
period consisting of twelve Accounting Periods that Company may hereafter establish 
from time to time as its fiscal year. 

(i) “Full-Time Placement” means employer paid employment services for the full-time 
placement of employees and such related activities deemed by Company to fall within 
this Subsection as delineated from time to time in the Manual (defined below). 

(j) “Full-Time Placement Sales” means the U.S. Dollar equivalent of all billings (whether 
collected or not) during an Accounting Period for all fees due from Full-Time Placements 
and retainer searches, including any liquidated damages and buy-outs relating to those 
Temporary Employees and excluding only sales taxes or other taxes which may be 
required by law to be collected from Customers in connection with the services described 
herein, and adjustments or refunds which have been authorized by Company. 
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(k) “Gross Profit” means the difference between Sales and Direct Costs during any 
Accounting Period or Fiscal Year. 

(l) The “SPHERION® System” means all and each of the distinctive and proprietary, tangible 
and intangible properties developed by Company for the operation of a system of branch, 
licensed, and franchised temporary help and full-time placement businesses, including 
but not limited to: 

(1) the Marks; 

(2) the Manual; 

(3) the concepts, plans, practices, procedures, policies, methods, and strategies 
developed by Company for the recruitment of employees, the promotion and 
advertising of temporary help and/or full-time placement services and the 
operation of a temporary help and/or full-time placement business, including all 
written materials regardless of whether contained in the Manual, and all other 
media such as forms, brochures, other printed materials, film, audio, video tape, 
CD’s, DVD’s and computer software which contain or are intended to be used in 
or as a part of the SPHERION System; and 

(4) the advice, information, correspondence and assistance otherwise provided to 
Franchisee by Company and Company’s agents, employees or contractors, 
whether provided orally, in writing or in any other form, which relates to the 
establishment or operation of the Franchised Business.  

(m) “Franchised Business” shall mean the business of marketing and providing the staffing 
services authorized by this Agreement and conducted by the Franchisee pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

(n) “Franchisee” means the individual(s) who execute(s) this Agreement, and any entity
formed by such individual(s) for the operation of the business described herein and, as to 
each obligation, liability or duty imposed upon or assumed by Franchisee pursuant to this 
Agreement, the term Franchisee shall be deemed to include each of the shareholders or 
members of such corporation or limited liability company, except as otherwise limited 
herein. 

(o) “Manual” means the confidential and proprietary publications now or hereafter 
developed by Company, whether maintained in the form of physical documents or in the 
form of on-line accessible electronic files and internet postings and related 
communications, and which contain policies and procedures related to the operation of 
the SPHERION System, together with confidential memoranda, bulletins and emails and 
internet postings that update, supplement, modify and explain the Manual and the 
SPHERION System. 

(p) The “Marks” means the service mark “SPHERION®,”  the Spherion® logo and any other 
trade name, trademark, service mark, logo, design, name, words or slogan that may 
presently exist or may be created by Company and/or its affiliates and that Company now 
or hereafter licenses to Franchisee in writing to identify the services authorized by this 
Agreement.  
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(q) “Sales” means the U.S. Dollar equivalent of all billings (whether collected or not) to 
Customers for goods sold or services rendered by Franchisee, including Temporary Sales, 
and Full-Time Placement Sales, and excluding only sales taxes or other taxes which may 
be required by law to be collected from Customers in connection with the provision of 
the services described herein, and adjustments or refunds which have been authorized 
by Company.   

(r) “Strategic or Strategic or National Account Customers” means Customers designated by 
Company for whom services are performed or to be performed by Company, its licensees 
or franchisees, at locations both within and outside the Area. 

(s) “Temporary Employees” means the employees of Company who are provided to 
Customers by Franchisee on behalf of Company to perform any services authorized by 
this Agreement, irrespective of whether such employees are full-time, part-time or 
temporary. 

(t) “Temporary Gross Profit” means the difference between Temporary Sales and Direct 
Costs associated with Temporary Sales during any Accounting Period or Fiscal Year. 

(u) “Temporary Sales” means the U.S. Dollar equivalent of all billings (whether collected or 
not) to Customers for services rendered by Temporary Employees provided by the 
Franchisee on behalf of Company excluding only sales taxes or other taxes which may be 
required by law to be collected from Customers in connection with the provision of the 
services described herein, and adjustments or refunds which have been authorized by 
Company. 

2. Nature of Agreement.

(a) This Agreement shall constitute the grant by Company, and the acceptance by Franchisee 
for the entire “Term,” as defined in Section 13, within the Area and upon the terms, 
conditions and limitations herein set forth, of a license: 

(1) to use the Marks strictly in accordance with the standards and requirements of 
this Agreement; and 

(2) to adopt and use the SPHERION System and each and every component thereof 
in strict compliance with this Agreement; 

for the purpose of operating, within the Area and as a limited agent of Company, a 
business that shall market and provide the services described in Schedule 2 to this 
Agreement.  Franchisee agrees to operate the business and market and provide the 
services for the entire Term of the Agreement. 

(b) This Agreement is personal to Franchisee, and may not be assigned by Franchisee other 
than as permitted by this Agreement.  If the Franchisee under this Agreement includes 
more than one individual, then Franchisee shall designate and retain an individual to 
serve as the “Managing Owner.”  The Managing Owner (i) must have at least a 51% share 
of unencumbered equity ownership in the franchise Entity (as defined in Subsection (c) 
immediately below), (ii) must be authorized by Franchisee to bind Franchisee in any 
dealings with Company, its affiliates, and authorized distributors, suppliers and 
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contractors of Franchisees, (iii) must be authorized by Franchisee to direct any actions 
necessary to ensure compliance with this Agreement and (iv) must devote full time and 
best efforts toward the satisfaction of Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement.  
Managing Owner’s interest in the franchise Entity shall remain free of any pledge, 
mortgage, hypothecation, lien, charge, encumbrance, voting agreement, proxy, security 
interest or purchase right, or options.  Franchisee agrees that it has not and will not 
hereafter take, whether directly or indirectly, any action to avoid the authority 
requirements of the Managing Owner through the entry of limiting board resolutions, 
management agreements, amendment of governing documents, or any other similar 
device or arrangement.  Franchisee agrees to furnish Company with such evidence as 
Company may request from time to time for the purpose of assuring Company that the 
Managing Owner’s authority remains as represented herein.  If the Franchisee under this 
Agreement is a single individual then such individual will be the Managing Owner. 

(c) Franchisee shall be permitted to assign this Agreement to a corporation or limited liability 
company (the “Entity”) in which the Managing Owner is the owner of the majority of the 
outstanding voting securities of the Entity and the majority of outstanding equity interest 
in the Entity, and provided Franchisee remains the owner of at least the majority of the 
outstanding voting securities of the Entity and the majority of outstanding equity interest 
in the Entity throughout the Term of this Agreement and any extensions or renewals of 
the right to operate the business franchised hereunder.  No person or entity other than 
the individual Franchisee(s) who executed this Agreement shall be permitted to own any 
voting security or other equity interest in the Entity without the prior written consent of 
Company.  The corporate name may not contain the word “Spherion” or be confusingly 
similar in any fashion with the mark “Spherion.”  Company shall first approve the name 
of any corporate assignee of this Agreement.  Any such assignment to a corporation shall 
be accomplished by execution of the Company’s Assignment of Spherion Franchise 
Agreement form by each individual Franchisee, by the Entity to which the Franchise 
Agreement is assigned and by the Company and no such assignment shall be valid under 
this Agreement in the absence of a fully executed Assignment of Spherion Franchise 
Agreement form.  The sale or issuance of any stock or other equity interest in such 
assignee Entity in violation of the provisions of this Section or Section 14 of this 
Agreement shall constitute a breach of this Agreement.  Within ten (10) days after the 
written request of Company, whether immediately upon or at any time after the 
execution of the Assignment of Spherion Franchise Agreement form, Franchisee shall 
provide Company with a copy of the Certificate of Incorporation or Articles of 
Organization of the assignee, a list of all shareholders or members (the “Owners”), and a 
certified copy of a resolution of the assignee accepting the assignment.  In the event that 
Company provides written consent to ownership in the Entity by a person or entity who 
has not executed this Agreement, each such proposed Owner of the assignee who is not 
a party to this Agreement shall, prior to the assignment of this Agreement or the issuance 
of any shares of stock in the assignee to such Owner, whichever occurs earlier, execute 
an agreement in form acceptable to Company for the purpose of being bound by Section 
5 hereof.  Failure on the part of Franchisee to obtain such an agreement from each Owner 
of the assignee who is not a party to this Agreement and to provide an originally executed 
copy thereof to Company shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. 

(d) If the Managing Owner does not intend to devote his/her full time and best efforts toward 
the satisfaction of Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement (as referenced in 
Subsection (c) above), then Franchisee must also designate an individual “Operating 
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Partner” who must be approved by Company, and the Operating Partner (i) must be 
authorized by Franchisee to bind Franchisee in any dealings with Company, its affiliates 
and authorized distributors, suppliers and contractors of Franchisee, (ii) must be 
authorized by Franchisee to direct any actions necessary to ensure compliance with this 
Agreement, and (iii) must devote his/her full time and best efforts towards the 
satisfaction of Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement with no operation or 
management commitments to businesses other than the Franchised Business established 
and opened under this Agreement. 

(e) Franchisee shall not change the Managing Owner and/or Operating Partner without the 
prior written consent of Company.  Any sale, transfer or assignment of the Managing 
Owner’s interest in Franchisee, or any portion thereof, or Operating Partner’s interest in 
Franchisee (if any), without Company’s prior written consent shall be deemed a material 
event of default under this Agreement.  In the event that there is a proper change in the 
Managing Owner or Operating Partner (including Company’s prior written consent), the 
new Managing Owner or Operating Partner shall be required to attend and complete such 
training program as may be required by Company within 30 days of the change, and such 
person shall also be required to become bound by this Agreement and by each Franchise 
Agreement created under this Agreement. 

(f) It is agreed that the relationship of the parties hereto is that of franchisee and franchisor 
as independent contractors, and that in no event shall Company and Franchisee be 
considered partners, joint or co-venturers, or employees of or for each other.  This 
Agreement is not intended to create a fiduciary relationship or to confer third party 
beneficiary rights upon either party.  Neither Company nor Franchisee shall make any 
express or implied agreements, warranties or representations, or incur any debt, in the 
name of or on behalf of the other or represent that their relationship is other than 
franchisee and franchisor, and neither Company nor Franchisee shall be obligated by or 
have any liability under any agreements or representations made by the other that are 
not expressly authorized hereunder. 

(g) Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the parties hereto further 
acknowledge and agree that the Temporary Employees provided by Franchisee pursuant 
to this Agreement shall be the employees of either Company or a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Company, full-time placement applicants shall be the applicants of either 
Company or a wholly-owned subsidiary of Company, and the Customers to whom services 
are provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be Customers of either Company or a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of Company, all at the sole option of Company.  The exercise of 
any or all of the options described above shall not affect the rights, duties or obligations 
of either party as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, and the performance of any 
obligation or duty required herein with respect to Temporary Employees, full-time 
placement applicants, or Customers by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Company, shall 
constitute the performance of such obligation or duty by Company. 

3. Ownership and Protection of the Marks and Copyrights.

(a) Franchisee agrees that the Marks licensed hereunder are valid service marks and 
trademarks owned by Company and/or its affiliates, and that only Company, its affiliates 
and its designated licensees and franchisees shall have the right to use the Marks and 
such other copyrights as may presently exist or as may be created by Company and/or its 
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affiliates and provided for use by Franchisee, along with all ancillary signs, symbols or 
other indicia or trade dress used in connection or conjunction with the SPHERION System.  
Franchisee further agrees that valuable goodwill is attached to the Marks, Company’s 
and/or its affiliates’ copyrights and trade dress, and that Franchisee will use them only in 
the manner and to the extent specifically licensed hereunder.  Franchisee agrees that any 
and all goodwill associated with the Marks, copyrights and trade dress, including any 
goodwill which might be deemed to have arisen through Franchisee’s efforts or activities, 
inures directly and exclusively to the benefit of Company and/or its affiliates, except as 
otherwise provided herein or by applicable law. 

(b) Franchisee agrees that its franchise under this Agreement for the use of the Marks is 
nonexclusive, and that Company and its affiliates, in their sole discretion, shall have the 
right themselves, or to authorize others, to operate businesses under the Marks on any 
terms and conditions Company deems fit, subject to the provisions of Section 4 of this 
Agreement.  Franchisee agrees that during the Term of this Agreement, and after its 
expiration or termination for any reason, Franchisee shall not directly or indirectly contest 
or aid in contesting the validity, ownership, title, right or interest of Company and/or its 
affiliates in and to the SPHERION System, the Marks or Company’s copyrights. 

(c) Franchisee shall promptly notify Company of the existence or assertion of any claim, 
demand, or suit based upon or arising from, or of any attempt by any other person or 
entity to use the Marks, or any proprietary marks, symbol, copyright, or colorable 
variation thereof, in which Company and/or its affiliates has a proprietary interest as well 
as any information or knowledge Franchisee may have with respect to any actual, 
threatened or suspected infringement of any of Company’s trademarks, trade names or 
service marks.  If Company and/or its affiliates desire to undertake the defense or 
prosecution of any such litigation, Franchisee agrees to execute any and all documents 
and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of Company’s and/or its affiliates’ 
counsel, be necessary to carry out such defense or prosecution, either in the name of 
Company, Company’s affiliates or in the name of Franchisee, as Company shall elect. 

(d) Franchisee will not in any manner do, or fail to do anything which would prohibit or 
restrict Company or any existing or future licensee or franchisee of Company, whether in 
a business either similar or dissimilar to the business franchised hereunder, from using 
the names or the Marks described in Section 1(p), forming an Entity whose name includes 
such names or the Marks, or from filing any service mark, trade name or fictitious name 
registration with respect to any business to be conducted outside the Area or any 
business inside the Area that is permitted by this Agreement.  Franchisee agrees, 
immediately upon written demand by Company, to execute or cause to be executed, such 
instruments as may be required by any court or government authority, consenting to the 
filing, registration or use of the names or the Marks set forth in Section 1(p) hereof in 
connection with the operation of such businesses or otherwise.  The failure or refusal of 
Franchisee to comply with such demand immediately upon the receipt thereof shall 
constitute a breach of this Agreement and shall thereupon vest in Company, through its 
designated officers, full power and authority in the name of and on behalf of Franchisee 
as its Attorney in Fact as fully as Franchisee might do itself, to execute any of the foregoing 
instruments required by any such government authority or court. 

(e) Franchisee shall follow all directives of the Company in connection with the use and 
display of the Marks.  Only those advertising and promotional materials or items which 
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are authorized by Company in writing prior to use shall be used, sold or distributed and 
no display or use of the Marks shall be made without the prior written approval of 
Company.  All documents and materials on which the Marks are used must include the 

designation ® or such other designation as Company may specify. 

(f) Except to the extent that Company may, in its discretion, permit these activities by 
Franchisee, Franchisee agrees not to register any Internet address name under any 
Internet domain, class, or category that contains any of the Marks or any abbreviations, 
acronym or variation of the Marks.  Franchisee also agrees not to use, publish, or in any 
way incorporate the Marks in any form of social media (including but not limited to 
blogging, Facebook®, Twitter®, LinkedIn®, Pinterest®, Instagram®, Google Places®, 
Google+®, Google Adwords®, Vimeo®, Tumblr®, YouTube®, TikTok® or Snapchat®) 
whether or not such social media platform is used for commercial gain, except to the 
extent that such use of the Marks is approved by the Company.  Company retains the sole 
right to advertise on the Internet and create a web site using any of the Marks or any 
variation of the Marks, except to the extent that Company may, in its discretion, permit 
these activities by Franchisee.  To the extent that Company may permit or may have 
permitted any usage of the Marks with respect to the subject matter set forth above, 
Company reserves the right to adjust, modify or withdraw such approval to the extent 
reasonably necessary to protect the Marks and to enhance the uniformity of the Spherion 
System.  Company retains the right to pre-approve Franchisee’s use of linking and framing 
between Franchisee’s web pages and all other websites.  Franchisee shall, within five (5) 
days after a request by Company, dismantle any frames and links between Franchisee’s 
web pages and any other websites.  Franchisee agrees to comply with any and all policies 
related to the internet, social media policies and the use of the Marks in the public domain 
as established by Company in the Manual or as otherwise provided by Company to 
Franchisee.  Company may, in its sole discretion, establish certain online social media 
pages for Franchisee’s Business Unit, and Company may, in its sole discretion, provide 
Franchisee access to these social media pages to post content that complies at all times 
with any and all policies related to the internet, social media policies and the use of the 
Marks in the public domain as established by Company in the Manual or otherwise 
provided to Franchisee.  Company shall retain all rights in these social media pages and 
Company may, in its sole discretion, terminate any or all of these social media pages at 
any time and/or terminate Franchisee’s access to post content to these pages. 

4. Area, Scope and Authorized Services.

(a) Franchisee is hereby authorized to market and provide on behalf of Company, the services 
which are specified in Schedule 2 hereto, within the Area identified in Section 1(c) of this 
Agreement, and only from an approved office location within the Area, and only to 
customers who are located within the Area.  In connection therewith, and only as 
authorized by this Agreement, Franchisee is authorized to use the SPHERION System.  
Franchisee is not authorized to use the SPHERION System, or any component thereof: 

(1) outside of the Area; 

(2) with respect to the provision of temporary help or full-time placement services 
other than those specifically set forth in Schedule 2 to this Agreement;  
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(3) to advertise for and recruit Customers, Temporary Employees and full-time 
placement applicants outside of the Area, provided, however, that nothing 
contained herein shall prevent Franchisee from using the internet, social media 
and other advertising vehicles for the purpose of recruiting and placing 
Temporary Employees and full time placement applicants with Customers who 
are located within the Area so long as the Franchisee’s use of these vehicles does 
not, in the discretionary opinion of Company, create unnecessary or undesirable 
confusion with respect to the advertising and recruiting efforts of others who are 
utilizing the SPHERION System; or 

(4) in connection with any business or enterprise whatsoever other than the 
Franchised Business. 

Due to high risk of injury exposure and resulting increased insurance costs, Franchisee 
shall not assign Temporary Employees to perform the Restricted Tasks listed in Schedule 
2 to this Agreement, and Company reserves the right from time to time to amend, add to 
or delete from such Restricted Tasks, with written notice to Franchisee.  

(b) The Area shall only be modified if Company, in its sole discretion, agrees to do so by 
amendment to this Agreement.  In such event, Franchisee will be required to pay 
Company an amount to be determined based on the market size of Franchisee’s Area and 
the geographic territory being added, as mutually agreed upon between the parties (but 
not to exceed $20,000). 

(c) Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that, in regard to services other than those 
specifically set forth in Schedule 2 to this Agreement, Company shall have the sole and 
exclusive right to market and provide such services, to authorize others to market and 
provide such services, and to authorize others to operate an office or offices within the 
Area for the purpose of marketing and providing such services, using the Marks and the 
SPHERION System, or otherwise. 

(d) Company agrees that, as long as Franchisee shall not be in default hereunder, it will not 
establish or maintain, or authorize any other person or firm to establish or maintain, an 
office location within the Area utilizing the trademarks, service marks or trade names 
which Franchisee is authorized to use pursuant to this Agreement for the purpose of 
providing the services set forth in Schedule 2 to this Agreement, except as set forth in this 
Subsection (d) and in Subsection (e) below.  In the event that Company, directly or 
through its parent, subsidiary, affiliate, successor or assignee, acquires, merges with, or 
is acquired by a Competitive Business, Company or its parent, subsidiary, affiliate, 
successor or assignee shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to do one or more of the 
following: 

(1) continue to operate the Competitive Business from one or more office locations 
within the Area, to open additional offices (the term “offices” to include “on-site” 
offices) of the Competitive Business within the Area, to close and relocate offices 
of the Competitive Business within the Area, to initiate operations of the 
Competitive Business and open new offices of the Competitive Business within 
the Area and to otherwise conduct the business operations of the Competitive 
Business both outside of and within the Area in the manner that it sees fit 
provided, however, that Company or its parent, subsidiary, affiliate, successor or 
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assignee shall not utilize the trademarks, service marks or trade names which 
Franchisee is authorized to use pursuant to this Agreement in connection with 
the operation of such Competitive Business within the Area; 

(2) sell the Competitive Business conducted from such office locations within the 
Area to Franchisee, under terms and conditions to be negotiated between the 
parties; or 

(3) transfer the Competitive Business conducted from such office locations within 
the Area to Franchisee without charge. 

In the event Company, or its parent, affiliate, successor or assignee exercises its right to 
sell the Competitive Business to Franchisee pursuant to (2) above, or to transfer the 
Competitive Business to Franchisee without charge pursuant to (3) above, then 
Franchisee shall assume the operation of the Competitive Business as of the effective date 
of the sale or transfer, and such Competitive Business shall thereafter be operated 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  In connection with any such sale 
and/or transfer of a Competitive Business to Franchisee, the parties agree to execute an 
amendment to this Agreement containing such provisions as are deemed necessary by 
Company or its parent, subsidiary, affiliate, successor or assignee. 

(e) Company shall have the right, on behalf of itself and/or its other licensees and 
franchisees, to negotiate and enter into contracts with Strategic or National Account 
Customers to provide temporary help or full-time placement services to multiple 
locations of such Strategic or National Account Customers utilizing the trademarks, 
service marks or trade names which Franchisee is authorized to use pursuant to this 
Agreement, whether such locations are within or outside of the Area.  Immediately 
following the Company’s execution of a contract with or the acceptance of a contract or 
bid by a Strategic or National Account Customer which contemplates the provision of such 
services utilizing the trademarks, service marks or trade names which Franchisee is 
authorized to use pursuant to this Agreement to one or more Strategic or National 
Account Customer locations within the Area, Company may, at its option, provide a copy 
of the Customer requirements and/or specifications set forth in such contract or bid to 
Franchisee, and Franchisee shall thereafter, utilizing the trademarks, service marks or 
trade names which Franchisee is authorized to use pursuant to this Agreement, provide 
services to the Strategic or National Account Customer within the Area pursuant to the 
terms and conditions of such contract or bid.  In that event, should Franchisee fail to 
provide such services to the Strategic or National Account Customer in a manner that is 
both satisfactory to Company and the Strategic or National Account Customer and in 
conformity with the contract, Company shall have the right, exercisable in its sole 
discretion to: 

(1) provide such services to the Strategic or National Account Customer at location(s) 
within the Area on the terms and conditions contained in the contract between 
Company and the Strategic or National Account Customer utilizing the Marks and 
the SPHERION System; and/or 

(2) contract with another party to provide such services to the Strategic or National 
Account Customer within the Area on the terms and conditions contained in the 
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contract between Company and the Strategic or National Account Customer, 
utilizing the Marks, or any other trademarks, service marks or trade names. 

Neither the direct provision by Company of such services to Strategic or National Account 
Customers as authorized in (e) and in (e)(1) above, or Company’s contracting with another 
party to provide such services as authorized in (e) and (e)(2) above (whether or not such 
party has an office within the Area), shall constitute a violation by Company of the terms 
and conditions contained in Subsection (d) above. 

5. Restrictive Covenants.

(a) Franchisee, any Entity formed by Franchisee to operate the Franchised Business, each 
Owner of such Entity, and any subsequent assignee of any of such parties hereby agree 
that, except as otherwise provided herein, he, she or it shall not: 

(1) commencing with the execution of this Agreement and for the period extending 
throughout the Term of this Agreement and any extensions or renewals hereof 
or until termination of ownership in any Entity formed for the operation of the 
business described herein, whichever shall first occur, directly or indirectly, within 
the United States, individually or for any third party, without the prior written 
consent of Company, (i) own, engage in as a partner, officer, executive or 
manager, guarantor, director, shareholder (other than as owner of less than five 
percent (5%) of the issue and outstanding stock of a publicly owned corporation 
whose securities are traded on a nationally recognized stock exchange), 
consultant, recruiter or salesperson any Competitive Business; (ii) engage in 
activity, or assist in any manner, for or on behalf of, any Competitive Business, as 
an employee, owner, officer, or manager of any such, ,  Competitive Business; or 
(iii) solicit, divert or appropriate (or attempt to do so), to or for any Competitive 
Business, any person or entity which is or was a Customer of Company within the 
preceding twelve months, nor solicit, divert or hire away (or attempt to do so), to 
or for any competitor, any full-time placement applicant or person employed by 
Company, whether such person is a Temporary Employee or full-time staff 
employee; 

(2) commencing with the execution of this Agreement and for the period extending 
throughout the Term of this Agreement and any extensions or renewals hereof, 
engage any sales, supervisory, management or executive employees, unless and 
until he, she, or it shall have first secured and delivered to Company a signed 
agreement from each such individual, in the form then in use and prescribed by 
Company and containing substantially the covenants and conditions set forth in 
this Section 5, restricting future employment and other activities which may be 
directly or indirectly competitive to the business of Company or Franchisee; 

(3) commencing upon the date of (i) termination of any ownership interest in any 
entity formed for the operation of the Franchised Business; (ii) expiration of this 
Agreement; (iii) termination of this Agreement (regardless of the cause for 
termination); (iv) a final order of a duly authorized arbitrator, panel of arbitrators, 
or a court of competent jurisdiction (after all appeals have been taken) with 
respect to any of the foregoing or with respect to enforcement of this Section 
5(a); or (v) any or all of the foregoing, and for a period of twenty-four (24)  months 
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thereafter, directly or indirectly, individually or for any third party, (A) at or from 
the location of the Franchised Business, (B) within the Franchisee’s Area (as now 
or hereafter defined), (C) within any county or parish which is contiguous to 
Franchisee’s Area, or (D) within any  county or parish, and the contiguous counties 
or parishes, of any other Spherion Staffing business, or other business operating 
under the SPHERION System or Intellectual Property, at the time this covenant 
becomes effective,  without the prior written consent of Company, (aa) own, 
engage in  as a partner, officer, executive or manager, guarantor, director, 
shareholder (other than as owner of less than five percent (5%) of the issue and 
outstanding stock of a publicly owned corporation whose securities are traded on 
a nationally recognized stock exchange), consultant, recruiter or salesperson any 
Competitive Business; (bb) engage in activity for or on behalf of, as an employee, 
owner, officer, or manager of any Competitive Business, nor assist in any manner 
such Competitive Business; or (cc) solicit, divert or appropriate (or attempt to do 
so), to or for any competitor, any person or entity which is or was a Customer of 
Company within the preceding twelve months, nor solicit, divert or hire away (or 
attempt to do so), to or for any competitor any full-time placement applicant or 
person employed by Company, whether such person is an Employee or full-time 
staff employee; 

(4) at any time during the Term of this Agreement and any renewals or extensions 
thereof, or at any time after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for 
any reason, directly or indirectly make use of or disclose to any third party any 
Customer information or list or list of information concerning any Temporary 
Employees placed with any Customer by Franchisee in the operation of the 
Franchised Business or list of information concerning any Temporary Employees 
or other employees of Company, its parents, subsidiaries or affiliates, including 
those who are placed by other franchisees or licensees of the Company in the 
operation of their franchised or licensed business; 

(5) at any time during the Term of this Agreement and any renewals or extensions 
thereof, or after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, 
directly or indirectly disclose to any third party or allow any third party to make 
use of the details or provisions of the SPHERION System, or the existence or 
content of any written or oral contract or of any agreement between Franchisee 
or Company and any other firm or person, any statistical data, Customer, 
applicant or employee lists, sales, promotional or financial information, manual, 
form, plan, system, procedure or method or other proprietary or confidential 
information which may have been created by or on behalf of Franchisee or which 
may have been developed and provided by Company or which may otherwise 
have come to their attention or knowledge by reason of their association with 
Company or Franchisee; or 

(6) assign, sell or transfer by way of gift or otherwise, without the prior written 
consent of Company, any interest in this Agreement or any stock of any Entity 
formed for the operation of the Franchised Business, without first securing from 
each such assignee, purchaser, transferee or prospective Owner a signed copy of 
an agreement in form acceptable to Company containing substantially the above 
provisions, a copy of which shall be immediately furnished to Company. 
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(b) Franchisee acknowledges that is has received valuable, specialized, confidential, and 
proprietary information and trade secrets from Company, including information 
regarding the SPHERION System, and the operation of staffing businesses that provide 
temporary and permanent staffing services.  Accordingly, Franchisee acknowledges that 
the covenants and agreements contained above are of the essence of this Agreement, 
and each such covenant and agreement is reasonable and necessary to protect the 
interests and properties of Company.  Each of such covenants and agreements is separate, 
distinct and severable from each other and from the other and remaining provisions of 
this Agreement, and the enforceability of any such covenant or agreement shall not affect 
the validity or enforceability of any other such covenant or agreement, or of any other 
provision of this Agreement.  Since irreparable loss and damage will be suffered by 
Company should Franchisee breach any of the above covenants or agreements, Company 
shall be entitled, in addition to all other remedies available to it, to both full-time and 
temporary injunctive relief to prevent a breach or contemplated breach of any of such 
covenants or agreements by Franchisee.  Any breach of the above covenants or 
agreements by Franchisee shall constitute a breach of this Agreement.  Franchisee hereby 
acknowledges that, prior to execution of this Agreement, he or she had developed certain 
skills in occupations which are not related to recruiting or supplying personnel to perform 
the services authorized by this Agreement, and that accordingly, the noncompetition 
covenants contained in this Agreement will not jeopardize Franchisee’s ability to earn a 
livelihood. 

(c) If any restriction in this Section 5 is deemed unenforceable by virtue of its scope in terms 
of area, business activity prohibited, and/or length of time, but would be enforceable if 
modified, Franchisee and Company agree that the covenant will be enforced to the fullest 
extent permissible under the laws and public policies applied in the jurisdiction whose 
law determines the covenant’s validity.  Specifically, if any part of these restrictions is 
found to be unreasonable in time or distance, each month of time or geographic measure  
of distance may be deemed a separate unit, or with respect to the distance or area 
subdivided by miles, streets, or other geographic divisions, so that the time or distance 
may be reduced by appropriate order of the court to that deemed reasonable. 

6. Duties and Obligations of Company.

In consideration of and for this Agreement, Company hereby agrees to perform all of the 
following, at its expense: 

(a) Provide such training, instruction, confidential memoranda, manuals, and software, and 
other materials as Company deems necessary and proper for Franchisee’s conduct of the 
Franchised Business.  Company may make available for purchase by Franchisee from time 
to time optional training and instruction through third party providers. 

(b) Develop and/or make available for purchase and use by Franchisee such forms, supplies 
and printed materials as Company deems necessary for the provision of employment 
services to Customers as authorized by this Agreement, including payroll forms, 
employment applications, reference forms and other such forms required in the 
employment process and for the assignment of Temporary Employees and full-time 
placement applicants to Customers.  Company shall provide Franchisee with an initial 
supply of such forms. 
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(c) Develop and make available for purchase and use by Franchisee sales and promotional 
programs, campaigns and materials which, in Company’s discretion, are appropriate to 
assist Franchisee to recruit and market the services authorized by this Agreement on 
behalf of Company.  Company, at its expense, shall provide Franchisee with an initial 
supply of such materials if Franchisee opens an office in a new Spherion market. 

(d) List the office of Franchisee on advertising materials as deemed appropriate by Company. 

(e) Based upon information provided by Franchisee, pay all Temporary Employee payroll, all 
payroll taxes, workers’ compensation, general liability, bonding, fringe benefit expense 
and other Direct Costs as set forth in Section 1(g) of this Agreement, and provide the 
Management Information Services referred to in Section 8 of this Agreement. 

(f) Provide advice and guidelines in handling collections in conjunction with Franchisee’s 
responsibilities as set forth in Subsection 7(v) of this Agreement. 

(g) Arrange and pay for all bonding and insuring of Temporary Employees as deemed 
necessary and proper by Company. 

(h) Provide access to market data to support the identification of prospective customers and 
candidates. 

7. Duties and Obligations of Franchisee.

In consideration of and for this Agreement, Franchisee hereby agrees to perform all of the 
following, at Franchisee’s expense: 

(a) Use Franchisee’s best efforts to develop, maintain and promote the Franchised Business 
and public image of the SPHERION System and the Marks so as to achieve maximum sales 
of the services authorized by this Agreement. 

(b) Comply with all of the terms of this Agreement, the SPHERION System and the concepts, 
plans, practices, policies, procedures, strategies, systems and directives of Company now 
in effect or hereafter promulgated or modified, which shall include, but not be limited to, 
those policies, procedures, techniques, systems and directives set forth in the Manual 
published and updated (whether the update is by physical documents for filing in a 
Manual or in the form of on-line accessible electronic files or in the form of email 
communications or internet postings) from time to time by Company, as well as 
confidential bulletins and memoranda issued from time to time by Company.  The Manual 
and Company’s confidential bulletins, memoranda and emails and internet postings 
which update, modify or explain such Manual or the SPHERION System as presently 
existing and as hereafter amended, modified or supplemented, are hereby incorporated 
by reference in this Agreement as reasonable and necessary standards governing the 
performance of Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement.  The Manual, confidential 
bulletins, memoranda, emails, internet postings and similar materials which set forth or 
update, modify or explain such Manual or the SPHERION System are provided to 
Franchisee on a “loaned” basis and shall be and remain the sole property of Company and 
shall be returned to Company by Franchisee immediately upon Company’s request or 
upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever. 
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(c) The Managing Owner (or Operating Partner, if applicable) shall personally attend and 
successfully complete such initial and ongoing training as Company shall deem necessary.  
The Managing Owner (or Operating Partner, if applicable) shall thereafter devote full time 
and best efforts on a day-to-day basis to the management and operation of the 
Franchised Business, and Franchisee shall not own, operate or otherwise engage in any 
other business unless otherwise consented to in writing by Company.  Should the 
Managing Owner (or Operating Partner, if applicable) be permitted by Company to devote 
less than full time and effort to the single Franchised Business that is authorized under 
this Agreement (whether due to the operation of multiple Franchised Businesses or due 
to other considerations pursuant to which the Company has granted such permission), 
the Managing Owner must still remain actively involved in the operations and 
management of the business and Franchisee shall be required to hire (i) a full-time 
employee to act as the day-to-day manager and have responsibility for the operation of 
the business authorized by this Agreement (specifically including acting in a sales 
capacity), and (ii) a full-time employee to serve as a business development manager 
and/or recruiter.  The Managing Owner or the day-to-day manager must at all times 
provide in-person supervision of the Franchised Business. The business development 
manager and/or recruiter need not have an ownership interest in Franchisee but they 
cannot have an interest in, or business relationship with, any Competitive Business, and 
each must devote all of his/her productive time and effort to the management and 
operation of the franchise.  The employees Franchisee hires pursuant to this Subsection 
shall be approved by Company and trained by Company (at Franchisee’s expense).  
Franchisee shall require that the managers and client service representatives hired 
pursuant to this subsection shall execute the Company’s standard form confidentiality 
and noncompetition agreement and executed copies of such confidentiality and 
noncompetition agreements shall be forwarded to Company within ten (10) days 
following each such employee’s first date of employment. 

(d) Establish on or before the date which is no later than ninety (90) days from the Effective 
Date of this Agreement, which required date is set forth in greater specificity in Schedule 
1, and maintain within the Area and throughout the Term of this Agreement and any 
extensions or renewals hereof, one or more offices properly identified as a SPHERION 
office.  The office hours shall be consistent with Company’s practices concerning business 
hours and holidays, provided that Franchisee’s services shall be available to Customers at 
all times on a 24-hour per day basis. The location, size, appearance and layout of each 
office shall be subject to the approval of Company, pursuant to standards established by 
Company, and must be appropriate to the services authorized by this Agreement.  Each 
office shall be appropriately furnished and equipped, and kept open and operating in 
accordance with Company’s standard procedures.  At the request of Company, from time 
to time, Franchisee shall refurbish the office at its expense, to conform to the trade dress, 
color schemes and presentation of the Marks as used in the Franchisee’s office(s) to a 
manner which is consistent with the then-current image for new Spherion franchised 
businesses as directed by Company in its discretion (the “Current Image”).  Required 
changes may include structural changes, installation of new equipment and signs, 
remodeling, redecoration and modifications to existing improvements.  In modifying the 
office to comply with the then-Current Image, Franchisee agrees to use vendors and 
suppliers approved by Company.  Franchisee shall maintain the office in a clean, attractive 
condition, and in good repair.  Company shall have the right to inspect each office during 
normal business hours and request such changes as it in its business judgment deems 
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appropriate and proper, and Franchisee shall comply with such requests as expeditiously 
as possible.  Only the Franchised Business shall be advertised or operated from such office 
without the prior written consent of Company.  Franchisee shall use its reasonable 
commercial efforts to see that each office lease executed by Franchisee coincident with 
or after the execution of this Agreement shall specifically provide that such lease shall be 
assignable to Company at Company’s sole discretion, upon expiration or termination of 
this Agreement for any reason.  Within ten (10) days after the written request of 
Company, Franchisee agrees to submit a copy of its office leases to Company.   

(e) Provide and maintain a telephone service for the Franchised Business under the System, 
and utilize such telephone service only in a manner and for purposes that are consistent 
with furtherance of the Franchised Business.  Bills for such service, including installation 
and deposits shall be directed to and paid by Franchisee.  Franchisee agrees to assign such 
telephone number(s) to Company at Company’s request, and Franchisee further agrees 
that it will execute, either before, during or after the Term of this Agreement, all 
documents considered by Company as necessary to affect the assignment of such 
telephone number(s) as provided for herein.  Only the Franchised Business shall be 
transacted or advertised using the telephone number(s) assigned by the telephone 
company to Franchisee in connection with the Franchised Business. 

(f) Provide and maintain suitable signs approved by Company identifying Franchisee’s office 
as an office operating under the System, and advertise Franchisee’s offices and services 
in conformity with Company’s procedures and guidelines.   

(g) Employ and maintain such trained and competent sales and office personnel as required 
by law or necessary for the proper and successful operation of the Franchised Business, 
which shall require at least two full-time employees if Franchisee will not devote full time 
and efforts to the business as provided in Subsection (c) of this Section.  Franchisee shall 
enter into such agreements regarding the terms of employment with respect to 
Franchisee’s employees as Franchisee sees fit, and Franchisee may also, at its election, 
obtain confidentiality and noncompetition agreement from such personnel on the 
standard form agreement provided by Company.  Company reserves the right to require, 
on reasonable advance notice to Franchisee, that Franchisee obtain the standard form 
confidentiality and noncompetition agreement from all persons who become employed 
by Franchisee after the date of receipt by Franchisee of such notice from the Company.  
Executed copies of any such confidentiality and noncompetition agreements shall be 
forwarded to Company within ten (10) days following each employee’s first date of 
employment.  Such employees shall complete all Company prescribed training programs 
at Franchisee’s expense, and Franchisee shall pay any and all charges associated with such 
continuing training programs as may be reasonably required by Company.  Further, if 
Franchisee’s operations are such that it is deemed by Company to be necessary that 
Company send a Company representative to Franchisee’s location to conduct training for 
Franchisee and Franchisee’s staff, Franchisee will be required to pay all travel, hotel and 
meal expenses associated with that representative’s visit plus an additional training fee 
which is described in the Manual. 

(h) Recruit, screen, test, interview, hire, train, assign and supervise Temporary Employees 
and full-time placement applicants on behalf of Company, and in conformity with the 
SPHERION System, and do so in full compliance with all laws including equal employment 
opportunity laws and any affirmative action program of Company.  Franchisee shall 
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acquire and provide any safety or other training programs or materials, and all employee 
testing materials or equipment and personal protective garments or equipment deemed 
necessary by Company or required by law for the Temporary Employees.  

(i) Furnish the services set forth in Schedule 2 to this Agreement in conformity with the 
procedures and systems of Company.  Franchisee shall not, without the prior written 
consent of Company, provide full-time placement applicants or Temporary Employees to 
Franchisee or to any organization in which Franchisee, a member of Franchisee’s family 
or any entity wholly or partly owned by Franchisee, has a financial interest greater than 
10%, or to a Customer which is delinquent in payment of sums due to Company, provided 
that Company has notified Franchisee of such delinquency.  Franchisee shall not accept 
orders for or make assignments in the Restricted Job List listed in Schedule 2 to this 
Agreement. 

(j) Recruit Temporary Employees and full-time placement applicants, and solicit Customers 
on behalf of Company in each Accounting Period through the use of local marketing. Local 
marketing expenditures may include local customer advertising in various media including 
SEM (search engine marketing), SEO (search engine optimization) & other digital 
advertising, social media, email & text/SMS marketing, out-of-home/billboard, 
TV/cable/YouTube video ads, radio, grass-roots marketing (flyers, posters and other 
traditional & digital collateral), sponsorships and event-related marketing, or such other 
methods as permitted in accordance with our Manual.  Local marketing may be produced 
or purchased by Franchisee from Company or from Franchisee’s own sources, provided 
that all local marketing and related materials not purchased from Company shall first be 
approved in writing by Company and shall comply with our then-current brand guidelines 
and conform to the theme, design and content to the advertising utilized by Company.   

(k) Obtain, and maintain throughout the Term of this Agreement and any extensions or 
renewals hereof, all licenses and permits which are necessary or appropriate to the 
operation of the Franchised Business.  Such licenses and permits shall be obtained, where 
permissible and required by Company, in the joint names of Company and Franchisee, 
and all Franchisee’s interest, rights and benefits thereunder shall be assigned to 
Company, at its option and where permissible by law, upon expiration or termination of 
this Agreement for any reason, except as otherwise provided herein. 

(l) Follow all directives of the Company in connection with the use and display of the Marks.  
Utilize in connection with the Franchised Business, only such business forms, advertising, 
brochures, promotional materials and similar materials that conform to the design and 
specifications of Company and that are either purchased from or approved in advance by 
Company as consistent with the SPHERION System. 

(m) Maintain an accounting and payroll system for the Franchised Business in accordance with 
Company’s systems and procedures and within ten (10) days following the end of each 
Accounting Period provide Company with sufficient information, in a form acceptable to 
Company, to enable Company to prepare monthly profit and loss statements for the 
Franchised Business.  The completeness and accuracy of such statements shall be solely 
dependent on the information supplied by Franchisee, and Company shall have no duty 
to independently obtain or investigate any such information or verify the statements 
prepared by it.  Company or its duly appointed representatives shall have the right to 
inspect and observe the operation of the Franchised Business and Franchisee’s business 
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premises and to inspect, audit and make copies of any and all books and records of 
Franchisee, as well as all supporting data related to the Franchised Business, at all 
reasonable times. 

(n) Supply such information as Company deems necessary to enable Company to prepare 
and maintain accurate mailing lists of current and prospective Customers, full-time 
placement applicants and Temporary Employees, and reimburse Company for the 
production and postage expense incurred by Company for any direct mailings to such lists 
as may be deemed reasonable and necessary by Company from time to time. 

(o) Maintain at all times such financial resources as Company in its business judgment shall 
deem necessary and proper to fulfill the obligations and responsibilities set forth in this 
Agreement.  Franchisee shall pay in a timely manner all bills and expenses of the 
Franchised Business, and shall pay all invoices for services and supplies purchased from 
Company, and other amounts due Company, on or before the tenth (10th) day of the 
month following the date of invoice.  Company shall have the absolute right, at any time, 
to deduct amounts due Company by Franchisee from Franchisee’s monthly commission, 
including amounts due Company under any other franchise, license or other agreement 
between Franchisee and Company or any affiliate of Company.  Franchisee further agrees 
to pay on behalf of and as directed by Company, all instant payments to Temporary 
Employees and to promptly report and account for such instant payments to Company.  
Company agrees to reimburse Franchisee for instant payments made to Temporary 
Employees on the commission statement for the Accounting Period in which it receives 
appropriate instant pay information from Franchisee. 

(p) Keep and maintain in a confidential manner, or as otherwise directed by Company, 
without allowing any copies of same to be made, the Manual, periodic newsletters, 
memoranda, correspondence, Customer lists and requirements, Temporary Employee 
and full-time placement applicant lists, records and files, personnel records, mailing lists, 
financial information, computer software and similar trade secrets or confidential 
information, all of which are, and shall remain, the sole and exclusive property of 
Company. 

(q) Purchase and continuously maintain at Franchisee’s expense the insurance coverage 
listed below, insuring Franchisee (and, when requested, naming Company as an 
additional insured for liability arising out of the operations of the Franchised Business 
with thirty-day notice of cancellation or material change), and furnish to Company a copy 
of each policy, required endorsements and loss runs (information on all claims or losses) 
as may reasonably be requested by Company: 

(1) WORKERS’ COMPENSATION, including Employers Liability with a minimum limit 
of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000).  A waiver of subrogation 
endorsement must be attached in favor of the Company; 

(2) COMMERCIAL/COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY (“CGL”) with minimum limits 
of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) including the following coverage:  



63613984v2 

Exhibit A to the Franchise Disclosure Document – Franchise Agreement 
Spherion FA 4-2024 Page 19 

- Broad form Comprehensive General Liability 
- A waiver of subrogation endorsement must be attached in favor of 

Company and Company must be named as an additional insured for 
liability arising out of the operations of the Franchised Business; 

(3) COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY with minimum limits of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) and includes: 

- Hired/Non-owned Automobiles 
- Owned Automobiles 
- A waiver of subrogation endorsement must be attached in favor of 

Company and Company needs to be named as an additional insured 
for liability arising out of the operations of the Franchised Business; 

(4) UMBRELLA LIABILITY with a minimum limit of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
excess of the primary One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) limited required of CGL 
and Automobile Liability; 

(5) EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY COVERAGE OR FIDELITY BOND (deductible not to exceed 
Twenty-Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) without prior written consent of Company) 
with a minimum limit of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000); and 

(6) PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY with a minimum limit of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000).  Professional liability insurance cannot include staffing exclusions 
for placement of employees. 

The obligation of franchisee to maintain insurance is separate and distinct from its 
obligation to indemnify Company under the provisions of Section 19 (“Indemnification”) 
of this Agreement.  Nothing contained herein shall be, or be construed to be, an 
assumption of an obligation by Company to provide any insurance coverage for 
Franchisee, and the obligation shall be on Franchisee at all times to determine its needs 
with respect to any insurance coverage necessary or desirable for the Franchised 
Business.  In the event Company makes available to Franchisee any of the foregoing or 
any other insurance coverage under either separate or master policies, such an 
undertaking by Company shall not be construed to be a continuing obligation of Company, 
and Company may at any time, with prior written notice to Franchisee, cancel or not 
renew any such insurance coverage, in which case Franchisee shall remain obligated to 
secure and maintain all such insurance coverage.   

(r) Forward, without delay, a copy of any incident report, claim for workers’ compensation 
or unemployment compensation by a Temporary Employee, summons, subpoena, 
process or notice in which Company or any Temporary Employee is named or involved, 
to the appropriate insurance services vendor or the Company’s Law Department at its 
principal place of business, in accordance with applicable Company policy and 
procedures, and to cooperate with Company, its attorneys and/or insurers as requested 
in relation thereto.  Franchisee shall be solely responsible for the defense of any claim, 
suit or action brought against Franchisee or its employee(s), and for the payment of any 
and all attorney’s fees, costs, judgments, fines or penalties rendered or assessed against 
Franchisee or its employees, and Company shall have no obligation in connection 
therewith. 
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(s) Conduct the Franchised Business in accordance with all applicable laws, statutes, rules 
and regulations.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Franchisee shall comply 
with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 
the Equal Pay Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Immigration Reform and 
Control Act, as such laws now exist or are hereafter amended, in the operation of the 
Franchised Business. 

(t) Attain or surpass the Gross Profit Quota for each Fiscal Year, as set forth in Schedule 3 to 
this Agreement, and for each Fiscal Year in which Franchisee fails for any reason to attain 
the Gross Profit Quota for such year, pay to Company an amount equal to the Company’s 
percentage of the Gross Profit Quota for such year calculated in accordance with Section 
12(a) hereof, less the Company’s percentage of the actual Gross Profit for such year 
calculated in the same way.  Company shall notify Franchisee in writing within sixty (60) 
days after the end of any Fiscal Year in which Franchisee fails to attain that year’s Gross 
Profit Quota, and such notice shall specify the Gross Profit Quota, the Gross Profit 
attained by Franchisee, and the amount payable by Franchisee to Company for failure to 
meet its Gross Profit Quota, calculated pursuant to this Section.  If Franchisee fails to pay 
the amount required by this Section within thirty (30) days of receiving such written 
notice thereof from Company, Franchisee shall be in default under this Agreement. Upon 
a transfer or termination of this Agreement, Franchisee shall be obligated to pay a pro-
rata portion of the amount described in this Section 7(t) based upon the amount of time 
in Franchisee’s then fiscal year through the date of transfer or termination.  

(u) Provide to Company at its principal place of business, or at such other location as directed 
by Company, by method of delivery specified by Company, on or before the Monday next 
succeeding the week to that which such information pertains (or such other day and time 
as may be required by the payroll policies and procedures of the Company), in the form 
or formats required by Company, detailed information relating to the placement of full-
time placement applicants and complete and accurate weekly payroll and billing 
information for Temporary Employees furnished to Customers.  Franchisee shall take all 
action necessary to install and utilize the electronic data processing services and 
equipment when permitted or required by Section 8 of this Agreement.  Additionally, 
Franchisee shall prepare, maintain and timely provide to Company all such records and 
reports as Company may require including, but not limited to, a business plan, records 
and reports on Sales, promotional activity, marketing, business development, employee 
census data and copies of Franchisee’s or, if Franchisee is an entity, the Entity’s federal 
and state income tax and payroll tax returns, as well as monthly, quarterly and annual 
financial statements including balance sheet and profit and loss statement. 

(v) Assume full responsibility for the collection of unpaid Customer accounts and the financial 
loss resulting from nonpayment.  Customer accounts are owned by Company and any 
payments made by Customers shall be promptly remitted to Company. 

(w) Promptly file appropriate responses and, when requested by Company, defend on behalf 
of Company all claims for unemployment compensation in accordance with the policies, 
procedures and systems of Company.  Assist and cooperate with Company in the defense 
of any workers’ compensation claim, general liability claim, professional/fidelity liability 
claim, auto claim, employment practices liability claim or other claim or suit by a 
Temporary Employee or by a Customer with respect to the acts, errors or omissions of a 
Temporary Employee or others and pay or be charged such deductible amounts and other 
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amounts as are currently required under the Company’s policies and procedures 
regarding worker’s compensation, general liability, professional/fidelity liability, auto 
liability, employment practices liability and other liabilities all as set forth from time to 
time in the Manual and in other communications, including email communications, from 
Company to Franchisee, as well as to undertake such action and pay or be charged such 
amounts as are required under Section 19 (Indemnification) of this Agreement. 

(x) Abide by all applicable laws pertaining to the privacy of customer, employee and 
transactional information (“Privacy Laws”).  Additionally, Franchisee will comply with 
Company standards and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws.  If there is a conflict between 
Company standards and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws and actual applicable law, 
Franchisee will:  (i) comply with the requirements of applicable law; (ii) immediately give 
Company written notice of said conflict; and (iii) promptly and fully cooperate with 
Company and Company’s counsel in determining the most effective way, if any, to meet 
Company’s standards and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws within the bounds of 
applicable law.   

(y) Have the sole right and responsibility for the manner and means by which the day-to-day 
operation of the Franchised Businesses is determined and conducted and for achieving 
Franchisee’s business objectives.  Franchisee will hire all employees of the Franchised 
Businesses, and be exclusively responsible for the terms of their employment, scheduling, 
benefits, disciplining, compensation, daily maintenance, safety concerns and all other 
personnel and employment-related decisions. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that 
all personnel decisions of the Franchised Business (except for those pertaining to 
Temporary Employees), including hiring, firing, disciplining, compensation, benefits, and 
scheduling, shall be made by Franchisee, without any influence or advice from the 
Company, and such decisions and actions shall not be, nor be deemed to be, a decision 
or action of the Company.  Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that any training the 
Company provides for Franchisee’s employees is geared to impart to those employees, 
with Franchisee’s ultimate authority, the various procedures, protocols, systems and 
operations of a Franchised Business and in no fashion reflects any employment 
relationship between the Company and Franchisee’s employees. If it is ever asserted that 
we are the employer, joint employer or co-employer of any of Franchisee’s employees in 
any private or government investigation, action, proceeding, arbitration or other setting, 
Franchisee irrevocably agrees to assist the Company in defending said allegation, 
appearing at any venue requested by the Company to testify on our behalf; participating 
in depositions or other appearances; or preparing affidavits rejecting any assertion that 
the Company is the employer, joint employer or co-employer of any of Franchisee’s 
employees. Further, it is the intention of the parties to this Agreement that the Company 
shall not be deemed a joint employer with Franchisee for any reason. 

8. Payroll/Billing and Management Information Services and Fees.

(a) Based on payroll and billing information provided to Company by Franchisee, Company 
shall prepare and mail all weekly invoices and periodic statements to Customers, all 
weekly payroll to Temporary Employees, all required payroll tax returns and insurance 
contribution reports, shall prepare and provide Franchisee with Franchisee’s monthly 
commission statement, and shall make available periodic copies of confidential Customer, 
full-time placement applicant and Temporary Employee lists, and any sales or 
management information reports deemed appropriate by Company (all of which are 
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hereinafter referred to for convenience as “Management Information Services”).  The 
Management Information Services and Technology Enhancement Fee (“MISTEF”) payable 
by Franchisee as described below shall cover payroll and billing services described above, 
appropriate and applicable forms and supplies as determined by Company, line charges, 
and postage for invoices and payroll mailed or delivered by Company.  Franchisee shall 
pay the costs of next day delivery of input data to Company, and any travel costs incurred 
to attend required training programs for using any on-line electronic data processing 
services.  Franchisee shall pay for software, equipment and the updating of software and 
equipment as set forth below. 

(b) On-line electronic data processing services shall commence at the time of the opening of 
Franchisee’s office. 

(c) The MISTEF shall equal 1.5% of the total gross payroll for Temporary Employees plus 1.5% 
of Full-Time Placement Sales in each Accounting Period, commencing with the opening of 
Franchisee’s office. 

(d) The Company reserves the right to require Franchisee to pay the Company’s then-current 
onboarding package fee (“Electronic Onboarding Package Fee”), as set forth in its Manual 
or otherwise in writing, in connection with onboarding packages that are sent to Full-Time 
Placement employees or Temporary Employees. Onboarding packages may include our 
prescribed documents and city, state, federal and client specific onboarding documents 
that are required to be signed by an employee prior to his/her/their first day of 
employment. The Company may begin charging Franchisee the Electronic Onboarding 
Package Fee upon advanced written notice to Franchisee.  

(e) The Company also reserves the right to require Franchisee to pay the Company’s then-
current time and expense transaction fee (“Time and Expense Transaction Fee”), as set 
forth in its Manual or otherwise in writing. The Time and Expense Transaction Fee is for 
the services provided by the Company in connection with tracking employees logging 
their days and hours of employment using physical time cards and virtually. The Time and 
Expense Transaction Fee is not currently imposed, but the Company may begin charging 
Franchisee the Time and Expense Transaction Fee upon advanced written notice to 
Franchisee. 

The applicable MISTEF shall be paid to Company monthly for each Accounting Period during the 
Term of this Agreement and any renewals or extensions thereof.  The MISTEF shall not be included in the 
computation of Gross Profits.  Company may deduct the MISTEF from Franchisee’s monthly commission, 
but such right shall not limit Franchisee’s liability for the MISTEF if no such deduction is made, or if the 
MISTEF exceeds the amount of Franchisee’s monthly commission. 

9. Required Hardware and Software. 

(a) Franchisee has been granted a license for use of the Company’s proprietary software 
components of the Computer System pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  Franchisee shall also license and, if required, separately pay for any 3rd party 
software components of the Computer System as specified by Company.  Franchisee shall 
pay Company its then-current Computer System Support Fee (currently $200 per site) per 
Accounting Period.  We may increase the Computer System Support Fee upon 30 days’ 
advance written notice to you. Company shall provide maintenance and support of all the 



63613984v2 

Exhibit A to the Franchise Disclosure Document – Franchise Agreement 
Spherion FA 4-2024 Page 23 

software components of the Computer System as follows:  user support services by online 
chat, email or telephone through a Support Center as determined by Company, and 
improvements, enhancements, modifications and updates to the software which are 
routinely deployed as part of Company’s Computer System. 

(b) Company will loan to Franchisee for the Term of this Agreement the router and switch 
necessary to connect to the Company’s network. Franchisee shall purchase the hardware, 
equipment and other connectivity components of the Computer System as specified by 
Company and shall, at Franchisee’s expense, install, maintain, upgrade and augment such 
hardware and equipment during the Term hereof as deemed necessary by Company.  
Franchisee shall, at Franchisee’s expense, do all things necessary to install and commence 
use of improvements, enhancements, modifications and updates to the Computer System 
software and the router and switch provided by Company.  Without limiting the 
foregoing, Franchisee will, at Franchisee’s expense, implement and periodically make 
upgrades and other changes to the Computer System and Required Software as Company 
may reasonably request in writing (collectively, “Computer Upgrades”).  Franchisee will 
comply with all specifications issued by Company with respect to the Computer System 
and all required software, and with respect to Computer Upgrades.  Franchisee will also 
afford Company unimpeded access to Franchisee’s Computer System and Required 
Software as Company may request, in the manner, form, and at the times requested by 
Company.   

(c) Company shall initially install and configure, at Franchisee’s expense, the Computer 
System hardware and software at Franchisee’s office location.  Franchisee shall provide 
the network cabling and a suitable operating environment for the Computer System as 
uniformly specified by Company with respect to utilities, temperature, cabling, hardware 
and Internet access.  Franchisee shall be responsible to convert any of its pre-existing files, 
databases and other information to be used with the Computer System. 

(d) Company shall provide Franchisee with Company’s approved applicant testing 
application.  Franchisee shall maintain, upgrade and augment such software as deemed 
necessary by Company, and shall reimburse Company for any fees associated with such 
application.    

(e) Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that changes to technology are dynamic and not 
predictable within the term of this Agreement.  In order to provide for inevitable but 
unpredictable changes to technological needs and opportunities, Franchisee agrees that 
Company will have the right to establish, in writing, reasonable new standards for the 
implementation of technology in the Computer System; and Franchisee agrees that 
Franchisee will abide by those reasonable new standards established by Company as if 
this Subsection (e) were periodically revised by Company for that purpose.  If Company 
determines that additional or replacement equipment, programs or other associated 
items are needed because of changes in the operational or other requirements of the 
Franchised Businesses operated under the Spherion System, or because of network, 
security or other needs, Franchisee will purchase and install such additional or 
replacement equipment, programs or other associated items at Franchisee’s sole cost 
within the reasonable time specified by Company.  

(f) Franchisee shall not infringe or misappropriate the intellectual property of third parties.  
Franchisee shall not make or utilize unapproved copies of software (computer programs) 
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and similar products. Further and without limiting the foregoing, neither Franchisee nor 
its employees shall place “pirated” copies of software (computer programs) onto any 
portion of the Computer System. 

(g) Franchisee is required to notify Company immediately if Franchisee suspects or becomes 
aware of a Security Breach (defined below).   Franchisee agrees that Company will have 
the option to notify affected persons and regulatory authorities both on its own behalf 
and on Franchisee’s behalf in accordance with applicable law.  If, after consultation with 
Franchisee, Company determines that notification is required or appropriate, Franchisee 
agrees that Franchisee will bear all costs associated with such notification, which may 
include, without limitation, any costs for providing credit monitoring to affected persons.  
Upon discovery of a Security Breach, Franchisee further agrees that Franchisee will 
promptly investigate and remediate, at Franchisee’s expense, the source of such Security 
Breach.  Franchisee shall pay all costs Company incurs (including legal expenses) in 
connection with responding to any Security Breach at the Franchised Business or involving 
Franchisee’s operations under this Agreement.  For purposes of this section, a “Security 
Breach” is any known or suspected unauthorized use, theft, access, disclosure, loss, or 
acquisition of any confidential information of Company, the Franchisee, any customer 
information, any employee information or any information that is stored or contained in 
that portion of the Computer System which is located in Franchisee’s office locations. 

10. Marketing Fund and Fee.

From time to time, Company, in its sole discretion, may engage in marketing, brand awareness 
advertising and similar advertising and promotional activities (which may include local media) to promote 
the services provided pursuant to the SPHERION System.  Franchisee agrees to pay Company monthly as 
a deduction from Franchisee’s commission, or directly, if required by Company, an amount equal to 0.25% 
of Sales, as Franchisee’s contribution to a national marketing and advertising fund maintained by 
Company (the “Marketing Fund”).  Company shall match the contributions by Franchisee to the Marketing 
Fund, by spending for marketing and advertising costs an amount equal to that contributed by Franchisee.  
Any amounts allocated or spent for marketing or advertising by or on behalf of Company’s or its affiliates’ 
branch offices shall be credited against Company’s obligation to match Franchisee’s contribution as set 
forth herein.  The funds contributed by Franchisee and Company may be commingled by Company and 
may also include funds contributed from other Spherion franchisees operating professional services 
franchises, and may be used to purchase, rent or otherwise acquire media space or time for such 
advertising, or for production costs, or for branded promotional products and materials, contests, internet 
advertising, “marketing matches” and other related marketing, advertising and promotional activities as 
may be determined by Company in its discretion, provided, however, that Company will not use the 
Marketing Fund monies for advertising that is principally a solicitation for the sale of franchises.  Company 
shall have complete and absolute discretion in when and whether to conduct, and in the planning and 
development of, marketing and advertising campaigns and other efforts and in the expenditure of all 
Marketing Fund monies, including those contributed by Franchisee.  Company may, in its sole discretion 
upon written notice to Franchisee, discontinue its Marketing Fund program and the Marketing Fund fee 
required by this Section, upon written notice to Franchisee. 

11. Initial Franchise Fee.

Franchisee shall pay to Company upon execution of this Agreement, as a nonrefundable initial 
franchise fee, in the amount set forth in Schedule 1 to this Agreement.  
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12. Franchisee Commission.

Commissions are paid to Franchisee as set forth in this Section 12.   

(a) Temporary Sales.  During the Term of this Agreement, for Temporary Sales Franchisee 
shall be paid a commission of the amount set forth in Schedule 1 to this Agreement. 

(b) Full-Time Placement.  Franchisee shall receive and retain, as its commission from Full-
Time Placement services, eighty-eight percent (88%) of Full-Time Placement Sales in each 
Fiscal Year.  Company shall receive and retain as its compensation from Full-Time 
Placement services twelve percent (12%) of Full-Time Placement Sales in each Fiscal Year. 

(c) Commission Statement.  Within thirty days following the last day of each Accounting 
Period, Company shall prepare and submit to Franchisee a franchisee commission 
statement setting forth, for the Area and the respective Accounting Period:  total Sales, 
appropriate adjustments to Sales (including, but not limited to, Customer guarantees, 
refunds, credits, correction of previous billing errors and discounts), Temporary Employee 
payroll, payroll taxes and all other Direct Costs, Gross Profit, Franchisee’s commission and 
the deductions, additions and amounts payable to Company described in the following 
Subsections. 

(d) More than One Office.  If Franchisee operates more than one office under the terms of 
this Agreement, commissions shall be consolidated and calculated as one office. If 
Franchisee has more than one Franchise Agreement with the Company, this Agreement 
stands on its own for the purposes of commission calculations. 

(e) Company shall deduct from the aggregate gross commission payable to Franchisee: 

(1) an Accounts Receivable Funding Fee calculated by multiplying the accounts 
receivable over sixty (60) days from the date of the respective billing as of the end 
of each Accounting Period by one and one half (1½) percentage points over the 
Prime Rate quoted on the first business day of each Accounting Period in the Wall 
Street Journal with the result multiplied by 30/365.  The Accounts Receivable 
Funding Fee will be charged and deducted for an entire Accounting Period 
notwithstanding that an account becomes more than sixty (60) days old on or 
before the last day of the Accounting Period, until the account receivable is 
deducted pursuant to Subsections (e)(2), (e)(3) or (e)(4) below; 

(2) the amount of previous billings (both Temporary Sales and Full-Time Placement 
sales) to a Customer that are determined to be uncollectible by Company prior to 
two hundred and seventy (270) days from the date of such billing (a bankruptcy 
or equivalent proceeding filed by or against a Customer shall cause all previous 
billings to that Customer to be automatically deemed uncollectible); 

(3) the amount of previous billings to a Customer which remain uncollected two 
hundred and seventy (270) days from the date of such billings, regardless of any 
agreement or evidence as to ultimate collectability; 

(4) the amount by which any Customer account receivable over ninety (90) days 
exceeds the credit limit established pursuant to Company procedures for such 
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Customer by either twenty-five percent (25%) or fifty thousand dollars ($50,000).  
This deduction from Franchisee’s commission shall be made thirty (30) days after 
Company provides Franchisee with written notice of the amount to the deducted, 
unless the Customer account receivable is reduced to within the approved credit 
limit, or the credit limit is increased by Company prior to the deduction; 

(5) any Temporary Employee wages or other monies paid by Company which are 
subsequently determined to have been based on forged, fraudulent, erroneous 
or improper time slips or other authorizations; 

(6) the Management Information Services and Technology Enhancement Fee 
required by Section 8 of this Agreement; 

(7) the Marketing Fund Fee required by Section 10 of this Agreement; 

(8) all amounts due Company for materials and services purchased by Franchisee 
from Company or its affiliates; and 

(9) any other sums properly due to Company or its affiliates from Franchisee. 

The amount of Franchisee’s gross commission shall be increased by an amount equal to one 
hundred percent (100%) of the net recovery of any amounts previously deducted from Franchisee’s 
commission by reason of Subsections (e)(2), (e)(3), (e)(4) or (e)(5) above. 

(f)  Payment of Commissions.  Franchisee’s commission, net of the adjustments and 
deductions described in this Section, shall be paid monthly, within thirty (30) days 
following the end of each Accounting Period.  If the net commission for any Accounting 
Period is less than zero (i.e., an amount due Company), such amount shall be paid by 
Franchisee to Company within thirty (30) days of receipt of the applicable commission 
statement, and if such amount remains unpaid, it may be deducted from subsequent 
commission statements, or collected directly from Franchisee. 

13. Term; Renewal.

(a) Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, and Franchisee’s complete and continuing 
performance of all of its covenants and obligations hereunder, this Agreement shall 
remain in force and effect for an initial term of ten (10) years (the “Term”) from the 
Effective Date. 

(b) In the event Franchisee’s right to operate the Franchised Business shall be in full force 
and effect upon the expiration of the initial or any renewal term of this Agreement, and 
provided Franchisee has not been in default under this Agreement (or, as applicable, a 
renewal Agreement) during the final year of such Term, Company, in its sole discretion, 
shall either: 

(1) renew Franchisee’s right to operate the Franchised Business for an additional 
renewal term of five (5) years; or 

(2) exercise the nonrenewal right described in Section 16 of this Agreement. 
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(c) Company shall provide written notice to Franchisee of its decision to renew or not renew 
Franchisee’s right to operate the Franchised Business at least one hundred and twenty 
(120) days prior to the expiration of the Term of this Agreement.  If Company’s written 
notice is to renew Franchisee’s right to operate the Franchised Business, Franchisee shall 
provide Company with its written acceptance of such renewal on or before sixty (60) days 
prior to the expiration of the term sought to be renewed. 

(d) Any extension or renewal of the right to operate the Franchised Business shall be under 
the terms and conditions of the franchise agreement being utilized by Company for 
renewals on the date of such extension or renewal, which terms and conditions may 
include, but not be limited to, revised nonrenewal provisions, franchisee commissions, 
financing surcharges, fees for management information services or marketing and brand 
awareness, new gross profit or sales quotas, and other material revisions, additions or 
deletions, and it shall be a condition of renewal that Franchisee shall execute such new 
franchise agreement prior to the expiration of the Term sought to be renewed and, finally, 
it shall be a further condition of renewal that Franchisee execute, in a form satisfactory 
to Company, a general release of Company, its parents, subsidiaries and affiliates and 
their respective officers, directors, members, shareholders, agents, heirs, successors, 
representatives and employees. 

14. Assignment.

(a) Company’s rights under this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of its successors and 
assigns, and Company may assign this Agreement at its option, without the consent of 
Franchisee, provided that the assignee agrees to assume all of Company’s obligations 
under this Agreement. 

(b) Except as provided in Section 2(b) hereof, neither Franchisee nor any Owner shall directly 
or indirectly sell, assign, sublicense, grant a security interest in or otherwise transfer this 
Agreement, the Franchised Business, any shares or other interest in the Entity, or any 
right or interest granted herein, or suffer or permit any such sale, assignment, sublicense, 
attachment of a security interest or other transfer to occur by operation of law or 
otherwise, without the prior written consent of Company.  Franchisee shall, however, 
have the right to sell Franchisee’s entire interest under this Agreement and the Franchised 
Business, provided that Franchisee and the proposed purchaser have entered into a 
binding purchase agreement containing all of the terms and conditions applicable to such 
purchase prior to the date of exercise of Company’s nonrenewal right described in Section 
16, and provided further that Company shall thereafter have granted written approval of 
such purchaser and shall have waived its first right of refusal with respect to such 
purchase.  Immediately upon execution of such purchase agreement, Franchisee shall 
deliver to Company an executed copy of such purchase agreement, accompanied by a 
certified or cashier’s check from the proposed purchaser payable to Company in the 
amount of the transfer fee (the “Transfer Fee”), which shall be fifty percent (50%) of the 
then-current undiscounted Initial Franchise Fee. As a condition to Company granting its 
consent to the proposed transfer, and in addition to the Transfer Fee, Company may also 
require Franchisee to pay a pro-rata portion of the Gross Profit Quota shortfall fee 
described in Section 7(t) based upon the date of transfer. Company shall have sixty (60) 
days from its receipt of such purchase agreement to, in its sole discretion, either approve 
or disapprove the proposed purchaser or notify Franchisee in writing of Company’s 
exercise of its first right of refusal to become the purchaser.  If Company fails to take any 
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of such actions within such sixty-day period, it shall be deemed to have waived its first 
right of refusal and to have approved the proposed purchaser, in which case the proposed 
purchase may be completed, but only pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 
purchase agreement delivered to Company.  If Company timely disapproves of the 
proposed purchaser the purchase shall not be completed.  If Company shall timely 
exercise its first right of refusal, it shall complete a closing of the purchase on the closing 
date set forth in the purchase agreement submitted to Company which shall be no less 
than sixty (60) days after Franchisee’s receipt of Company’s notice of exercise of its first 
right of refusal.  If Company approves, or is deemed to have approved the proposed 
purchaser, it shall retain the Transfer Fee deposited by the proposed purchaser with 
Company as a nonrefundable franchise transfer fee, in lieu of the initial franchise fee 
required by Section 11 hereof and Franchisee shall pay its transfer fee to Company upon 
sale of the Franchised Business.  If Company disapproves the proposed purchaser or 
timely exercises its first right of refusal, it shall immediately return to the proposed 
purchaser the Transfer Fee deposited with Company pursuant to this Subsection.  If 
Company approves, or is deemed to have approved the proposed purchaser, Company 
shall have the right to require that the purchaser operate under the terms and conditions 
of the franchise agreement being utilized by Company on the date of the purchase, which 
terms and conditions may include, but not be limited to, revised nonrenewal provisions, 
franchisee commissions, financing surcharges, fees for management information services 
or marketing or brand awareness, new gross profit or sales quotas, and other material 
revisions, additions or deletions, and it shall be a condition of the purchase that the 
purchaser shall execute such new franchise agreement at the time of the purchase, such 
franchise agreement may, in Franchisor’s discretion, reflect (i) the remaining Term under 
the selling Franchisee’s Franchise Agreement or (ii) may reflect an initial ten year Term or 
(iii) may reflect a renewal five year term and it shall be a further condition of the purchase 
that both the selling Franchisee and the purchaser execute, in a form satisfactory to 
Company, a general release of Company, its parents, subsidiaries and affiliates and their 
respective officers, directors, members, shareholders, agents, heirs, successors, 
representatives and employees.  

(c) Company’s approval of a proposed purchaser shall not be unreasonably withheld, but 
may require the prior satisfaction of certain conditions determined solely within 
Company’s discretion, which conditions may include but shall not be limited to the 
following: 

(1) the proposed purchaser must pay to a current status any outstanding obligation 
of Franchisee to Company, and must guarantee payment in full of all obligations 
of Franchisee arising out of the operation of the Franchised Business, to all other 
known creditors of the Franchised Business; 

(2) Franchisee must confirm to Company in a sworn statement, in a form acceptable 
to Company, that Franchisee has thoroughly informed the proposed purchaser of 
all relevant information regarding the income and expenses of Franchisee’s 
operation, creditworthiness of clients, the current status of workers’ 
compensation claims, and necessary technology upgrades and the costs thereof 
and similar material information; 

(3) the proposed purchaser must meet or exceed all requirements then required by 
Company of new franchisees, including but not limited to requirements with 
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respect to the availability of sufficient capital, business experience, character, 
financial and managerial capability, and the absence of or limitations on other 
employment or business interests;  

(4) the proposed purchaser must complete and forward to Company the then-
current franchisee application documents, and the proposed purchaser must 
provide Company with its federal and state tax returns for the past two (2) years;  

(5) the proposed purchaser must agree to participate in such training as is then 
required by Company of its new franchisees;  

(6) the proposed purchaser must not own, engage in, be employed by, or be a 
supplier or provider of services to a business which in Company’s sole judgment 
is or may be competitive to or otherwise in conflict with the business of Company 
(including, but not limited to, those services franchised under this Agreement); 

(7) the proposed purchaser must agree to execute Company’s then-current franchise 
agreement for the remaining Term of this Agreement, and such other documents 
of assumption of Franchisee’s obligations related to the Franchised Business as 
shall be reasonably required by Company, including having all owners of the 
proposed purchaser sign the Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations; 

(8) the proposed purchaser (or, if a corporation or limited liability company, its 
representatives) shall personally meet with representatives of Company at 
Company’s principal place of business within fifteen (15) days of entering into a 
purchase agreement with Franchisee and prior to the closing of any such 
purchase;  

(9) a copy of all documents for the sale, assignment or transfer shall be submitted to 
Company for Company’s prior approval; 

(10) the new individual franchisee must reside in the Area and must agree to devote 
full time to the operation of the franchised business, unless otherwise consented 
to by Company; and 

(11) the proposed transaction must, in Company’s judgment, provide the proposed 
purchaser with an economically viable opportunity; provided, however that no 
such judgment on Company’s part shall be deemed to be a representation upon 
which the proposed purchaser is intended to rely. 

(d) If Franchisee is an Entity, Franchisee shall not, without the prior written consent of 
Company, issue any capital stock or securities of the Entity. 

(e) An Owner shall not, without the prior written consent of Company, transfer any stock or 
interest in the Entity. 

(f) Company’s prior written consent required under Subsections (d) and (e) above shall be at 
Company’s sole discretion and business judgment and the conditions of Company’s 
consent shall, at a minimum, include: 

(1) Franchisee shall not be in default under this Agreement; and 
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(2) Franchisee shall obtain Company’s approval of each proposed Owner and each 
Owner must submit to Company all information required by Company’s then-
current approval process, including a personal interview at Company’s principal 
place of business or the headquarters of the Franchise/License Division of the 
Company (at no expense to Company), as the case may be. 

(g) If Franchisee is an Entity, a change in voting control (by whatever means) of the Entity 
shall be considered a sale of Franchisee’s entire interest in this Agreement and the 
Franchised Business and shall be subject to the provisions of Sections 14(b) and (c) above 
relating to that event. 

15. Disposition of the Franchised Business.

(a) In the event that Franchisee elects to terminate this Agreement at any time after the 
initial Term pursuant to Subsection 17(a) hereof, Franchisee shall notify Company in 
writing at least one hundred and eighty (180) days prior to the proposed effective date of 
termination that: 

(1) Franchisee will, on the effective date of termination, discontinue its operation of 
the Franchised Business, and thereafter faithfully honor and abide by each of the 
terms and conditions set forth in Sections 5 and 18 of this Agreement; or 

(2) Company can exercise its option pursuant to Subsection 15(c) below. 

(b) If Franchisee notifies Company that Franchisee will discontinue its operation of the 
Franchised Business pursuant to Subsection 15(a)(1) above, then Franchisee shall, on the 
effective date of termination, discontinue its operation of the Franchised Business, and 
thereafter faithfully honor and abide by each of the terms and conditions set forth in 
Sections 5 and 18 of this Agreement.  Should Franchisee fail to comply with the provisions 
of this Subsection 15(b), Franchisor shall be entitled to either (i) pursue its rights at law 
and in equity for Franchisee’s breach of contract which rights shall include, but not be 
limited to, all damages plus the right to require that Franchisee immediately discontinue 
its operation of the Franchised Business, and thereafter faithfully honor and abide by each 
of the terms and conditions set forth in Sections 5 and 18 of this Agreement, or (ii) require 
that Franchisee pay to Company upon demand, as liquidated damages and not as a 
penalty, an amount equal to eight (8) times the Sales of the Franchised Business for the 
twelve (12) full Accounting Periods immediately preceding the date of expiration, or the 
effective date of termination, as applicable, of this Agreement multiplied by 9.5%. 

(c) The provisions of this Subsection 15(c) shall only be applicable in the event that 
Franchisee timely notifies Company, pursuant to Subsection 15(a)(2) above, that 
Company can exercise its option pursuant to this Subsection 15(c).  If Franchisee so 
notifies Company, then Company shall have the option, exercisable in its sole discretion, 
at any time after the thirtieth (30th) day from Company’s receipt of such notice through 
the one hundred and eightieth (180th) day from Company’s receipt of such notice, and 
specifically not subject to reversal by Franchisee, to either: 

(1) waive the provisions of Subsections 5(a)(1), (3) and (5), and 18(c), (d) and (e) of 
this Agreement, and consent to the continuation of the Franchised Business by 
Franchisee (subject to the remaining provisions of Sections 5 and 18 of this 
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Agreement), in consideration of the payment to Company by Franchisee of an 
amount equal to four (4) times the Sales of the Franchised Business for the twelve 
(12) full Accounting Periods immediately preceding the date of expiration, or the 
effective date of termination, of this Agreement multiplied by 6.5% with a 
minimum purchase price and payment to Company of Seventy Five Thousand 
($75,000 dollars).  The payment provided for herein shall be paid in four (4) equal 
annual payments, plus interest at a rate equal to the Prime Rate plus one percent 
(1%), and shall be secured by a pledge of Franchisee’s trade receivables which 
grants a first lien to Company, and by the personal guarantee of Owners.  In 
connection with this option, exercisable only by Company, Franchisee shall 
execute such documents of purchase as are required by Company including but 
not limited to an asset purchase agreement, promissory note, security agreement 
and personal guarantee all in a form acceptable to the Company’s attorney, in 
such attorney’s discretion.  Such documents of purchase shall permit the 
Company to take all steps that it deems necessary to secure payment, including 
but not limited to the optional requirement that Customers continue to make 
payments directly to the Company until the purchase price has been fully paid; 
without limiting the foregoing and for the purpose of removing doubt, upon the 
termination described in this Subsection (c)(1) the continuation of the former 
Franchised Business shall be on a basis by which the former Franchisee will not 
be permitted to use any of the Marks licensed under this Agreement, the former 
Franchisee will no longer have any right of access to the Spherion system or to 
the computer systems associated therewith, the former Franchisee will have the 
right to contact any Temporary Employees placed with any Customer by former 
Franchisee in the operation of the Franchised Business over the previous three 
(3) years and any Customer for whom the former Franchisee placed Temporary 
Employees over the previous three (3) years, (except for National Accounts and 
Strategic Accounts as described below) provided, however that Company shall 
not be obligated to provide to the former Franchisee information greater than 
basic contact information regarding these persons and entities and provided 
further that any and all rights of the former Franchisee with respect to the Area 
shall terminate upon the termination of the Franchise Agreement, and provided 
finally that Company shall be free to redirect and service all National Accounts 
and Strategic Accounts in the manner which Company chooses, those receivables 
which are due and owing as of the effective date of the transaction shall be 
collected and split between Franchisee and Company in accordance with the 
provisions of the Franchise Agreement, and except as specifically described 
above, the former Franchisee shall remain fully subject to the remaining 
provisions of Sections 5 and 18 of this Agreement; or 

(2) purchase the Franchised Business from Franchisee at a purchase price equal to 
the lesser of either the Gross Profit of the Franchised Business for the six (6) full 
Accounting Periods immediately preceding the date of expiration or the effective 
date of termination of this Agreement, or fifty percent (50%) of the Gross Profit 
of the Franchised Business for the twelve (12) Accounting Periods immediately 
preceding the date of expiration or the effective date of termination of this 
Agreement.  The assets of the Franchised Business which shall be transferred in 
such a transaction shall include all tangible and intangible assets of the Franchised 
Business, excluding only cash and accounts and notes receivable.  Company shall 
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assume no liabilities of the Franchised Business and all assets transferred shall be 
free from any and all liens or defects of title.  Company may deduct from the 
purchase price any amounts owed to Company by Franchisee, and may deduct 
from the purchase price, and pay directly to creditors, any amounts necessary to 
satisfy any outstanding liens on the assets to be transferred.  The purchase price 
shall be payable in eight (8) equal quarterly payments, plus interest at a rate equal 
to the Prime Rate plus one percent (1%).  In the event Company elects the option 
set forth in this Subsection 15(c)(2), then each of the provisions of Sections 5, 18 
and 19 of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the longer of the 
period set forth therein, or the period during which the purchase price is payable. 

(d) Upon the exercise of either of the options set forth in Subsections 15(c)(1) or (2) above, 
the parties shall execute and deliver such additional instruments of assignment and 
transfer, which shall include a general release by Franchisee of the Company, its parents, 
subsidiaries and affiliates and their respective officers, directors, members, shareholders, 
agents, heirs, successors, representatives and employees with respect to all actions, 
activities, omissions and other matters for the period prior to the exercise of the option 
and the parties shall take such other actions as may be reasonably requested in order to 
carry out the intent of the parties as set forth herein. 

(e) As used in this Section 15 and in Section 16: 

“Prime Rate” means the prime rate of interest quoted in the Wall Street Journal 
(Southeastern Edition) on the first day of the month in which this Agreement is allowed 
to expire without renewal by Franchisee, or is terminated by Franchisee pursuant to 
Subsections 17(a) or 17(c) hereof. 

16. Nonrenewal Right of Company.

Effective as of the expiration of any initial or renewal term of this Agreement and notwithstanding 
any renewal notice or intent to renew by Franchisee, Company shall have the right not to renew this 
Agreement for a payment equal to the lesser of: 

(a) the Gross Profit of Franchisee’s operation for the six (6) full Accounting Periods 
immediately preceding the date on which Company notifies Franchisee of its intention to 
not renew this Agreement; or 

(b) 50% of the Gross Profit of Franchisee’s operation for the twelve (12) full Accounting 
Periods immediately preceding the date on which Company notifies Franchisee of its 
intention to not renew this Agreement. 

Notification of Company’s intent not to renew this Agreement as set forth above shall be provided 
to Franchisee in writing at least one hundred and twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the Term of 
this Agreement.  Closing shall be at the mutual convenience of Company and Franchisee, but in no event 
later than the expiration date of this Agreement.  At the closing, the parties shall execute mutual releases 
with respect to any liability, duty or the performance of any covenant, condition or obligation under this 
Agreement, provided, however, that Company’s release of Franchisee shall not include those covenants, 
conditions or obligations imposed upon Franchisee by Sections 5, 18 and 19 of this Agreement.  The 
payment for nonrenewal is in part consideration for Franchisee’s covenants and agreements in Sections 5, 
18 and 19 of this Agreement and is expressly conditioned on Franchisee’s compliance with those 
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covenants and agreements.  The payment for nonrenewal shall be made in eight (8) quarterly payments, 
plus interest at a rate equal to the Prime Rate plus one percent (1%).  Company shall assume all ongoing 
liabilities relating to the operation of the franchised business commencing with the effective date of 
termination.  Franchisee shall pay all liabilities which relate to the operation of the franchised business up 
to the effective date of termination, and Company shall be entitled to withhold any amounts due to 
Franchisee, pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise, pending receipt of proof of payment of all such 
liabilities.  All commissions payable to Franchisee through the effective date of such termination (less any 
amounts properly due to Company from Franchisee) shall be paid in due course. 

In the event Company exercises its right not to renew this Agreement as set forth above, 
Franchisee agrees to abide by each of the terms and conditions set forth in Sections 5, 18 and 19. 

17. Termination by Parties.

Prior to the expiration of its Term, or any renewals or extensions thereof, and any other provisions 
of this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, this Agreement may be terminated for the reasons 
and in the manner stated below: 

(a) By Franchisee without cause, but only during a renewal term and not during the initial 
Term of this Agreement, on the last day of the second full Accounting Period commencing 
after Company’s receipt of Franchisee’s written notice of Franchisee’s intent to terminate 
this Agreement.  Any attempt by Franchisee to terminate this Agreement without cause 
other than pursuant to the provisions of this Subsection 17(a) or Subsection 17(c) shall 
constitute a breach of this Agreement. 

(b) By Company: 

(1) immediately upon Company’s written notice to Franchisee of termination for any 
of the following causes: 

(i) if Franchisee becomes insolvent, or shall be declared, or files a petition 
to be declared, or if a petition is filed against Franchisee to be declared, 
bankrupt; or if Franchisee makes a general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors, or applies for or suffers the appointment of a receiver or 
trustee, and such receiver or trustee is not discharged within ten (10) 
days after the date of appointment; or 

(ii) if Franchisee, any individual who executed this Agreement or any 
amendment thereto as “Franchisee,” any Managing Owner or any Owner 
owning five percent (5%) or more of the Entity:  (A) shall be convicted of 
a felony or any other criminal misconduct relevant to the operation of 
the Franchised Business; (B) converts or embezzles funds of Company or 
others; (C) in the sole judgment of Company,  allows Franchisee’s 
reputation, or the reputation of any individual subject to this provision, 
for honesty, integrity, fair dealing or good moral character to become 
impaired; (D) allows the Franchised Business or office premises to be 
closed for a period of five (5) successive days or more; (E) makes a 
material misrepresentation or a material omission to Company, or fails to 
make a material disclosure to Company, as to matters involving or 
affecting the Franchised Business, the Company, the SPHERION System, 
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the Intellectual Property, or the goodwill associated with any of the 
foregoing; (F) makes a material misrepresentation or a material omission 
to any person, entity, organization, government entity or any other third 
party, related to the Franchised Business, the Company, the SPHERION 
System, the Intellectual Property, or the goodwill associated with any of 
the foregoing; (G) engages in any action which, in the sole judgment of 
Company, materially impairs, or is likely to materially impair the 
reputation or goodwill of Company, the SPHERION System, the 
Intellectual Property, or businesses operating under the SPHERION 
System or Intellectual Property; (H) competes with Franchisee or 
Company; or (I) discloses to any person, firm or entity, without the prior 
written consent of Company, the confidential data, current or 
prospective Customer, full-time placement applicant or Temporary 
Employee lists, financial materials or other trade secrets furnished by and 
belonging to Company and used in connection with the Franchised 
Business; 

(iii) the occurrence of the third (3rd) default in payment pursuant to 
Subsection 17(b)(3) or the third (3rd) breach or violation of the same or 
similar type pursuant to Subsection 17(b)(4) within any twelve (12) 
consecutive month period during the Term of this Agreement, without 
regard to any actual or proposed effort to cure such third (3rd) default, 
breach or violation. 

(2) immediately upon written notice from Company, upon a violation of any of the 
provisions of Section 14 of this Agreement relating to the sale or transfer of this 
Agreement, the Franchised Business, or any shares or other interest in any Entity 
formed by Franchisee for the operation of the Franchised Business; 

(3) on or after the tenth (10th) day following Company’s written notice to Franchisee 
of termination for the failure on the part of Franchisee to pay any sums due and 
owing to Company, pursuant to this Agreement or any other agreement between 
Company and Franchisee, provided that Franchisee does not cure such violation 
by payment in full within such ten (10) day period.  Franchisee shall not be 
deemed to have cured a payment default if it incurs another payment default 
within the ten-day cure period; 

(4) on or after the thirtieth (30th) day following Company’s written notice to 
Franchisee of termination for any breach or violation of this Agreement, or of any 
other agreement between Franchisee and Company, except as otherwise 
provided for herein, provided that Franchisee does not cure such breach or 
violation within such thirty (30) day period.  Franchisee shall not be deemed to 
have cured a default hereunder if it incurs another similar or different default 
within the thirty-day cure period; 

(5) upon the uncured circumstances relating to the death or incapacity of the 
Managing Owner, all as follows in this Subsection.  Incapacity on the part of the 
Managing Owner shall be established upon the certification of a physician 
approved by Company that the Managing Owner would be unable to participate 
actively in the operation of the business for a period of ninety (90) days or more.  
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Franchisee agrees to notify Company should the Managing Owner be unable to 
participate actively in the operation of the business for a period in excess of ten 
(10) days, and further agrees to be examined at Franchisee’s expense within 
seven (7) days of such notification, by a physician approved by Company.  Within 
ninety (90) days after the death or incapacity of the Managing Owner, Franchisee 
must nominate a successor Managing Owner.  Company will thereafter consent 
to the transfer of the Managing Owner’s interest to his/her heirs, surviving 
spouse, other Franchisees or other Owners (herein the “Heir”), provided that the 
Heir must complete and be approved through Company’s standard franchisee 
selection process, including satisfactorily demonstrating that the Heir meets 
Company’s financial, character and management criteria, and the Heir must 
successfully complete the training and must satisfy and observe the other 
requirements set forth for the Managing Owner in Section 2(b).  If Franchisee 
cannot or elects not to nominate a successor Managing Owner, then Franchisee 
will be required (within ninety (90) days after the death or incapacity of the 
Managing Owner) to employ manager(s) and client service representative(s) 
pursuant to and consistent with the provisions of Section 2(b) until such time as 
Franchisee has either (i) sold the franchise or (ii) otherwise complied with the 
requirements relating to having a Managing Owner and, in the event that either 
of these two conditions has not been met by the date which is one (1) year from 
the date of the death or incapacity of the Managing Owner then this Agreement 
shall automatically terminate with any requirement of further notice or action by 
the Company;  

(6) immediately upon receipt of written notice by Company determining that 
continuance, in whole or in part, of the Franchised Business in a normal, 
profitable manner is or will immediately become impaired for more than sixty 
(60) days because of union activity, legislative enactment (or regulations or 
interpretations relating thereto), or the actions of any civil or military authority, 
Act of God, war or civil disorder or similar circumstances; or 

(7) immediately upon receipt of written notice by Company, if Company determines, 
in its sole judgment, that Franchisee has breached a material provision of this 
Agreement that is not, by its nature, curable or that goes to the essence of the 
Agreement.

(c) By either Franchisee or Company: 

(1) on the last day of the second full Accounting Period commencing after Company’s 
written notice to Franchisee that it has failed to achieve its Gross Profit Quota for 
any Fiscal Year, as set forth in Schedule 3 to this Agreement, and Franchisee has 
failed to pay Company the amount due under Section 7(t); 

(2) immediately, if Company or Franchisee, after using their best efforts, are unable 
to obtain, maintain, or renew any license or permit required for the continuation 
of the Franchised Business described herein regardless of the cause or reason 
therefore, or in the event any insurance which Company deems necessary for the 
operation of the Franchised Business is no longer available with limits or at a price 
necessary for the Franchised Business to operate in a profitable manner. 
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Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Company shall be obligated to pay only the 
amounts due to Franchisee through the date of termination of this Agreement, which, less any amounts 
due to Company from Franchisee, shall be paid in due course.  Except as described in Section 15 or this 
Section 17, or where Company elects not to renew this Agreement and makes the payment described in 
Section 16 above, Company is not obligated to make any other payments to Franchisee upon, or as a result 
of, termination of this Agreement for any reason.  Upon any termination, Franchisee shall be obligated to 
pay all sums due to Company through the date of termination, to pay a pro-rata portion of the Gross Profit 
Quota shortfall fee described in Section 7(t) through the date of termination, to use Franchisee’s best 
efforts to maintain the business up to the effective date of termination, to fully cooperate with Company 
in the transfer of Franchisee’s interest to any successor, and to abide by each of the terms and conditions 
set forth in Section 18 below. 

18. Rights and Obligations Upon Termination.

Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, Franchisee’s right to the 
use of the SPHERION System, the Manual, publications, forms, equipment, plans, methods and 
procedures of Company together with the Marks, and any derivatives thereof, shall immediately cease, 
and upon such termination Franchisee shall immediately: 

(a) Cease and discontinue forever the use of the Marks and any other trade names, 
trademarks, service marks or slogans which were licensed to, furnished to or acquired by 
Franchisee pursuant to this Agreement, or otherwise, or which were developed or used 
by Franchisee in the operation of the Franchised Business.  Franchisee shall cause any 
registration obtained by Franchisee of any such name, mark or slogan to be canceled, 
withdrawn or assigned to Company, as instructed by Company, and Franchisee agrees, 
upon written request by Company, to immediately execute any document necessary to 
assign or transfer to Company or its successors or assigns the ownership of and right to 
use any such names, marks or slogans. 

(b) Cease using and thereafter not disclose to any person or entity, directly or indirectly, the 
details of any statistical data, marketing program, manual, form, technique, method, 
procedure or other confidential information or trade secret of Company whatsoever used 
by or made available to Franchisee in the course of the relationship contemplated herein. 

(c) Cease and forever discontinue the use of, and return freight prepaid to Company, all 
materials, writings and Company owned equipment provided by Company to Franchisee, 
or created by Franchisee in the operation of the Franchised Business, including but not 
limited to:  the Manual; books, memoranda and instructions; Customer, full-time 
placement applicant and Temporary Employee lists, records and files; video and audio 
cassettes; computer software and documentation; operating forms; and all advertising or 
promotional materials and signs bearing any names, marks or slogans of Company.  
Company shall reimburse Franchisee for any operating forms or supplies and advertising 
or promotional materials that conform to Company’s standards and are in good condition 
and usable by Company or its other franchisees or licensees.  The price to be paid by 
Company shall be the Franchisee’s cost of any such item, less ten percent (10%) and 
shipping costs, and Company shall have the right to credit the amount due for any such 
items against any amounts owed to Company by Franchisee. 

(d) Cease and abstain from using the telephone number(s) used in the operation of the 
Franchised Business, and, if so instructed by Company in writing at any time, and as 
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Company determines:  either transfer and assign such telephone number(s) to Company 
or its designee for permanent future use, or cancel and withdraw from the use of such 
telephone number(s).  Franchisee shall, in addition, pay all amounts due any telephone 
company or telephone directory publisher for telephone service and equipment and for 
directory listings or advertisements up to the later of the date of termination of this 
Agreement or the expiration date for such services or equipment. 

(e) Assist Company in all necessary arrangements for the orderly transition of the Franchised 
Business, as requested by Company, and if so requested in writing by Company (which 
shall have no liability or obligation to do so), permit Company or its designee to place 
their employees upon the office premises of Franchisee for the purpose of continuing the 
operation of the Franchised Business for the benefit of Company or its designee.  If 
Company makes the election permitted by this Subsection, it shall be treated as an 
assignee of the lease(s) for Franchisee’s office(s) and shall be liable for all amounts due 
under such lease(s) for periods commencing with the termination date of this Agreement, 
and in such event Franchisee agrees to execute and deliver any document necessary to 
effect such assignment. 

(f) Cease using and thereafter not disclose to any person or firm, directly or indirectly, the 
names or addresses of any Temporary Employees, full-time placement applicants or 
Customers; any details of any Customer relationship or agreement between Company 
and any third party; the substance of any statistical data; marketing program; manual; 
form; technique; method; procedure or any other confidential information or trade secret 
of Company whatsoever that was used by or made available to Franchisee in the 
operation of the Franchised Business. 

(g) Not represent itself or allow itself to be identified as having been formerly or presently 
connected with Company, or its business operations. 

(h) Change its corporate name, if applicable, and execute and deliver appropriate documents 
evidencing such change, so that Franchisee’s corporate name will thereafter no longer 
contain any of the Marks or any derivation thereof. 

(i) Pay to Company any and all money owing to Company by Franchisee, notwithstanding 
any contrary or inconsistent provision of this Agreement, any note, or any other 
document. 

Franchisee hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints Company and each of Company’s officers 
as its attorneys-in-fact, each of whom may act separately, to execute all instruments and to do all things 
necessary for accomplishing those acts required of Franchisee under this Section 18 in the event 
Franchisee fails to perform those acts as required by this Agreement.  Furthermore, upon demand 
Franchisee shall immediately pay to Company all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, 
incurred by Company to accomplish such acts; and Company shall have the right to seek and obtain from 
any court of competent jurisdiction temporary, preliminary or permanent injunctions restraining 
Franchisee from any violation of this Agreement or compelling compliance by Franchisee with any 
obligation set forth in this Section 18 or elsewhere in this Agreement, and Franchisee agrees to pay the 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs incurred by Company in such proceedings. 
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19. Indemnification.

(a) Franchisee agrees to and will, at all times, indemnify and hold harmless to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, Company, its corporate parent and affiliates, successors and 
assigns and the respective directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives of 
each from all “Losses and Expenses” (as defined below) incurred in connection with any 
action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, investigation or inquiry (formal or informal), or 
any settlement thereof (whether or not a formal proceeding or action has been instituted) 
which arises out of or is based upon any of the following: 

(1) Franchisee’s infringement, alleged infringement or any other violation or alleged 
violation of any trademark, copyright or other proprietary right owned or 
controlled by third parties; 

(2) (i)  Franchisee’s violation, breach or alleged violation or breach  of any contract, 
federal, state or local law, regulation, ruling, standard or directive or (ii) arising 
out of Franchisee’s business activities hereunder; 

(3) libel, slander or any other form of personal injury by Franchisee or arising out of 
Franchisee’s business activities hereunder; 

(4) Franchisee’s ownership or operation of the Franchised Business including all 
losses or damages and contractual liabilities to third persons arising out of or in 
connection with the ownership or operation of the Franchised Business; provided, 
however, that Company shall not seek to recover from franchisee any amount 
which may be due and owing under this indemnification to the extent that the 
claims associated with the indemnification are paid out by (i) the Company’s 
insurance, or (ii) by funds created by deductions from payroll consistent with the 
Company’s policies and procedures regarding deductions for general liability, 
auto liability, employment practices liability and other liabilities (“Funds”) or a 
combination thereof, but provided further that nothing contained in the 
foregoing provision shall limit the right of the Company to recover the full 
indemnified amount in those circumstances in which any act, violation or 
omission by the franchisee is so egregious that it would, in Company’s reasonable 
judgment, be unreasonable and unfair to the SPHERION system, the Fund, and 
Spherion franchisees/licensees not to make the offending owner fully responsible 
for its own action, violation, breach, negligence, or omission.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, Franchisee shall be fully responsible for the payment of any 
deductible amount established under the policies associated with any and all of 
the Funds.  The provisions set forth immediately above relate solely to 
Subsections (4) and (5) of Section 19(a) of this Agreement and are not intended 
to and shall not limit, modify or affect in any manner the Company’s right to 
pursue and recover any claim or claims related to any other provision of this 
Agreement, including but not limited to any claim or claims which may be made 
under Subsections (1-3) and (6-7) of Section 19(a) of this Agreement; 

(5) Claims related to the employment of either Franchisee’s employees or the 
Temporary Employees including, but not limited to, claims of gender, race, 
ethnicity, or age discrimination,  claims relating to hiring or termination as well as  
benefits and claims relating to wage and hours issues; provided, however, that 
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Company shall not seek to recover from franchisee any amount which may be 
due and owing under this indemnification to the extent that the claims associated 
with the indemnification are paid out by (i) the Company’s insurance, or (ii) by 
funds created by deductions from payroll consistent with the Company’s policies 
and procedures regarding deductions for general liability, auto liability, 
employment practices liability and other liabilities (“Funds”) or a combination 
thereof, but provided further that nothing contained in the foregoing provision 
shall limit the right of the Company to recover the full indemnified amount in 
those circumstances in which any act, violation or omission by the franchisee is 
so egregious that it would, in Company’s reasonable judgment, be unreasonable 
and unfair to the Spherion system, the Fund, and Spherion franchisees/licensees 
not to make the offending owner fully responsible for its own action, violation, 
breach, negligence, or omission.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisee shall 
be fully responsible for the payment of any deductible amount established under 
the policies associated with any and all of the Funds.  The provisions set forth 
immediately above relate solely to Subsections (4) and (5) of Section 19(a) of this 
Agreement and are not intended to and shall not limit, modify or affect in any 
manner the Company’s right to pursue and recover any claim or claims related to 
any other provision of this Agreement, including but not limited to any claim or 
claims which may be made under Subsections (1-3) and (6-7) of Section 19(a) of 
this Agreement; 

(6) Franchisee’s violation or breach of any warranty, representation, agreement or 
obligation in this Agreement; or 

(7) acts, errors or omissions of Franchisee or any of its agents, servants, employees, 
contractors, partners, affiliates, representatives or Temporary Employees. 

(b) Franchisee agrees to give Company notice of any such action, suit, proceeding, claim, 
demand, inquiry or investigation.  At the expense and risk of Franchisee, Company may 
elect to assume (but under no circumstance is obligated to undertake), the defense 
and/or settlement of any such action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or 
investigation.  Such an undertaking by Company shall, in no manner or form, diminish 
Franchisee’s obligations under this Section. 

(c) All Losses and Expenses incurred under this Section shall be chargeable to and paid by 
Franchisee pursuant to its obligations of indemnity under this Section, regardless of any 
actions, activity or defense undertaken by Company or the subsequent success or failure 
of such actions, activity or defense.  The indemnification of Company by Franchisee shall 
not be limited by the amount of insurance required under this Agreement. 

(d) As used in this Section, the phrase “Losses and Expenses” shall include, without 
limitation, all losses, compensatory, exemplary or punitive damages, penalties, fines, 
charges, costs, expenses, lost profits, attorneys’ fees, court costs, settlement amounts, 
judgments, compensation for damages to Company’s reputation and goodwill, costs of or 
resulting from delays, financing, costs of advertising material and media time/space, and 
costs of changing, substituting or replacing the same, and any and all expenses of recall, 
refunds, compensation, public notices and other such amounts incurred in connection 
with the matter described. 
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(e) The persons or parties indemnified do not assume any liability whatsoever for acts, errors, 
or omissions of those with whom Franchisee may contract, regardless of the purpose.  
Franchisee’s hold harmless and indemnity obligation shall include all losses and expenses 
that may arise out of any acts, errors or omissions of these third parties. 

(f) Franchisee shall not be obligated to indemnify and hold Company harmless for any claim 
or liability to the extent such claim or liability is based on an act or omission by Company 
in its performance of the obligations specifically imposed on Company by this Agreement. 

(g) In order to protect persons or property, or its reputation or goodwill, or the reputation or 
goodwill of others, Company may, at any time and without notice, as it, in its judgment 
deems appropriate, order, consent or agree to settlements or take such other remedial 
or corrective action as it deems expedient with respect to any action, suit, proceeding, 
claim, demand, inquiry or investigation if, in Company’s sole judgment, there are 
reasonable grounds to believe that: 

(1) any of the acts or circumstances enumerated in this Section have occurred; or 

(2) any act, error or omission of Franchisee may result directly or indirectly in 
damage, injury or harm to any person or any property. 

20. Liability of Owners.

(a) If Franchisee is more than one person or a partnership, each such person, or each partner 
in such partnership, shall be jointly and severally liable for each of the duties, obligations 
and liabilities (including but not limited to the indemnification obligations) of Franchisee 
under this Agreement, and each such person shall execute this or a separate agreement 
for the purpose of becoming bound hereby. 

(b) If this Agreement is assigned to an Entity pursuant to Section 2(b) hereof, then the initial 
individual Franchisee(s) must be or become Owner(s) in such Entity, and such initial 
individual Franchisee(s), along with the Entity to which this Agreement is assigned, shall 
be collectively considered to be the Franchisee hereunder.  Each initial individual 
Franchisee agrees to be bound personally by all of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, and each of them does hereby personally guarantee, jointly and severally, all 
of the obligations and liabilities (including but not limited to the indemnification 
obligations) of Franchisee under this Agreement and any other agreement between 
Company and Franchisee related to the performance of this Agreement.  Such initial 
individual Franchisee(s) shall execute this Agreement for the purpose of becoming bound 
hereby. 

(c) Each initial individual Franchisee and any corporate Franchisee who are, become, or are 
required to be parties to this Agreement shall be bound by the acts or conduct of each 
initial individual Franchisee and/or corporate Franchisee.  Each act or omission in breach 
of this Agreement shall be deemed a breach by all such parties, whether they are initial 
individual Franchisees or the corporate Franchisee, regardless of their lack of knowledge 
or participation. 

(d) Each owner of franchisee that owns twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the outstanding 
equity or voting equity of the franchisee entity, and such other owners as Franchisor may 
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require in its sole discretion, shall execute the form of Guaranty and Assumption of 
Obligations in the form attached to the Agreement as Schedule 4. 

21. Failure to Perform.

Neither Franchisee nor Company shall be liable or responsible in any manner to the other for 
failure to perform, or for delay in performing, the terms of this Agreement when such failure or delay is 
due to, or is the direct or indirect result of, strikes, labor disputes, fire, flood, material shortage, 
mechanical or electrical failure, embargoes, energy allocation, any act, regulation or governmental order 
or any Act of God or similar causes. 

22. System Changes.

Company may change, alter, expand, de-emphasize or discontinue in whole or in part, any line(s) 
of business or service contemplated hereunder, or any concept, plan, practice, policy, procedure, method 
or strategy forming a part of the SPHERION System which was previously provided or applicable to 
Franchisee, or substitute other trademarks, service marks or trade names for those authorized herein, or 
discontinue the use of any such trademark, service mark or trade name, without incurring any obligation 
or liability to Franchisee, provided that such change, alteration, expansion, de-emphasis or 
discontinuation is applied on a uniform and consistent basis to each licensee or franchisee of Company, 
and Company notifies Franchisee in writing of such change, alteration, expansion, de-emphasis or 
discontinuation.  Prior to the adoption or discontinuation of any line of business, trademark, service mark 
or trade name, Company will give Franchisee not less than sixty (60) days’ notice of such action. 

23. Compliance.  

Franchisee does hereby acknowledge the right of Company to insist on full compliance with and 
the full performance of, the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and that the failure of Franchisee to 
fulfill or perform any of the obligations created by this Agreement shall constitute a material breach of 
this Agreement.  Company’s failure in any instance to insist upon strict performance of any of the terms 
and conditions contained herein shall not be deemed a waiver of any rights or remedies that it may have, 
nor a waiver of future compliance with such or any other terms and conditions.  Whenever this Agreement 
requires Company’s prior approval or consent, Franchisee shall make a timely written request therefor, 
and such approval, if granted, shall be in writing.  Company makes no warranties or guarantees upon 
which Franchisee may rely, and assumes no liability or obligation to Franchisee, by granting any waiver, 
approval or consent to Franchisee, or by reason of any neglect, delay or denial of any request therefor.  
Any waiver, approval or consent granted by Company to Franchisee shall be without prejudice to any 
other rights Company may have, will be subject to continuing review by Company and may be revoked in 
Company’s sole discretion at any time and for any reason upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to 
Franchisee. 

24. Company’s Right to Cure Defaults. 

In addition to any and all other rights and remedies which it may have, if Franchisee shall default 
in the performance of, or breach any obligation or provision of, this Agreement or any other agreement 
between the parties, Company shall have the right, but not the obligation, immediately or at any time, 
without notice to Franchisee, and without waiving any default, breach or other claim which it may have, 
to cure such default on behalf of Franchisee and at Franchisee’s expense, the cost of which shall 
immediately be due and payable on demand, and which may be deducted from commissions due 
Franchisee by Company. 
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25. Notice.

Any written notice required herein may be given by regular mail, private overnight courier, hand 
delivery, or electronic facsimile transfer (confirmed by simultaneously dispatched regular mail), 
addressed, if to Franchisee, to the office required to be maintained by Franchisee pursuant to this 
Agreement, or if to Company, addressed to its principal place of business office.  Unless otherwise 
specified in this Agreement, written notice shall be presumed received by the addressee on the earliest 
of the date of hand delivery or electronic facsimile transfer, or one day after delivery to a private overnight 
courier or the date of the post office postmark. 

26. Disclosure.

Franchisee has conducted an independent investigation of the business contemplated by this 
Agreement and recognizes that it involves business risks that make the success of the venture largely 
dependent upon the business abilities of Franchisee and Franchisee’s employees.  Company expressly 
disclaims the making of, and Franchisee acknowledges that he, she or it has not received or relied upon, 
any oral or written representation, warranty or guaranty, express or implied, as to potential revenues, 
profits or success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement.  Franchisee acknowledges 
that he, she or it has no knowledge of any representations about this franchise by Company, or its officers, 
directors, Owners (including shareholders and members), employees or agents that are contrary to the 
terms of this Agreement or any offering circular or disclosure statement provided to Franchisee by 
Company, and further represents to Company, as an inducement to enter into this Agreement, that 
Franchisee has made no misrepresentations to Company.  Franchisee acknowledges the receipt of 
Company’s Franchise Disclosure Document required by the Federal Trade Commission or any applicable 
state law, at least fourteen (14) full days prior to the execution hereof, as well as a copy of this Agreement 
with all changes therein at least seven (7) full days prior to the execution hereof. 

27. Applicable Law; Mediation.

(a) This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of Georgia.  
In the event of any conflict of law, the laws of Georgia shall prevail, without regard to, 
and without giving effect to, the application of Georgia conflict of law rules.  If, however, 
any provision of this Agreement would not be enforceable under the laws of Georgia, and 
if the Franchised Business is located outside of Georgia and such provision would be 
enforceable under the laws of the state in which the Franchised Business is located, then 
such provision shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of that state.  Nothing 
in this Subsection (a) is intended by the parties to subject this Agreement to any franchise 
or similar law, rule, or regulation of the State of Georgia or of any other state to which it 
would not otherwise be subject. 

(b)  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all controversies, disputes, and claims 
arising out of or related to this Agreement (including any claim that the Agreement or any 
of its provisions is invalid, illegal, or otherwise voidable or void), the relationship between 
Company and Franchisee, the relationship between Franchisee and Company’s affiliates, 
or Franchisee’s operation of the Franchised Business shall first be subject to non-binding 
mediation.  All controversies, disputes and claims not resolved by, or not subject to, the 
mediation process shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions in Subsections (a), 
(d), (e), (f), (g) and (h) of this Section.  Mediation shall not be required with respect to 
(i) any claim or dispute involving actual or threatened disclosure or misuse of Company’s 
confidential information, (ii) any claim or dispute involving the ownership, validity, or use 
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of the Marks, (iii) any claim or dispute involving the insurance or indemnification 
provisions of this Agreement, (iv) any action by Company to enforce the covenants set 
forth in Section 5 of this Agreement, or (v) if Franchisee is more than sixty (60) days past 
due in any of its payments to Company or its affiliates.  Nothing in this Section 27 shall 
prevent any party from instituting or pursuing litigation at any time to preserve the status 
quo, protect the health or safety of the public, or avoid irreparable harm.    

(c) Mediation under this Section 27 is not intended to alter or suspend the rights or 
obligations of the parties under this Agreement or to determine the validity or effect of 
any provision of this Agreement, but is intended to furnish the parties an opportunity to 
resolve disputes amicably, expeditiously and in a cost-effective manner on mutually 
acceptable terms. 

(1) The non-binding mediation provided for hereunder shall be commenced by the 
party requesting mediation (the “Complainant”) providing written notice of the 
request for mediation (the “Request”) to the party with whom mediation is 
sought (the “Respondent”).  The Request shall specify with reasonable 
particularity the matter or matters on which non-binding mediation is sought.  A 
copy of the Request shall be given by the Complainant simultaneously to 
Company if Company is not a Complainant or Respondent. 

(2) Non-binding mediation hereunder shall be conducted in the state in which 
Company has its principal place of business at the time of the mediation by a 
recognized mediator or mediation program designated by Company in writing 
(the “Designation”).  Company shall send the Designation to Franchisee within a 
reasonable time after issuance of the Request. 

(3) Non-binding mediation hereunder shall be concluded within sixty (60) days of the 
issuance of the Request or such longer period as may be agreed upon by the 
parties in writing.  All aspects of the mediation process shall be treated as 
confidential, shall not be disclosed to others, and shall not be offered or 
admissible in any other proceeding or legal action whatever.  Complainant and 
Respondent shall each bear their own costs of mediation, and each shall bear 
one-half the cost of the mediator or mediation service. 

(d) Any legal action brought by Franchisee against Company shall be brought exclusively in 
the federal district court covering the location at which Company has its principal place 
of business at the time of the action; provided, however, that if the federal court would 
not have subject matter jurisdiction had the action been commenced in such court, then, 
in such event, the action shall be brought in the state court within the judicial district in 
which Company has its principal place of business at the time the action is commenced.  
Any legal action brought by Company against Franchisee in any forum or court, whether 
federal or state, may be brought within the state and judicial district in which Company 
has its principal place of business at the time of the action.  Franchisee hereby waives all 
questions of personal jurisdiction or venue for the purpose of carrying out this provision, 
subject to state law. 

(e) No right or remedy conferred upon or reserved to Company or Franchisee by this 
Agreement is intended to be, nor shall be deemed, exclusive of any other right or remedy 
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provided herein or permitted by law or equity, but each shall be cumulative of every other 
right or remedy. 

(f) COMPANY AND FRANCHISEE IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, 
PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, BROUGHT BY 
EITHER OF THEM AGAINST THE OTHER, WHETHER OR NOT THERE ARE OTHER PARTIES 
IN SUCH ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM.  ANY AND ALL CLAIMS AND 
ACTIONS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE RELATIONSHIP OF 
FRANCHISEE AND COMPANY, THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN FRANCHISEE AND 
COMPANY’S AFFILIATES, OR FRANCHISEE’S OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS, 
BROUGHT BY EITHER PARTY HERETO AGAINST THE OTHER SHALL BE COMMENCED 
WITHIN TWO (2) YEARS FROM THE OCCURRENCE OF THE FACTS GIVING RISE TO SUCH 
CLAIM OR ACTION, AS EVIDENCED BY THE FILING OF A CLAIM IN AN LEGAL ACTION IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SUBSECTION (D) OF THIS SECTION, OR SUCH CLAIM OR ACTION 
SHALL BE BARRED.

(g) COMPANY AND FRANCHISEE HEREBY WAIVE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY 
LAW ANY RIGHT TO OR CLAIM OF ANY PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, OR MULTIPLE DAMAGES 
AGAINST THE OTHER, SUBJECT TO STATE LAW.

(h) Nothing herein contained shall bar Company’s right to obtain injunctive relief against 
threatened conduct that will cause it loss or damages, including violations of the terms of 
Sections 3, 5, 7(p) and 18 of this Agreement, under the usual equity rules, including the 
applicable rules for obtaining restraining orders and preliminary injunctions. 

(i) In connection with any failure by Franchisee to comply with this Agreement, regardless 
of whether there is any legal proceeding to enforce the terms of this Agreement, 
Franchisee shall reimburse Company, upon demand, for the costs and expenses incurred 
by Company as a result of such failure and Company’s enforcement of the terms of this 
Agreement, including, without limitation, accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys’ assistants 
and expert witness fees, cost of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other 
litigation expenses and travel expenses. If Franchisee initiates a legal proceeding against 
Company, and if Franchisee does not prevail in obtaining the relief Franchisee was seeking 
in such legal proceedings, then Franchisee shall reimburse Company for the costs and 
expenses incurred by Company as a result of such legal proceedings, including, without 
limitation, accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys’ assistants and expert witness fees, cost of 
investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses and travel expenses, 
whether incurred prior to, in preparation for, in contemplation of, or in connection with 
such legal proceedings. This Section 27(i) shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

28. Effect; Interpretation of Agreement.

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement.  This Agreement shall 
become effective and binding only when accepted and approved by Company at its principal place of 
business, by the signature of one of its officers.  This Agreement shall be construed according to its fair 
meaning and not strictly against Company for having drafted it.  Any provisions which impose an obligation 
after termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement and remain binding upon the parties.    It is mutually agreed that no change or erasure of any 
printed portion of this Agreement, except the filling in of specified blanks and lines, shall be valid or 
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binding upon either party hereto unless initialed by both parties.  It is understood that this Agreement 
supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreements and understandings 
between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof and, together with (a) any application and 
background information provided by Franchisee to Company and (b) any Franchisee Compliance 
Certification provided by Franchisee to Company in connection with this Agreement, constitute the entire 
agreement of the parties with respect to such subject matter.  The foregoing notwithstanding, nothing 
herein is intended to disclaim the representations Company made in the Franchise Disclosure Document 
furnished to Franchisee.  No prior or future verbal agreements of any nature relating to the subject matter 
hereof shall be valid, binding or relied upon by either party hereto.  This Agreement may not be amended 
or modified except by written agreement signed by both parties hereto.  If any provisions of this 
Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity 
and enforceability of this Agreement as a whole, or any portion hereof which is not invalid or 
unenforceable.  Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into and executed this Agreement as of the 
Effective Date. 

FRANCHISEE(S): 
_____ Percentage of  

Equity   
Ownership  

(Signature) 

(Print Name) 

(Print Title) 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 

By:  
    (Signature) 

    (Print Name) 

    (Print Title) 
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SCHEDULE 1
DATA SHEET 

The initial franchise fee shall be the sum of $  

The Commission Rate shall be: (check the applicable box(es)): 

______ We will pay you 75% of the Temporary Gross Profits, and you will retain  25% of 
Temporary Gross Profits. 

______ [Only check this box if the Area has existing business and is being sold to a new 
franchisee] We will also pay you 60% of the Temporary Gross Profits that you 
generate from the existing business in the Area, and you will retain 40% of 
Temporary Gross Profits generated from the existing business in the Area. 

______ We will pay you 60% of the Temporary Gross Profits, and you will retain  40% of 
Temporary Gross Profits. 

If  the Area  

The Area shall be _________________________________ [set out the Area], 

as such area is constituted as of the Effective Date of this Franchise Agreement.  

For purposes of Section 7(d) of the Franchise Agreement, the Spherion® office shall be 
established within the Area on or before _____________________[set out the date]. 

If the Spherion office has already been established, its current address is - 

_______________________________________[set out the address].    
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SCHEDULE 2 
AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

Franchisee shall be authorized to provide on behalf of Company: 

(i) full-time placement services for which no fees or other payments are charged to or collected from 
applicants and in which fees are collected only from employers; and 

(ii) temporary individual and group services of personnel;  

in office, clerical, non-clinical scientific, non-clinical health care, administrative and light industrial 
occupations, as the same may be defined from time-to-time by Company.  This Franchise Agreement shall 
not authorize or permit Franchisee to provide any other full-time or temporary personnel services in the 
Restricted Jobs set forth below, or in any other occupation not described above (as defined by Company), 
including but not limited to nursing, health care, legal, paralegal, accounting, engineering, technical, 
marketing, technology, management, scientific and heavy industrial occupations.  The right to provide 
personnel services in all such excluded occupations is specifically reserved to Company. 

RESTRICTED JOB LIST 
MARCH 2014 

The list is not at all inclusive, caution and judgment must be exercised in determining other potentially 
hazardous or dangerous work.  When in doubt or if you have questions on other types of exposures call 
Risk Management Department.  The Restricted Job List will be updated periodically whenever injury or 
risk trends are observed by Company. 
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SCHEDULE 3
GROSS PROFIT QUOTAS

Fiscal Year 2023.............................................$
Fiscal Year 2024 ............................................. $ 
Fiscal Year 2025 ............................................. $ 
Fiscal Year 2026.............................................$
Fiscal Year 2027.............................................$
Fiscal Year 2028.............................................$
Fiscal Year 2029 ............................................. $ 
Fiscal Year 2030.............................................$
Fiscal Year 2031.............................................$
Fiscal Year 2032.............................................$

In determining whether Franchisee has met the Gross Profit Quota for the initial Fiscal Year set forth 
above, Franchisee’s Gross Profits shall include Gross Profits made in any portion of such year during which 
Franchisee and Company were parties to a previous Franchise Agreement covering all or a portion of the 
Area.  In determining whether Franchisee has met the Gross Profit Quota for the final Fiscal Year set forth 
above, Franchisee’s Gross Profits shall include Gross Profits made in any portion of such year during which 
Franchisee and Company are parties to a renewal Franchise Agreement covering all or a portion of the 
Area. 

If there is more than one Area set forth above, then the following is applicable.  The Gross Profit is separate 
for each Area set forth above, and Franchisee must attain or surpass the Gross Profit Quota each year for 
each Area, and each Area shall be treated separately for the purposes of Section 7(t) of the Franchise 
Agreement.  The termination rights set forth in Section 17(b)(4) shall apply only to the Franchised Business 
conducted in the Area where the Gross Profit is not attained, and a termination in that regard shall apply 
only to the Franchised Business conducted in that Area.  In the event of such a termination, that Area shall 
be deleted from the Franchise Agreement, and the Franchised Business conducted in that Area shall be 
subject to the provisions of Section 18.   



63613984v2 

Exhibit A to the Franchise Disclosure Document – Franchise Agreement 
Schedule 4 

Spherion FA 4-2024

GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS

As an inducement to Spherion Staffing, LLC (“Franchisor”) to execute the Spherion Staffing, LLC 
General Staffing Franchise Agreement between Franchisor and   
(“Franchisee”), dated   , 20     (the “Agreement”), the undersigned 
(“Guarantor(s)”), jointly and severally, hereby unconditionally guarantee (or guarantees) to Franchisor 
and Franchisor’s successors and assigns that all of Franchisee’s monetary and other obligations under the 
Agreement will be punctually paid and performed. 

Upon demand by Franchisor, the Guarantors each hereby jointly and severally agree to 
immediately make each payment required of Franchisee under the Agreement and waive any right to 
require Franchisor to: (a) proceed against Franchisee for any payment required under the Agreement; 
(b) proceed against or exhaust any security from Franchisee; (c) pursue or exhaust any remedy, including 
any legal or equitable relief, against Franchisee; or (d) give notice of demand for payment by Franchisee.  
Without affecting the obligations of the undersigned under this Guaranty, Franchisor may, without notice 
to the undersigned, extend, modify, or release any indebtedness or obligation of Franchisee, or settle, 
adjust, or compromise any claims against Franchisee, and the undersigned each hereby jointly and 
severally waive notice of same and agree to remain and be bound by any and all such amendments and 
changes to the Agreement. 

Guarantors each hereby jointly and severally agree to defend, indemnify and hold Franchisor 
harmless against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including, but not limited to, 
reasonable attorney’s fees, reasonable costs of financial and other investigation, court costs, and fees and 
expenses) resulting from, consisting of, or arising out of or in connection with any failure by Franchisee to 
perform any obligation of Franchisee under the Agreement, any amendment thereto, or any other 
agreement executed by Franchisee referred to therein. 

The undersigned each hereby jointly and severally acknowledge and expressly agree to be 
individually bound by all of the covenants contained in the following sections of the Agreement: Section 
3 (marks), Section 5 (restrictive covenants, including non-competes and non-disclosure of confidential 
information and customer information), 14 (transfers and assignment), 18 (rights and obligations upon 
termination), 19 (indemnification), 20 (liability of owners).  Guarantors further acknowledge and agree 
that this Guaranty does not grant the undersigned any right to use the “SPHERION” marks or system 
licensed to Franchisee under the Agreement. 

This Guaranty shall terminate upon the termination or expiration of the Agreement, except that 
all obligations and liabilities of the undersigned which arose from events which occurred on or before the 
effective date of such termination shall remain in full force and effect until satisfied or discharged by the 
undersigned, and all covenants which by their terms continue in force after the expiration or termination 
of the Agreement shall remain in force according to their terms.  Upon the death of an individual 
Guarantor, the estate of such Guarantor shall be bound by this Guaranty, but only for defaults and 
obligations hereunder existing at the time of death; and the obligations of the other Guarantors will 
continue in full force and effect.  

If Franchisor is required to enforce this Guaranty in a judicial or arbitration proceeding, and 
prevails in such proceeding, Franchisor shall be entitled to reimbursement of its costs and expenses, 
including, but not limited to, reasonable accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys ’assistants’, arbitrators’, and 
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expert witness fees, costs, and expenses, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other 
litigation expenses, travel and living expenses, and interest, whether incurred prior to, in preparation for, 
or in contemplation of the filing of any such proceeding.  If Franchisor is required to engage legal counsel 
in connection with any failure by the undersigned to comply with this Guaranty, the undersigned shall 
reimburse Franchisor for any of the above-listed costs and expenses Franchisor incurs. 

Subject to the obligations and provisions below, each of the undersigned agrees that all actions 
arising under this Guaranty or the Agreement, or otherwise as a result of the relationship between 
Franchisor and the undersigned, shall be governed by the provisions of Section 27 of the Agreement, and 
must be commenced in the state or federal court of general jurisdiction in which Franchisor has its 
principal place of business at the time the action is commenced, and each of the undersigned irrevocably 
submits to the jurisdiction of those courts and waives any objection he or she might have to either the 
jurisdiction of or venue in those courts.  Nonetheless, each of the undersigned agrees that Franchisor may 
enforce this Guaranty and any orders and awards in the courts of the state or states in which he or she is 
domiciled. 

Unless specifically stated otherwise, the terms used in this Guaranty shall have the same meaning 
as in the Agreement, and shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with Section 28 of the 
Agreement.  This Guaranty shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of Georgia.  In 
the event of any conflict of law, the laws of the State of Georgia shall prevail (without regard to, and 
without giving effect to, the application of Georgia conflict of law rules). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has signed this Guaranty as of the date of the 
Agreement. 

GUARANTOR(S):

Name: 

Name: 

Name: 
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ADDENDUM 
SCOPE OF SERVICES ADDITION 

THIS ADDENDUM is made and given this _________ day of ___________, 20____, by and between 
Spherion Staffing, LLC (“Company”) and ________________________________________ (“Franchisee”). 

WHEREAS, Company and Franchisee, entered into a Franchise Agreement dated as of _________, 
20____ (the "Franchise Agreement"); 

WHEREAS, Company and Franchisee desire to expand the scope of the services authorized as part 
of the franchised business under the Franchise Agreement to include certain professional level services; 

NOW THEREFORE, Company and Franchisee agree as follows: 

1. Effect.  This Addendum is subject to and a part of the Franchise Agreement. 
Unless the provisions of the Franchise Agreement are expressly modified by this 
Addendum, they remain in full force and effect. 

2. Professional Services Fee. Contemporaneously upon the execution of this 
Addendum, you must pay us a lump sum fee equal to $5,000 (the “Professional 
Services Fee”). The Professional Services Fee is nonrefundable and is fully earned 
by us upon receipt. 

3. Change in Scope of Services.  Schedule 2 to the Franchise Agreement is deleted 
in its entirety, and the Schedule 2 attached to this Addendum is substituted in 
its place as the new Schedule 2 to the Franchise Agreement.  This revised 
Schedule 2 will add the following occupations:  legal, paralegal, accounting, 
engineering, technical, marketing, technology and management (the business 
of the added occupations being referred to herein as "Professional Services"); 
to those occupations within the scope of services permitted under the Franchise 
Agreement. 

4. Change in Minimum Quota Requirements.  Schedule 3 to the Franchise Agreement 
is amended to add a Gross Profit Quota for Professional Services for $100,000 for 
each Fiscal Year during the term, prorated based on the number of full Accounting 
Periods remaining in the Fiscal Year on the execution of this Addendum.  Company 
may at any time during the remainder of the term of the Franchise Agreement, upon 
notice to the Franchisee, further amend Schedule 3 to provide a reasonable 
separate quota for the Professional Services, provided that such quota may relate 
only to the calendar year following that in which the notice is given, and years 
thereafter.  In the event of a failure to pay any deficiency in the Professional Services 
Gross Profit Quota under Section 7(t) of the Franchise Agreement the Company shall 
be entitled to all of its rights and remedies under the Franchise Agreement, except 
that the Company may terminate only this Addendum and all Franchisee's rights 
hereunder, and not the entire Franchise Agreement. 

5. Strict Adherence to Policies and Procedures Relating to Professional Services.  
Because of the additional risks involved in Professional Services staffing, 
Franchisee agrees to strictly adhere to any and all Company policies, procedures 
and directives relating to Professional Services.  Notwithstanding the provisions of 
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the Franchise Agreement relating to termination, upon a violation of the 
provisions of this Addendum by Franchisee, Company may terminate the 
Franchisee's rights to provide Professional Services pursuant to this Addendum 
upon notice of such breach, if the Franchisee does not cure such breach within 
ten (10) days following that notice. 

 5. Franchisee's Additional Obligations.   . 

a. Franchisee will employ at least one person who shall devote full time to providing 
the Professional Services (the "Professional Services Employee").  Franchisee will 
have six (6) months from the signing of this agreement to hire the Professional 
Services Employee.  If at any time during the term of the Franchise Agreement 
the Professional Services Employee should leave the employ of the Franchisee, 
Franchisee must hire a replacement Professional Services Employee within 60 
days 

b. Franchisee shall provide the Professional Services Employee adequate 
office space, as shall be determined by the Company, sufficient equipment 
(including, without limitation, a telephone, computer equipment and software), 
as shall be determined by the Company, to provide these services. 

c. Franchisee and the Professional Services Employee(s) shall attend such 
training as may be required by the Company, in its sole discretion, to provide the 
Professional Services. 

d. Franchisee shall use only such names and marks as shall be designated 
by the Company for use by franchised offices in providing the Professional 
Services (the "Professional Services Names and Marks").  At the time of this 
Agreement, the Professional Services Names and Marks are the standard 
Spherion logo with the recruiting and staffing tagline.  The Company may in the 
future require the use of other Professional Services Names and Marks, and in 
that event Franchisee will obtain and install signage with the Professional Names 
and Marks meeting Company's standards and make other changes in its 
marketing materials as shall be required by the Company. 

e. Franchisee shall meet the Minimum Quota Requirements specified in any revised 
Schedule 3. 

6. Non-exclusivity of Rights Added.  The provisions of Section 4 of the Franchise Agreement 
notwithstanding, the rights to provide personnel in the Professional Services occupations 
(legal, paralegal, accounting, engineering, technical, marketing, technology and 
management) shall not be exclusive to the Franchisee; that is, the Company, and any of 
its affiliates, may provide personnel in those Professional Services occupations in the Area 
under the Company's trademarks and service marks, whether through an office in the 
Area, or otherwise. 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Addendum to the Franchise Agreement as 
of the date and year first above written. 

FRANCHISEE(S):

[INSERT] 

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

COMPANY

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 



63614005v2 

Exhibit B to the Franchise Disclosure Document – Professional Services Addendum 
Schedule 2 

Page 1 
2024 Scope of Services Addendum 

SCHEDULE 2 
AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

Franchisee shall be authorized to provide on behalf of Company: 

(i) full-time placement services for which no fees or other payments are charged to or collected from 
applicants and in which fees are collected only from employers; and 

(ii) temporary individual and group services of personnel; 

in office, clerical, non-clinical scientific, non-clinical health care, administrative and light industrial 
occupations, and legal, paralegal, accounting, engineering, technical, marketing, technology and 
management occupations, as the same may be defined from time-to-time by Company.  This Franchise 
Agreement shall not authorize or permit Franchisee to provide any other full-time or temporary personnel 
services in the Prohibited Occupations set forth below, or in any other occupation not described above 
(as defined by Company), including but not limited to nursing, health care, scientific and heavy industrial 
occupations.  The right to provide personnel services in all such excluded occupations is specifically 
reserved to Company. 

PROHIBITED TASK LIST 
MARCH 2014 

The list is not at all inclusive, caution and judgment must be exercised in determining other potentially 
hazardous or dangerous work.  When in doubt or if you have questions on other types of exposures call 
Risk Management Department.  The Prohibited Task List will be updated periodically whenever injury or 
risk trends are observed by Company. 
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TERRITORY DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TERRITORY DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is 
made and entered into as of the _____ day of ________________, 20____ (the “Effective Date”), by and 
between SPHERION STAFFING, LLC a Delaware limited liability company, having its principal place of 
business at One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd., Suite 600, Atlanta, GA 30339 (hereinafter referred 
to as “Company”), and ________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as “Developer”). 

WHEREAS, Spherion Staffing, LLC owns and has the right to license others to use (i) certain 
proprietary plans, systems, procedures and methods, all of which constitute the unique and valuable 
SPHERION® System for recruiting and supplying personnel to provide temporary help and full-time 
placement services to others, and (ii) certain trademarks, service marks, trade names and other 
intellectual property, and the goodwill attached thereto, in the operation of the SPHERION System 
(collectively, the “Intellectual Property”); and 

WHEREAS, Spherion Staffing, LLC enters into agreements with developers by which the developer 
develops franchised business units under which Company licenses the developer to market and provide 
on behalf of Company specified staffing services in certain professions and to use the applicable plans, 
systems, procedures and methods constituting the SPHERION System as well as the Company’s 
trademarks, service marks and trade names in the establishment and operation of franchised Spherion®

business units (“Spherion Business Units”) for certain specified professional services at mutually agreed 
upon locations within a specified area; and  

WHEREAS, Developer desires to utilize the SPHERION System to develop and operate multiple 
Spherion Business Units in the Development Territory (defined below) specified in Schedule 1 to recruit 
and supply personnel to provide temporary help and full-time placement services to others for jobs 
relating only to the professional service(s) identified in Schedule 2 and, in connection with the 
development of these Spherion Business Units Developer desires to enter into multiple franchise 
agreements (each constituting a separate Spherion Business Unit) with Company to market and provide 
on behalf of Company the services relating to the agreed upon professional service(s) identified in 
Schedule 2, to use the applicable plans, systems, procedures and methods constituting a part of the 
SPHERION System, to use Company’s trademarks, service marks and trade names authorized herein (or 
such other trademarks, service marks or trade names as Company shall authorize in addition to such 
trademarks, service marks or trade names, or in substitution of such trademarks, service marks or trade 
names), and to utilize Company’s goodwill in connection therewith; and 

WHEREAS, Developer and Company wish to enter into this Agreement in order to reflect the 
understandings and agreements that they have reached with respect to the foregoing points and the other 
matters that are addressed herein. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the execution of this Agreement and of the covenants and 
conditions herein contained, it is mutually agreed and understood as follows: 

1. Definitions. 

(a) The “SPHERION® System” means all and each of the distinctive and proprietary, tangible 
and intangible properties developed by Company for the operation of a system of branch, 
licensed and franchised temporary help and full-time placement businesses, including but 
not limited to: 
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(1) the Marks and the Intellectual Property; 

(2) the Manual; 

(3) the concepts, plans, practices, procedures, policies, methods and strategies 
developed by Company for the recruitment of employees, the promotion and 
advertising of temporary help and/or full-time placement services and the 
operation of a temporary help and/or full-time placement business, including all 
written materials regardless of whether contained in the Manual and all other 
media such as forms, brochures, other printed materials, film, audio, video tape, 
CD’s, DVD’s and computer software which contain or are intended to be used in 
or as a part of the SPHERION System; and 

(4) the advice, information, correspondence and assistance otherwise provided to 
Developer by Company and Company’s agents, employees or contractors, 
whether provided orally, in writing or in any other form, which relates to the 
establishment or operation of the franchised Spherion Business Unit. 

(b) “Developer” means the individual(s) who execute(s) this Agreement and any entity 
formed by such individual(s) for the operation of the business described herein and, as to 
each obligation, liability or duty imposed upon or assumed by Developer pursuant to this 
Agreement, the term Developer shall be deemed to include each of the shareholders or 
members of such corporation or limited liability company, except as otherwise limited 
herein. 

(c) The “Marks” means the service mark “SPHERION®,”  the Spherion® logo and any other 
trade name, trademark, service mark, logo, design, name, words or slogan that may 
presently exist or may be created by Company and/or its affiliates and that Company now 
or hereafter licenses to Developer in writing to identify the services authorized by this 
Agreement. 

2. Nature of Agreement. 

(a) Grant and Acceptance.  This Agreement shall constitute the grant by Company, and the 
acceptance by Developer of the obligation, pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, to develop a specified number of Spherion Business Units in the Development 
Territory (defined below) as set forth in Paragraph 1 of Schedule 1 attached hereto.  In 
this respect, the parties further agree that: 

(1) the Spherion Business Units shall be developed by Developer pursuant to the 
development schedule set forth in Paragraph 3 of Schedule 1 attached hereto 
(Schedule 1 is referred to herein as the “Development Schedule”).  If, at any time 
during the term of this Agreement, Developer fails to satisfy the Development 
Schedule, and such failure remains uncured after the expiration of all applicable 
notice and cure periods, Company shall have the right, but not the obligation, to 
exercise Company’s termination rights, and other rights, pursuant to Section 10 
hereof; and 

(2) each Spherion Business Unit developed under this Agreement shall be established 
and operated pursuant to a separate Spherion Professionals Franchise 
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Agreement (a “Franchise Agreement”) that shall be executed as provided in 
Section 4(a) below; and 

(3) each Spherion Business Unit developed under this Agreement shall be located 
within the Territory that is specified in Paragraph 2 of Schedule 1, attached hereto 
(collectively, the “Development Territory”); and 

(4) each Spherion Business Unit developed under this Agreement shall be authorized 
to only provide the staffing services which are described in Schedule 2 (the 
“Authorized Services”). 

(b) Restrictions on Development by Company.  Except as otherwise provided under Section 
2(c) below, if Developer and all affiliates of Developer are in compliance with their 
obligations under this Agreement and all of the Franchise Agreements between 
Developer (including any affiliate of Developer) and Company, then Company shall not 
establish, nor license anyone other than Developer to establish, a Spherion Business Unit 
within the Development Territory for the provision of any of the Authorized Services until 
the earlier of (a) the termination or expiration of this Agreement, (b) the opening of the 
last required Spherion Business Unit under the Development Schedule or (c) the last date 
specified in the Development Schedule.  The term “in compliance” as used within this 
Section 2(b) shall be interpreted to mean that Developer (including any affiliate of 
Developer) is not then in default of its obligations under this Agreement or any Franchise 
Agreement, as applicable, beyond the expiration of all applicable notice and cure periods. 

(c) Reservation of Rights.  Except as otherwise specifically provided under Section 2(b) above, 
and except as otherwise provided in the grant of the franchise for the “Area” as defined 
in the Franchise Agreement and the provisions regarding Strategic or National Account 
Customers set forth in the Franchise Agreement, Company retains all other rights, and 
therefore Company shall have the right (among others) on any terms and conditions 
Company deems advisable, and without granting Developer any rights therein, to: 

(1) establish, and license others to establish, business units (including Spherion 
Business Units), utilizing the System or other systems, relating to any and all 
staffing services and any and all professions, as well as to operate any type of 
business including those which are the same or similar to the operations of 
Developer’s Spherion Business Unit(s) under any marks or the Marks, or any 
variation of the Marks or the System, on any terms and conditions that Company 
deems appropriate, and without granting Developer any rights therein, at any 
location outside the Development Territory, regardless of such  business units’ 
proximity to the Development Territory, any Spherion Business Unit developed 
or operated pursuant to this Agreement, or their actual or threatened impact on 
sales at such Spherion Business Unit(s); 

(2) establish, and license others to establish, as well as operate, any type of business, 
utilizing the System or other systems, under any marks or the Spherion Marks, or 
any variation of the Spherion Marks or the System on any terms and conditions 
that Company deems appropriate at any location within the Development 
Territory, except for Spherion Business Units providing any or all of the 
Authorized Services; 
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(3) in the event Company or its affiliates acquire another chain or system, regardless 
of the number of units, or Company or its affiliates are acquired by another chain 
or system that operates and/or franchises business units or stores that are the 
same or similar to Spherion Business Units in that they have a substantially similar 
assortment of staffing services or similar theme or concept, Company or its 
affiliates may, in addition to any other rights in this Agreement, establish, acquire 
or operate, or license others to establish and operate, business units or stores 
under other systems or other marks, which business units or stores may offer or 
sell staffing services that are the same as, or similar to, the Authorized Services 
offered from the Spherion Business Unit, and which business units or stores may 
be located within or outside the Development Territory, regardless of these 
business units’ or stores’ proximity to the Development Territory or to any 
Spherion Business Unit developed or operated pursuant to this Agreement, or 
their actual or threatened impact on sales at such Spherion Business Unit(s); 

(4) engage in any other activity, action or undertaking that Company is not expressly 
prohibited from taking under this Agreement. 

(d) No Rights in Marks.  This Agreement is not a franchise agreement and does not grant to 
Developer any right to use in any manner Company’s Marks or System. 

(e) No Sublicensing.  Developer shall have no right under this Agreement to license others to 
use in any manner the Marks or System. 

(f) Entity Involvement.  This Agreement is personal to Developer and may not be assigned by 
Developer other than as permitted by this Agreement.  Developer shall be permitted to 
assign this Agreement to a corporation or limited liability company (the “Entity”) in which 
Developer is the owner of the majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Entity 
and the majority of outstanding equity interest in the Entity, and provided Developer 
remains the owner of at least the majority of the outstanding voting securities of the 
Entity and the majority of outstanding equity interest in the Entity throughout the Term 
of this Agreement and any extensions or renewals of the right to operate the business 
franchised hereunder.  No person or entity other than Developer shall be permitted to 
own any voting security or other equity interest in the Entity without the prior written 
consent of Company.  The corporate name may not contain the word “Spherion” or be 
confusingly similar in any fashion with the mark “Spherion.”  Company shall first approve 
the name of any corporate assignee of this Agreement.  Any such assignment to a 
corporation shall be accomplished by execution of the Company’s Assignment of Spherion 
Territory Development Agreement form by each individual Developer, by the Entity to 
which the Franchise Agreement is assigned and by the Company and no such assignment 
shall be valid under this Agreement in the absence of a fully executed Assignment of 
Spherion Territory Development Agreement form.  The sale or issuance of any stock or 
other equity interest in such assignee Entity in violation of the provisions of this section 
or Section 9 of this Agreement shall constitute a breach of this Agreement.  Within ten 
(10) days after the written request of Company, whether immediately upon or at any time 
after the execution of the Assignment of Spherion Franchise Agreement form, Developer 
shall provide Company with a copy of the Certificate of Incorporation or Articles of 
Organization of the assignee, a list of all shareholders or members (the “Owners”), and a 
certified copy of a resolution of the assignee accepting the assignment.  Each Owner of 
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the assignee who is not a party to this Agreement shall, prior to the assignment of this 
Agreement or the issuance of any shares of stock in the assignee to such Owner, 
whichever occurs earlier, execute an agreement in form acceptable to Company for the 
purpose of being bound by Section 8 hereof.  Failure on the part of Developer to obtain 
such an agreement from each Owner of the assignee who is not a party to this Agreement 
and to provide an originally executed copy thereof to Company shall constitute a breach 
of this Agreement. 

(g) Independent Contractors.  It is agreed that the relationship of the parties hereto is that 
of developer and franchisor as independent contractors, and that in no event shall 
Company and Developer be considered partners, joint or co-venturers or employees of 
or for each other.  This Agreement is not intended to create a fiduciary relationship or to 
confer third party beneficiary rights upon either party.  Neither Company nor Developer 
shall make any express or implied agreements, warranties or representations, or incur 
any debt, in the name of or on behalf of the other or represent that their relationship is 
other than developer and franchisor, and neither Company nor Developer shall be 
obligated by or have any liability under any agreements or representations made by the 
other that are not expressly authorized hereunder. 

3. Nature of Agreement. 

(a) Development Fee.  Upon the execution of this Agreement, Developer shall pay to 
Company a development fee in the amount set forth on Schedule 1 (“Development Fee”).  
Developer acknowledges and agrees that the Development Fee is paid as consideration 
for Company granting Developer the right to establish, open and operate the number of 
Spherion Business Units set forth on the Development Schedule, and that the 
Development Fee is fully earned by Company at the time this Agreement is executed and 
delivered to Company and shall not be refundable for any reason.  The Development Fee 
shall equal the initial franchise fee under the then-current form of professional services 
franchise agreement for the Authorized Services being offered generally by Company in 
the geographic area surrounding the Development Territory at the time this Agreement 
is executed multiplied by the cumulative number of Spherion Business Units to be 
developed hereunder.  Provided that a Spherion Business Unit is established in 
accordance with the Development Schedule, that portion of the Development Fee paid 
by Developer applicable to the initial franchise fee due under the then-current 
professional services franchise agreement for such Spherion Business Unit for the 
Authorized Services shall be credited towards the payment of the initial franchise fee 
under the then-current professional services franchise agreement applicable to that 
Spherion Business Unit for the Authorized Services.  In the event a Spherion Business Unit 
is not established in accordance with the Development Schedule, that portion of the 
Development Fee that would have otherwise been credited towards the payment of the 
initial franchise fee for that Spherion Business Unit shall be forfeited and retained by 
Company. 

(b) Non-Refundability.  The Development Fee shall be fully earned when received by 
Company and shall be non-refundable in consideration of administrative and other 
expenses incurred by Company and for the development opportunities lost or deferred 
as a result of the rights granted Developer herein.  The Development Fee is consideration 
for this Agreement only and shall not be deemed or construed as consideration for any 
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franchise agreement or any other agreement between Developer or any of its affiliates 
and Company or any of its affiliates. 

4. Development Obligations.

(a) Exercise of Development Obligations; Franchise Agreements.  Developer shall execute a 
Professional Services Franchise Agreement for each Spherion Business Unit to be 
developed hereunder.    Each Spherion Business Unit shall be located at a site approved 
by Company, within the Development Territory, as provided in the Franchise Agreement 
(“Approved Location”).  The Franchise Agreement for the first Spherion Business Unit 
developed hereunder shall be in the form of the Franchise Agreement, along with any 
ancillary agreements, attached hereto as Exhibit A, which must be executed at the time 
Developer executes this Agreement.  The Franchise Agreement for each additional 
Spherion Business Unit developed hereunder shall be the then current form of Franchise 
Agreement, along with any ancillary agreements being offered generally by Company in 
the geographic area surrounding the Approved Location, at the time each such Franchise 
Agreement is executed. 

(b) Development Schedule.  Recognizing that time is of the essence, Developer agrees to 
satisfy the Development Schedule.  Failure by Developer to adhere to the Development 
Schedule shall constitute a default under this Agreement as provided in Section 10 hereof.  
Developer acknowledges and agrees that the time limits and time frames set forth in and 
inherent in the Development Schedule, and not those in the Franchise Agreement or the 
exhibits to the Franchise Agreement, shall govern Developer’s obligations hereunder.  
Developer acknowledges and agrees that in order to adhere to the Development Schedule 
and retain Developer’s rights under this Agreement, each Spherion Business Unit opened 
pursuant to this Agreement must operate continuously throughout this Agreement’s 
term.  Developer acknowledges and understands that this Agreement requires it to open 
Spherion Business Units in the future pursuant to the Development Schedule.  Developer 
further acknowledges and understands that the estimated investment requirement and 
fees and expenses set forth in Company’s current franchise disclosure document and 
Company’s current form of Franchise Agreement are subject to increase and change over 
time, and that future Spherion Business Units developed hereunder will most likely 
require a greater initial investment and increased operating capital, and may include 
materially different terms than those detailed in the franchise disclosure document and 
franchise agreement provided to Developer in connection with the execution of this 
Agreement. 

(c) Site Evaluation and Approval.  Company will assist Developer in selecting the Approved 
Locations for the Spherion Business Units; however, Company’s assistance in selecting the 
Approved Locations is not a representation or warranty of the success or suitability of the 
Approved Locations, and Developer agrees that Company and its affiliates shall have no 
liability whatsoever with respect to any role which they may undertake in assisting 
Developer in the selection of the Approved Locations. 
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5. Term.

The Term of this Agreement and all rights granted hereunder shall expire on the last date specified 
in the Development Schedule, unless this Agreement is earlier terminated in accordance with the terms 
set out in this Agreement. 

6. Developer’s Obligations.

Developer accepts the following obligations: 

(a) Nondisclosure.  Developer shall at all times preserve in confidence any and all materials 
and information furnished or disclosed to Developer by Company and shall disclose such 
information or materials only to such of Developer’s employees or agents who must have 
access to it in connection with their employment.  Developer shall not at any time, 
without Company’s prior written consent, copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce 
such materials or information, in whole or in part, nor otherwise make the same available 
to any unauthorized person.  Without limiting the foregoing, Developer agrees not to 
divulge any of the trade secrets or confidential information of Company or any of its 
affiliates to any person other than Developer’s employees and then only to the extent 
necessary for the operation of the business contemplated by this Agreement.  Nothing in 
this Agreement is intended to interfere with or discourage a good faith disclosure to any 
governmental entity related to a suspected violation of the law.   

(b) Compliance with Law.  Developer shall comply with all requirements of federal, state and 
local laws, rules and regulations.  To the extent that the requirements of said laws are in 
conflict with the terms of this Agreement or other instructions of Company, Developer 
shall:  (a) comply with said laws; and (b) immediately provide written notice describing 
the nature of such conflict to Company. 

(c) Managing Owner.  Developer shall designate and retain an individual to serve as the 
“Managing Owner” of Developer.  The Managing Owner (i) must have at least a 51% share 
of unencumbered equity ownership in Developer, (ii) must be authorized by Developer to 
bind Developer in any dealings with Company, its affiliates and authorized distributors, 
suppliers and contractors of Developers, (iii) must be authorized by Developer to direct 
any actions necessary to ensure compliance with this Agreement and, (iv) must devote 
full time and best efforts toward the satisfaction of Developer’s obligations under this 
Agreement.  Managing Owner’s interest in Developer shall remain free of any pledge, 
mortgage, hypothecation, lien, charge, encumbrance, voting agreement, proxy, security 
interest or purchase right or options.  Developer agrees that it has not and will not 
hereafter take, whether directly or indirectly, any action to avoid the authority 
requirements of the Managing Owner through the entry of limiting board resolutions, 
management agreements, amendment of governing documents or any other similar 
device or arrangement.  Developer agrees to furnish Company with such evidence as 
Company may request from time to time for the purpose of assuring Company that the 
Managing Owner’s authority remains as represented herein. 

(d) Operating Partner.  If the Managing Owner does not intend to devote his/her full time 
and best efforts toward the satisfaction of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement 
(as referenced in Subsection (c) above), then Developer must also designate an individual 
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“Operating Partner” who must be approved by Company, and the Operating Partner (i) 
must be authorized by Developer to bind Developer in any dealings with Company, its 
affiliates and authorized distributors, suppliers and contractors of Developer, (ii) must be 
authorized by Developer to direct any actions necessary to ensure compliance with this 
Agreement and (iii) must devote his/her full time and best efforts towards the satisfaction 
of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement with no operation or management 
commitments to businesses other than Spherion Business Units established and opened 
under this Agreement.   

(e) Organization Changes.  Developer shall not change the Managing Owner and/or 
Operating Partner without the prior written consent of Company.  Any sale, transfer or 
assignment of the Managing Owner’s interest in Developer, or any portion thereof, or 
Operating Partner’s interest in Developer (if any), without Company’s prior written 
consent shall be deemed a material event of default under this Agreement.  In the event 
that there is a proper change in the Managing Owner or Operating Partner (including 
Company’s prior written consent), the new Managing Owner or Operating Partner shall 
be required to attend and complete such training program as may be required by 
Company within thirty (30) days of the change, and such person shall also be required to 
become bound by this Agreement and by each Franchise Agreement created under this 
Agreement. 

(f) Financial Reports.  Developer shall maintain during the entire Term of this Agreement 
and, for not less than five (5) years following the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement, full, complete and accurate books, records and accounts in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles and in the form and manner prescribed by 
Company from time to time.  In addition, Company reserves the right to require that 
Developer comply with and satisfy any or all of the following: 

(1) Developer shall, at its expense, timely provide to Company, in a format specified 
by Company, a complete annual financial statement (prepared according to 
generally accepted accounting principles that includes a fiscal year-end balance 
sheet, an income statement for such fiscal year reflecting all year-end 
adjustments and a statement of changes in cash flow of Developer).  Upon 
request by Company, Developer shall have these reports prepared by an 
independent certified public accountant satisfactory to Company. 

(2) No later than the fifteenth (15th) day of each calendar year quarter during the 
term of this Agreement, Developer shall submit to Company, for the preceding 
calendar year quarter, in a format acceptable to (or, at Company’s election, 
specified by) Company as amended from time to time: (a) a fiscal period and fiscal 
year-to-date profit and loss statement and a quarterly balance sheet (which may 
be unaudited); (b) reports of those income and expense items which Company 
specifies from time to time for use in any revenue, earnings and/or cost summary 
it chooses to furnish to prospective franchisees and/or developers; and (c) copies 
of all state sales tax returns for Developer.  If required by Company, Developer 
shall use on-line or other electronic accounting and reporting systems as 
Company may specify periodically. 
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(g) Audit.  Developer agrees that Company or its representatives, at Company’s expense, 
shall, at all reasonable times, have the right to examine or audit the books, records, tax 
returns or accounts of Developer and any and all of its affiliates which operate Spherion 
franchises.  In those instances in which it appears that Developer has failed to comply 
with the requirements of this Agreement, Company shall similarly have the right to 
examine or audit the books, records, tax returns or accounts of any and all persons or 
entities who are guarantors, who have personal liability, or who have joint and severable 
liability under this Agreement. 

(h) Data and Privacy.  All data provided by Developer and any of its affiliates and owners to 
the Company (irrespective as to the manner by which it is provided) or otherwise 
obtained by Company with respect to Developer or any of its affiliates and owners is and 
will be owned exclusively by Company, and Company will have the unfettered right to use 
such data in any manner that Company deems appropriate without obligation or 
compensation to Developer or any of its affiliates and owners, and Company shall have 
no liability whatsoever to Developer, its affiliates or owners with respect to such use.  
Developer also agrees to abide by all applicable laws pertaining to the privacy of 
customer, employee and transactional information (“Privacy Laws”).  Additionally, 
Developer will comply with Company standards and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws.  
If there is a conflict between Company standards and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws 
and actual applicable law, Developer will:  (i) comply with the requirements of applicable 
law; (ii) immediately give Company written notice of said conflict; and (iii) promptly and 
fully cooperate with Company and Company’s counsel in determining the most effective 
way, if any, to meet Company’s standards and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws within 
the bounds of applicable law. 

7. Ownership and Protection of the Marks and Copyrights. 

(a) Ownership.  Developer agrees that the Marks are valid service marks and trademarks 
owned by Company and/or its affiliates, and that only Company, its affiliates and its 
designated licensees and franchisees shall have the right to use the Marks and such other 
copyrights as may presently exist or as may be created by Company and/or its affiliates 
and provided for use by franchisees, along with all ancillary signs, symbols or other indicia 
or trade dress used in connection or conjunction with the SPHERION System.  Developer 
further agrees that valuable goodwill is attached to the Marks, Company’s and/or its 
affiliates’ copyrights and trade dress.  Developer agrees that any and all goodwill 
associated with the Marks, copyrights and trade dress, including any goodwill which might 
be deemed to have arisen through Developer’s efforts or activities, inures directly and 
exclusively to the benefit of Company and/or its affiliates, except as otherwise provided 
herein or by applicable law. 

(b) Non-Interference.  Developer agrees that during the Term of this Agreement, and after 
its expiration or termination for any reason, Developer shall not directly or indirectly 
contest or aid in contesting the validity, ownership, title, right or interest of Company 
and/or its affiliates in and to the SPHERION System, the Marks or Company’s copyrights. 

(c) Adverse Claims.  Developer shall promptly notify Company of the existence or assertion 
of any claim, demand or suit based upon or arising from, or of any attempt by any other 
person or entity to use the Marks, or any proprietary marks, symbol, copyright or 
colorable variation thereof, in which Company and/or its affiliates has a proprietary 
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interest as well as any information or knowledge Developer may have with respect to any 
actual, threatened or suspected infringement of any of Company’s trademarks, trade 
names or service marks.  If Company and/or its affiliates desire to undertake the defense 
or prosecution of any such litigation, Developer agrees to execute any and all documents 
and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of Company’s and/or its affiliates’ 
counsel, be necessary to carry out such defense or prosecution, either in the name of 
Company or Company’s affiliates, as Company shall elect. 

(d) Other Requirements.  Developer will not in any manner do, or fail to do anything which 
would prohibit or restrict Company or any existing or future licensee or franchisee of 
Company, whether in a business either similar or dissimilar to the business to be 
developed hereunder, from using the names or the Marks described in Section 1(c), 
forming an Entity whose name includes such names or the Marks, or from filing any 
service mark, trade name or fictitious name registration with respect to any business to 
be conducted outside the Development Territory or any business inside the Development 
Territory that is permitted by this Agreement. 

8. Covenants. 

(a) Full Time and Best Efforts.  Developer covenants that during the Term of this Agreement, 
except as otherwise approved in writing by Company, Developer and, in the case of an 
entity, Developer’s Managing Owner or Operating Partner shall devote full time, energy 
and best efforts to the management and operation of the business contemplated 
hereunder. 

(b) In-Term Covenants.  In addition to and not in limitation of any other restrictions on 
Developer contained herein, Developer and Developer’s spouse, Managing Owner, 
Operating Partner and, if Developer is not an individual, its parents, subsidiaries, 
shareholders, members, partners and managers, and to the extent that any owner of 
Developer is an entity, each person who has an ownership interest in any and all such 
entity or entities, as applicable, and each of the above-listed persons’ spouses (each, a 
“Bound Party”), shall not, during the term of this Agreement, directly or indirectly, for 
and on behalf of itself, himself, herself or any other person or entity, (i) have any direct 
or indirect interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner in a Competitive Business, within 
the United States, (ii) perform services as a director, officer, manager, employee, 
consultant, representative, agent or otherwise for a Competitive Business, within the 
United States or (iii) divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of any Spherion 
Business Unit using the System to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or 
otherwise, or do or perform, directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to 
the goodwill associated with Company’s Marks and the System. 

(c) Post-Term Covenants.  In addition to and not in limitation of any other restrictions on 
Developer contained herein, Developer and each of the Bound Parties shall not, for a 
continuous and uninterrupted period of two (2) years following the later of the following 
to occur:  (i) the effective date of termination or expiration of this Agreement for any 
reason; (ii) following the effective date of a transfer permitted under this Agreement by 
Developer or a Bound Party, directly or indirectly, for and on behalf of itself, himself, 
herself or any other person or entity; or (iii) a final order of a duly authorized arbitrator, 
panel or arbitrators, or a court of competent jurisdiction (after all appeals have been 
taken) with respect to any of the foregoing or with respect to the enforcement of this 
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Section 8, have any direct or indirect interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner in a 
Competitive Business or perform services as a director, officer, manager, employee, 
consultant, representative, agent or otherwise for a Competitive Business which, in either 
case, is located or operating (aa) at any of the Approved Location, or (bb) within a forty 
(40) mile radius of any of the Approved Locations, or (cc) within the Development 
Territory, or (dd) within a forty (40) mile radius of any Spherion Business Unit operating 
under the Marks and the System in operation and existence as of the termination date, 
irrespective of whether the Spherion Business Unit provides the Authorized Services, it 
being the intention of the parties that this provision shall be broadly applicable with 
respect to any and all Spherion Business Units.  During the two-year period following the 
effective date of termination or expiration of this Agreement, a complete listing of all such 
Spherion Business Units operating under the Marks and the System will at all times be 
made available to Developer by Company within thirty (30) days after Developer’s written 
request to Company.  The two-year period of this Post-Term Covenant shall apply to 
Developer and each Bound Party individually according to his, her or its situation, transfer, 
ownership, expiration or termination, and not with respect to any time period applicable 
to any other Bound Party.  In addition, the two-year period of this Post-Term Covenant 
shall be extended for any Bound Party engaged in violating this covenant until two (2) 
years after the violation has ceased. 

(d) General.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Competitive Business” means a 
business that provides general or specific personnel staffing services, with respect to 
temporary and/or permanent placement or hiring, in any industry or sub-industry or class 
of services or workers, regardless of whether the employees or workers are the 
employees of the business or entity that is providing the personnel or staffing services, 
including, services that are the same or substantially similar to those services offered or 
permitted to be offered by Franchisee as described in Schedule 2 to this Agreement, or 
services that are the same or substantially similar to the services offered, or are permitted 
to be offered by Company, its affiliates, or other franchisees under the Intellectual 
Property.  Neither Developer nor the other Bound Parties will be prohibited from owning 
securities in a Competitive Business if said Competitive Business’s securities are listed on 
a recognized stock exchange or traded on the over-the-counter market and represent 5% 
or less of the number of shares of that class of securities which are issued and 
outstanding.  The parties acknowledge that the covenants contained in Section 8 are 
based on the reason and understanding that Developer and the Bound Parties will possess 
knowledge of Company’s business and operating methods and confidential information, 
the disclosure and use of which would prejudice the interest of Company, the System and 
the Spherion franchisees.  Developer further understands and acknowledges the difficulty 
of ascertaining monetary damages and the irreparable harm that would result from 
breach of these covenants.  If any part of this restriction is found to be unreasonable in 
time or distance, such time or distance may be reduced by appropriate order of the court 
or arbitrator to that deemed reasonable.  It is the expectation and intent of Developer 
and Company that the restrictive covenants set forth in Section 8 shall be enforceable to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, specifically including, but not limited to, O.C.G.A. §§ 
13-8-50 through 59 (or similar statutory provision, if applicable), to protect the legitimate 
business interests of Company and that, in any action concerning the enforcement of any 
such covenant, if a court or arbitrator shall determine that any such covenant is not in 
compliance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. §§ 13-8-50 through 59 (or similar statutory 
provision, if applicable), or any other aspect of the law, then it is the expectation and 
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intent of Developer and Company that such court shall modify such covenant, as provided 
in O.C.G.A § 13-8-53(d) and O.C.G.A. § 13-8-54(b) (or similar statutory provision, if 
applicable), to make such covenant enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law 
and shall grant such relief as is reasonably necessary to protect such legitimate business 
interests and to achieve the original intent of Developer and Company in entering into 
this Agreement.  Company shall, as a matter of course, be entitled to apply for and shall 
receive interim, interlocutory or permanent injunctive relief to enforce such covenants in 
addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled at law or in equity.  Company shall 
receive such injunctive relief without the necessity of posting bond or other security, such 
bond or other security being hereby waived.  Developer acknowledges that is has received 
valuable, specialized, confidential, and proprietary information and trade secrets from 
Company, including information regarding the SPHERION System, and the operation of 
staffing businesses that provide temporary and permanent staffing services.  Accordingly, 
Developer acknowledges that the restrictions imposed in this paragraph are reasonable 
and their enforcement will not cause an undue burden upon Developer’s ability to earn a 
livelihood. 

(e) Individual Covenants.  At Company’s request, Developer shall require and obtain 
execution of covenants similar to those set forth in Sections 7 and 8 (as modified to apply 
to an individual) from any or all of the following persons:  Developer’s Principals and 
designated management employees.  Failure by Developer to obtain execution of a 
covenant required by this Section 8(e) shall constitute a default under this Agreement. 

(f) Scope of Covenants.  Developer understands and acknowledges that Company shall have 
the right, in its sole discretion, to reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in this 
Agreement, or any portion thereof, without Developer’s consent, effective immediately 
upon receipt by Developer of written notice thereof; and Developer agrees that it shall 
comply forthwith with any covenant as so modified, which shall be fully enforceable. 

(g) Enforcement of Claims.  Developer expressly agrees that the existence of any claims it 
may have against Company, whether or not arising from this Agreement, shall not 
constitute a defense to the enforcement by Company of the covenants in this Section 8.  
Developer agrees to pay all costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) 
incurred by Company in connection with the enforcement of this Section 8. 

(h) Essential, Reasonable and Necessary Covenants.  The covenants and agreements 
contained above are of the essence of this Agreement, and each such covenant and 
agreement is reasonable and necessary to protect the interests and properties of 
Company.  Each of such covenants and agreements is separate, distinct and severable 
from each other and from the other and remaining provisions of this Agreement, and the 
enforceability of any such covenant or agreement shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other such covenant or agreement, or of any other provision of this 
Agreement.  Any breach of the above covenants or agreements by Developer shall 
constitute a breach of this Agreement.  Developer hereby acknowledges that, prior to 
execution of this Agreement, he or she had developed certain skills in occupations which 
are not related to recruiting or supplying personnel to perform the services authorized by 
this Agreement and the services restricted hereunder, and that accordingly, the 
noncompetition covenants contained in this Agreement will not jeopardize Developer’s 
ability to earn a livelihood. 
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9. Assignment. 

(a) By Company.  Company’s rights under this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of its 
successors and assigns, and Company may assign this Agreement at its option, without 
the consent of Developer, provided that the assignee agrees to assume all of Company’s 
obligations under this Agreement. 

(b) By Developer.  Except as provided in Section 2(f) hereof, neither Developer nor any Owner 
shall directly or indirectly sell, assign, sublicense, grant a security interest in or otherwise 
transfer this Agreement, the Franchised Business, any shares or other interest in the 
Entity, or any right or interest granted herein, or suffer or permit any such sale, 
assignment, sublicense, attachment of a security interest or other transfer to occur by 
operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of Company. 

(c) Approval by Company.  Company’s approval of a proposed purchaser shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, but may require the prior satisfaction of certain conditions 
determined solely within Company’s discretion, which conditions may include but shall 
not be limited to the following: 

(1) the proposed purchaser must pay to a current status any outstanding obligation 
of Developer to Company, and must guarantee payment in full of all obligations 
of Developer arising out of this Agreement and out of the operation all of the 
franchised Spherion Business Units, to all other known creditors of the franchised 
Spherion Business Units; 

(2) Upon the request of Company, Developer must confirm to Company in a sworn 
statement, in a form acceptable to Company, that Developer has thoroughly 
informed the proposed purchaser of all relevant information regarding the 
income and expenses of Developer’s operation, creditworthiness of clients, the 
current status of workers’ compensation claims and necessary technology 
upgrades and the costs thereof and similar material information; 

(3) the proposed purchaser must meet or exceed all requirements then required by 
Company of new Developers, including but not limited to requirements with 
respect to the availability of sufficient capital, business experience, character, 
financial and managerial capability, and the absence of or limitations on other 
employment or business interests; 

(4) the proposed purchaser must complete and forward to Company the then-
current Developer documents, and the proposed purchaser must provide 
Company with its federal and state tax returns for the past two (2) years; 

(5) the proposed purchaser must agree to participate in such training as is then 
required by Company of its new developers and franchisees; 

(6) the proposed purchaser must not own, engage in, be employed by, or be a 
supplier or provider of services to a business which in Company’s sole judgment 
is or may be competitive to or otherwise in conflict with any of the businesses of 
Company, its parents, subsidiaries and affiliates; 
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(7) the proposed purchaser must agree to execute Company’s then-current 
professional services franchise agreement for the remaining Term of each of the 
Spherion Business Units established and franchised under this Agreement, and 
such other documents of assumption of Developer’s obligations related to the 
franchised Spherion Business Unit as shall be reasonably required by Company; 

(8) the proposed purchaser (or, if a corporation or limited liability company, its 
representatives) shall personally meet with representatives of Company at 
Company’s principal place of business within fifteen (15) days of entering into a 
purchase agreement with Developer and prior to the closing of any such 
purchase; 

(9) a copy of all documents for the sale, assignment or transfer shall be submitted to 
Company for Company’s prior approval at least fifteen (15) days prior to Closing; 

(10) the new individual Developer must reside in the Territory and must agree to 
devote full time to the operation of the franchised business, unless otherwise 
consented to by Company; and 

(11) the proposed transaction must, in Company’s judgment, provide the proposed 
purchaser with an economically viable opportunity; provided, however that no 
such judgment on Company’s part shall be deemed to be a representation upon 
which the proposed purchaser is intended to rely. 

(d) Issuance of Stock.  If Developer is an Entity, Developer shall not, without the prior written 
consent of Company, issue any capital stock or securities of the Entity. 

(e) Prohibition of Unapproved Transfer.  An Owner shall not, without the prior written 
consent of Company, transfer any stock or interest in the Entity. 

(f) Consent by Company.  Company’s prior written consent required under Subsections (d) 
and (e) above shall be at Company’s sole discretion and business judgment and the 
conditions of Company’s consent shall, at a minimum, include: 

(1) Developer shall not be in default under this Agreement or under any franchise 
agreement between Developer and Company; and 

(2) Developer shall obtain Company’s approval of each proposed Owner and each 
Owner must submit to Company all information required by Company’s then-
current approval process, including a personal interview at Company’s principal 
place of business or the headquarters of the Franchise/License Division of the 
Company (at no expense to Company), as the case may be. 

(g) Change in Control.  If Developer is an Entity, a change in voting control (by whatever 
means) of the Entity shall be considered a sale of Developer’s entire interest in this 
Agreement and the Franchised Business. 

10. Default. 

(a) Immediate Termination.  Developer shall be deemed to be in default under this 
Agreement and all rights granted herein shall immediately terminate without notice to 
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Developer, if Developer shall become insolvent or makes a general assignment for the 
benefit of creditors; or if a petition in bankruptcy is filed by Developer or such a petition 
is filed against and not opposed by Developer; or if Developer is adjudicated a bankrupt 
or insolvent; or if a bill in equity or other proceeding for the appointment of a receiver of 
Developer or other custodian for Developer’s business or assets is filed and consented to 
by Developer; or if a receiver or other custodian (permanent or temporary) of Developer’s 
assets or property, or any part thereof, is appointed by any court of competent 
jurisdiction; or if proceedings for a composition with creditors under any state or federal 
law should be instituted by or against Developer; or if a final judgment remains unsatisfied 
or of record for thirty (30) days or longer (unless appealed or a supersedeas bond is filed); 
or if Developer is dissolved; or if execution is levied against Developer’s business or 
property; or if suit to foreclose any lien or mortgage against the premises or equipment 
of any Business Unit developed hereunder is instituted against Developer and not 
dismissed within thirty (30) days; or if the real or personal property of Developer shall be 
sold after levy thereupon by any sheriff, marshal or constable; or if Company determines, 
in its sole judgment, that Developer has breached a material provision of this Agreement 
that is not, by its nature, curable or that goes to the essence of the Agreement. 

(b) Compliance with Development Schedule and Immediate Termination with Notice.  
DEVELOPER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE, AND THAT 
DEVELOPER HAS AGREED TO STRICT COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE.  
Upon the occurrence of any of the following events of default, Company may, at its 
option, terminate this Agreement and all rights granted hereunder or take any of the 
actions described below, without affording Developer any opportunity to cure the 
default, effective immediately upon the provision of notice to Developer; 

(1) If Developer misses a deadline set forth in the Development Schedule and 
Developer does not cure such default within thirty (30) days after Company 
provides written notice of the default to Developer.  This thirty-day period is 
referred to as “Grace Period.”  Company and Developer agree that Developer 
may avail itself of this Grace Period only one time per Spherion Business Unit.   

(2) If any Franchise Agreement for any Spherion Business Unit operated by Developer 
(or a Principal or entity affiliated with Developer) is terminated. 

(3) If Developer fails to pay when due any amount owed to Company or its affiliates 
or subsidiaries, whether under this Agreement or not, and Developer does not 
correct such failure within five (5) calendar days after written notice thereof is 
delivered to Developer. 

(4) If Developer fails to maintain in continuous operation the minimum cumulative 
number of Spherion Business Units required by the Development Schedule to be 
in operation during the applicable time period. 

(5) If Developer or any of Developer’s Principals or affiliates are convicted of or plead 
no contest to a felony, a crime involving moral turpitude or any other crime or 
offense that is likely to adversely affect the reputation of the System and the 
goodwill associated with the Marks.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any 
Principal is convicted of a felony, a crime involving moral turpitude or any other 
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crime or offense that is likely to adversely affect the reputation of the System and 
the goodwill associated with the Marks (each a “Material Offense”), Company 
will not have the right to terminate this Agreement if such Principal relinquishes 
or otherwise disposes of such Principal’s interest in the franchisee entity within 
thirty (30) days following the felony conviction or Developer’s receipt of written 
notice from Company informing Developer of such Principal’s commission of a 
Material Offense. 

(6) If Developer makes a material misrepresentation to Company at any time before 
or after the Effective Date. 

(7) If Developer, any affiliate of Developer or any Principal makes an unauthorized 
transfer of this Agreement, any Franchise Agreement with Company, any 
Spherion Business Unit or an ownership interest in Developer. 

(8) If Developer (and/or any affiliate of Developer) commits a breach or default under 
any Franchise Agreement or any other agreement between Developer (and/or 
any affiliate of Developer) and Company (and/or any affiliate of Company) and 
the breach or default is not cured during the time period required under such 
Franchise Agreement or other agreement, regardless of whether Company in fact 
terminates such Franchise Agreement or other agreement. 

(9) If Developer (and/or any affiliate of Developer) commits at least three (3) 
breaches or defaults of the Franchise Agreements entered into pursuant to this 
Agreement, regardless of whether any of the breaches or defaults are subject to 
an opportunity to cure or have been cured, and regardless of which Franchise 
Agreement(s) the breaches or defaults occurred, it being understood that each 
breach or default giving rise to the remedies of this provision may occur under 
separate Franchise Agreements to comprise the collective three (3) breaches or 
defaults. 

(c) Other Defaults; Cure Period.  Except as otherwise provided in the sections above, if 
Developer fails to comply with any material term and condition of this Agreement, or fails 
to comply with the terms and conditions of any Franchise Agreement or other agreement 
between the Developer (or a person or entity affiliated with or controlled by the 
Developer) and Company or any of Company’s affiliates, such action shall constitute a 
default under this Agreement.  Upon the occurrence of any such default, Company may 
terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of termination stating the nature of 
such default to Developer at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of 
termination; provided, however, that Developer may avoid termination by immediately 
initiating a remedy to cure such default, curing it to Company’s satisfaction, and by 
promptly providing proof thereof to Company within the thirty-day period (or such longer 
period as applicable law may require).  If any such default is not cured within the specified 
time (or such longer period as applicable law may require), this Agreement and all rights 
granted hereunder (including but not limited to, the right to develop any new Spherion 
Business Units) will terminate without further notice to Developer, effective immediately 
upon the expiration of the thirty-day period (or such longer period as applicable law may 
require). 
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(d) Actions in Lieu of Termination.  If Company is entitled to terminate this Agreement in 
accordance with the sections above, Company shall have the right to undertake any one 
or more of the following actions instead of terminating this Agreement: 

(1) Company may terminate, modify or reduce any rights that Developer may have 
with respect to “exclusivity” or territorial protection in the Development 
Territory, as granted under Sections 2(b) and 2(c) above, effective ten days after 
delivery of written notice thereof to Developer; and/or 

(2) Company may modify, or eliminate completely, the Development Territory 
described in Section 2(a) above. 

(3) If any of such rights, options, arrangements or Territory are terminated or 
modified in accordance with this Section 10(d), such action shall be without 
prejudice to Company’s right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with the 
sections above, and Company shall have the right to retain all Development Fees 
paid by Developer, and/or to terminate any other rights, options or arrangements 
under this Agreement at any time thereafter for the same default or as a result 
of any additional defaults of the terms of this Agreement. 

(e) Post-Termination Rights.  Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, Developer 
shall have no right to establish or operate any Spherion Business Units for which a 
Franchise Agreement has not been executed by Company at the time of termination.  
Thereafter, Company shall be entitled to establish, and to license others to establish, 
Spherion Business Units to provide the Authorized Services within the Development 
Territory (except as may be otherwise provided under any Franchise Agreement that has 
been executed between Company and Developer).   

(f) No Cross-Default.  Any default under this Territory Development Agreement that would 
not otherwise constitute a default under a Franchise Agreement between Company and 
Developer (or any affiliate of Developer) shall not constitute a default under any Franchise 
Agreement between Company and Developer. 

(g) No Exclusive Remedy.  No right or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Company 
is exclusive of any other right or remedy provided or permitted by law or equity. 

(h) Non-Waiver and Attorneys’ Fees.  The failure of Company to terminate this Agreement 
upon the occurrence of one or more events of default will not constitute a waiver or 
otherwise affect the right of Company to terminate this Agreement because of a 
continuing or subsequent failure to cure one or more of the aforesaid events of default 
or any other default.   

11. Indemnification. 

(a) Agreement to Indemnify.  Developer agrees to and will, at all times, indemnify and hold 
harmless to the fullest extent permitted by law, Company, its corporate parent and 
affiliates, successors and assigns and the respective directors, officers, employees, agents 
and representatives of each from all “Losses and Expenses” (as defined below) incurred 
in connection with any action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, investigation or inquiry 
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(formal or informal), or any settlement thereof (whether or not a formal proceeding or 
action has been instituted) which arises out of or is based upon any of the following: 

(1) Developer’s infringement, alleged infringement or any other violation or alleged 
violation of any trademark, copyright or other proprietary right owned or 
controlled by third parties; 

(2) Developer’s violation, breach or alleged violation or breach  of any contract, 
federal, state or local law, regulation, ruling, standard or directive or  arising out 
of Developer’s business activities hereunder; 

(3) libel, slander or any other form of personal injury by Developer or arising out of 
Developer’s business activities hereunder; 

(4) Developer’s violation or breach of any warranty, representation, agreement or 
obligation in this Agreement; or 

(5) acts, errors or omissions of Developer or any of its agents, servants, employees, 
contractors, partners, affiliates, representatives. 

(b) Notice and Assumption Option.  Developer agrees to give Company notice of any such 
action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation.  At the expense and risk 
of Developer, Company may elect to assume (but under no circumstance is obligated to 
undertake), the defense and/or settlement of any such action, suit, proceeding, claim, 
demand, inquiry or investigation.  Such an undertaking by Company shall, in no manner 
or form, diminish Developer’s obligations under this section. 

(c) Losses and Expenses.  All Losses and Expenses incurred under this section shall be 
chargeable to and paid by Developer pursuant to its obligations of indemnity under this 
section, regardless of any actions, activity or defense undertaken by Company or the 
subsequent success or failure of such actions, activity or defense.  The indemnification of 
Company by Developer shall not be limited by the amount of insurance required under 
this Agreement. 

(d) Definition.  As used in this section, the phrase “Losses and Expenses” shall include, 
without limitation, all losses, compensatory, exemplary or punitive damages, penalties, 
fines, charges, costs, expenses, lost profits, attorneys’ fees, court costs, settlement 
amounts, judgments, compensation for damages to Company’s reputation and goodwill, 
costs of or resulting from delays, financing, costs of advertising material and media 
time/space, and costs of changing, substituting or replacing the same, and any and all 
expenses of recall, refunds, compensation, public notices and other such amounts 
incurred in connection with the matter described. 

(e) Third Parties.  The persons or parties indemnified do not assume any liability whatsoever 
for acts, errors or omissions of those with whom Developer may contract, regardless of 
the purpose.  Developer’s hold harmless and indemnity obligation shall include all losses 
and expenses that may arise out of any acts, errors or omissions of these third parties. 

(f) Company’s Acts or Omissions.  Developer shall not be obligated to indemnify and hold 
Company harmless for any claim or liability to the extent such claim or liability is based 
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on an act or omission by Company in its performance of the obligations specifically 
imposed on Company by this Agreement. 

(g) Settlements and Corrective Actions.  In order to protect persons or property, or its 
reputation or goodwill, or the reputation or goodwill of others, Company may, at any time 
and without notice, as it, in its judgment deems appropriate, order, consent or agree to 
settlements or take such other remedial or corrective action as it deems expedient with 
respect to any action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation if, in 
Company’s sole judgment, there are reasonable grounds to believe that: 

(1) any of the acts or circumstances enumerated in this section have occurred; or 

(2) any act, error or omission of Developer may result directly or indirectly in 
damage, injury or harm to any person or any property. 

12. Liability of Owners. 

(a) Joint and Several Liability.  If Developer is more than one person or a partnership, each 
such person, or each partner in such partnership, shall be jointly and severally liable for 
each of the duties, obligations and liabilities (including but not limited to the 
indemnification obligations) of Developer under this Agreement, and each such person 
shall execute this or a separate agreement for the purpose of becoming bound hereby. 

(b) Assignment to Entity.  If this Agreement is assigned to an Entity pursuant to Section 2(b) 
hereof, then the initial individual Developer(s) must be or become Owner(s) in such Entity, 
and such initial individual Developer(s), along with the Entity to which this Agreement is 
assigned, shall be collectively considered to be the Developer hereunder.  Each initial 
individual Developer agrees to be bound personally by all of the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement, and each of them does hereby personally guarantee, jointly and 
severally, all of the obligations and liabilities (including but not limited to the 
indemnification obligations) of Developer under this Agreement and any other 
agreement between Company and Developer related to the performance of this 
Agreement.  Such initial individual Developer(s) shall execute this Agreement for the 
purpose of becoming bound hereby. 

(c) Acts or Conduct.  Each initial individual Developer and any corporate Developer who are, 
become or are required to be parties to this Agreement shall be bound by the acts or 
conduct of each initial individual Developer and/or corporate Developer.  Each act or 
omission in breach of this Agreement shall be deemed a breach by all such parties, 
whether they are initial individual Developers or the corporate Developer, regardless of 
their lack of knowledge or participation. 

13. System Changes. 

Company may change, alter, expand, de-emphasize or discontinue in whole or in part, any line(s) 
of business or service contemplated hereunder, or any concept, plan, practice, policy, procedure, method 
or strategy forming a part of the SPHERION System which was previously provided or applicable to 
Developer, or substitute other trademarks, service marks or trade names for those authorized herein, or 
discontinue the use of any such trademark, service mark or trade name, without incurring any obligation 
or liability to Developer. 
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14. Compliance.  

Developer does hereby acknowledge the right of Company to insist on full compliance with and 
the full performance of, the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and that the failure of Developer to 
fulfill or perform any of the obligations created by this Agreement shall constitute a material breach of 
this Agreement.  Company’s failure in any instance to insist upon strict performance of any of the terms 
and conditions contained herein shall not be deemed a waiver of any rights or remedies that it may have, 
nor a waiver of future compliance with such or any other terms and conditions.  Whenever this Agreement 
requires Company’s prior approval or consent, Developer shall make a timely written request therefor, 
and such approval, if granted, shall be in writing.  Company makes no warranties or guarantees upon 
which Developer may rely, and assumes no liability or obligation to Developer, by granting any waiver, 
approval or consent to Developer, or by reason of any neglect, delay or denial of any request therefor.  
Any waiver, approval or consent granted by Company to Developer shall be without prejudice to any other 
rights Company may have, will be subject to continuing review by Company and may be revoked in 
Company’s sole discretion at any time and for any reason upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to 
Developer. 

15. Company’s Right to Cure Defaults.  

In addition to any and all other rights and remedies which it may have, if Developer shall default 
in the performance of, or breach any obligation or provision of, this Agreement or any other agreement 
between the parties, Company shall have the right, but not the obligation, immediately or at any time, 
without notice to Developer, and without waiving any default, breach or other claim which it may have, 
to cure such default on behalf of Developer and at Developer’s expense, the cost of which shall 
immediately be due and payable on demand, and which may be deducted from commissions due 
Developer by Company. 

16. Notice. 

Any written notice required herein may be given by regular mail, private overnight courier, hand 
delivery or electronic facsimile transfer (confirmed by simultaneously dispatched regular mail), addressed, 
if to Developer, to the office required to be maintained by Developer pursuant to this Agreement, or if to 
Company, addressed to its principal place of business office.  Unless otherwise specified in this 
Agreement, written notice shall be presumed received by the addressee on the earliest of the date of 
hand delivery or electronic facsimile transfer, or one day after delivery to a private overnight courier or 
the date of the post office postmark. 

17. Disclosure. 

Developer has conducted an independent investigation of the business contemplated by this 
Agreement and recognizes that it involves business risks that make the success of the venture largely 
dependent upon the business abilities of Developer and Developer’s employees.  Company expressly 
disclaims the making of, and Developer acknowledges that he, she or it has not received or relied upon, 
any oral or written representation, warranty or guaranty, express or implied, as to potential revenues, 
profits or success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement.  Developer acknowledges that 
he, she or it has no knowledge of any representations about this franchise by Company, or its officers, 
directors, Owners (including shareholders and members), employees or agents that are contrary to the 
terms of this Agreement or any offering circular or disclosure statement provided to Developer by 
Company, and further represents to Company, as an inducement to enter into this Agreement, that 
Developer has made no misrepresentations to Company.  Developer acknowledges the receipt of 
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Company’s Franchise Disclosure Document required by the Federal Trade Commission or any applicable 
state law, at least fourteen (14) full days prior to the execution hereof, as well as a copy of this Agreement 
with all changes therein at least seven (7) full days prior to the execution hereof. 

18. Applicable Law; Mediation. 

(a) Georgia Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the 
State of Georgia.  In the event of any conflict of law, the laws of Georgia shall prevail, 
without regard to, and without giving effect to, the application of Georgia conflict of law 
rules.  If, however, any provision of this Agreement would not be enforceable under the 
laws of Georgia, and if the Development Territory is located outside of Georgia and such 
provision would be enforceable under the laws of any state in which the Development 
Territory is located, then such provision shall be interpreted and construed under the laws 
of that state.  Nothing in this Subsection (a) is intended by the parties to subject this 
Agreement to any franchise or similar law, rule or regulation of the State of Georgia or of 
any other state to which it would not otherwise be subject. 

(b) Non-Binding Mediation.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all 
controversies, disputes and claims arising out of or related to this Agreement (including 
any claim that the Agreement or any of its provisions is invalid, illegal or otherwise 
voidable or void), the relationship between Company and Developer, the relationship 
between Developer and Company’s affiliates, or Developer’s operation of a Spherion 
Business Unit shall first be subject to non-binding mediation.  All controversies, disputes 
and claims not resolved by, or not subject to, the mediation process shall be resolved in 
accordance with the provisions in Subsections (a), (d), (e), (f), (g) and (h) of this section.  
Mediation shall not be required with respect to (i) any claim or dispute involving actual 
or threatened disclosure or misuse of Company’s confidential information, (ii) any claim 
or dispute involving the ownership, validity or use of the Marks, (iii) any claim or dispute 
involving the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, (iv) any action by Company to 
enforce the covenants set forth in Section 8 of this Agreement or (v) if Developer is more 
than sixty (60) days past due in any of its payments to Company or its affiliates.  Nothing 
in this Section 18 shall prevent any party from instituting or pursuing litigation at any time 
to preserve the status quo, protect the health or safety of the public, or avoid irreparable 
harm.    

(c) Mediation Procedures.  Mediation under this Section 18 is not intended to alter or 
suspend the rights or obligations of the parties under this Agreement or to determine the 
validity or effect of any provision of this Agreement, but is intended to furnish the parties 
an opportunity to resolve disputes amicably, expeditiously and in a cost-effective manner 
on mutually acceptable terms.   

(1) The non-binding mediation provided for hereunder shall be commenced by the 
party requesting mediation (the “Complainant”) providing written notice of the 
request for mediation (the “Request”) to the party with whom mediation is 
sought (the “Respondent”).  The Request shall specify with reasonable 
particularity the matter or matters on which non-binding mediation is sought.  A 
copy of the Request shall be given by the Complainant simultaneously to 
Company if Company is not a Complainant or Respondent. 
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(2) Non-binding mediation hereunder shall be conducted in the state in which 
Company has its principal place of business at the time of the mediation by a 
recognized mediator or mediation program designated by Company in writing 
(the “Designation”).  Company shall send the Designation to Developer within a 
reasonable time after issuance of the Request. 

(3) Non-binding mediation hereunder shall be concluded within sixty (60) days of the 
issuance of the Request or such longer period as may be agreed upon by the 
parties in writing.  All aspects of the mediation process shall be treated as 
confidential, shall not be disclosed to others, and shall not be offered or 
admissible in any other proceeding or legal action whatever.  Complainant and 
Respondent shall each bear their own costs of mediation, and each shall bear 
one-half the cost of the mediator or mediation service. 

(d) Legal Action – Forum.  Any legal action brought by Developer against Company shall be 
brought exclusively in the federal district court covering the location at which Company 
has its principal place of business at the time of the action; provided, however, that if the 
federal court would not have subject matter jurisdiction had the action been commenced 
in such court, then, in such event, the action shall be brought in the state court within the 
judicial district in which Company has its principal place of business at the time the action 
is commenced.  Any legal action brought by Company against Developer in any forum or 
court, whether federal or state, may be brought within the state and judicial district in 
which Company has its principal place of business at the time of the action.  Developer 
hereby waives all questions of personal jurisdiction or venue for the purpose of carrying 
out this provision, subject to state law. 

(e) Non-Exclusive Right.  No right or remedy conferred upon or reserved to Company or 
Developer by this Agreement is intended to be, nor shall be deemed, exclusive of any 
other right or remedy provided herein or permitted by law or equity, but each shall be 
cumulative of every other right or remedy. 

(f) Waiver of Jury Trial; Commencement of Action.  COMPANY AND FRANCHISEE 
IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR 
COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, BROUGHT BY EITHER OF THEM 
AGAINST THE OTHER, WHETHER OR NOT THERE ARE OTHER PARTIES IN SUCH ACTION, 
PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM.  ANY AND ALL CLAIMS AND ACTIONS ARISING OUT 
OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE RELATIONSHIP OF FRANCHISEE AND 
COMPANY, THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN FRANCHISEE AND COMPANY’S AFFILIATES, 
OR FRANCHISEE’S OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS, BROUGHT BY EITHER 
PARTY HERETO AGAINST THE OTHER SHALL BE COMMENCED WITHIN TWO (2) YEARS 
FROM THE OCCURRENCE OF THE FACTS GIVING RISE TO SUCH CLAIM OR ACTION, AS 
EVIDENCED BY THE FILING OF A CLAIM IN AN LEGAL ACTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SUBSECTION (D) OF THIS SECTION, OR SUCH CLAIM OR ACTION SHALL BE BARRED. 

(g) Waiver of Punitive, Exemplary and Multiple Damages.  COMPANY AND FRANCHISEE 
HEREBY WAIVE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW ANY RIGHT TO OR CLAIM 
OF ANY PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, OR MULTIPLE DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER, SUBJECT 
TO STATE LAW.
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(h) Company’s Right to Injunctive Relief.  Nothing herein contained shall bar Company’s right 
to obtain injunctive relief against threatened conduct that will cause it loss or damages, 
including violations of the terms of Sections 6(a), 7, 8 and 10(e), under the usual equity 
rules, including the applicable rules for obtaining restraining orders and preliminary 
injunctions. 

19. Effect; Interpretation of Agreement. 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement.  This Agreement shall 
become effective and binding only when accepted and approved by Company at its principal place of 
business, by the signature of one of its officers.  This Agreement shall be construed according to its fair 
meaning and not strictly against Company for having drafted it.  Any provisions which impose an obligation 
after termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement and remain binding upon the parties.  It is mutually agreed that no change or erasure of any 
printed portion of this Agreement, except the filling in of specified blanks and lines, shall be valid or 
binding upon either party hereto unless initialed by both parties.  It is understood that this Agreement 
supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreements and understandings 
between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof and, together with (a) any application and 
background information provided by Developer to Company (b) any Developer/Franchisee Compliance 
Certification provided by Developer to Company in connection with this Agreement and (c) any Franchise 
Agreement executed contemporaneous herewith, constitute the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to such subject matter.  The foregoing notwithstanding, nothing herein is intended to disclaim the 
representations Company made in the Franchise Disclosure Document furnished to Developer.  No prior 
or future verbal agreements of any nature relating to the subject matter hereof shall be valid, binding or 
relied upon by either party hereto.  This Agreement may not be amended or modified except by written 
agreement signed by both parties hereto.  If any provisions of this Agreement shall be invalid or 
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity and enforceability of this 
Agreement as a whole, or any portion hereof which is not invalid or unenforceable.  Time is of the essence 
in this Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into and executed this Agreement as of the 
Effective Date. 

DEVELOPER(S): 
_____ Percentage of  

Equity   
Ownership  

(Signature) 

(Print Name) 

(Print Title) 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 

By:  
    (Signature) 

    (Print Name) 

    (Print Title) 
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SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
TERRITORY DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

SCHEDULE 1 
DEVELOPMENT TERRITORY AND DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

1. Spherion Business Units.  Developer shall develop, own and operate _________ (__) 
Spherion Business Units. 

2. Development Territory.  All Spherion Business Units developed under this Development 
Agreement shall be located within the boundaries of the following geographic area, which is the 
“Development Territory”: 

3. Development Schedule.  Recognizing that time is of the essence, Developer agrees to 
satisfy the Development Schedule set forth below: 

By (Date)
Cumulative Total Number of Spherion Business Units Which 

Developer Shall Have Open and in Operation

4. Development Fee.  The Development Fee is $____________________.  This Development 
Fee was calculated by using the following chart as a Development Fee chart: 

Number of Business Units Fee per store

1 $35,000

2 $26,250

3 and more $22,750

□ $___________ for ____ Spherion Business Units 

5. Time of the Essence.  DEVELOPER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT TIME IS OF THE 
ESSENCE, AND THAT DEVELOPER HAS AGREED TO STRICT COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEVELOPMENT 
SCHEDULE. 

6. Notice.  Developer’s Office Address for Notices: 
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Franchisor Acknowledgment and Agreement:   Developer Acknowledgment and Agreement:  

Spherion Staffing, LLC
Franchisor (“Company”) 

By:  

Name:  

Title:  

Date:  

“Developer” 

By:  

Name:  

Title:  

Date:  
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SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
TERRITORY DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

SCHEDULE 2 
AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

Franchisee shall be authorized to provide on behalf of Company: 

(i)       full-time placement services for which no fees or other payments are charged to or collected from 
applicants and in which fees are collected only from employers; and 

(ii)      temporary individual and group services of personnel; 

in [TO BE INSERTED BASED ON SUBSET OF STAFFING SERVICES OFFERED TO FRANCHISEE] occupations, 
as the same may be defined from time-to-time by Company.  This Franchise Agreement shall not authorize 
or permit Franchisee to provide any other full-time or temporary personnel services in the Restricted Jobs 
set forth below, or in any other occupation not described above (as defined by Company), including but 
not limited to nursing, health care, scientific and industrial occupations.  The right to provide personnel 
services in all such excluded occupations is specifically reserved to Company. 

RESTRICTED JOB LIST 
SEPTEMBER 2018 

RESTRICTED JOB LIST –  

When in doubt or if you have questions on other types of exposures call Risk Management Department.  
The Restricted Job List will be updated periodically whenever injury or risk trends are observed by 
Company. 
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SPHERION STAFFING, LLC TERRITORY DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
EXHIBIT A 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

The form of Spherion Professionals Franchise Agreement currently offered by Spherion Staffing, 
LLC (“Company”) is attached. 
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PROMISSORY NOTE – FIXED RATE 

Purchase Loan 

$____________________
County of ________________ 
State of __________________ 

Date:  ______________, 20_______ 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned (“Debtor”) promises to pay to Spherion Staffing, LLC 
(hereinafter, together with any holder hereof, called “Holder”), the principal sum of 
_____________________________ Dollars and ______ Cents ($_______________) with interest as set 
forth below.  The principal and interest shall be repaid, in full, over sixty (60) months or sooner pursuant 
to the amortization table (the “Table”) attached as Exhibit “A.”  The first monthly payment will be due 
and payable on the _______ day of ________________, 20_______, and each successive payment will be 
due and payable on the 15th day of the month indicated on the Table attached, until the principal and 
interest is paid in full.  Interest shall accrue from the date of this Note; therefore, the first monthly 
payment shall be slightly higher than the remaining installment payments.  Such installments shall be paid 
by deduction from the Debtor’s commission statement and will be reflected on Debtor’s monthly 
commission for the preceding calendar month as such terms are used in the Franchise Agreement by and 
between the undersigned and Spherion Staffing, LLC (“Spherion”) dated effective _______________, 
20______ (the “Franchise Agreement”); provided that if such commission shall not be sufficient to pay 
any such installment when due, Spherion shall notify the undersigned and the undersigned shall pay to 
Holder within five (5) days of receipt of such notice the difference between the amount due and the 
amount deducted by Spherion from Franchisee’s share of the commission. 

The interest on the outstanding principal amount of this Note shall accrue from the date hereof 
at the rate of ____________ per annum [WSJ Prime plus ____________ as of the date of the Note].  Any 
payment hereunder shall first be credited to interest computed as set forth above, and the remainder of 
such installment, if any, shall be credited to principal.   

Each of the following events shall be referred to as a “Default”: 

(1) the failure to pay when due any amount owed to Holder; 

(2) termination of the Franchise Agreement; or  

(3)  the sale, assignment, transfer, sub-license or encumbrance of the Franchise Agreement 
or any right or interest of the undersigned in the Franchise Agreement; or  

(4) any default by Debtor under any other Franchise Agreement which Debtor has or will 
have with Spherion or its parents or its affiliates; or  

(5) any default by Debtor under the Security Agreement executed by Debtor and Holder in 
conjunction with this transaction (the “Security Agreement”); or 

(6) if Debtor’s obligations under this Note or the Security Agreement becomes subordinate 
in any manner. 
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Upon the occurrence of a Default, the entire principal balance then remaining outstanding plus 
all accrued interest thereon shall become immediately due and payable.  In addition, the undersigned 
shall pay interest at an augmented rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum on the outstanding principal 
balance from the date of Default until all amounts due and owing pursuant to this Promissory Note are 
paid in full. 

No delay or failure on the part of Holder in the exercise of any right or remedy hereunder or under 
any other agreement or document shall operate as a waiver thereof, and no single or partial exercise by 
Holder or any such right or remedy shall preclude other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any 
other right or remedy. 

Time is of the essence of this contract and, in the case that this Note is collected by or through an 
attorney at law, or under advice therefrom, the undersigned agrees to pay all costs of collection, including 
fifteen percent (15%) of the outstanding principal balance as attorneys’ fees. 

The undersigned shall be privileged to prepay this Note in whole or in part without penalty. 

Except as otherwise stated herein, the undersigned hereby waives demand, presentment for 
payment, notice of non-payment, protest and notice of protest. 

This Note is to be construed in all respects and enforced according to the laws of the State of 
Georgia.  Debtor shall pay all stamps, duties, taxes, penalties, fees and costs incurred due to the execution, 
delivery, taxation or recordation of this Note, if any.  

Given under my hand and seal, the day and year first above written. 

FRANCHISEE

By:

     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 
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Exhibit A 
Amortization Schedule 
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GUARANTY 

The undersigned, ________________________________ ([collectively,] the “Guarantor(s)”) 
hereby, jointly and severally, unconditionally guarantee(s) all obligations of ________________________ 
contained in that certain Promissory Note dated ____________________ (the “Note”).  The Guarantor(s) 
further agree(s) that notice of nonpayment or nonperformance given to ___________________________ 
shall be deemed notice to the Guarantor(s).  Action or suit may be brought against the Guarantor(s), or 
any of them, on this Note and carried to final judgment or completion with or without Holder naming or 
joining ________________________, or any of the other Guarantors, as a party to enforce any right of 
Holder against ________________________ under this Note, and without Holder having first proceeded 
against __________________________, or any of the other Guarantors. 

Time is of the essence of this Guaranty, but no delay or failure on the part of Holder in the exercise 
of any right or remedy shall operate as a waiver thereof, and no single or partial exercise by Holder of any 
right or remedy shall preclude other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or 
remedy. 

No action of Holder permitted hereunder shall, in any way, impair or affect this Guaranty.  The 
Guarantor(s) shall not be released from the obligations under this Guaranty by reason of any increase in 
risk, or novation, amendment or compromise of, under or to this Note, which might result from the doing, 
or failure to do, of any action or forbearance by Holder under or with respect to this Note.  The 
Guarantor(s) in giving this Guaranty is (are) not relying upon any representation, whether written or oral, 
by or on behalf of Holder. 

This Guaranty shall be binding upon the Guarantor(s) and the heirs, estate and personal 
representatives of the Guarantor(s).  This Guaranty shall be governed by and construed under the laws of 
the State of Georgia. 

This Guaranty is executed by the Guarantor(s) prior to, simultaneously with, or after the execution 
and delivery of this Note, and in order to induce Holder to execute the same.  This Guaranty may not be 
amended, terminated or modified except by an agreement in writing executed by the party sought to be 
charged therewith. 

WITNESS the hand and seal of the undersigned Guarantor(s). 

By:

     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

(Date)



63552023v2 

D-6 
2024 Spherion FDD  

SECURITY AGREEMENT 
Purchase Loan 

THIS SECURITY AGREEMENT, dated as of _________________, 20_____ is by and between 
____________________________, a _______________ corporation (“Franchisee”) and Spherion Staffing, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Spherion”). 

WHEREAS, the Franchisee has been granted a franchise by Spherion, pursuant to that certain 
franchise agreement by and between Spherion and Franchisee dated as of ________________ (the 
“Franchise Agreement”), to operate a permanent placement and temporary personnel service in the Area 
(as such term is defined in the Franchise Agreement) (the “Franchised Business”); 

WHEREAS, Spherion currently operates a temporary help service business in the Area, specifically 
in the counties of ___________________________________ (hereafter referred to as the “Business”), 
and has agreed to sell certain of the assets of the Business (as further specified herein) to Franchisee with 
the intent that, from and after the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Asset Sale Agreement, 
as defined below, Franchisee conduct and operate the assets of the Business purchased hereunder as part 
of the Franchised Business and pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement; 

WHEREAS, Franchisee and Spherion __________ have entered into the Asset Sale Agreement (the 
“Asset Sale Agreement”) pursuant to which Spherion _________ has sold to Franchisee the assets listed 
below; 

[Fill-in information from Asset Sale Agreement (description of Assets purchased)] 

WHEREAS, to induce Spherion to finance Franchisee’s purchase of the assets, Franchisee agrees 
to grant Spherion (hereinafter, together with any holder hereof, called “Holder”) a security interest; 

WHEREAS, Franchisee has executed a Promissory Note as of the date above in the original 
principal amount of _______________________________ ($__________________) (the “Note”) to 
enable it to purchase the Collateral from Spherion; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, as security for such indebtedness (the “Indebtedness”), the Franchisee hereby 
grants and conveys to Holder a security interest in the going concern value of its franchise, the furniture, 
fixtures and equipment used in the Franchised Business, and all other assets of the Franchised Business, 
including any other intangible assets, such as any lease Franchisee may have for the Franchised Business, 
and the telephone numbers of the Franchised Business (collectively, the “Collateral”). 

1. Franchisee’s Covenants.  Franchisee hereby warrants, covenants and agrees as follows:  

(a) Collateral and Franchised Business. 

(i) Franchisee shall keep the Collateral at the Franchised Business and shall not 
remove the Collateral without the prior written consent of Holder. 

(ii) Franchisee shall maintain the Collateral and any assets associated with the 
Franchised Business in good repair and condition at Franchisee’s own cost and 
expense. 
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(iii) Franchisee shall pay, when due, all taxes and assessments relating to the 
Collateral and the Franchised Business. 

(iv) Franchisee shall not voluntarily sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of the 
Collateral or any interest therein and shall not otherwise do anything that might 
impair the Collateral or the Franchised Business as security hereunder. 

(v) Franchisee shall, in addition to the foregoing, do all such other acts and things as 
Holder may from time to time reasonably request as necessary to establish and 
maintain a first priority perfected security interest in the Collateral. 

(b) Financial Statements.  Franchisee shall furnish to Holder: 

(i) As soon as available, but not later than ninety (90) days after the end of each 
fiscal year, the balance sheet of Franchisee as at the end of such fiscal year and 
the related statements of income, and changes in financial position of Franchisee 
for such fiscal year, in each case setting forth corresponding numbers for the 
preceding fiscal year. 

(ii) As soon as available, but not later than ninety (90) days after filing, (A) 
Franchisee’s federal, state and any other tax returns relating to the franchised 
business, and (B) Franchisee’s individual federal, state and any other income tax 
returns. 

(iii) As soon as available, but not later than thirty (30) days after the end of each 
quarter or more frequently, as Holder may reasonably request from time-to-time, 
(A) an unaudited balance sheet of Franchisee for such quarter and the related 
statement of income for such quarter and the fiscal year-to-date, all in reasonable 
detail and prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
applied on a consistent basis, and (B) an aged list of accounts receivable which 
ties to such balance sheet. 

(iv) Promptly after receipt thereof by Franchisee, a copy of any “management letter” 
received by Franchisee from its independent certified public accountants, if 
applicable. 

(v) From time to time, and with reasonable promptness, such other information or 
documents (financial or otherwise) with respect to the operations, business, 
affairs and financial condition of Franchisee as Holder may reasonably request; 
and 

(vi) As soon as practicable and in any event within three (3) business days after 
Franchisee obtains knowledge thereof, notice of (A) the occurrence of a Default 
(as defined in the Note), (B) any litigation, investigation or proceeding, or any 
material change in any litigation, investigation or proceeding, pending against or 
affecting Franchisee or any of its properties that would have a material adverse 
effect on the ability of Franchisee to perform its obligations under this Security 
Agreement or the Note or on the business, operations, properties or condition 
(financial or otherwise) of Franchisee, and (C) any other event that could 
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reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the business, 
operations, properties or condition (financial or otherwise) of Franchisee. 

(c) Financial Covenants.  The Franchisee’s Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio should never be lower 
than 1.25 to 1.  The Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio shall be determined by calculating how 
many times the last twelve months of EBITDA (earnings before interest taxes, 
depreciation and amortization) covers the last twelve months of Fixed Charges. Fixed 
Charges include interest, principal payments, taxes, and capital expenses. In the event of 
any dispute in the computation of such items, Holder’s determination shall be controlling 
in the absence of audited Financial Statements of Franchisee required by Section 1(b)(i). 

2. Default and Remedies. 

(a) Franchisee shall be in default under this Security Agreement upon the occurrence of any 
of the following events or conditions: 

(i) Failure by Franchisee to make timely payments of any and all Indebtedness under 
the Note. 

(ii) Failure by Franchisee to comply with or perform any of the terms, covenant and 
conditions of this Security Agreement. 

(iii) Any default by Franchisee under any other Franchise, License or other agreement 
with Spherion or an affiliate, including, without limitation, the Note. 

(iv) If the Franchisee dies, becomes insolvent or the subject of bankruptcy or 
insolvency proceedings. 

(v) If any representation made to Holder or Spherion, or its parents or affiliate, with 
respect to this Security Agreement or the Indebtedness is false in any material 
respect when made. 

(b) Upon such default, Holder may, at its option, declare the Indebtedness immediately due 
and payable and shall have all of the remedies of a “Secured Party” under the Uniform 
Commercial Code of Georgia (as amended and supplemented to date) (the “Code”), 
including, without limitation, the right and power to sell, or otherwise dispose of the 
Collateral and the Franchised Business or any part thereof, and for that purpose may take 
immediate and exclusive possession of the Collateral and the Franchised Business, or any 
part thereof, and with or without judicial process, enter the Franchised Business or any 
other premises on which the Collateral, or any part thereof, may be situated and remove 
the Collateral, or part thereof, from such location without being deemed guilty of 
trespass. 

(c) Holder shall be entitled to hold, maintain, preserve and prepare the Collateral and the 
assets related to the Franchised Business for sale. 

(d) The proceeds realized upon any such disposition, after deduction for the expenses of 
retaking, holding, preparing for sale, selling or the like, and the reasonable attorney’s fees 
and legal expenses incurred by Holder, shall be applied in satisfaction of the Indebtedness 
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secured hereby.  Holder will account to the Franchisee for any surplus realized on such 
disposition and the Franchisee shall remain liable for any deficiency. 

(e) The remedies of Holder hereunder are cumulative in the exercise of anyone or more of 
the remedies provided for herein or under the Code and shall not be construed as a waiver 
of any of the other remedies of Holder so long as any part of the Franchisee’s 
Indebtedness remains unsatisfied. 

3. Miscellaneous Terms and Conditions. 

(a) Notice given under this Security Agreement shall be sufficient if sufficient under the 
Franchise Agreement.  

(b) If the Franchisee defaults in the performance of any other provisions of this Security 
Agreement, Holder may perform for the Franchisee and any monies expended in doing 
so shall be chargeable with interest to the Franchisee and added to the Indebtedness. 

(c) The terms and provisions contained in this Security Agreement shall, unless the context 
otherwise requires, have the meaning and be construed as provided in the Code. 

(d) This Security Agreement may not be amended, modified or changed, nor shall any waiver 
of any provision hereof be effective, unless made in writing and signed by the party 
against which enforcement of any waiver, change, modification or discharge is sought. 

(e) This Security Agreement is to be construed in all respects and enforced according to the 
laws of the State of Georgia. 

(f) This Security Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which executed in one 
or more counterparts, including by facsimile signatures, each of which shall be deemed 
an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed as of the 
day and year first above written. 

FRANCHISEE

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 
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ASSET SALE AGREEMENT 
Purchase Loan 

This Asset Sale Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of this ______ day of ____________, 
20_____ (the “Effective Date”) by and among Spherion Staffing, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(“Spherion”) and _________________________________, a ______________ corporation (“Franchisee”) 
and _____________________________________________________, the sole stockholder of Franchisee 
(“_____________________________”).   

WHEREAS, Franchisee has been granted a franchise by Spherion pursuant to the Franchise 
Agreement between Spherion and Franchisee dated as of the Effective Date (the “Franchise Agreement”), 
to operate a temporary help service business in the Area (as such term is defined in the Franchise 
Agreement) (the “Franchised Business”); and 

WHEREAS, Spherion currently operates a temporary help service business in the Area (hereafter 
referred to as the “Business”) and has agreed to sell certain of the assets of the Business (as further 
specified herein) to Franchisee with the intent that, from and after the closing of the transactions 
contemplated by this Asset Sale Agreement, Franchisee conduct and operate the assets of the Business 
purchased hereunder as the Franchised Business pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Franchise 
Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, obligations, and mutual covenants 
hereinafter set forth, it is understood and agreed as follows: 

1. Transfer and Sale of Assets.  

(a) At the Closing (as hereinafter defined), Franchisee agrees to purchase and Spherion 
agrees to transfer, sell and convey all of Spherion’s right, title and interest in and to the 
following assets (the “Assets”), subject to the intellectual property rights and any other 
rights of Spherion or its parents or affiliates retained pursuant to the Franchise 
Agreement: 

(i) The going concern value of the Business, subject to Section 4 of this Agreement;  

(ii) The furniture, fixtures, leasehold improvements and equipment listed on Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto; 

(iii) The telephone and facsimile numbers, including __________________________ 
and any other numbers used in the Business and all directory listings and 
advertisements related thereto; 

(iv) Spherion’s interest as lessee or tenant in and to the real property lease listed on 
Exhibit “B” attached hereto (the “Premises Lease”); 

(v) All equipment leases and contracts listed on Exhibit “C” attached hereto (the 
“Equipment Leases”). 

(b) All of the Assets are transferred and conveyed by Spherion to Franchisee free and clear 
of all liens, encumbrances or charges of any nature except those created pursuant to the 
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Equipment and/or Premises Lease.  Spherion makes no other warranties with respect to 
the Assets.  It is expressly agreed that the furniture, fixtures and equipment are to be 
transferred AS IS, WHERE IS, and SPHERION EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, 
EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE with respect to such 
furniture, fixtures and equipment. 

(c) As of the Effective Time, Franchisee shall assume those liabilities and obligations of the 
Business pertaining directly to the conduct of the Business that arise in the ordinary 
course of business after the Effective Time with respect to and in connection with periods 
after the Effective Time (the “Operating Liabilities”). 

(d) Franchisee shall reimburse Spherion at Closing (as defined herein below) for any security 
deposit transferred to Franchisee for which Franchisee receives credit from the respective 
lessor or other holder.  Franchisee shall pay to Spherion any petty cash transferred to the 
Franchisee at the Closing.  Any prorations not settled at the closing of the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement shall be credited to or deducted from Franchisee’s 
monthly commission and will be reflected on Franchisee’s commission statement.  
Expenses for rent, utilities, telephone and property taxes shall be prorated as of the 
Closing. Any transfer tax or sales tax or recording or filing fees imposed upon the sale, 
transfer and delivery of the Assets shall be paid by Franchisee. 

2. Purchase Price; Closing; Allocation. 

(a) In consideration for the sale and transfer of the Assets by Spherion to Franchisee, the 
Franchisee shall assume the Operating Liabilities and pay to Spherion the sum of 
__________________________________ ($___________________) as follows: 

(i) $_____________ on or before the date of the Closing by wire transfer in 
immediately available funds to the account identified on Exhibit “E” attached 
hereto; and 

(ii) $_____________ pursuant to a Promissory Note attached hereto as Exhibit “F”. 

(b) The closing of the transaction (the “Closing”) shall occur by the exchange of signature 
pages by facsimile with overnight delivery of original signature pages to follow.  The 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall all be deemed effective as of 12:01 
a.m. on __________________________ (the “Effective Time”). 

(c) The obligations of Franchisee under the Promissory Note will be secured by a pledge of 
the Assets to Spherion pursuant to a Security Agreement attached as Exhibit “G”.   

(d) Exhibit “H” sets forth allocations with respect to the Assets that shall be used by the 
parties for purposes of reporting to the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) on Form 
8594. 

3. Employees of Business.  All persons employed by the Business (the “Business Employees”) as of the 
Effective Time shall immediately become employees of Franchisee and Franchisee shall assume all 
responsibility for the Business Employees which shall include but is not limited to the following:  (i) 
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payroll; (ii) benefit plans; (iii) the provision of vacation, sick and personal time; (iv) accrued vacation; 
(iv) accrued personal time; and (v) accrued sick time.  Should Franchisee terminate the employment 
of any Business Employee as of the Effective Time, Franchisee shall be responsible for any severance 
payments due the terminated Business Employee. 

4. Access to Records Relating to Customers and Employees.  Franchisee hereby agrees that Spherion 
may retain copies of customer and employee records relating to pre-closing matters.  Franchisee also 
agrees that it will make available, upon request, any customer or employee record it may have which 
is deemed necessary by Spherion to assist in the collection of outstanding accounts receivables or to 
respond to or defend any claim against Spherion or its directors, officers, employees, agents, parents 
or affiliates relating to or filed by such customer or employee or to otherwise comply with any law or 
regulation. 

5. Termination of Employment; Full Discharge.  __________________________ agrees and 
acknowledges that as of the Effective Time, his employment with Spherion (or any subsidiary thereof) 
is terminated ___________________, for himself and for his respective heirs, legal representatives, 
successors and assigns, hereby release Spherion and its parents, affiliates, and subsidiaries, and their 
officers, directors, agents, employees, successors and assigns and the officers, directors and agents 
and employees of such parents, affiliates, successors and assigns (collectively, the “Spherion 
Releasees”) from any and all claims, demands, obligations, damages, losses, liabilities, rights, 
interests, actions and causes of action that _________________________ had, has, or may have, 
known or unknown, suspected to exist or not suspected to exist, anticipated or not anticipated, 
against the Spherion Releasees, based on or arising out of his employment with Spherion  (or any 
parent, affiliate, or subsidiary thereof) or with respect to employee benefits or otherwise, including, 
without limitation, any and all obligations arising under any alleged written or oral employment 
agreement, policy, plan or procedure of Spherion  (or any parent, affiliate, or subsidiary thereof) 
and/or any alleged understanding or arrangement between __________________________ and 
Spherion  (or any parent, affiliate, or subsidiary thereof) or any of its officers. 

6. Brokerage Fees or Commissions.  Spherion and Franchisee hereby agree to indemnify each other 
against any obligations the indemnifying party may have incurred for brokerage fees or commissions 
in connection with this transaction. 

7. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws 
of the State of Georgia. 

8. Amendments.  This Agreement may not be amended, supplemented, waived or changed by any 
means, except by a writing signed by all parties and making specific reference to this Agreement. 

9. Severability.    Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement be determined by any tribunal, 
court or arbitrator to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the validity of the remaining parts, terms or 
provisions shall not be affected thereby, and the illegal, invalid or unenforceable parts, terms or 
provisions shall be deemed not to be a part of this Agreement. 

10. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original.  Delivery of executed signature pages hereof by facsimile transmission shall 
constitute effective and binding execution and delivery hereof.   
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11. Notices.  Any notice, request, information or other document to be given hereunder to any of the 
parties shall be in writing (including facsimile and telegraphic communication) and may be hand 
delivered by messenger or courier service, telecommunicated, or mailed by registered or certified 
mail (postage prepaid), return receipt requested, addressed to: 

If to Spherion addressed to:  Spherion Staffing, LLC 
One Overton Park 
3625 Cumberland Blvd, Suite 500 
Atlanta, GA 30339  
Attn:  General Counsel 
Telephone:  (770) 937-7120 

If to Franchisee addressed to:  _______________________ 
_______________________ 
_______________________ 
Telephone: ______________ 

Any such notice shall be deemed delivered (a) on the date delivered if by personal delivery, (b) on 
the date telecommunicated if by telegraph or confirmed facsimile, (c) on the date upon which the 
return receipt is signed or delivery is refused or the notice is designated by the postal authorities 
as not deliverable, as the case may be, if mailed. 

Any party may change the address to which notices under this Agreement are to be sent to it by 
giving written notice thereof in the manner provided above. 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

FRANCHISEE

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

(Print Title) 
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EXHIBIT E 
START-UP LOAN DOCUMENTS  
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PROMISSORY NOTE – FIXED RATE 
Start-up Loan 

$
County of ___________________ 
State of ____________________ 

Date:  ______________, 20_____ 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned (“Debtor”) promises to pay to Spherion Staffing, LLC 
(hereinafter, together with any holder hereof, called “Holder”), the principal sum of 
_________________________________ and [_______]/100 Dollars ($__________________), or such 
lesser amount as shall be loaned to Debtor under the terms hereof, with interest as set forth below.  The 
principal and interest shall be repaid, in full, over sixty (60) months or sooner as follows:  Debtor shall pay 
the then accrued but unpaid interest six (6) months from the date hereof, and monthly payments of 
accrued but unpaid interest for six (6) months thereafter on the same day of the month, and the then 
outstanding balance in 48 equal payments of principal and interest monthly thereafter on the same day 
of the month until the principal and interest is paid in full.  Such installments shall be paid by deduction 
from the Debtor’s commission statement and will be reflected on Debtor’s monthly commission for the 
preceding calendar month as such terms are used in the Franchise Agreement by and between the 
undersigned and Spherion Staffing, LLC (“Spherion”) dated effective ________________, 20_____ (the 
“Franchise Agreement”); provided that if such commission shall not be sufficient to pay any such 
installment when due, Spherion shall notify the undersigned and the undersigned shall pay to Holder 
within five (5) days of receipt of such notice the difference between the amount due and the amount 
deducted by Spherion from Franchisee’s share of the commission. 

The interest on the outstanding principal amount of this Note shall accrue from the date hereof 
at the rate of _______ per annum [WSJ Prime plus ________ as of the date of the Note].  Any payment 
hereunder shall first be credited to interest computed as set forth above, and the remainder of such 
installment, if any, shall be credited to principal.  

Debtor may borrow money under this Note for one year from the date hereof. In order to borrow, 
Debtor must provide Holder, in writing, the start-up expense which is to be incurred, and Holder will loan 
to Debtor 50% of that expense, up to a total of borrowings outstanding of the principal amount permitted 
under the Note as stated above.  

Each of the following events shall be referred to as a “Default”: 

(1) the failure to pay when due any amount owed to the Holder; 

(2) termination of the Franchise Agreement; or  

(3)  the sale, assignment, transfer, sub-license or encumbrance of the Franchise Agreement 
or any right or interest of the undersigned in the Franchise Agreement; or  

(4) any default by Debtor under any other Franchise Agreement which Debtor has or will 
have with Spherion or its parents or affiliates; or  

(5) any default by Debtor under the Security Agreement executed by Debtor and Holder in 
conjunction with this transaction (the “Security Agreement”); or 
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(6) if Debtor’s obligations under this Note or the Security Agreement becomes subordinate 
in any manner. 

Upon the occurrence of a Default, the entire principal balance then remaining outstanding plus 
all accrued interest thereon shall become immediately due and payable.  In addition, the undersigned 
shall pay interest at an augmented rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum on the outstanding principal 
balance from the date of Default until all amounts due and owing pursuant to this Promissory Note are 
paid in full. 

No delay or failure on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any right or remedy hereunder or 
under any other agreement or document shall operate as a waiver thereof, and no single or partial 
exercise by the Holder or any such right or remedy shall preclude other or further exercise thereof or the 
exercise of any other right or remedy. 

Time is of the essence of this contract and, in the case that this Note is collected by or through an 
attorney at law, or under advice therefrom, the undersigned agrees to pay all costs of collection, including 
fifteen percent (15%) of the outstanding principal balance as attorneys’ fees. 

The undersigned shall be privileged to prepay this Note in whole or in part without penalty. 

Except as otherwise stated herein, the undersigned hereby waives demand, presentment for 
payment, notice of non-payment, protest and notice of protest. 

This Note is to be construed in all respects and enforced according to the laws of the State of 
Georgia.  Debtor shall pay all stamps, duties, taxes, penalties, fees and costs incurred due to the execution, 
delivery, taxation or recordation of this Note, if any.  

Given under my hand and seal, the day and year first above written. 

FRANCHISEE

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 



63552023v2 

E-4 
2024 Spherion FDD  

GUARANTY 

The undersigned, ____________________________________ ([collectively,] the “Guarantor(s)”) 
hereby, jointly and severally, unconditionally guarantee(s) all obligations of ________________________ 
contained in that certain Promissory Note dated ____________________ (the “Note”).  The Guarantor(s) 
further agree(s) that notice of nonpayment or nonperformance given to __________________________ 
shall be deemed notice to the Guarantor(s).  Action or suit may be brought against the Guarantor(s), or 
any of them, on this Note and carried to final judgment or completion with or without Holder naming or 
joining __________________________, or any of the other Guarantors, as a party to enforce any right of 
Holder against _________________________ under this Note, and without Holder having first proceeded 
against ____________________________, or any of the other Guarantors. 

Time is of the essence of this Guaranty, but no delay or failure on the part of Holder in the exercise 
of any right or remedy shall operate as a waiver thereof, and no single or partial exercise by Holder of any 
right or remedy shall preclude other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or 
remedy. 

No action of Holder permitted hereunder shall, in any way, impair or affect this Guaranty.  The 
Guarantor(s) shall not be released from the obligations under this Guaranty by reason of any increase in 
risk, or novation, amendment or compromise of, under or to this Note, which might result from the doing, 
or failure to do, of any action or forbearance by Holder under or with respect to this Note.  The 
Guarantor(s) in giving this Guaranty is (are) not relying upon any representation, whether written or oral, 
by or on behalf of Holder. 

This Guaranty shall be binding upon the Guarantor(s) and the heirs, estate and personal 
representatives of the Guarantor(s).  This Guaranty shall be governed by and construed under the laws of 
the State of Georgia. 

This Guaranty is executed by Guarantor(s) prior to, simultaneously with, or after the execution 
and delivery of this Note, and in order to induce Holder to execute the same.  This Guaranty may not be 
amended, terminated or modified except by an agreement in writing executed by the party sought to be 
charged therewith. 

WITNESS the hand and seal of the undersigned Guarantor(s). 

By:

     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

(Date)
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SECURITY AGREEMENT 
Start-Up Loan 

THIS SECURITY AGREEMENT, dated as of _______________, 20____ is by and between 
_________________________________, a ________________________ corporation (“Franchisee”) and 
Spherion Staffing, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Spherion”).  

WHEREAS, the Franchisee has been granted a franchise by Spherion, pursuant to that certain 
franchise agreement by and between Spherion and Franchisee dated as of ____________, 20____ (the 
“Franchise Agreement”), to operate the permanent placement and temporary personnel service franchise 
currently being operated by Franchisee in the Area (as such term is defined in the Franchise Agreement) 
(the “Franchised Business”);  

WHEREAS, Spherion is loaning money to Franchisee for certain initial expenses of the Franchised 
Business pursuant to a Promissory Note of even date herewith (the “Start-up Note” or the “Note”); 

WHEREAS, Franchisee owns and uses certain furniture, fixtures and equipment in its conduct of 
the Franchised Business; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, as security for such indebtedness (the “Indebtedness”), the Franchisee hereby 
grants and conveys to Spherion (hereinafter, together with any holder hereof, called “Holder”) a security 
interest in the going concern value of its franchise, the furniture, fixtures and equipment used in the 
Franchised Business, and all other assets of the Franchised Business, including any other intangible assets, 
such as any lease Franchisee may have for the Franchised Business, and the telephone numbers of the 
Franchised Business (collectively, the “Collateral”). 

1. Franchisee’s Covenants.   

Franchisee hereby warrants, covenants and agrees as follows:  

(a) Collateral and Franchised Business. 

(i) Franchisee shall keep the Collateral at the Franchised Business and shall not 
remove the Collateral without the prior written consent of Holder. 

(ii) Franchisee shall maintain the Collateral and any assets associated with the 
Franchised Business in good repair and condition at Franchisee’s own cost and 
expense. 

(iii) Franchisee shall pay, when due, all taxes and assessments relating to the 
Collateral and the Franchised Business. 

(iv) Franchisee shall not voluntarily sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of the 
Collateral, the Intangible Collateral or any interest therein and shall not otherwise 
do anything that might impair the Collateral or the Intangible Collateral as 
security hereunder. 
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(v) Franchisee shall, in addition to the foregoing, do all such other acts and things as 
Holder may from time to time reasonably request as necessary to establish and 
maintain a first priority perfected security interest in the Collateral. 

(b) Financial Statements.  Franchisee shall furnish to Spherion: 

(i) As soon as available, but not later than ninety (90) days after the end of each 
fiscal year, the balance sheet of Franchisee as at the end of such fiscal year and 
the related statements of income, and changes in financial position of Franchisee 
for such fiscal year, in each case setting forth corresponding numbers for the 
preceding fiscal year. 

(ii) As soon as available, but not later than ninety (90) days after filing, (A) 
Franchisee’s federal, state and any other tax returns relating to the franchised 
business, and (B) Franchisee’s individual federal, state and any other income tax 
returns. 

(iii) As soon as available, but not later than thirty (30) days after the end of each 
Quarter, or more frequently, as Holder may reasonably request from time-to-
time, (A) an unaudited balance sheet of Franchisee for such Quarter and the 
related statement of income for such Quarter Period and the fiscal year-to-date, 
all in reasonable detail and prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles applied on a consistent basis, and (B) an aged list of 
accounts receivable which ties to such balance sheet. 

(iv) Promptly after receipt thereof by Franchisee, a copy of any “management letter” 
received by Franchisee from its independent certified public accountants, if 
applicable. 

(v) From time to time, and with reasonable promptness, such other information or 
documents (financial or otherwise) with respect to the operations, business, 
affairs and financial condition of Franchisee as Holder may reasonably request; 
and 

(vi) As soon as practicable and in any event within three (3) business days after 
Franchisee obtains knowledge thereof, notice of (A) the occurrence of a Default 
(as defined in the Note), (B) any litigation, investigation or proceeding, or any 
material change in any litigation, investigation or proceeding, pending against or 
affecting Franchisee or any of its properties that would have a material adverse 
effect on the ability of Franchisee to perform its obligations under this Security 
Agreement or the Note or on the business, operations, properties or condition 
(financial or otherwise) of Franchisee, and (C) any other event that could 
reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the business, 
operations, properties or condition (financial or otherwise) of Franchisee.  

(c) Financial Covenants.  The Franchisee’s Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio should never be lower 
than 1.25 to 1. The Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio shall be determined by calculating how 
many times the last twelve months of EBITDA (earnings before interest taxes, 
depreciation and amortization) covers the last twelve months of Fixed Charges. Fixed 
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Charges include interest, principal payments, taxes, and capital expenses. In the event of 
any dispute in the computation of such items, Holder’s determination shall be controlling 
in the absence of audited Financial Statements of Franchisee required by Section 1(b)(i). 

2. Default and Remedies. 

(a) Franchisee shall be in default under this Security Agreement upon the occurrence of any 
of the following events or conditions: 

(i) Failure by Franchisee to make timely payments of any and all Indebtedness under 
the Start-up Note. 

(ii) Failure by Franchisee to comply with or perform any of the terms, covenant and 
conditions of this Security Agreement. 

(iii) Any default by Franchisee under any other Franchise, Franchise or other 
agreement with Spherion or an affiliate, including, without limitation, the Start-
up Note. 

(iv) If the Franchisee dies, becomes insolvent or the subject of bankruptcy or 
insolvency proceedings. 

(v) If any representation made to Holder or Spherion, or an affiliate, with respect to 
this Security Agreement or the Indebtedness is false in any material respect when 
made. 

(b) Upon such default, Holder may, at its option, declare the Indebtedness immediately due 
and payable and shall have all of the remedies of a “Secured Party” under the Uniform 
Commercial Code of Georgia (as amended and supplemented to date) (the “Code”), 
including, without limitation, the right and power to sell, or otherwise dispose of the 
Collateral  or any part thereof, and for that purpose may take immediate and exclusive 
possession of the Collateral  or any part thereof, and with or without judicial process, 
enter the Franchised Business or any other premises on which the Collateral  or any part 
thereof, may be situated and remove the Collateral  or part thereof, from such location 
without being deemed guilty of trespass. 

(c) Holder shall be entitled to hold, maintain, preserve and prepare the Collateral for sale. 

(d) The proceeds realized upon any such disposition, after deduction for the expenses of 
retaking, holding, preparing for sale, selling or the like, and the reasonable attorney’s fees 
and legal expenses incurred by Holder, shall be applied in satisfaction of the Indebtedness 
secured hereby.  Holder will account to the Franchisee for any surplus realized on such 
disposition and the Franchisee shall remain liable for any deficiency. 

(e) The remedies of Holder hereunder are cumulative in the exercise of anyone or more of 
the remedies provided for herein or under the Code and shall not be construed as a waiver 
of any of the other remedies of Holder so long as any part of the Franchisee’s 
Indebtedness remains unsatisfied. 
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3. Miscellaneous Terms and Conditions. 

(a) Notice given under this Security Agreement shall be sufficient if sufficient under the 
Franchise Agreement.  

(b) If the Franchisee defaults in the performance of any other provisions of this Security 
Agreement, Holder may perform for the Franchisee and any monies expended in doing 
so shall be chargeable with interest to the Franchisee and added to the Indebtedness. 

(c) The terms and provisions contained in this Security Agreement shall, unless the context 
otherwise requires, have the meaning and be construed as provided in the Code. 

(d) This Security Agreement may not be amended, modified or changed, nor shall any waiver 
of any provision hereof be effective, unless made in writing and signed by the party 
against which enforcement of any waiver, change, modification or discharge is sought. 

(e) This Security Agreement is to be construed in all respects and enforced according to the 
laws of the State of Georgia. 

(f) This Security Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which executed in one 
or more counterparts, including by facsimile signatures, each of which shall be deemed 
an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed as of the day and 
year first above written. 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

FRANCHISEE

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

(Print Title)



63552023v2 

F-1 
2024 Spherion FDD  

EXHIBIT F 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION LOAN DOCUMENTS 
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PROMISSORY NOTE  
Workers’ Compensation Loan 

$
County of _________________ 
State of ___________________ 

Date:  ______________, 20____ 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned (“Debtor”) promises to pay to Spherion Staffing, LLC 
(hereinafter, together with any holder hereof, called “Holder”), the principal sum of 
____________________________ and [_____]/100 Dollars ($____________________) with interest as 
set forth below.  The principal and interest shall be repaid, in full, over __________ months (____) 
pursuant to the amortization schedule attached as Exhibit “A” hereto (the “Table”).   

Such installment payments shall be made by Spherion’s deduction from Debtor’s monthly 
commission statement for the Franchise Agreement dated ________________ and will be reflected on 
Debtor’s monthly commission for the preceding calendar month.  The sole shareholders of Debtor have 
more than one commission statement and by their execution below they agree that Spherion, within its 
sole discretion, will be entitled to deduct such installment payments or any other payments due 
hereunder from any and all commission statements as it chooses.  If such commission deductions shall 
not be sufficient to pay any such installment when due, Spherion shall notify the Debtor undersigned, and 
the Debtor shall pay to Spherion within five (5) days of receipt of such notice the difference between the 
amount due and the amount deducted by Spherion from the commission(s).  The first monthly payment 
will be due and payable on the ______ day of ______________, 20_____, and each successive payment 
will be due and payable on the 1st day of the month until the principal and interest is paid in full, pursuant 
to the Table.    

The interest on the outstanding principal amount of this Note shall accrue from the date hereof 
at the rate of ____________ per annum [WSJ Prime plus _____ as of the date of the Note].   Any payment 
hereunder shall first be credited to interest computed as set forth above, and the remainder of such 
installment, if any, shall be credited to principal.   

Each of the following events shall be referred to as a “Default”: 

(1) the failure to pay when due any amount owed to the Holder, under this Note or 
otherwise; 

(2) termination of any or all of those certain Franchise Agreements by and between the 
undersigned, ________________________________, and Spherion Staffing, LLC (or its 
parents or affiliates) dated __________________, as amended and supplemented to date 
and under any prior agreements (the “Franchise Agreements”); or  

(3)  the sale, assignment, transfer, sub-license or encumbrance of the Franchise Agreements, 
or any of them, or any right or interest of the undersigned in the Franchise Agreements. 

Upon the occurrence of a Default, Debtor will be given written notice from Holder of such Default 
and be given ten (10) days in which to cure such Default.  If such Default remains uncured, the entire 
principal balance then remaining outstanding plus all accrued interest thereon shall become immediately 
due and payable and notwithstanding language to the contrary in the Franchise Agreements, the 
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Franchise Agreements may be terminated at the election of Spherion Staffing, LLC.  In addition, the 
undersigned shall pay interest at an augmented rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum on the 
outstanding principal balance from the date of Default until all amounts due and owing pursuant to this 
Promissory Note are paid in full. 

No delay or failure on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any right or remedy hereunder or 
under any other agreement or document shall operate as a waiver thereof, and no single or partial 
exercise by the Holder or any such right or remedy shall preclude other or further exercise thereof or the 
exercise of any other right or remedy. 

Time is of the essence of this contract and, in the case that this Promissory Note is collected by or 
through an attorney at law, or under advice therefrom, the undersigned agrees to pay all costs of 
collection, including fifteen percent (15%) of the outstanding principal balance as attorneys’ fees. 

The undersigned shall be privileged to prepay this Promissory Note in whole or in part without 
penalty. 

Except as otherwise stated herein, the undersigned hereby waives demand, presentment for 
payment, notice of non-payment, protest and notice of protest. 

This Promissory Note is to be construed in all respects and enforced according to the laws of the 
State of Georgia.  Debtor shall pay all stamps, duties, taxes, penalties, fees and costs incurred due to the 
execution, delivery, taxation or recordation of this Promissory Note, if any.  

Given under my hand and seal, the day and year first above written. 

FRANCHISEE

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 
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Exhibit A 
Amortization Schedule  
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GUARANTY 

The undersigned, ____________________________ ([collectively,] the “Guarantor(s)”) hereby, 
jointly and severally, unconditionally guarantee all obligations of ______________________, contained in 
that certain Promissory Note in the amount of $___________________ (the “Note”).  The Guarantor(s) 
further agree(s) that notice of nonpayment or nonperformance given to ________________________, 
shall be deemed notice to the Guarantor(s).  Action or suit may be brought against the Guarantor(s), or 
any of them, on this Note and carried to final judgment or completion with or without Holder naming or 
joining ______________________________, or any of the other Guarantors, as a party to enforce any 
right of Holder against _____________________________, under this Note, and without Holder having 
first proceeded against ________________________, or any of the other Guarantors. 

Time is of the essence of this Guaranty, but no delay or failure on the part of Holder in the exercise 
of any right or remedy shall operate as a waiver thereof, and no single or partial exercise by Holder of any 
right or remedy shall preclude other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right of 
remedy. 

No action of Holder permitted hereunder shall, in any way, impair or affect this Guaranty.  The 
Guarantor(s) shall not be released from the obligations under this Guaranty by reason of any increase in 
risk, or novation, amendment or compromise of, under or to this Note, which might result from the doing, 
or failure to do, of any action or forbearance by Holder under or with respect to this Note.  The 
Guarantor(s) in giving this Guaranty is (are) not relying upon any representation, whether written or oral, 
by or on behalf of Holder. 

This Guaranty shall be binding upon the Guarantor(s) and the heirs, estate and personal 
representatives of the Guarantor(s).  This Guaranty shall be governed by and construed under the laws of 
the State of Georgia. 

This Guaranty is executed by Guarantor(s) prior to, simultaneously with, or after the execution 
and delivery of this Note, and in order to induce Holder to execute the same.  This Guaranty may not be 
amended, terminated or modified except by an agreement in writing executed by the party sought to be 
charged therewith. 

WITNESS the hand and seal of the undersigned Guarantor(s). 

By:

     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

     (Date) 
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SECURITY AGREEMENT 
Workers’ Compensation Loan 

THIS SECURITY AGREEMENT, dated as of ________________, 20____ is by and between 
________________________________________, a _____________________ corporation (“Franchisee”) 
and Spherion Staffing, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Spherion”).  

WHEREAS, the Franchisee has been granted a franchise by Spherion, pursuant to that certain 
Franchise Agreement by and between Spherion and Franchisee dated as of ___________, 20____ (the 
“Franchise Agreement”), to operate the permanent placement and temporary personnel service 
Franchise currently being operated by Franchisee in the Area (as such term is defined in the Franchise 
Agreement) (the “Franchised Business”); 

WHEREAS, for Spherion Fiscal Year ____________, Franchisee owes to Spherion 
$_________________ for the cost of workers’ compensation insurance (the “Workers’ Compensation 
Debt”) for the Temporary Employees placed by Franchisee during Spherion Fiscal Year ________ pursuant 
to the Franchise Agreement and Spherion has agreed to finance that amount pursuant to a Promissory 
Note of even date herewith (the “Note”); 

WHEREAS, Franchisee owns and uses certain furniture, fixtures and equipment in its conduct of 
the Franchised Business; 

WHEREAS, to induce Spherion to finance Franchisee’s Workers’ Compensation Debt for 
_______________, Franchisee agrees to grant Spherion (hereinafter, together with any holder hereof, 
called “Holder”) a security interest; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, as security for such Workers’ Compensation Debt _________ (also referred 
to herein as the “Indebtedness”), the Franchisee hereby grants and conveys to Holder a security interest 
in the going concern value of its franchise, the furniture, fixtures and equipment used in the Franchised 
Business, and all other assets of the Franchised Business, including any other intangible assets, such as 
any lease Franchisee may have for the Franchised Business, and the telephone numbers of the Franchised 
Business (collectively, the “Collateral”). 

1. Franchisee’s Covenants.   

Franchisee hereby warrants, covenants and agrees as follows:  

(a) Collateral and Franchised Business. 

(i) Franchisee shall keep the Collateral at the Franchised Business and shall not 
remove the Collateral without the prior written consent of Holder. 

(ii) Franchisee shall maintain the Collateral and any assets associated with the 
Franchised Business in good repair and condition at Franchisee’s own cost and 
expense. 

(iii) Franchisee shall pay, when due, all taxes and assessments relating to the 
Collateral and the Franchised Business. 
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(iv) Franchisee shall not voluntarily sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of the 
Collateral or any interest therein and shall not otherwise do anything that might 
impair the Collateral or the Franchised Business as security hereunder. 

(v) Franchisee shall, in addition to the foregoing, do all such other acts and things as 
Holder may from time to time reasonably request as necessary to establish and 
maintain a first priority perfected security interest in the Collateral. 

(b) Financial Statements.  Franchisee shall furnish to Holder: 

(i) As soon as available, but not later than ninety (90) days after the end of each 
fiscal year, the balance sheet of Franchisee as at the end of such fiscal year and the related 
statements of income, and changes in financial position of Franchisee for such fiscal year, 
in each case setting forth corresponding numbers for the preceding fiscal year. 

(ii) As soon as available, but not later than ninety (90) days after filing, (A) 
Franchisee’s federal, state and any other tax returns relating to the Franchised business, 
and (B) Franchisee’s individual federal, state and any other income tax returns. 

(iii) As soon as available, but not later than thirty (30) days after the end of each 
quarter or more frequently, as Holder may reasonably request from time-to-time, (A) an 
unaudited balance sheet of Franchisee for such month and the related statement of 
income for such month and the fiscal year-to-date, all in reasonable detail and prepared 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis, 
and (B) an aged list of accounts receivable which ties to such balance sheet. 

(iv) Promptly after receipt thereof by Franchisee, a copy of any “management letter” 
received by Franchisee from its independent certified public accountants, if applicable. 

(v) From time to time, and with reasonable promptness, such other information or 
documents (financial or otherwise) with respect to the operations, business, affairs and 
financial condition of Franchisee as Holder may reasonably request; and 

(vi) As soon as practicable and in any event within three (3) business days after 
Franchisee obtains knowledge thereof, notice of (A) the occurrence of a Default (as 
defined in the Note), (B) any litigation, investigation or proceeding, or any material 
change in any litigation, investigation or proceeding, pending against or affecting 
Franchisee or any of its properties that would have a material adverse effect on the ability 
of Franchisee to perform its obligations under this Security Agreement or the Note or on 
the business, operations, properties or condition (financial or otherwise) of Franchisee, 
and (C) any other event that could reasonably be expected to materially and adversely 
affect the business, operations, properties or condition (financial or otherwise) of 
Franchisee. 

(c) Financial Covenants.  The Franchisee’s Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio should never be lower 
than 1.25 to 1.  The Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio shall be determined by calculating how many 
times the last twelve months of EBITDA (earnings before interest taxes, depreciation and 
amortization) covers the last twelve months of Fixed Charges.  Fixed Charges include interest, 
principal payments, taxes, and capital expenses. In the event of any dispute in the computation 
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of such items, Holder’s determination shall be controlling in the absence of audited Financial 
Statements of Franchisee required by Section 1(b)(i). 

2. Default and Remedies. 

(a) Franchisee shall be in default under this Security Agreement upon the occurrence of any 
of the following events or conditions: 

(b) Failure by Franchisee to make timely payments of any and all Indebtedness under 
the Note. 

(c) Failure by Franchisee to comply with or perform any of the terms, covenant and 
conditions of this Security Agreement. 

(d)  Any default by Franchisee under any other Franchise, Franchise or other 
agreement with Spherion or an affiliate. 

(e) If the Franchisee dies, becomes insolvent or the subject of bankruptcy or 
insolvency proceedings. 

(d)  If any representation made to Holder or Spherion, or an affiliate, with respect to 
this Security Agreement or the Indebtedness is false in any material respect when made. 

(b) Upon such default, Holder may, at its option, declare the Indebtedness immediately due 
and payable and shall have all of the remedies of a “Secured Party” under the Uniform Commercial 
Code of Georgia (as amended and supplemented to date) (the “Code”), including, without 
limitation, the right and power to sell, or otherwise dispose of the Collateral and the Franchised 
Business or any part thereof, and for that purpose may take immediate and exclusive possession 
of the Collateral and the Franchised Business, or any part thereof, and with or without judicial 
process, enter the Franchised Business or any other premises on which the Collateral, or any part 
thereof, may be situated and remove the Collateral, or part thereof, from such location without 
being deemed guilty of trespass. 

(c)  Holder shall be entitled to hold, maintain, preserve and prepare the Collateral and the 
assets related to the Franchised Business for sale. 

(d) The proceeds realized upon any such disposition, after deduction for the expenses of 
retaking, holding, preparing for sale, selling or the like, and the reasonable attorney’s fees and 
legal expenses incurred by Holder, shall be applied in satisfaction of the Indebtedness secured 
hereby.  Holder will account to the Franchisee for any surplus realized on such disposition and the 
Franchisee shall remain liable for any deficiency. 

(b) The remedies of Holder hereunder are cumulative in the exercise of anyone or more of 
the remedies provided for herein or under the Code and shall not be construed as a waiver of any 
of the other remedies of Holder so long as any part of the Franchisee’s Indebtedness remains 
unsatisfied. 
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3. Miscellaneous Terms and Conditions. 

(a) Notice given under this Security Agreement shall be sufficient if sufficient under the 
Franchise Agreement.  

(b) If the Franchisee defaults in the performance of any other provisions of this Security 
Agreement, Holder may perform for the Franchisee and any monies expended in doing so shall 
be chargeable with interest to the Franchisee and added to the Indebtedness. 

(c) The terms and provisions contained in this Security Agreement shall, unless the context 
otherwise requires, have the meaning and be construed as provided in the Code. 

(d) This Security Agreement may not be amended, modified or changed, nor shall any waiver 
of any provision hereof be effective, unless made in writing and signed by the party against which 
enforcement of any waiver, change, modification or discharge is sought. 

(e) This Security Agreement is to be construed in all respects and enforced according to the 
laws of the State of Georgia. 

(f) This Security Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which executed in one 
or more counterparts, including by facsimile signatures, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed as of the day and 
year first above written. 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

FRANCHISEE

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

(Print Title)
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EXHIBIT G 
CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT  
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CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is by and between Spherion Staffing, LLC (“Spherion”) and 
_____________________________________________________ (the “Buyer”).  In connection with the 
consideration of a possible transaction (the “Transaction”), the parties hereto are prepared to disclose to 
each other proprietary information that must remain confidential.  In consideration of receiving this 
information, each party agrees to the following: 

1. All information furnished, including but not limited to, the parties’ names; the possibility of the 
Transaction, and; any information regarding the parties’ business, financial condition, customer 
lists, manuals, operating documents, marketing strategies, names of employees, compensation 
amounts and formulas, billing amounts, operations, and prospects; shall be deemed “Confidential 
Information.” 

2. Confidential Information does not include information which (i) is already in a party’s possession 
on a non-confidential basis; (ii) becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of 
disclosure by the other party or its employees, officers, directors, principals, lenders, advisors, 
representatives, agents, parents and/or affiliates (collectively “Representatives”); or (iii) becomes 
available to a party on a non-confidential basis from a source other than the other party or its 
Representatives. 

3. Each party agrees that it will not use the other party’s Confidential Information for any purpose 
other than for evaluating the Transaction.  Each party agrees that it will not use the other party’s 
Confidential Information for its own commercial advantage or in any manner that would be 
detrimental to the other party.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing or required by law (with prior 
notice being given to the other party where practicable), neither party will disclose or allow 
disclosure to others of any Confidential Information; provided, however, that each party may 
disclose the Confidential Information to its Representatives who require access to such 
information to evaluate the Transaction.  Each party will direct its Representatives to treat the 
information as confidential. 

4. If the Transaction will not be pursued, each party will return or destroy all Confidential 
Information in its possession, including any copies, records, notes, saved data (in any form) or 
other materials containing such Confidential Information. 

5. The parties recognize and acknowledge the competitive value and proprietary nature of the 
Confidential Information and that damage could result to the other party if any of the Confidential 
Information is disclosed to a third party.  Therefore, the parties agree that the non-breaching 
party will be entitled to equitable relief, including injunction, in the event of a breach of this 
Agreement. Moreover, the parties agrees that the breaching party shall pay all costs and 
expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by the non-breaching in enforcing this 
Agreement. 

6. Each party understands that the other party does not guarantee, represent or warrant the 
accuracy or completeness of the Confidential Information.  Each party acknowledges its 
responsibility to perform a due diligence review at its cost and expense prior to any Transaction. 

7. The Buyer is aware and will advise its Representatives that the United States securities laws 
prohibit the purchase or sale of securities based on any material, nonpublic information received 
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from Spherion.  The securities laws also prohibit the communication of such information to any 
other person, where it is reasonably foreseeable that the person is likely to purchase or sell such 
securities. 

8. Each party agrees that unless and until a definitive agreement between Spherion and the Buyer 
with respect to a Transaction has been executed and delivered, neither Spherion nor the Buyer is 
under any legal obligation with respect to such Transaction.   This Agreement shall be governed 
by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of Georgia.  Each party 
hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of any state or federal 
court sitting in Fulton County, Georgia over any suit, action or proceeding arising out or relating 
to this Agreement, waives any objection to the laying of venue in any such court and waives any 
claim that any such suit, action or proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an 
inconvenient forum. 

9. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed to 
be an original of this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to 
constitute one and the same agreement. 

Accepted and agreed to by:

Spherion Staffing, LLC

By:  
Rebecca Rogers Tijerino 
Division President 
Spherion Staffing, LLC 

     (Date) 

[Buyer]

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

     (Date) 
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EXHIBIT H 
ASSIGNMENT OF SPHERION FRANCHISE AGREEMENT  
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ASSIGNMENT OF SPHERION FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

Assignor(s) hereby assign(s) to Assignee, effective this day, all rights, title and interest in and to 
that certain Franchise Agreement between Assignor(s) and SPHERION STAFFING, LLC, dated 
___________________, 20_____, (the “Franchise Agreement”), and by the acceptance hereof Assignee 
agrees to perform all of the covenants and conditions of the Franchise Agreement and all amendments 
thereto.  Assignor(s) acknowledge(s) and agree(s) that he/she/they remain(s) bound by and subject to 
each of the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement, pursuant to Section 20 thereof. 

Date:  

ASSIGNOR(S):  

(Signature) 

(Signature) 

ACCEPTED (ASSIGNEE):

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

APPROVED:  

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 
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EXHIBIT I 
AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE 
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AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE 

This Agreement and General Release is made effective as of _______________, 20_____, by and 
between Spherion Staffing, LLC (“Company”), and ____________________________________________ 
(“Individual Franchisee”) and __________________________________________________ (“Franchise 
Entity”), with respect to the Franchise Agreement dated __________________ (as amended, 
supplemented and assigned, the “Franchise Agreement”). 

WHEREAS, Individual Franchisee entered into an Assignment of Spherion Franchise Agreement 
dated _________________, wherein all right, title, and interest the Franchise Agreement was assigned to 
Franchise Entity but pursuant to which Individual Franchisee remained bound by and subject to each of 
the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement, pursuant to Section 20 thereof; 

WHEREAS, Individual Franchisee and Franchise Entity wish to _______________________ and a 
condition of such action is the requirement under the Franchise Agreement that they execute a General 
release in favor of Franchisor and others,  

NOW, THEREFORE, for in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, and 
intending to be legally bound, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1.  In consideration of Company’s __________________________________, Individual Franchisee 
together with his/her heirs, and assigns, successors and representatives and Franchisee’s Entity 
along with its parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates and their respective directors, officers, 
shareholders, partners, members, employees and agents (collectively, the “Releasing Parties”), 
each hereby jointly and severally release, remise, acquit, and forever discharge Company and 
each and all of Company’s directors, officers, shareholders, employees, agents, and attorneys, 
and Company’s parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates and their respective directors, officers, 
shareholders, partners, members, employees, agents, and attorneys, and the predecessors, 
successors, heirs, and assigns of any and all of them (collectively, the “Parties Released”), from 
and against any and all claims, demands, debts, expenses, costs, rights, actions, causes of action, 
loss, losses, damage, damages, liability, and liabilities whatsoever, of any nature or kind, known 
or unknown, contingent or fixed, suspected or unsuspected, whether in tort, in contract, at law, 
in equity, or otherwise, arising out of, asserted in, assertable in, or in any way related to (i) the 
Franchise Agreement, (ii) any and all other agreements between the Parties Released and any 
Releasing Parties, and (iii) the business relationship between the Releasing Parties and any of the 
Parties Released, or any of them; including without limitation the registration, offer, and sale of 
the franchise granted under the Franchise Agreement; provided, however, that nothing contained 
herein shall operate to release Company from any current obligation to pay to Franchisee 
commissions which are currently due under the Franchise Agreement.  In the event any Releasing 
Party raises or asserts any claim, demand, right, action, or cause of action described in this Section 
3 of this Amendment, or alleges any debt, expense, cost, loss, losses, damage, damages, liability, 
or liabilities described in this Section 3 of this Amendment, this Section 3 shall be a complete and 
conclusive defense thereto. 

2. [California only]  Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California provides as follows:  A 
GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR 
SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF 
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KNOWN BY HIM OR HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE 
DEBTOR.  The Releasing Parties understand that Section 1542 gives him/her/it the right not to 
release existing claims of which that party is not now aware, unless he/she/it voluntarily chooses 
to waive this right.  Having been so apprised, the Releasing Parties nevertheless hereby voluntarily 
elect to and do waive the rights described in Section 1542, and elects to assume all risks for claims 
that now exist in his/her/its favor, known or unknown. 

3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement.  This Agreement 
shall be construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly against Company for having 
drafted it.  It is mutually agreed that no change or erasure of any printed portion of this 
Agreement, except the filling in of specified blanks and lines, shall be valid or binding upon either 
party hereto unless initialed by both parties.  It is understood that this Agreement supersedes any 
and all prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreements and understandings between the 
parties relating to the subject matter hereof and constitutes the entire agreement of the parties 
with respect to such subject matter. 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Agreement and General Release 
as of the effective date stated above. 

FRANCHISE ENTITY:

By:  
(Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

INDIVIDUAL FRANCHISEE: 

By:  
(Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By:  
(Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 



63552023v2 

J-1 
2024 Spherion FDD  

EXHIBIT J 
TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR MANUAL 



63552023v2 

J-2 
2024 Spherion FDD  

Spherion Manual 

Table of Contents 

Section 1: Introduction

1. Welcome  

a. Mission and Vision 

b. Core Values 

c. Behaviors 

2. Timeline to Open (8-week Checklist) 

Section 2:  Establishing the Business

1. Selecting Your Business Type 

2. Business Name 

3. Federal Tax ID Number 

4. Licenses/Permits 

5. Bank Accounts 

6. Insurance Requirements 

7. Taxes  

Section 3:  Office Space

1. Site Selection 

a. Location Guidelines 

b. Office Space Layout  

c. Office Space Build-out 

d. Furnishings and Decor 

i. Standard packages 

e. Lease  

i. Negotiations 

ii. Assignment Language 

iii. Execution 

2. Signage 

3. Utilities 

Section 4:  Equipment and Services

1. Network  

2. Hardware and Software 

a. Required Equipment 

b. Equipment Installation 
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c. Standard Software

d. Passwords 

e. Security Policy 

3. Telephone System 

a. Voicemail 

b. eFax 

4. Printer 

5. Copier 

6. Ordering Equipment and Supplies 

Section 5:  Hiring Internal Staff

1. Office Organization Structure 

2. Roles, Responsibilities and Outcomes 

3. Attraction and Selection 

4. Compensation and Benefits 

5. Expectation Setting and Activity Measurement 

6. New Hire Training 

7. Performance Development 

8. Incentives and Perks 

9. Establishing Be Spherion Culture 

10. On-boarding/Requesting Access 

Section 6:  Training Activities

1. New Owner Training Calendar 

a. Spherion Overview 

b. Sales Intelligence 

c. Sales Intelligence 

d. Staffing Connect 

e. Selling the Spherion Way 

f. Art of Leadership and Development 

g. Service Excellence 

h. IdealMatch Clerical 

i. IdealMatch Industrial 

j. IdealMatch Finance & Accounting 

k. IdealMatch IT 

2. Training Branch Visit 

a. Licensee focus 
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b. Operations/Recruiting focus

c. Sales focus 

Section 7:  Pre-Opening Activities

1. Opening Materials and Supplies 

a. Stationery, Business Forms 

2. Licensee Office Setup 

3. Employee Desk Setup 

4. Establish Office Hours 

5. Job Boards 

6. Territory Map 

7. Drug Testing 

8. Marketing Activities 

9. Recruiting Activities 

Section 8:  Operational Procedures and Support

1. Spherion SOPs & Service Excellence 

2. CUE satisfaction surveys 

3. Spherion LINK & Google Tools 

4. Recruiting 

5. Application & Onboarding Process (State Specific) 

6. Orientations 

7. Compliance 

8. Staffing Connect (Strategic Training) 

9. Payroll and Billing 

10. Unemployment 

11. Worker's Comp & Unemployment 

12. Reporting 

13. Training and Development Resources 

14. Support Center and IT Service Desk 

Section 9:  Sales, Marketing and Business Planning Support

1. Performance management - by role, the metrics and milestones, outcome 

2. Office cadence 

3. Sales call practice - inside, outside 

4. Making live sales calls - inside, outside 

5. Pricing in practice 
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Section 10:  Grand Opening/Open House

1. Ribbon Cutting 

Section 11:  Administrative Procedures

1. Franchise Reporting and Procedures 

a. Quarterly P&Ls 

2. Handling Customer Complaints 

3. Workplace Violence Reporting Procedures 

Section 12:  Standards

1. Logo Specifications 

2. Email Signature Standard 

3. Standard Phone Protocol 

4. Spherion Style Guide 

Section 13:  Daily Operations

1. Service Excellence/CUE 

2. Orders/Assignments 

3. Application and On-Boarding 

4. Orientation 

5. Recruiting 

6. Unemployment 

7. Risk/Safety 

8. Time Entry 

9. Payroll 

10. Reporting 

11. Compliance 

12. Marketing/PR 

a. Social Presence 

b. Local Website 

c. Materials 

Preferred Vendor Listing

Glossary of Terms and Definitions

Forms
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EXHIBIT K 
LIST OF FRANCHISEES  
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LIST OF FRANCHISEES 

As of January 1, 2023 

SPHERION FRANCHISEES 

OWNER NAME OFFICE ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE TELEPHONE 

KIDD, SHERRY 
(passed away in 2024) 

240 OLD TOWNE ROAD BIRMINGHAM ALABAMA 35216 (205) 822-0084 

CHALMERS, MICHAEL 
7169 HIGHWAY 72 
WEST, SUITE D 

MADISON ALABAMA 35758 (256) 881-0993 

WILLIAMS, CHERYL 12 S. FLORIDA STREET MOBILE ALABAMA 36606 (251) 476-9997 

CHALMERS, MICHAEL 4165 CARMICHAEL ROAD MONTGOMERY ALABAMA 36106 (334) 859-1104 

CHALMERS, MICHAEL 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

TALLASSEE ALABAMA 36078 (334) 859-1104 

ARAUJO, CARLOS & LUIS 
301 EAST BETHANY HOME 
ROAD, SUITE C-180 

PHOENIX ARIZONA 85012 (480) 697-4000 

PARKER, TYE, PAULA & PHIL 
1401 SE WALTON BLVD, 
SUITE 215 

BENTONVILLE ARKANSAS 72712 (479) 553-9292 

ANAND, PRABHU & KUMAR, 
GAURAV 

11500 RODNEY PARHAM 
ROAD, SUITE 19 

LITTLE ROCK ARKANSAS 72212 (501) 312-8367 

LYTLE, ROGER, MAUREEN & 
BRIAN 

1074 EAST AVENUE, 
SUITE M 

CHICO CALIFORNIA 95926 (530) 899-1300 

GATES, GLENNA 
2006 N. FINE AVENUE, 
SUITE 101 

FRESNO CALIFORNIA 93727 (559) 251-4040 

GATES, GLENNA 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

FRESNO CALIFORNIA 93725 (559) 251-4040 

MILLER, TRISH 
141 N. FAIRVIEW 
AVENUE 

GOLETA CALIFORNIA 93117 (805) 683-1600 

FORREST, GREG 2161 E. VENTURA BLVD. OXNARD CALIFORNIA 93036 (805) 973-0950 

GONZALEZ, JEFF 
(not in system as of 2024) 

78370 HWY 111, SUITE 
200 

LA QUINTA CALIFORNIA 92253 (760) 568-3433 

OYEYEMI, ADE 
3530 ATLANTIC AVE, 
SUITE 100 

LONG BEACH CALIFORNIA 90807 (562) 333-2022 

LYTLE, ROGER, MAUREEN & 
BRIAN 

2921 E CENTER STREET ANDERSON CALIFORNIA 90607 (530) 222-3434 

MILLER, TRISH 
1191 NORTH MAIN 
STREET #B 

SALINAS CALIFORNIA 93906 (831) 444-6000 

BELTZ, JASON 
3031 WEST MARCH 
LANE, SUITE 207-W 

STOCKTON CALIFORNIA 92519 (209) 465-1500 

GONZALEZ, JEFF 
(not in system as of 2024) 

41593 WINCHESTER 
ROAD, SUITE 208 

TEMECULA CALIFORNIA 92590 (951) 375-4578 

GATES, GLENNA 
3449 SOUTH DEMAREE, 
SUITE C 

VISALIA CALIFORNIA 93277 (559) 627-4040 

KOREGELOS, LISA 19 COURT ST WOODLAND CALIFORNIA 95695 (530) 662-8607 

AVILA, TONY & FABIOLA 145 SOUTH MAIN STREET SAN JOSE CALIFORNIA 95035 (669) 299-2040 

CLARSON, JOHN & JAEHEE 
2020 N ACADEMY BLVD, 
SUITE 236 

COLORADO SPRINGS COLORADO 80917 (719) 284-7220 

STONE, JULIANNA 
6105 S MAIN STREET, 
SUITE 200 

AURORA COLORADO 80016 (720) 812-5525 

SILVA, KRISTI & NELSON 214 B PROVIDENCE ROAD BROOKLYN CONNECTICUT 6234 (860) 786-1093 

NICHOLS, TERI  
33 PONCE DE LEON 
BOULEVARD 

BROOKSVILLE FLORIDA 34601 (352) 796-6000 

NICHOLS, TERI  
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

BROOKSVILLE FLORIDA 34601 
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OWNER NAME OFFICE ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE TELEPHONE 

ESTESS, JULIE & ROBINSON, 
TIFFANY 

CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

CANTONMENT FLORIDA 32533 

MILLER, DAVID 
125000 WORLD PLAZA 
LANE, BLDG 40, SUITES 
1 & 2 

FORT MYERS FLORIDA 33907 (239) 939-9999 

BUCHANAN, CAROLYNN 
4740 NW 39TH PLACE, 
SUITE A 

GAINESVILLE FLORIDA 32606 (352) 728-8787 

KOPP, MARME 25 N. MARKET STREET JACKSONVILLE FLORIDA 32202 (904) 356-0000 

KOPP, MARME 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

JACKSONVILLE FLORIDA 32218 (904) 356-0000 

MILLER, DAVID 
1925 E. EDGEWOOD DR, 
SUITE 102 

LAKELAND FLORIDA 33803 (863) 667-0800 

MILLER, DAVID 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

LAKELAND FLORIDA 33801 

MILLER, DAVID 
1710 CITRUS 
BOULEVARD, SUITES 1 
& 2 

LEESBURG FLORIDA 34748 (352) 728-8787 

MILLER, DAVID 
4964 TAMIAMI TRAIL 
NORTH 

NAPLES FLORIDA 34103 (239) 494-3044 

MILLER, DAVID  
500 SOUTHWEST 10TH 
STREET, SUITE 309 

OCALA FLORIDA 34471 (352) 622-5273 

KIRKMAN, JOHN & KAYRENE     
1450 NORTH US 
HIGHWAY 1, SUITE 200 

ORMOND BEACH FLORIDA 32174 (386) 673-0443 

ESTESS, JULIE & ROBINSON, 
TIFFANY 

9013 UNIVERSITY 
PKWY, UNIT A 

PENSACOLA FLORIDA 32514 (850) 477-9915 

KOLLEDA, RICHARD & 
SHERRY 

240 NW PEACOCK 
BOULEVARD, SUITE 104 

PORT ST. LUCIE FLORIDA 34986 (772) 336-9545 

KIRKMAN, JOHN & KAYRENE  
3100 US HWY 1 SOUTH, 
SUITE 4A 

SAINT AUGUSTINE FLORIDA 32086 (904) 808-1500 

MILLER, DAVID 
8454 N LOCKWOOD 
RIDGE RD 

SARASOTA FLORIDA 34243 (941) 351-0656 

KOLLEDA, RICH & SHERRY 
2627 WEST EAU GALLIE 
BLVD, SUITE 104 

MELBOURNE FLORIDA 32935 (321) 255-0222 

WALKER, EBONY & 
VALSAINT, FRITZ 

5495 OLD NATIONAL 
HIGHWAY, SUITE A 6-9, 
ROOM 301 

ATLANTA GEORGIA 30349 (470) 552-4611 

ABDULLATIF, AYSHA & 
NAMMARI, NASSER 

4511 CHAMBLEE-
DUNWOODY ROAD, 
SUITE A-4 

ATLANTA GEORGIA 30338 (678) 695-4004 

CHALMERS, MICHAEL 
311 HIGHWAY 49 
NORTH, SUITE 80 

BYRON GEORGIA 31008 (478) 956-1700 

CHALMERS, MICHAEL 
6440 W HAMILTON 
PARK DRIVE, SUITE F 

COLUMBUS GEORGIA 31909 (706) 596-8344 

SWARTS, ANGELA 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

EVANS GEORGIA 30809 (706) 868-0911 

CHALMERS, MICHAEL 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

JEFFERSONVILLE GEORGIA 31004 (256) 881-0993

CHALMERS, MICHAEL 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

LAGRANGE GEORGIA 30241 (256) 881-0993

CHALMERS, MICHAEL 
11 N LAFAYETTE 
SQUARE 

LAGRANGE GEORGIA 30240 (706) 956-5393 

CHALMERS, MICHAEL 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

PERRY GEORGIA 31069 (256) 881-0993

SWARTS, ANGELA 210 PITCARIN WAY AUGUSTA GEORGIA 30909 (706) 868-0911 

REECE, STACEY 200 PRIOR STREET SE GAINESVILLE GEORGIA 30501 (770) 531-7900 
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OWNER NAME OFFICE ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE TELEPHONE 

ZARBOCK, RON & JENNIFER   
3999 E. OVERLAND 
ROAD 

MERIDIAN IDAHO 83642 (208) 514-2044 

SOMERS, CINDY 
2302 E OAKLAND AVE 
#8 

BLOOMINGTON ILLINOIS 61701 (309) 661-1020 

SOMERS, CINDY 1358 N. OAKLAND AVE. DECATUR ILLINOIS 62526 (217) 425-4070 

DESHMUKH, GIRISH 
2860 S RIVER ROAD, 
SUITE 150 

DES PLAINES ILLINOIS 60018 (847) 904-6606 

SOMERS, CINDY 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE  
LOCATION 

RANTOUL ILLINOIS 61866 

KASSNER, AUSTIN  
5411 E. STATE ST. SUITE 
3 

ROCKFORD ILLINOIS 61108 (815) 397-5075 

SOMERS, CINDY 
1805 WOODFIELD 
DRIVE 

SAVOY ILLINOIS 61874 (217) 359-4488 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

421 S. 13TH STREET DECATUR INDIANA 46733 (260) 706-5050 

OVERMYER, SCOTT & ERIC 111-A EASY SHOPPING PL ELKHART INDIANA 46516 (574) 971-4690 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

217 W WAYNE STREET FORT WAYNE INDIANA 46802 (260) 496-9900 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

FORT WAYNE INDIANA 46808 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH & WICKER, 
BROCK 

6200 EAST HIGHWAY 
62, BUILDING 2501, 
SUITE 500 

JEFFERSONVILLE INDIANA 47130 (812) 289-0566 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

111 S MERIDIAN STREET      LEBANON INDIANA 46052 (260) 466-2898 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

4625 SOUTH EMERSON 
AVENUE, SUITE G & H 

INDIANAPOLIS INDIANA 46203 (317) 215-7450 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

8660 PURDUE ROAD, 
SUITE 100 

INDIANAPOLIS INDIANA 46268 (317) 870-5555 

OVERMYER, SCOTT & ERIC 
3310 HICKORY ROAD, 
STE. B3 

MISHAWAKA INDIANA 46545 (574) 282-2761 

SCHWARTZ, JANEL 
3310 W FOX RIDGE 
LANE, SUITE C 

MUNCIE INDIANA 47304 (765) 288-3990 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

160 PLAINFIELD 
VILLAGE DRIVE, SUITE 
157      

PLAINFIELD INDIANA 46168 (317) 843-2512 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

620 S DETROIT STREET WARSAW INDIANA 46580 (260) 496-9950 

KRANER, BRIAN & LYNN 
7413 US ROUTE 42, 
SUITE 4 

FLORENCE KENTUCKY 41042 (859) 201-3588 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH & WICKER, 
BROCK 

1221 S HURSTBOURNE 
PKWY 

LOUISVILLE KENTUCKY 40223 (502) 212-0101 

ZAUNBRECHER, THOMAS & 
MICHAEL 

13702 COURSEY 
BOULEVARD, #6-C 

BATON ROUGE LOUISIANA 70817 (225) 925-5686 

ZAUNBRECHER, THOMAS & 
MICHAEL 

2701 JOHNSTON STREET LAFAYETTE LOUISIANA 70503 (337) 269-0508 

CHAMPAGNE, GENA 
4300 SOUTH I-10 
SERVICE ROAD W., 
SUITE 115 

METAIRIE LOUISIANA 70001 (504) 455-6565 

ZAUNBRECHER, THOMAS & 
MICHAEL 

2015 MACARTHUR 
DRIVE, BLDG 3 

ALEXANDRIA LOUISIANA 71301-3776 (318) 445-9000 
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OWNER NAME OFFICE ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE TELEPHONE 

GUY, NANCY 
3101 CYPRESS STREET, 
SUITES 4 & 5 

WEST MONROE LOUISIANA 71291 (318) 340-0005 

FEASTER, TAMMY 1195 N. EAST STREET FREDERICK MARYLAND 21701 (301) 694-7700 

FEASTER, TAMMY 
120 EAST OAK RIDGE 
DRIVE, SUITE 700 

HAGERSTOWN MARYLAND 21740 (301) 739-6900 

PALAIA, BRIAN 
48 SWORD ST, SUITE 
207 

AUBURN MASSACHUSETTS 01501 (508) 266-8353 

ENROTH, KAREN 
365 FAUNCE CORNER 
ROAD, SECOND FLOOR 

NORTH DARTMOUTH MASSACHUSETTS 02747 (508) 991-8170 

SILVA, KRISTI 51 PARK AVENUE, SUITE 7 W SPRINGFIELD MASSACHUSETTS 01089 (413) 781-4120 

DOMEYER, ERIN 
15164 HELMER ROAD, 
SUITE A 

BATTLE CREEK MICHIGAN 49015 (269) 968-0303 

DOMEYER, ERIN 
300 NORTH CLIPPERT 
STREET, SUITE 10 

LANSING MICHIGAN 48912 (517) 999-9060 

WEAVER, KATHY 
(transferred in 2024) 

324 W. WACKERLY MIDLAND MICHIGAN 48640 (989) 839-9899 

WEAVER, KATHY 
(transferred in 2024) 

CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

MIDLAND MICHIGAN 48642 

MILLER, ANN 
11 EAST SUPERIOR 
STREET, SUITE 150 

DULUTH MINNESOTA 55802 (218) 722-8003 

BRADY, LAURA 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

OWATONNA MINNESOTA 55060 

BERG, JILL & FUNK, JOHN & 
WITZEL, KAREN 

155 2ND AVE SW, SUITE 
115 

PERHAM MINNESOTA 56573 (218) 346-3801 

MILLER, ANN 
504 S RIVERFRONT 
DRIVE 

MANKATO MINNESOTA 56001 (507) 432-2430 

BRADY, LAURA 
134 EAST VINE STREET, 
SUITE 1 

OWATONNA MINNESOTA 55060 (507) 451-3400 

VANG, MAI 
1611 COUNTY ROAD B, 
SUITE 108 

ROSEVILLE MINNESOTA 55113 (612) 509-5858 

GLOVER, GERRI 
2075 CENTRAL AVENUE  
#D 

BILLINGS MONTANA 59102 (406) 655-9200 

WALLACE, JIMMY 
1015 SOUTH MONTANA 
STREET 

BUTTE MONTANA 59701 (406) 782-1130 

DEMARS, NIKKI & CARROLL 
2452 US HIGHWAY 93 
SOUTH 

KALISPELL MONTANA 59901 (406) 407-7300 

LYTLE, ROGER, MAUREEN & 
BRIAN 

555 DOUBLE EAGLE CT., 
SUITE 1100 

RENO NEVADA 89521 (775) 829-8367 

RAMIREZ, DELTA & GABRIEL 
1011 ROUTE 22 WEST, 
SUITE 103 

BRIDGEWATER NEW JERSEY 08807 (908) 725-6600 

RAMIREZ, DELTA & GABRIEL 
37 EASTON AVE, SUITE 
200 

NEW BRUNSWICK NEW JERSEY 08901 (609) 734-0003 

RAMIREZ, DELTA & GABRIEL 
106 APPLE STREET, 
SUITE 100 

TINTON FALLS NEW JERSEY 07724 (732) 224-1166 

GAFFNEY-KEEBLER, MOLLY 
856 SWEETEN CREEK 
ROAD, UNIT H 

ASHEVILLE NORTH CAROLINA 28803 (828) 348-0390 

PAVONA, DENISE & LILLEY, 
DAISY 

8398 SIX FORKS ROAD, 
SUITE 104 

RALEIGH NORTH CAROLINA 27615 (919) 873-5588 

BERG, JILL & FUNK, JOHN & 
WITZEL, KAREN 

1830 E. CENTURY 
AVENUE, SUITE 2 

BISMARCK NORTH DAKOTA 58503 (701) 250-1111 

BERG, JILL & FUNK, JOHN & 
WITZEL, KAREN 

2730 7TH AVENUE S. FARGO NORTH DAKOTA 58103 (701) 298-8300 

KRANER, BRIAN &  LYNN 11459 PRINCETON PIKE CINCINNATI OHIO 45246 (513) 771-4455 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

1216 S MAIN STREET BELLEFONTAINE OHIO 43311 (937) 565-4289 
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PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

8569 N DIXIE DRIVE DAYTON OHIO 45414 (937) 228-5627 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

1730 E MELROSE 
AVENUE, SUITE A 

FINDLAY OHIO 45840 (567) 208-5471 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

LIMA OHIO 45801 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

127 N ELIZABETH ST LIMA OHIO 45801 (419) 227-0113 

PENTENBURG, THOMAS & 
ELIZABETH 

108 W POPLAR ST SIDNEY OHIO 45365 937-419-4200 

WHITAKER, ALI & RYAN 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

PRYOR OKLAHOMA 74361 

WHITAKER, ALI & RYAN 
8596 EAST 101ST

STREET, SUITE C 
TULSA OKLAHOMA 74133 (918) 971-5900 

FRASSINELLI, PHIL C, PHIL L 
& MARLENE 

CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

ALBURTIS PENNSYLVANIA 18011 

FRASSINELLI, PHIL C, PHIL L 
& MARLENE 

2001 N FRONT STREET, 
SUITE 110 

HARRISBURG PENNSYLVANIA 17102 (717) 651-1200 

FRASSINELLI, PHIL C, PHIL L 
& MARLENE 

401 E LOUTHER ST.  CARLISLE PENNSYLVANIA 17013 (717) 651-1200 

FEASTER, TAMMY 301-A LORTZ AVENUE CHAMBERSBURG PENNSYLVANIA 17201 (717) 262-2430 

FRASSINELLI, PHIL C, PHIL L 
& MARLENE 

1329 WYOMING AVE SCRANTON PENNSYLVANIA 18509 (570) 704-5311 

FRASSINELLI, PHIL C, PHIL L 
& MARLENE 

4 PARK PLAZA, SUITE 
300 

WYOMISSING 
(READING) 

PENNSYLVANIA 19610 (484) 335-1000 

FRASSINELLI, PHIL C, PHIL L 
& MARLENE 

3897 ADLER PLACE, 
BUILDING C, SUITE 130 

BETHLEHEM PENNSYLVANIA 18017 (610) 954-9100 

FRASSINELLI, PHIL C, PHIL L 
& MARLENE 

JEWELCOR PLAZA, SUITE 
128, 100 WILKES BARRE 
BOULEVARD 

WILKES BARRE 
(KINGSTON) 

PENNSYLVANIA 18702 (570) 283-0433 

SILVA, KRISTI 
2 CHARLES STREET, 
SUITE 3A 

PROVIDENCE RHODE ISLAND 02904 (401) 205-0970 

SWARTS, ANGELA 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

BEECH ISLAND SOUTH CAROLINA 29842 

THOMPSON, PAM & 
BARRINEAU, MARY 

4995 LACROSS ROAD, 
SUITE 1050 

CHARLESTON SOUTH CAROLINA 29406 (843) 554-4933 

MEEKS, GEORGIA & 
MICHAEL 

4727 D SUNSET 
BOULEVARD 

LEXINGTON SOUTH CAROLINA 29072 (803) 772-4928 

LOCKHART, DORIS & 
NATHANIEL 

702 A MAIN STREET CONWAY SOUTH CAROLINA 29526 (843) 438-8337 

LOCKHART, DORIS & 
NATHANIEL 

519 WEST EVANS 
STREET 

FLORENCE SOUTH CAROLINA 29501 (843) 662-8262 

ROBERSON, CRAIG & DIANE 
1200 WOODRUFF 
ROAD, SUITE C-15 

GREENVILLE SOUTH CAROLINA 29607 (864) 676-9160 

BERG, JILL & FUNK, JOHN & 
WITZEL, KAREN 

1919 W 27TH STREET, 
SUITE 105 

SIOUX FALLS SOUTH DAKOTA 57108 (605) 335-6010 

GAFFNEY-KEEBLER, MOLLY 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

GREENEVILLE TENNESSEE 37743 

GAFFNEY-KEEBLER, MOLLY 
1722 WEST ANDREW 
JOHNSON HWY 

MORRISTOWN TENNESSEE 37814 (423) 283-0607 

AQUIL, BILAL & OMAR 
2600 THOUSAND OAKS 
BLVD, SUITE 1420 

MEMPHIS TENNESSEE 38118 (901) 203-7950 

KLEEMANN, JUSTIN & 
KATHERINE 

2211 S. DAY STREET, 
SUITE 404 

BRENHAM TEXAS 77833 (979) 830-5505 

KOON, VICKI &  MELTON, 
SOL 

222 N EXPRESSWAY 
77/83, SUITE 105 

BROWNSVILLE TEXAS 78251 (956) 688-9333 



2024 Spherion FDD  K-7 

OWNER NAME OFFICE ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE TELEPHONE 

KLEEMANN, JUSTIN & 
KATHERINE 

4101 S. TEXAS AVENUE, 
SUITE B 

BRYAN TEXAS 77802 (979) 846-7833 

KLEEMANN, JUSTIN & 
KATHERINE 

CLIENT ON-PREMISE COLLEGE STATION TEXAS 

KLEEMANN, JUSTIN & 
KATHERINE 

401 N LOOP336, SUITE 
D 

CONROE TEXAS 77301 (936) 207-1150 

FRANKLIN, SHANE & TRACEY 
5751 KROGER DR, SUITE 
113 

FORT WORTH TEXAS 76244-5633 (817) 720-9795 

LAMB, ROCK 1730 S JACKSON ST JACKSONVILLE TEXAS 75766 (903) 586-2277 

KOON, VICKI & MELTON, SOL 
216 W VILLAGE BLVD, 
SUITE 102 

LAREDO TEXAS 78041 (956) 955-7064 

EKENE, SABBATH & EDEM   
303 E. MAIN STREET, 
SUITE 120 

LEAGUE CITY TEXAS 77573 (281) 724-7020 

HENSON, CAYLEY & ELLIOTT CLIENT ON-PREMISE LOLITA TEXAS 77971 

LAMB, ROCK 
105 E LOOP 281, SUITE 
4 

LONGVIEW TEXAS 75605 (903) 663-2470 

LAMB, ROCK 
3331 70TH ST, SUITE 
400 

LUBBOCK TEXAS 79413 (806) 788-1118 

LAMB, ROCK 3810 S MEDFORD DRIVE LUFKIN TEXAS 75901 (936) 632-2223 

KOON, VICKI &  MELTON, 
SOL 

3321 NORTH MCCOLL MCALLEN TEXAS 78501 (956) 961-4298 

LAMB, ROCK 
818 UNIVERSITY DRIVE, 
SUITE 101 

NACOGDOCHES TEXAS 75961 (936) 559-7777 

LAMB, ROCK 
3467-A KNICKERBOCKER 
ROAD 

SAN ANGELO TEXAS 76904 (352) 944-4006 

KOON, VICKI &  MELTON, 
SOL 

2309 BIRDCREEK 
TERRACE 

TEMPLE TEXAS 76502 (254) 778-0533 

KLEEMANN, JUSTIN & 
KATHERINE 

4225 RESEARCH FOREST 
DR, SUITE 201 

THE WOODLANDS TEXAS 77381 (936) 207-1150 

LAMB, ROCK 
5011 TROUP HWY, 
SUITE 100 

TYLER TEXAS 75703 

KOON, VICKI &  MELTON, 
SOL 

334 TOWNE OAKS 
DRIVE 

WACO TEXAS 76710 (254) 776-3621 

BOYD, JEANIE 4020 CALL FIELD ROAD WICHITA FALLS TEXAS 76308 (940) 696-2665 

HENSON, CAYLEY & ELLIOTT 
1908 NORTH LAURENT, 
SUITE 105 

VICTORIA TEXAS 77901 (361) 541-5525 

HENSON, CAYLEY & ELLIOTT 
613 SOUTH MAIN 
STREET 

SEMINOLE TEXAS 79360 (575) 309-9675 

ZARBOCK, RON 
1868 NORTH 1200 
WEST, UNIT F 

LAYTON UTAH 84041 (801) 528-1801 

ZARBOCK, RON 
1145 S WALL AVENUE, 
SUITE D 

OGDEN UTAH 84404 (801) 825-1100 

ZARBOCK, RON 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

OGDEN UTAH 84404 

ZARBOCK, RON 
1143 WEST CENTER 
STREET 

OREM UTAH 84057 (801) 221-0550 

ZARBOCK, RON 204 EAST 900 SOUTH SALT LAKE CITY UTAH 84111 (801) 519-5093 

ZARBOCK, RON 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

SPRINGVILLE UTAH 84663 

ZARBOCK, RON 
5677 S. REDWOOD 
ROAD #17 

TAYLORSVILLE UTAH 84123 (801) 261-8880 

BALLARD, KEN 
110 KIMBALL AVENUE, 
SUITE 250 

SOUTH BURLINGTON VERMONT 05403 (802) 864-5900 

GENEVA, KATHLEEN 
15111 WASHINGTON 
STREET #117 

HAYMARKET VIRGINIA 20169 (571) 765-3355 
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FEASTER, TAMMY 
521 EAST MARKET 
STREET 

LEESBURG VIRGINIA 20176 

FEASTER, TAMMY 
23 WEST JUBAL EARLY 
DRIVE 

WINCHESTER VIRGINIA 22601 (540) 431-4857 

GREEN, JAMES 
1212 N WASHINGTON 
STREET, SUITE 118 

SPOKANE WASHINGTON 99201 (509) 456-4944 

FEASTER, TAMMY 
115 AIKENS CENTER, 
SUITE 1 

MARTINSBURG WEST VIRGINIA 25404 (304) 267-9668 

KASSNER, AUSTIN 
2601 WEST BELTLINE 
HIGHWAY, SUITE 500 

MADISON WISCONSIN 53713 (608) 274-6000 

KASSNER, AUSTIN 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

MADISON WISCONSIN 53783 

KASSNER, AUSTIN 
CLIENT ON-PREMISE 
LOCATION 

MADISON WISCONSIN 53704 

The following lists the name and last known city, state and telephone number of every franchisee that has 
had an agreement terminated, canceled, not renewed or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to 
do business under an agreement with us during our fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, or has not 
communicated with us within ten weeks of the date of this offering circular.  

Lati Bouraima 
Austin, TX 
(512) 845-8387 

John Cho 
Austin, TX 
(917) 771-2910 

Dan & Tammy Heinowski 
Appleton, WI 
(920) 428-1293 
(920) 428-1477  

John Kmieciak 
Rockford, IL  
(773) 354-0282 

Emmanuel Olanipekun 
Dallas, TX 
(214) 448-9655 

Lorena Wallace 
Butte, MT 
(406) 410-0555 
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LIST OF ADMINISTRATORS 

We intend to register this offering circular as a “franchise” in some or all of the following states, in 
accordance with the applicable state law.  If and when we pursue franchise registration (or otherwise 
comply with the franchise investment laws) in these states, the following are the state administrators 
responsible for the review, registration, and oversight of franchises in that state: 

STATE STATE ADMINISTRATOR ADDRESS 

California 
Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation 
California Department of Financial Protection and 
Innovation 

320 West 4th Street, Suite 750 
Los Angeles, CA 90013-2344 
1-866-275-2677 

Hawaii 

Commissioner of Securities 
Dept. of Commerce and Consumer Affairs 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance Branch 

335 Merchant Street 
Room 203 
Honolulu, HI 96813 

Illinois Illinois Attorney General 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, IL 62706 

Indiana 
Indiana Securities Commissioner 
Securities Division 

302 West Washington Street, Room E111 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 

Indiana Indiana Secretary of State 
302 West Washington Street, Room E018 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 

Maryland 
Office of the Attorney General 
Division of Securities 

200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020 

Michigan 
Michigan Department of Attorney General 
Consumer Protection Division 

G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor 
525 West Ottawa Street 
Lansing, MI 48933 

Minnesota 
Commissioner of Commerce 
Minnesota Department of Commerce 

85 7th Place East, Suite 280 
St. Paul, MN 55101-2198 

New York 
NYS Department of Law 
Investor Protection Bureau 

28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor 
New York, NY 10005 
212-416-8236 

North Dakota 
Securities Commissioner 
North Dakota Securities Department 

600 East Boulevard Avenue 
State Capitol, Fifth Floor, Dept. 414 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510 

Rhode Island 
Director, Department of Business Regulation, 
Securities Division 

1511 Pontiac Avenue 
John O. Pastore Complex – Building 68-2 
Cranston, RI 02920 

South Dakota 
Department of Labor and Regulation 
Division of Insurance – Securities Regulation 

124 S. Euclid, Suite 104 
Pierre, SD 57501 

Virginia 
State Corporation Commission 
Division of Securities and Retail Franchising 

1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor 
Richmond, VA 23219 
804-371-9051 

Washington 
Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 

150 Israel Road SW
Tumwater, WA 98501 
360-902-8760 

Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities 

Department of Financial Institutions 
Division of Securities 
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower 
Madison, WI 53705 
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AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 

We intend to register this offering circular as a “franchise” in some or all of the following states, in 
accordance with the applicable state law. If and when we pursue franchise registration (or otherwise 
comply with the franchise investment laws) in these states, we will designate the following state offices 
or officials as our agents for service of process in those states. 

STATE STATE ADMINISTRATOR/AGENT ADDRESS 

California 
Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation 
California Department of Financial Protection and 
Innovation 

320 West 4th Street, Suite 750 
Los Angeles, CA 90013-2344 
1-866-275-2677 

Hawaii 

Commissioner of Securities 
Dept. of Commerce and Consumer Affairs 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance Branch 

335 Merchant Street 
Room 203 
Honolulu, HI 96813 

Illinois Illinois Attorney General 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, IL 62706 

Indiana Indiana Secretary of State 
302 West Washington Street, Room E018 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 

Maryland Maryland Securities Commissioner 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020 

Michigan 
Michigan Department of Attorney General 
Consumer Protection Division 

G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor 
525 West Ottawa Street 
Lansing, MI 48933 

Minnesota 
Commissioner of Commerce 
Minnesota Department of Commerce 

85 7th Place East, Suite 280 
St. Paul, MN 55101-2198 

New York New York Department of State 

One Commerce Plaza 
99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor 
Albany, NY 12231-0001 
518-473-2492 

North Dakota 
Securities Commissioner 
North Dakota Securities Department 

600 East Boulevard Avenue 
State Capitol, Fifth Floor, Dept. 414 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510 

Rhode Island 
Director, Department of Business Regulation, 
Securities Division 

1511 Pontiac Avenue 
John O. Pastore Complex – Building 68-2 
Cranston, RI 02920 

South Dakota 
Department of Labor and Regulation 
Division of Insurance – Securities Regulation 

124 S. Euclid, Suite 104 
Pierre, SD 57501 

Virginia Clerk of the State Corporation Commission 
1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor 
Richmond, VA 23219-3630 

Washington 
Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 

150 Israel Road SW
Tumwater, WA 98501 
360-902-8760 

Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities 

Department of Financial Institutions 
Division of Securities 
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower 
Madison, WI 53705 
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Spherion Staffing LLC 
(An indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Randstad 
North America, Inc.) 
Financial Statements 
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Independent Auditor’s Report  
 
 
To the Management of Spherion Staffing LLC 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Spherion Staffing LLC, which comprise 
the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of operations, 
changes in member’s equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, 
and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the  financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Spherion Staffing LLC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of 
their operations and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of Spherion Staffing LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about  
Spherion Staffing LLC’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the 
financial statements are available to be issued. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Spherion Staffing LLC’s internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Spherion Staffing LLC’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control related matters that we identified during the audit. 

April 25, 2024



Spherion Staffing LLC

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022

Assets

Current assets:
Accounts receivable, net 56,673$        58,623$        
Other receivables 263               325               
Notes receivable 97                 84                 

Total current assets 57,033          59,032          

Notes receivable, net of current portion 295               331               

Total assets 57,328$        59,363$        

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,288$          2,395$          
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 8,773            10,619
Accrued salaries, wages and payroll taxes 5,373            7,748
Workers' compensation reserve 2,283            2,879            

Total current liabilities 17,717          23,641          

Workers' compensation reserve, net of current portion 3,241            3,792            

Total liabilities 20,958          27,433          

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) 

Equity

Member's equity 36,370          31,930          

Total equity 36,370          31,930          

Total liabilities and equity 57,328$        59,363$        

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

- 3 -



Spherion Staffing LLC

Statements of Operations

(in thousands of dollars) 2023 2022 2021

Net revenues 414,378$      463,356$      443,449$      
Cost of revenue 320,447        357,097        344,032        

Gross profit 93,931          106,259        99,417          

Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses 88,446          99,314          92,401          

Total operating expenses 88,446          99,314          92,401          

Net income 5,485$          6,945$          7,016$          

Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Spherion Staffing LLC

Statements of Changes in Member's Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

Total Member's
(in thousands of dollars) Equity

Balance at December 31, 2020 38,214$             
Share-based compensation 225                    
Net transfers to parent (4,669)                

Net income 7,016                 

Balance at December 31, 2021 40,786               

Share-based compensation 187                    

Net transfers to parent (15,988)              
Net income 6,945                 

Balance at December 31, 2022 31,930               

Share-based compensation 213                    

Net transfers to parent (1,258)                
Net income 5,485                 

Balance at December 31, 2023 36,370$             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Spherion Staffing LLC

Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands of dollars) 2023  2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income 5,485$           6,945$           7,016$           

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
 cash provided by operating activities:

Share-based compensation 213                187                225                
Provision for doubtful accounts 126                (131)              23                  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 1,824             11,127           (7,952)           
Other receivables 62                  (61)                47                  
Accounts payable (1,107)           96                  786                
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (1,846)           (1,512)           2,316             
Accrued salaries, wages and payroll taxes (2,375)           (1,513)           1,967             
Workers' compensation reserve (1,147)           996                154                

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,235             16,134           4,582             

Cash flows from investing activities
Repayments on notes receivable 123                154                173                
Advances on notes receivable (100)              (300)              (86)                

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 23                  (146)              87                  

Cash flows from financing activities
Net transfer to parent (1,258)           (15,988)         (4,669)           

Net cash used in financing activities (1,258)           (15,988)         (4,669)           

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -                    -                    -                    

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year -                    -                    -                    

End of year -$                  -$                  -$                  

Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Spherion Staffing LLC 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 
(in thousands of dollars) 

- 7 - 

1. Description of Business 

Spherion Staffing LLC (the Company) was formed in Delaware on October 22, 2008 and is a single 
member limited liability company. The Company is owned 100% by SFN Professionals Services, LLC (the 
Parent) which is then indirectly owned by SFN Group Inc. SFN Group Inc. is 100% owned by Randstad 
North America, Inc., which is a subsidiary of Randstad Holding NV, the ultimate parent company (the 
Ultimate Parent) in the Netherlands. 

The Company offers franchises to persons who wish to use the Spherion system in the business of 
providing temporary staffing and permanent placement services. Temporary staffing services provided to 
the customer by the franchisee include placing employees at a customer location under the customer’s 
supervision in the following skill categories: information technology, finance and accounting, administrative, 
legal, engineering, sales and marketing, human resources, light industrial and clerical. Permanent 
placement is a service whereby the franchisees locate talent on behalf of their customers, screen the 
candidates and assist in the recruitment efforts for a fee. Under the franchise programs, the franchise 
develops and supports customers using the Company’s trademark, service marks, trade names, 
procedures, and techniques. 

The Company manages two types of franchise programs. Under what is generally termed the licensee 
program, the customers, applicants for permanent services, and temporary employees have direct 
contractual relationships with Spherion Staffing LLC and are the customers and employees of Spherion 
Staffing LLC. The Company pays the licensee/franchisee a commission calculated as a percentage of 
gross profit from the franchisee’s sales. 

Under the second franchise program, which is no longer offered to new applicants, operations are 
conducted under an area-based franchise agreement whereby, the area-based franchisee uses the 
Spherion system to provide temporary staffing and permanent placement services. All of the obligations 
which the area-based franchisee incurs during the term of the area-based franchise agreement are 
exclusively the area-based franchisee’s obligation and the customers and employees have a contractual 
relationship only with the area-based franchisee. During the term of the area-based franchise agreement, 
the area-based franchisee pays the Company a royalty fee calculated as a percentage of its sales of the 
franchised services.  

2. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) from the consolidated financial statements 
and accounting records of the Parent using the historical results of operations and historical cost basis of 
the assets and liabilities of the Parent that comprise the Company. The historical results of operations, 
financial position, and cash flows of the Company may not be indicative of what they would actually have 
been had the Company been a separate stand-alone entity, nor are they indicative of what the Company’s 
results of operations, financial position and cash flows may be in the future. 

A separate statement of comprehensive income is required under U.S. GAAP; however, as net income is 
the only component of comprehensive income the Company elected not to include a separate statement of 
comprehensive income because it would not be meaningful to the users of the financial statements. 

The accompanying financial statements only include assets and liabilities that are specifically identifiable to 
the Company. Costs directly related to the Company have been entirely attributed to the Company in the 
accompanying financial statements. The Company also receives services and support functions from the 
Parent. The Company’s operations are dependent upon the Parent’s ability to perform these services and 
support functions. The costs associated with these services and support functions have been allocated to 
the Company on the basis of direct usage when identifiable, with the remainder allocated on the basis of 
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revenue, headcount, time or claims. These allocated costs are primarily related to corporate administrative 
expenses, employee related costs for corporate and shared employees, and rental and usage fees for 
shared assets for the following functional groups: information technology, legal services, accounting and 
finance services, human resources, marketing, customer support, treasury, facility and other corporate and 
infrastructural services. These allocated costs are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses 
in the Statements of Operations. 

Management believes the assumptions and allocations underlying the financial statements are reasonable 
and appropriate. The expense and cost allocations have been determined on a basis considered by the 
Parent and the Company to be a reasonable reflection of the utilization of services provided to or the 
benefit received by the Company during the periods presented. However, these assumptions and 
allocations are not necessarily indicative of the costs the Company would have incurred if it had operated 
on a stand-alone basis or as an entity independent of the Parent. 

All intercompany transactions between the Company and the Parent have been included in these financial 
statements and are considered to be effectively settled for cash in the financial statements at the time the 
transaction is recorded. The total net effect of the settlement of these intercompany transactions is 
reflected in the Statements of Cash Flows as a financing activity and in the Statements of Changes in 
Member’s Equity as “Net transfers from/to parent.”   

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Accounting Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  
Significant estimates include, but are not limited to, allowance for doubtful accounts, workers’ 
compensation reserves, and Parent overhead allocations. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates 
and the differences could be material. On an ongoing basis, estimates are reviewed based on information 
that is currently available. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Parent uses a centralized approach to cash management and financing of its operations. Central 
treasury activities include the collection of cash receipts from customers, disbursement of cash to vendors, 
the investment of surplus cash, the issuance, repayment and repurchase of short-term and long-term debt 
and interest rate management. Accordingly, none of the cash or cash equivalents used at the Parent 
corporate level have been reflected in these financial statements (see Note 8). 

Revenue Recognition 
The Company accounts for revenue in accordance with ASC 606 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
(ASC 606), which outlines a five-step model for recognizing revenue. The core principle of ASC 606 is that 
a company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in 
an amount that reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services. To determine revenue recognition, the Company applies the following five steps:  

 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer; 
2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract;  

 3. Determine the transaction price; 
 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and  
 5. Recognize revenue as or when the performance obligation is satisfied.  
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The Company has elected the practical expedient to not assess the existence of a financing component for 
contracts where the Company expects at inception that the period between the transfer of promised goods 
or services and payment by the customer will be one year or less. The Company has also elected the 
practical expedient and adopted a policy to expense incremental costs of obtaining a contract if the 
amortization period of the cost is expected to be one year or less. 

A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer 
and is the unit of accounting in ASC Topic 606. A contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinct 
performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. 

The Company utilizes two forms of franchising agreements.  Under the area-based franchise form, the 
Company records area-based franchise royalties, based upon the contractual percentage of area-based 
franchise sales in the period in which the area-based franchise provides the service.  Area-based franchise 
royalties, which are included in revenues when earned at a point in time, were $2,297, $2,729 and $2,988 
for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

The second form of franchising agreement is a license/franchise agreement whereby the Company acts as 
the principal in customer transactions through direct contractual relationships with the customers, owning 
related customer receivables and being the legal employer of the temporary employee. The 
licensee/franchisee acts as the Company’s agent providing certain sales and recruiting services. 
Accordingly, sales and costs of services generated by the second form of franchised operations are 
recorded in the Company’s Statement of Operations on a gross basis. The Company pays the 
licensee/franchisee a commission for acting as the Company’s agent and this commission is based on a 
percentage of gross profit from the office managed by the licensee/franchisee which averaged 75%, 76% 
and 76% for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The licensee/franchisee is 
responsible for establishing its office location and paying related administrative and operating expenses, 
such as rent, utilities and salaries of the franchisee’s sales and service employees. The Company’s 
Statement of Operations reflects franchisee commission expense under the licensee program in selling, 
general and administrative expenses, but does not include the rent, utilities and salaries of the franchisee’s 
full-time office employees as these expenses are the responsibility of the franchisee. The Company has 
credit risk for sales to its customers through license/franchise agreements as the Company pays all direct 
costs associated with providing temporary services before related accounts receivables are collected. The 
Company has  mitigated this risk by making the licensee/franchisee responsible to reimburse the Company 
up to 100% of uncollected accounts receivable (bad debts are deducted from commission payments); 
however, the Company bears the loss in cases where the licensee/franchisee does not have sufficient 
financial wherewithal to reimburse uncollected amounts. 

The Company receives an initial franchise fee ranging from $35,000 - $40,000 as provided by the franchise 
agreement the Company enters into with franchisees. Upon execution of a franchise agreement, the 
franchise fee is due in full. The Company’s franchise agreements are effective and binding for an initial 
term of 10 years from the effective date. The franchise may be renewed for an additional five-year term. 
Franchise fees are generally nonrefundable and are recognized ratably in income during the period from 
the effective date through the end of the associated franchise agreement. Franchise fees paid in the 
current and prior years, but for which the Company has not substantially performed or satisfied all material 
services or conditions related to the sale of the franchise are recorded as deferred revenue in the Balance 
Sheets. Deferred revenue relating to initial franchise fees was not material to the financial statements for 
2023, 2022 and 2021.  
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The following table summarizes the composition of net revenues for the years ended December 31, 2023, 
2022 and 2021:  
 

2023 2022 2021

Temporary 401,441$        447,080$        429,691$        
Permanent Placement 10,640            13,547            10,770            
Royalties 2,297              2,729              2,988              

Total 414,378$        463,356$        443,449$        

 
Share-based Compensation 
An employee of the Company participates in an equity-based plan sponsored by the Ultimate Parent. The 
number of shares allocated depends on the Ultimate Parent’s total shareholder return (TSR) performance 
compared to a peer group of nine companies measured over a three-year period starting on January 1 of 
the year of grant. The compensation expense recognized for all equity-based awards is net of estimated 
forfeitures and is recognized ratably over the awards’ service period. The Company classifies equity-based 
compensation within selling, general and administrative expenses to correspond with the same line item as 
the majority of the cash compensation paid to employees (see Note 9). 

Advertising 
The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $1,541, $1,681 and 
$1,586 for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments approximate their fair value. 

Income Taxes 
For the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, the Company was a single member limited 
liability company treated as an entity that is disregarded from its owner for Federal and State income tax 
purposes. As a result all items of taxable income, deductions and tax credits are passed through to and are 
reported by the Company’s owner on its income tax return. Accordingly, these financial statements do not 
reflect a provision for income taxes and the Company has no other tax positions which must be considered 
for disclosure. 

4. Accounts Receivable 

Trade receivables are primarily comprised of amounts owed to the Company through its operating activities 
and are presented net of an allowance for credit losses of $134, $260 and $129 at  
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 respectively. The provision for credit losses for trade receivables due 
from customers is established based on an assessment of a customer’s credit quality, past transaction 
history, current economy, industry trends and changes in payment terms, as well as subjective factors and 
trends, including the aging of receivable balances. Generally, these credit assessments occur prior to the 
inception of the credit exposure and at regular intervals during the life of the exposure. When an account is 
deemed uncollectible it is written off against the allowance.  
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5. Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable consist of amounts due to the Company for seller financing related to the sale of 
franchises to franchisees. Outstanding notes are secured by all assets of the franchise. The notes carry 
interest ranging from 11.25% to 8.25% and mature through 2028. At December 31, 2023 and 2022 
outstanding notes receivable totaled $392 and $415, respectively.  

6. Accrued Liabilities 

Accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 are comprised of: 

2023 2022

Accrued commissions 7,251$            8,273$            
Other 1,522              2,346              

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 8,773              10,619            

Accrued salaries and wages 3,288              4,712              
Payroll taxes and other benefit withholdings 2,085              3,036              

Accrued salaries, wages and payroll taxes 5,373              7,748              
Accrued liabilities 14,146$          18,367$          

 
7. Commitments and Contingencies 

Insurance 
The Company is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims. The Company participates in a self-
insurance plan administered by the Parent in which the Company was self-insured for individual claims up 
to $1,000 through December 31, 2023. Claims in excess of this amount are insured by a national insurance 
carrier. The Company engages an outside actuary to estimate the total obligations associated with the plan 
for both known and unreported claims. Total reserves recorded at December 31, 2023 and 2022 were 
$5,524 and $6,671, respectively, of which $2,283 and $2,879 were considered current, respectively. The 
Company has recorded its reserves net of insurance recoveries. 

Litigation 
The Company is a defendant in certain legal proceedings arising during the normal course of business.  
While the outcome of lawsuits or other proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, management 
believes the outcomes of the outstanding legal proceedings will not materially impact the Company’s 
financial position or future results of operations or cash flows. 
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8. Related-Party Transactions 

Allocation of General Corporate Expenses 
The Company receives services and support functions from the Parent for the following functions among 
others: information technology, legal services, accounting and finance services, human resources, 
marketing, customer support, treasury, facility and other corporate and infrastructural services.  The costs 
associated with these services generally include employee related costs, including payroll and benefit costs 
as well as overhead costs related to the support functions.  Functional costs are charged to the Company 
based on utilization measures including direct usage, revenue, headcount, time, and claims.  Due to the 
centralized cash management structure in place, all such amounts have been deemed to have been paid 
by the Company to the Parent in the period in which the costs were recorded. Total allocated expenses 
recorded in these financial statements were $16,595, $17,141 and $15,677 for the years ended  
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

The Company paid a management fee to the Ultimate Parent totaling $1,478, $1,518, and $803 for the 
years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

In addition, as discussed in Note 3, the Parent uses a centralized approach for cash management and 
financing of its operations. All Parent funding to the Company since inception has been accounted for as a 
capital contribution from the Parent and all Company cash remittances collected at the Parent level have 
been accounted for as distributions to the Parent in the Statement of Member’s Equity, including allocation 
of expenses and settlement of transactions with the Parent. The totals of such amounts are as follows: 

2023 2022 2021

Expenditures by Parent (398,774)$       (441,204)$       (415,533)$       
Cash collected by Parent 416,627          474,333          435,879          
Allocation of general corporate expense (16,595)           (17,141)           (15,677)           

Net transfer to Parent 1,258$            15,988$          4,669$            

 
 
9. Equity Transactions and Share-Based Compensation 

Share-Based Compensation 
The Ultimate Parent maintains several plans for the benefit of certain of its officers, directors and 
employees, including Company employees.  An employee of the Company is eligible to receive grants of 
performance shares.  Performance shares entitle the recipient to receive shares of the Ultimate Parent’s 
common stock at a future date after the recipient has met service requirements.  The number of shares to 
vest depends on the Company’s total shareholder return performance compared to a peer group of nine 
companies measured over a three year period starting on January 1 of the year of grant.  The Company 
uses a Monte Carlo simulation model to determine fair value for measuring compensation cost for stock-
based compensation arrangements.   

Total share-based expense recorded in these financial statements was not material for the years ended 
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. As of December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, total 
unrecognized compensation expense related to performance shares was $213, $367 and $405, 
respectively. 
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10. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 25, 2024 which is the date these financial 
statements were available to be issued. No significant matters were identified impacting the Company’s 
financial position or requiring further disclosure.
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SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISEE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 

Do not sign this Questionnaire if you are a Maryland resident, or the franchise is to be located in 
Maryland.  The Questionnaire does not apply to a Maryland resident or franchisee to be located in 
Maryland. 

This Questionnaire does not apply to franchisees who intend to operate the franchised business in the 
State of California. Do not complete this Questionnaire or respond to any of the questions contained in the 
Questionnaire if you intend to operate the franchised business in the State of California.  

As you know, Spherion Staffing, LLC (the “Franchisor”) and you are preparing to enter into a 
Franchise Agreement for the establishment and operation of a “Spherion” franchised business.  The 
purpose of this Questionnaire is to determine whether any statements or promises were made to you 
that the Franchisor has not authorized and that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading.  Please review 
each of the following questions and statements carefully and provide honest and complete responses to 
each. 

1. Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise Agreement and each Addendum and 
related agreement attached to it? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

2. Do you understand all of the information contained in the Franchise Agreement, each Addendum 
and related agreement provided to you? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

If no, what parts of the Franchise Agreement, Addendum, and/or related agreement do you not 
understand?  (Attach additional pages, if necessary.) 

3. Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure Document 
(“FDD” or “Disclosure Document”) that was provided to you? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

4. Did you sign a receipt for the Franchise Disclosure Document indicating the date you received it? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

5. Do you understand all of the information contained in the Disclosure Document and any state-
specific Addendum to the FDD? 

Yes _____ No _____ 
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If No, what parts of the Disclosure Document and/or Addendum do you not understand?  
(Attach additional pages, if necessary.) 

6. Have you discussed the benefits and risks of establishing and operating a “Spherion” franchised 
business with an attorney, accountant, or other professional advisor? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

If No, do you wish to have more time to do so? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

7. Do you understand that the success or failure of your “Spherion” franchised business will depend 
in large part upon your skills and abilities, competition from other businesses, interest rates, 
inflation, labor and supply costs, lease terms and other economic and business factors? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

8. Do you understand that if we acquire, merge with or are acquired by a business which provides 
similar services (a Competitive Business) from an office within your Area, we have the right, in our 
sole discretion, among other things, to continue to operate the Competitive Business  within the 
Area, to open additional offices of the Competitive Business within the Area, to close and relocate 
offices of the Competitive Business within the Area, to initiate operations of the Competitive 
Business and open offices of the Competitive Business within the Area and to otherwise continue 
to conduct the business operations of the Competitive Business both outside of and within the 
Area in the manner that it sees fit, so long as that Competitive Business is using trade names and 
service marks other than the Spherion trademark? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

9. As you have reviewed the financial performance representations in Item 19 of the FDD, do you 
understand that: 

(a) Item 19 contains only historical data from certain franchised Spherion businesses, and are 
not a promise, assurance or guaranty of future results of your franchised Spherion business; and 

(b) your results are likely to differ from the historical results reported. 

Yes _____ No _____ 
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10. Do you acknowledge that our current and former franchisees are identified in Exhibit L of the FDD, 
and that you have had an opportunity to speak with these franchisees to learn about their specific 
experiences operating a Spherion franchised business (including their experiences during the past 
12 months)? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

11. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement or 
promise concerning the revenues, profits or operating costs of a “Spherion” franchised business 
operated by the Franchisor or its franchisees, that is contrary to the information contained in the 
FDD? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

12. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement or 
promise regarding the amount of money you may earn in operating the franchised business that 
is contrary to the information contained in the FDD? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

13. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement or 
promise concerning the total amount of revenue the Spherion franchised business will generate, 
that is contrary to the information contained in the FDD? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

14. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement or 
promise regarding the costs you may incur in operating the Spherion franchised business that is 
contrary to or different from, the information contained in the FDD? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

15. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement or 
promise concerning the likelihood of success that you should or might expect to achieve from 
operating a Spherion franchised business? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

16. Has any employee or other person speaking on behalf of the Franchisor made any statement, 
promise or agreement concerning the advertising, marketing, training, support service or 
assistance that the Franchisor will furnish to you that is contrary to, or different from, the 
information contained in the FDD? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

17. Have you entered into any binding agreement with the Franchisor concerning the purchase of this
franchise prior to today? 

Yes _____ No _____ 
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18. Have you paid any money to the Franchisor concerning the purchase of this franchise prior to 
today? 

Yes _____ No _____ 

19. If you have answered “Yes” to any one of questions 12-18, please provide a full explanation of 
each “yes” answer in the following blank lines.  (Attach additional pages, if necessary, and refer 
to them below.)  If you have answered “no” to each of questions 12-18, please leave the following 
lines blank. 

20. I signed the Franchise Agreement and Addenda (if any) on __________________, 20___, and 
acknowledge that no Agreement or Addendum is effective until signed by the Franchisor. 

Please understand that your responses to these questions are important to us and that we will 
rely on them. 

By signing this Questionnaire, you are representing that you have responded truthfully to the 
above questions. 

FRANCHISE APPLICANT

By:

     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Date) 



63552023v2 

P-1 
2024 Spherion FDD  

EXHIBIT P 
STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA 



63552023v2 

P-2 
2024 Spherion FDD  

ADDENDUM TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In recognition of the requirements of the California Franchise Investment Law, Cal. Corp. Code §§ 
31000-31516 and the California Franchise Relations Act, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 20000-20043, the 
Franchise Disclosure Document for Spherion Staffing, LLC in connection with the offer and sale of licenses 
for use in the state of California shall be amended to include the following: 

a.  THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED 
AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE 
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. 

b.  NEITHER THE FRANCHISOR, ANY PERSON OR FRANCHISE BROKER IN ITEM 2 OF THE FDD 
IS SUBJECT TO ANY CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE ORDER OF ANY NATIONAL SECURITIES ASSOCIATION OR 
NATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, AS DEFINED IN THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 
78a ET. SEQ., SUSPENDING OR EXPELLING THESE PERSONS FROM MEMBERSHIP IN THIS ASSOCIATION OR 
EXCHANGE. 

c.  CALIFORNIA BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 20000 THROUGH 20043 PROVIDES 
RIGHTS TO THE FRANCHISEE CONCERNING TERMINATION OR NON-RENEWAL OF A FRANCHISE. IF THE 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH THE LAW, THE LAW WILL 
CONTROL. 

d.  THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT PROVIDES FOR TERMINATION UPON BANKRUPTCY. THIS 
PROVISION MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE UNDER FEDERAL BANKRUPTCY LAW. (11 U.S.C.A. SEC. 101 ET 
SEQ.). 

e.  THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS A COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE WHICH 
EXTENDS BEYOND THE TERMINATION OF THE FRANCHISE. THIS PROVISION MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE 
UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW. 

f.  THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRES APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF GEORGIA THIS 
PROVISION MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW. 

g.  SECTION 31125 OF THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES US TO GIVE TO YOU A 
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT APPROVED BY THE COMMISSIONER OF CORPORATIONS BEFORE WE ASK YOU 
TO CONSIDER A MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF YOUR FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. 

h.  YOU MUST SIGN A GENERAL RELEASE OF CLAIMS IF YOU RENEW OR TRANSFER YOUR 
FRANCHISE. CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE SECTION 31512 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER 
THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW (CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE SECTIONS 31000 THROUGH 
31516). BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE SECTION 20010 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER 
THE FRANCHISE RELATIONS ACT (BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE SECTIONS 20000 THROUGH 20043). 

i.  OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS OVERSIGHT. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE 
MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS OVERSIGHT AT www.dbo.ca.gov.  
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j.   UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES YOU MAY COMPETE WITH CERTAIN OTHER BRANDS 
WE OPERATE. SEE ITEM 12 OF THIS FDD FOR MORE INFORMATION. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IS 
AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST. 

k. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 
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ADDENDUM TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF HAWAII 

The following is added to the Cover Page: 

THESE FRANCHISES WILL BE/HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW OF THE STATE 
OF HAWAII. FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE 
DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE 
AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT 
MISLEADING.  

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS 
STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, AT LEAST 
SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE 
OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION 
BY THE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE OFFERING 
CIRCULAR, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE 
FRANCHISE.  

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT 
OF ALL RIGHTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND THE 
FRANCHISEE. 

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with 
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any 
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. 
This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

Registered agent in the state authorized to receive service of process: 

CSC Services of Hawaii, Inc. 
1003 Bishop Street 
Suite 1600 Pauahi Tower 
Honolulu, HI 96813 
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ADDENDUM TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 

The State of Illinois prohibits certain unfair provisions that are sometimes in franchise documents. 
If any of the following provisions are in these franchise documents, the provisions are void and cannot be 
enforced against you. 

1. Item 17.f is supplemented with the following language: 

The conditions under which your Franchise Agreement may be terminated and your rights 
upon non-renewal may be affected by Illinois Law, 815 ILCS 705/19 and 705/20. 

2. The Summary in Item 17.v is deleted and replaced by the following Summary: 

Illinois law provides that jurisdiction and venue for all litigation claims brought under 
Section 27 will be in the State of Illinois. 

3. The Summary in Item 17.w is deleted and replaced by the following Summary: 

Illinois law provides that Illinois law will govern the Agreement. 

4. Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that “any condition, stipulation, 
or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision 
of this Act is void.” 

5. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 
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AMENDMENT TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, Ill. Comp. Stat. 
§§ 705/1 through 705/44, et seq., the parties to the attached Spherion Staffing, LLC Franchise Agreement 
(the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

1. Section 17 of the Agreement, under the heading “Termination by the Parties,” shall be 
supplemented by the addition of the following Section, which shall be considered an integral part of the 
Agreement: 

If any of the provisions of this Section 17 concerning termination are 
inconsistent with Section 19 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 
1987, then Illinois law provides that Illinois law shall apply. 

2. Although Section 27 of the Agreement requires that it be governed by Georgia law, Illinois 
law provides that Illinois law will govern the Agreement. 

3. Illinois law prohibits a prospective general release of claims subject to the Illinois 
Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987. You cannot waive any of your rights given to you by the Illinois Franchise 
Disclosure Act. You may have other rights under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or other laws of the 
state of Illinois. To the extent that the Franchise Agreement is inconsistent with Illinois law, the 
inconsistent terms of the Franchise Agreement will not be enforced and the terms of the applicable Illinois 
law shall apply. 

4. The provisions of the Agreement concerning governing law, jurisdiction, and venue shall 
not constitute a waiver of any right conferred on Franchisee by Illinois law. Consistent with the foregoing, 
Illinois law provides any provision in the Agreement which designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum 
outside of Illinois is void with respect to any cause of action which is otherwise enforceable in Illinois. 

5. Illinois law provides that any condition, stipulation, or provision of the Agreement that 
purports to bind Franchisee to a waiver of compliance with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, 
as amended, or any other law of the State of Illinois, is void. 

6. Although Section 27(d) of the Agreement requires that litigation permitted under the 
Agreement must be instituted in court covering the location at which Company has its principal place of 
business at the time of the action, Illinois law provides that jurisdiction and venue for all litigation claims 
brought under Section 27 will be in the State of Illinois. 

7. Franchisee and Franchisor agree to be bound by the provisions of any limitation on the 
period of time in which claims must be brought under applicable law or this Agreement, whichever expires 
earlier. 

8. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 
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9. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to each 
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act are met 
independently without reference to this Addendum. 

10. To the extent this Addendum is inconsistent with any terms or conditions of the 
Agreement or the Exhibits or Attachments thereto, the terms of this Addendum shall govern. 

Each of the undersigned hereby acknowledges having read, understood, and executed this 
Amendment on ____________________________, 20_______. 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

FRANCHISEE:

(Signature) 

(If an Individual, Print Name) 

If other than an Individual: 

     (Name of Entity) 

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

(Print Title)
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ADDENDUM TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND 

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, 
Md. Code Bus. Reg., §§ 14-201 through 14-233, the Franchise Disclosure Document for Spherion Staffing, 
LLC for use in the State of Maryland shall be amended as follows: 

1. The cover page of the FDD shall be amended by deleting the first risk factor and replacing 
it with the following language: 

EXCEPT WITH RESPECT TO CLAIMS ARISING UNDER THE MARYLAND FRANCHISE 
REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE LAW, THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT PERMITS THE 
FRANCHISEE TO SUE LICENSOR ONLY IN THE COURT(S) COVERING THE LOCATION AT 
WHICH LICENSOR HAS ITS PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AT THE TIME OF THE ACTION 
OR WHERE LICENSOR HAS ITS HEADQUARTERS AT THE TIME THE ACTION IS COMMENCED. 
OUT OF STATE LITIGATION MAY FORCE YOU TO ACCEPT A LESS FAVORABLE SETTLEMENT 
FOR DISPUTES. IT MAY ALSO COST MORE TO SUE LICENSOR IN THIS LOCATION THAN IN 
YOUR HOME STATE. 

2. The second page of the FDD shall be amended by deleting the second sentence in the first 
paragraph stating, “Registration of a franchise by a state does not mean that the state recommends or 
has verified the information in this Disclosure Document.” and replacing it with the sentence: 

Registration of this franchise is not approval, recommendation or endorsement by the 
Securities Commissioner in the Office of the Attorney General of Maryland. 

3. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” shall be amended by 
the addition of the following language: 

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy of the franchisee. 
This provision may not be enforceable under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (11 U.S.C. Section 
101, et seq.). 

4. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” for Choice of forum 
(row v.), the Summary shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

Mediation in the state in which we have our headquarters. We may bring suit in the state 
and judicial district in which we have our headquarters at the time of the action. 

5. Item 17 shall be amended to include the addition of the following sentence at the 
conclusion: 

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be 
brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise. 

6. Item 19, “Earnings Claims,” shall be amended by the addition of the following language: 
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No part of this Item 19 is intended to nor shall act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any 
liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

7. Each provision of this Addendum to the Disclosure Document shall be effective only to 
the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Maryland Franchise 
Registration and Disclosure Law (Md. Code Bus. Reg. §§ 14-201 through 14-233) are met independently 
without reference to this Addendum. 

8. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 

9. Exhibit P (Franchise Compliance Certification) is deleted in its entirety. 
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AMENDMENT TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND 

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, 
Md. Code Bus. Reg., §§ 14-201 through 14-233, the parties to the attached Spherion Staffing, LLC 
Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

1. Section 26 of the Agreement, under the heading “Disclosure,” shall be supplemented by 
the following: 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a requirement by the Company, as a 
condition of the sale of a franchise, that a prospective franchisee agrees to a release, 
assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel that would relieve a person from liability under 
the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law 

2. Section 27 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law; Mediation” shall be 
amended by deletion of the first and third sentences of subsection (d), so that subsection (d) shall read, 
“Any legal action brought by Company against Franchisee in any forum or court, whether federal or state, 
may be brought within the state and judicial district in which Company has its headquarters at the time 
of the action, except with respect to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and 
Disclosure Law.” 

3. Section 27 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law” shall be 
amended by the deletion of subsection (f) and the following shall be substituted in lieu thereof: 

(f) Company and Franchisee irrevocably waive trial by jury in any action, proceeding, 
or counterclaim, whether at law or in equity, brought by either of them against the other, 
whether or not there are other parties in such action, proceeding, or counterclaim. Any 
and all claims and actions arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the relationship of 
Franchisee and Company, the relationship between Franchisee and Company’s affiliates, 
or Franchisee’s operation of the Franchised Business, brought by either party hereto 
against the other shall be commenced within two (2) years from the occurrence of the 
facts giving rise to such claim or action, as evidenced by the filing of a claim in an legal 
action in accordance with Subsection (d) of this Section, or such claim or action shall be 
barred; except that any and all claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration 
and Disclosure Law shall be commenced within three (3) years from the occurrence of the 
facts giving rise to such claim or action, or such action shall be barred. 

4. Section 28 of the Agreement, under the heading “Effect; Interpretation of Agreement,” 
shall be amended by the addition of the following sentence: 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a requirement by the Company, as a 
condition of the sale of a franchise, that a prospective franchisee agrees to a release, 
assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel that would relieve a person from liability under 
the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

5. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
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claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 

6. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to 
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure 
Law (Md. Code Bus. Reg. §§ 14-201 through 14-233) are met independently without reference to this 
Amendment. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Maryland Amendment have entered into and executed 
this Maryland Amendment to the Agreement on the same date as the Agreement was executed. 

Date:  

FRANCHISEE:  

Date:  

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By:  

Name:  

Title:  
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ADDENDUM TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 

In recognition of the requirements of the Minnesota Franchises Law, Minn. Stat. §§ 80C.01 
through 80C.22, and of the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota 
Commissioner of Commerce, Minn. Rules §§ 2860.0100 through 2860.9930, the Franchise Disclosure 
Document for Spherion Staffing, LLC for use in the State of Minnesota shall be amended to include the 
following: 

1. Item 13, “Trademarks,” shall be amended by adding the following language to the end of 
the fifth paragraph of Item 13: 

You must promptly notify us of the existence or assertion of any claim based upon, or any 
attempt by another person or firm to use any of our proprietary marks. Although the 
Franchise Agreement does not obligate us to take any action to protect our proprietary 
marks, if we elect to do so, you must execute all documents we deem necessary. We will 
have the right to control all litigation involving our proprietary marks. The Franchise 
Agreement does not impose on us any other obligations with respect to protection of our 
marks. We have, however, taken certain legal steps to protect the use of our marks and 
names for our own benefit and for the benefit of our franchisees, and to prevent others 
from using the marks and names. In the past, these measures have been successful 
without the need to resort to litigation, except as described above. According to 
Minnesota Stat. Sec. 80C.12, Subd. 1(g), we are required to protect any rights which you 
have to use our proprietary marks.  

2. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” shall be amended by 
the addition of the following language at the conclusion of the Item: 

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, Spherion will comply with Minn. 
Stat. § 80C.14 (subd. 3, 4, and 5) which requires, except in certain specified cases, that a 
franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days 
notice of non-renewal of the Franchise Agreement, and that consent to the transfer of 
the franchise not be unreasonably withheld. 

Nothing in a disclosure document or agreement can abrogate or reduce any of your rights 
as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights to any procedure, 
forum or remedies provided for by the laws of Minnesota. 

The State of Minnesota has statutes that might supersede the Franchise Agreement in 
your relationship with us. Minnesota Department of Commerce Rule 2860.4400D 
prohibits requiring a franchisee to assent to a release, assignment, novation, or waiver 
that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statutes 1973 
Supplement, sections 80C.01 to 80C.22; provided, that this part shall not bar the voluntary 
settlement of disputes. 

3. Item 17, under the heading “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” for 
Choice of forum (row v.), the Summary shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with, “Mediation in 
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the state in which we have our headquarters. We may bring suit in the state and judicial district in which 
we have our headquarters at the time of the action.” 

4. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Franchises Law or the Rules and 
Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce are met 
independently without reference to this Addendum to the Disclosure Document. 

5. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 
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AMENDMENT TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 

In recognition of the requirements of the Minnesota Franchises Law, Minn. Stat. §§ 80C.01 
through 80C.22, and of the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota 
Commissioner of Commerce, Minn. Rules §§ 2860.0100 through 2860.9930, the parties to the attached 
Spherion Staffing, LLC Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

1. Section 3 of the Agreement, under the heading “Ownership and Protection of the Marks 
and Copyrights,” shall be amended by the addition of the following new subsection (e): 

(e) According to Minnesota Stat. Sec. 80C.12, Subd. 1(g), Company is required to 
protect any rights Franchisee may have to Company’s proprietary marks.  

2. Section 13 of the Agreement, under the heading “Term, Renewal,” shall be supplemented 
by the addition of the following language: 

Minnesota law provides franchisees with certain termination, non-renewal, and transfer 
rights. In sum, Minn. Stat. § 80C.14 (subd. 3, 4, and 5) currently requires, except in certain 
specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to 
cure) and 180 days’ notice of non-renewal of the Franchise Agreement, and that consent 
to the transfer of the franchise not be unreasonably withheld; and  

Minn. Rule Part 2860.4400D prohibits requiring Franchisee to assent to a release, 
assignment, novation, or waiver that would relieve any person from liability imposed by 
Minnesota Statutes 1973 Supplement, sections 80C.01 to 80C.22; provided, that this part 
shall not bar the voluntary settlement of disputes. 

3. Section 14 of the Agreement, under the heading “Assignment,” shall be supplemented by 
the following paragraph: 

Minnesota law provides franchisees with certain transfer rights. In sum, Minn. Stat. § 
80C.14 (subd. 5) currently requires that consent to the transfer of the franchise not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

4. Section 15(b) of the Agreement under the heading “Disposition of the Franchised 
Business” shall be deleted in its entirety and the following 15(b) shall be substituted in lieu thereof: 

(b) If Franchisee notifies Company that Franchisee will discontinue its operation of 
the Franchise Business according to Subsection 15(a)(1) above, or if Franchisee fails to 
timely provide Company with the notice required by Subsection 15(a) above, then 
Franchisee shall, on the effective date of termination, discontinue its operation of the 
Franchise Business, and thereafter faithfully honor and abide by each of the terms and 
conditions included in Sections 5 and 18 of this Agreement. Should Franchisee fail to 
comply with the provisions of this Subsection 15(b), Franchisee hereby acknowledges and 
agrees that Company shall be entitled to damages from Franchisee.  
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5. Section 17(c) of the Agreement, under the heading “Termination by Parties,” shall be 
supplemented by the following paragraph: 

Minnesota law provides franchisees with certain termination, non-renewal, and transfer 
rights. In sum, Minn. Stat. § 80C.14 (subd. 3, 4, and 5) currently requires, except in certain 
specified cases, that a franchisee receive 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to 
cure) and 180 days’ notice of non-renewal of the Franchise Agreement, and that consent 
to the transfer of the franchise not be unreasonably withheld. 

6. Section 18 of the Agreement, under the heading “Rights and Obligations Upon 
Termination,” shall be amended by deleting the last paragraph and the following paragraph shall be 
substituted in lieu thereof: 

Franchisee hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints Company and each of Company’s 
officers as its attorneys-in-fact, each of whom may act separately, to execute all 
instruments and to do all things necessary for accomplishing those acts required by 
Franchisee under this Section 18 in the event Franchisee fails to perform those acts as 
required by this Agreement. Furthermore, upon demand Franchisee shall immediately 
pay to Company all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by 
Company to accomplish such acts; and Company shall have the right to seek from any 
court of competent jurisdiction temporary, preliminary or permanent injunctions 
restraining Franchisee from any violation of this Agreement or compelling compliance by 
Franchisee with any obligation included in this Section 18 or elsewhere in this Agreement, 
and Franchisee agrees to pay the reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs incurred by 
Company in such proceedings. 

7. Section 19(b) of the Agreement, under the heading “Indemnification,” shall be deleted in 
its entirety and the following 19(b) shall be substituted in lieu thereof: 

(b) Franchisee agrees to give Company notice of any such action, suit, proceeding, 
claim, demand, inquiry or investigation. At the expense and risk of Franchisee, Company 
may elect to assume (but is not obligated to undertake, except with respect to claims 
arising out of Franchisee’s use of Company’s proprietary marks) the defense and/or 
settlement of any such action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation. 
Such an undertaking by Company shall, in no manner or form, diminish Franchisee’s 
obligations under this Section. 

8. Section 27 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law; Mediation,” shall be 
amended by deletion of the first and third sentences of subsection (d), and the first sentence of subsection 
(f), in their entirety. 

9. Section 28 of the Agreement, under the heading “Effect/Interpretation of Agreement,” 
shall be supplemented by the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the 
Agreement: 

Minn. Stat. §80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring litigation to be 
conducted outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the disclosure document or 
agreement can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota 
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Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for 
by the laws of the jurisdiction. 

10. The Agreement shall be supplemented by the following Section 29, which shall be 
considered an integral part of the Agreement: 

Nothing in a disclosure document or agreement can abrogate or reduce any of 
Franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or Franchisee’s 
rights to any procedure, forum or remedies provided for by the laws of Minnesota. 

11. The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, 
Subd. 5. 

12. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 

13. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to 
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Franchises Law or the Rules and 
Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce are met 
independently without reference to this Amendment to the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into and executed this Minnesota Amendment 
to the Agreement on the same date as the Agreement was executed. 

Date:  

FRANCHISEE:  

Date:  

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By:  

Name:  

Title:  
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ADDENDUM TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK 

In recognition of the requirements of the New York General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680 
through 695, and of the regulations promulgated thereunder (N.Y. Comp. Code R. & Regs. tit. 13, §§ 200.1 
through 201.16), the Franchise Disclosure Document for Spherion Staffing, LLC for use in the State of New 
York shall be amended as follows: 

1. Item 3, “Litigation,” shall be amended by the addition of the following new paragraphs at 
the beginning of the Item: 

Except as described below, neither we, nor any of our predecessors, nor any person 
identified in Item 2 above, nor any affiliate offering franchises under our trademark, has 
any administrative, criminal, or a material civil or arbitration action (or a significant 
number of civil or arbitration actions irrespective of materiality) pending against him 
alleging a violation of any franchise law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, 
restraint of trade, unfair or deceptive practices, misappropriation of property, or 
comparable allegations. 

Except as described below, neither we, nor any of our predecessors, nor any person 
identified in Item 2 above, nor any affiliate offering franchises under our trademark, has 
been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to any other felony charge or, 
during the ten year period immediately preceding the application for registration, been 
convicted of a misdemeanor or pleaded nolo contendere to any misdemeanor charge or 
been found liable in an arbitration proceeding or a civil action by final judgment, or been 
the subject of any other material complaint or legal or arbitration proceeding if such 
misdemeanor conviction or charge, civil action, complaint, or other such proceeding 
involved a violation of any franchise law, securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent 
conversion, restraint of trade, unfair or deceptive practices, misappropriation of property, 
or comparable allegation. 

Except as described below, neither we, nor any of our predecessors, nor any person 
identified in Item 2 above, nor any affiliate offering franchises under our trademark, is 
subject to any currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating to 
franchises, or under any federal, state, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade 
regulation, or trade practice law as a result of a concluded or pending action or 
proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of 
any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the 
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from 
membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective 
injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of an action 
brought by a public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions affecting 
a franchise as a real estate broker or sales agent. 

2. Item 4, “Bankruptcy,” shall be amended by deleting the existing language in the Item and 
the following new paragraph shall be substituted in lieu thereof: 
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Neither we, nor any of our predecessors, nor any person identified in Item 2 above, nor 
any affiliate offering franchises under our trademark, has during the 10-year period 
immediately before the date of the Disclosure Document: (a) filed as debtor (or had filed 
against it) a petition to start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; (b) obtained a 
discharge of its debts under the bankruptcy code; or (c) was a principal officer of a 
company or a general partner in a partnership that either filed as a debtor (or had filed 
against it) a petition to start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or that obtained a 
discharge of its debts under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code during or within 1 year after the 
officer or general partner held this position in the company or partnership. And, no other 
bankruptcies are required to be disclosed in this Disclosure Document. 

3. Item 5, “Initial Franchise Fee,” shall be supplemented by the addition of the following 
sentence after the second sentence in the Item: 

The initial franchise fee is also in consideration of administrative and other expenses we 
incur in entering into the Franchise Agreement. 

4. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” shall be amended by 
deleting the first sentence in the Item and the following new language shall be substituted in lieu thereof: 

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements 
pertaining to renewal, termination, transfer and dispute resolution. You should read 
these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.  

5. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” shall be amended by 
deleting “d.” and the following new “d.” shall be substituted in lieu thereof: 

Provision Section in Franchise Agreement Summary 

d. Termination by you 
§ 17 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

According to New York General 
Business Agreement Law, you may 
terminate the Franchise Agreement 
upon any grounds available by law. 

6. There are circumstances in which an offering made by us would not fall within the scope 
of the New York General Business Law, Article 33, such as when the offer and acceptance occurred outside 
the state of New York. However, an offer or sale is deemed made in New York if the franchisee is domiciled 
in or the franchise will be opened in New York. We are required to furnish a New York prospectus to every 
prospective franchisee who is protected under the New York General Business Law, Article 33. 

THE FRANCHISOR REPRESENTS THAT THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT DOES NOT KNOWINGLY OMIT ANY 
MATERIAL FACT OR CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE STATEMENT OF A MATERIAL FACT. 
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AMENDMENT TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK 

In recognition of the requirements of the New York General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680 
through 695, and of the regulations promulgated thereunder (N.Y. Comp. Code R. & Regs., tit. 13, §§ 200.1 
through 201.16), the parties to the attached Spherion Staffing, LLC Franchise Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) agree as follows: 

1. Section 28 of the Agreement, under the heading “Effect/Interpretation of Agreement,” 
shall be supplemented by the addition of the following language: 

Nothing in this Agreement should be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon 
Franchisee by New York General Business Law, Sections 680-695. 

2. There are circumstances in which an offering made by Franchisor would not fall within 
the scope of the New York General Business Law, Article 33, such as when the offer and acceptance 
occurred outside the state of New York. However, an offer or sale is deemed made in New York if 
Franchisee is domiciled in or the franchise will be opening in New York. Franchisor is required to furnish a 
New York prospectus to every prospective franchisee who is protected under the New York General 
Business Law, Article 33. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this New York Amendment have entered into and executed 
this New York Amendment to the Agreement on the same date as the Agreement was executed. 

FRANCHISEE:  

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

     (Date) 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

     (Date)  
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ADDENDUM TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

The North Dakota Securities Commissioner has held the following to be unfair, unjust or 
inequitable to North Dakota franchisees pursuant to North Dakota Franchise Investment Law § 51-19-09 
N.D.C.C.: 

1. Use of a general release that is to be signed upon renewal of this franchise described in 
Item 17(c) of the Disclosure Document and within Section 13(d) of the Franchise 
Agreement may be considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota. 

2. Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned in Item 17(q) of this Disclosure 
Document and within Section 5 of the Franchise Agreement are generally considered 
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota pursuant to section 9-08-06 of the North 
Dakota Century Code. 

3. Requirements for the Franchisee to sue the Company in the federal or state Court 
covering the location at which Company has its principal place of business, as mentioned 
in Item 17(u) of this Disclosure Document and in Section 27(d) of the Franchise Agreement 
may not be enforceable in the State of North Dakota. 

4. Application of law other than North Dakota Law as mentioned in Item 17(v) of this 
Disclosure Document and Section 27(a) of the Franchise Agreement may be considered 
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota. 

5. Any provision that provides that the parties waive their right to claim punitive or 
exemplary damages as described Section 27(g) of the Franchise Agreement may be 
considered unenforceable in the State of North Dakota. 

6. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment 
Law are met independently without reference to this Addendum. 
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AMENDMENT TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

For citizens of North Dakota and franchises to be located within North Dakota, the North Dakota 
Securities Commissioner requires that certain provisions contained within the attached Spherion Staffing, 
LLC Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) be amended to become consistent with the North Dakota 
Franchise Investment Law, N.D.C.C., §§ 51-19-01 through 51-19-17. Therefore, to the extent that the 
Franchise Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions shall be 
amended as follows: 

1. If Franchisee is required to sign a general release, as stated within Section 13(d) of the 
Agreement, such release shall exclude claims arising under North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. 

2. Section 5 of the Agreement, under the heading “Restrictive Covenants,” shall be 
supplemented by the following subsection (c), which shall be considered an integral part of the 
Agreement: 

(c) Covenants not to compete are considered unenforceable in the State of North 
Dakota. 

3. Section 18 of the Agreement, under the heading “Rights and Obligations upon 
Termination,” shall be supplemented by addition of the following subsection (j), which shall be considered 
an integral part of the Agreement. 

(j) Covenants not to compete are generally considered unenforceable in the State 
of North Dakota. 

4.. If the Franchise Agreement requires that it be governed by a law other than the State of 
North Dakota, as stated within Section 27(a), to the extent that such law conflicts with the North Dakota 
Franchise Investment Law, the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law will control. 

5. Section 27 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law; Mediation,” shall be 
amended by deletion of subsection (d) in its entirety. 

6. Section 27 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law; Mediation,” shall be 
amended by deletion of subsection (c)(2) in its entirety and in place thereof substitution of the following: 

(2) Non-binding mediation hereunder shall be conducted at a location agreeable to 
all parties, by a recognized mediator or mediation program designated by Company in 
writing (the “Designation). Company shall send the Designation to Franchisee within a 
reasonable time after issuance of the Request. 

7. Section 27 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law; Mediation,” shall be 
amended by deletion of subsection (g) in its entirety. 

8. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to 
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, N.D. 
Cent. Code, §§ 51-19-01 through 51-19-17, are met independently without reference to this Amendment. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into and executed this North Dakota Amendment 
to the Agreement on the same date as the Agreement was executed. 

FRANCHISEE:  

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

     (Date) 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

     (Date) 
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ADDENDUM TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND 

In recognition of the requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, §§ 19-28.1-1 
through 19-28.134, the Franchise Disclosure Document for Spherion Staffing, LLC shall be amended as 
follows: 

1. Item 17, under the heading “Renewal, Termination, Transfer, and Dispute Resolution,” 
for “Cause” defined – defaults which cannot be cured (row f.), the Summary shall be 
amended by addition of the following: “termination of a franchise agreement as a result 
of insolvency or bankruptcy may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law.” 

2. Item 17 under the heading “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” for 
Choice of forum (row v.), the Summary shall be amended by addition of the following: 
“any provision in the franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum 
outside Rhode Island is void as to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Rhode Island 
Franchise Investment Act.” 

3. Item 17, under the heading “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” for 
Choice of law (row w.), the Summary shall be amended by addition of the following: “any 
provision in the franchise agreement requiring the application of laws of a state other 
than Rhode Island is void as to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Rhode Island 
Franchise Investment Act.” 

4. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment 
Act, §§ 19-28.1-1 through 19-28.134, are met independently without reference to this 
Addendum. 
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AMENDMENT TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND 

In recognition of the requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, § 19-28.1-14, 
the parties to the attached Spherion Staffing, LLC Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as 
follows: 

1. Although Section 27(a) of the Agreement requires that it be governed by Georgia law, 
Rhode Island law provides that such provision is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under 
the Rhode Island Investment Act. 

2. Although Section 27(d) of the Agreement requires that litigation permitted under the 
Agreement must be instituted in court covering the location at which Company has its principal place of 
business at the time of the action, Rhode Island law provides that any provision restricting jurisdiction or 
venue to a forum outside the state of Rhode Island is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable 
under the Rhode Island Investment Act. 

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to 
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, §§ 19-
28.1-1 through 19-28.134, are met independently without reference to this Amendment. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into and executed this Rhode Island Amendment 
to the Agreement on the same date as the Agreement was executed. 

FRANCHISEE:  

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

     (Date 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

     (Date)  
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SOUTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM 
TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

The Spherion Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD”) contains information required by both the 
Federal Trade Commission and the state of South Dakota. This South Dakota Addendum to the FDD 
contains information required exclusively by the state of South Dakota and is being provided to you at the 
same time as the FDD. 

In recognition of the requirements of the South Dakota Franchises for Brand¬ Name Goods and 
Services Law, S.D. Codified Laws §§ 37-5B, the FDD for use in the state of South Dakota shall be amended, 
effective ________________, 20__, as follows: 

1. Item 6, under the heading “Other Fees,” shall be amended by deleting the second 
paragraph of Note 10 and substituting the following paragraph in Note 10 in lieu thereof: 

If you notify us as in (a) above, or if you fail to give us timely notice, you must discontinue 
your business and abide by the noncompetition provisions. If you fail to do so, we will be 
entitled to damages from you. 

2. Item 17, under the heading “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” 
shall be supplemented by the addition of the following paragraph at the conclusion of the Item: 

Any provision that provides that the parties waive their right to claim punitive, exemplary, 
incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages or any provision that provides that 
the parties waive their right to a jury trial may not be enforceable under South Dakota 
law. 

3. Item 17, under the heading “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” for 
Choice of forum (row v.), the Summary shall be amended to read, “Mediation in the state in which we 
have our headquarters.” 

4. Item 17, under the heading “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” for 
Choice of law (row w.), the Summary shall be amended to read, “South Dakota for franchise registration, 
employment, covenants not to compete, and other matters of local concern; otherwise, Georgia.” 

5. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the South Dakota Franchises for Brand-Name Goods and 
Services Law are met independently without reference to this Addendum. 
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ADDENDUM TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF VIRGINIA 

In recognition of the requirements of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, the Franchise Disclosure 
Document for Spherion Staffing, LLC in connection with the offer and sale of franchises for use in the State 
of Virginia shall be amended to include the following: 

1. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” shall be amended by 
the addition of the following paragraph at the conclusion of the Item: 

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a 
franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or 
termination stated in the Franchise Agreement do not constitute “reasonable cause” as 
that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that 
provision may not be enforceable.  

2. Each provision of this Addendum to the Disclosure Document shall be effective only to 
the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Virginia Retail 
Franchising Act, Va. Code Ann. §§ 13.1-557 through 13.1-574, are met independently without reference 
to this Addendum to the Disclosure Document. 

3.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 
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ADDENDUM TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

In recognition of the requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Wash. 
Rev. Code §§ 19.100.180, the Franchise Disclosure Document for Spherion Staffing, LLC in connection with 
the offer and sale of franchises for use in the State of Washington shall be amended to include the 
following: 

1. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” shall be amended by 
the addition of the following paragraphs at the conclusion of the Item: 

The state of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the 
franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of 
termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may 
supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the 
areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.  

In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall 
be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of 
the arbitration, or as determined by the arbitrator. 

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment 
Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail. 

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the 
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act except when executed according to a 
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are 
represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably 
restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, rights or 
remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable. 

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable 
estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer. 

2. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” for Choice of forum 
(row v.), the Summary shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with “Mediation in the state in which 
we have our headquarters. We may bring suit in the state and judicial district in which we have our 
headquarters at the time of the action.” 

3. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 

4. Each provision of this Addendum to the Disclosure Document shall be effective only to 
the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Washington 
Franchise Investment Protection Act, Wash. Rev. Code §§ 19.100.180, are met independently without 
reference to this Addendum to the Disclosure Document.  
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AMENDMENT TO THE SPHERION STAFFING, LLC 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

In recognition of the requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Wash. 
Rev. Code §§ 19.100.010 through 19.100.940, the parties to the attached Spherion Staffing, LLC Franchise 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

1. The state of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the 
franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and 
renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise 
agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your 
franchise.  

2. In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall 
be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or 
as determined by the arbitrator. 

3. In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment 
Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail. 

4. A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the 
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act except when executed according to a negotiated 
settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent 
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for 
claims under the Act, rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable. 

5. Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable 
estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer. 

6. Section 27 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law; Mediation,” shall be 
amended by deletion of the first and third sentences of subsection (d), so that subsection (d) shall be read: 

Any legal action brought by Company against Franchisee in any forum or court, whether 
federal or state, may be brought within the state and judicial district in which Company 
has its headquarters at the time of the action. 

7. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 

8. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to 
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection 
Act, Wash. Rev. Code §§ 19.100.010 through 19.100.940, are met independently without reference to this 
Amendment. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Washington Amendment have entered into and 
executed this Washington Amendment to the Agreement on the same date as the Agreement was 
executed. 

FRANCHISEE:  

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

     (Date) 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

     (Date) 
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EXHIBIT P 
OVERLAP ACKNOWLEDGMENT AGREEMENT 
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OVERLAP ACKNOWLEDGMENT AGREEMENT (for a Full Compete Market) 

This OVERLAP ACKNOWLEDGMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered by and 
between SPHERION STAFFING, LLC a Delaware limited liability company, having its principal place of 
business at One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd., Suite 500, Atlanta, GA 30339 (hereinafter referred 
to as “Company”), and __________________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as 
“Franchisee”).  This Agreement is entered into coincident with and as an integral part of the Franchise 
Agreement which the parties have entered into this day.  All capitalized italicized words used herein shall 
have the same meaning in this Agreement as in the Franchise Agreement.  This Agreement shall have the 
same Effective Date as the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Franchise Agreement, the Company has granted the Franchisee the 
right to use the licensed “Mark”, specifically the Spherion® trademark,  in connection with the provision 
of staffing services strictly in accordance with the limitations set forth in the Franchise Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement grants to the Franchisee certain protected rights, as 
specifically set forth in the Franchise Agreement, with respect to the provision of staffing services under 
the Spherion® trademark within the “Area”; and   

WHEREAS, the parties recognize that the Franchise Agreement does not grant to the Franchisee 
any exclusive rights within the Area or otherwise relating to the provision of staffing services under other 
trademarks or logos, including but not limited to those trademarks and logos (other than the Spherion® 
trademark) which may be owned or controlled by the Company, its parents, their subsidiaries or their 
affiliated companies; and 

WHEREAS, the Company is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Randstad North America, Inc. 
(“Randstad”) and Randstad and/or its other subsidiaries or affiliates currently operate 
[general/professional] or other staffing offices under a trademark or trademarks other than the Spherion 
trademark within the Area (the portion of the Area in which Randstad operates being referred to herein 
as an “Overlap Territory”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company is willing to sell and issue a franchise agreement to Franchisee which 
incorporates an Area that includes an Overlap Territory only if the Franchisee acknowledges certain 
circumstances and agrees to certain limitations as set forth in this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Franchisee recognizes that the Franchise Agreement which he/she/it is entering into 
on this date incorporates an Area which includes an Overlap Territory and he/she/it fully recognizes and 
agrees that the Company would not sell and issue this Franchise Agreement to the Franchisee in the 
absence of the acknowledgments and agreements set forth herein, and Franchisee has nonetheless 
voluntarily and without duress entered into the Franchise Agreement and this Agreement, 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the execution of this Agreement and of the covenants and 
conditions herein contained, it is mutually agreed and understood as follows: 

1. It is agreed that the “Whereas” clauses set forth above are true and accurate and are an 
integral part of this Agreement. 

2. 2. Franchisee hereby acknowledges his/her/its understanding that the Area set 
forth in the Franchise Agreement contains an open and operating office of Randstad or 
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one of its subsidiaries or affiliates, and further acknowledges his/her/its understanding 
and agreement that, after the purchase of the Spherion franchise and the entry into the 
Spherion Franchise Agreement, any such Randstad or affiliated office will have the full 
and complete right to continue to provide staffing and other services in such Overlap 
Territory, that they may open new or additional Randstad or other affiliated offices in that 
Overlap Territory, that the Randstad and other affiliated offices may provide additional 
and/or new and different services within the Overlap Territory and, in general, that 
Randstad and/or its other subsidiaries or affiliates will continue to conduct their 
operations within the Overlap Territory in the manner that they see fit in their sole and 
complete discretion.   

3. Franchisee hereby also acknowledges his/her/its understanding that the Company does 
not presently solicit and obtain National Account Customers independent of Randstad 
and that the Company currently relies upon Randstad to provide all business services 
related to “strategic accounts” and National Account Customers for the Company and for 
the SPHERION® system.  Franchisee understands and agrees that Randstad has the right 
to make decisions, in its discretion, regarding its strategic account and National Account 
efforts.  Franchisee acknowledges, understands and agrees that the existence of the 
operating Randstad office or other affiliated offices within the Area will mean that 
Franchisee’s access to strategic accounts and National Account Customers within the 
Overlap Territory will be extremely limited and may very well be nonexistent because 
of the substantial likelihood that Randstad will, acting within its discretionary rights, 
direct strategic accounts and National Account Customers to their local Randstad or 
other branded offices. 

4. Franchisee hereby also acknowledges his/her/its understanding that the Randstad offices 
will very likely, in Randstad’s discretion, elect to compete with Franchisee in a number of 
commercial settings including, but not limited to, settings in which Customers are 
obtained through a bidding or similar process. 

5. Franchisee and Company agree that the acknowledgments and agreements by Franchisee 
as set forth above constituted a material condition precedent to the Company’s decision 
to offer and sell a franchise to Franchisee and that, in the absence of such agreements by 
Franchisee, the Company, acting in its discretion, would have elected to forgo any such 
sale. 

6. This Agreement shall be considered and is an integral part of the Franchise Agreement 
which the parties have entered into this day. 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into and executed this Agreement as of the date 
of the Franchise Agreement. 

FRANCHISEE

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 

SPHERION STAFFING, LLC

By: 
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 

     (Print Title) 
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EXHIBIT R 
STATE EFFECTIVE DATES 
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State Effective Dates 

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure 
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: 

California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North 
Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin. 

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the 
document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated 
below: 

State Effective Date 

California Exempt as of December 31, 2023 

Illinois Exempt from registration 

Indiana Exempt from registration 

Maryland Pending  

Michigan Pending 

Minnesota Pending 

New York Exempt from registration 

North Dakota Pending 

Rhode Island Pending 

South Dakota Pending 

Virginia Pending 

Washington Pending 

Wisconsin Pending 

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under 
other laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or 
seller-assisted marketing plans. 
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EXHIBIT S 
RECEIPT 
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RECEIPT 

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information 
in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 

If Spherion offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar-days before 
you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the 
proposed franchise sale.  

New York and Rhode Island require that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first 
personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of 
any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. 

Michigan, Oregon, and Wisconsin require that we give you this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days 
before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever 
occurs first. 

If Spherion does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, 
or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the 
Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580 and the state agency listed on Exhibit L. 

The franchisor is Spherion Staffing, LLC, located One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd., Suite 500, Atlanta, 
GA 30339. Its telephone number is (770) 303-6770. 

The date of issuance of this Franchise Disclosure Document is: April 29, 2024. The effective date in states 
where registration is required is listed in the chart State Effective Dates included in Exhibit R this Disclosure Document. 

The franchise seller for this offering is Bill Tasillo, Regional Vice President of Franchise Sales and Operations 
for Spherion Staffing, LLC, and Dan Brunell, Regional Vice President of Franchise Development for Spherion Staffing, 
LLC, located at One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd., Suite 500, Atlanta, GA 30339 (770) 303-6770. Any franchise 
sellers other than Bill Tasillo and Dan Brunell involved in this offering are:  __________________________________ 

Spherion authorizes the respective state agent identified on Exhibit M to receive service of process for it in 
the particular state. 

I received a Disclosure Document dated April 29, 2024, that included the following Exhibits: 

A Spherion General Staffing Franchise Agreement J  Table of Contents for Manual 
B  Professional Services Addendum K  List of Administrators 
C Territory Development Agreement L  Agents for Service of Process 
D Purchase Loan Documents: Promissory Note, 

Guaranty, Security Agreement & Asset Sale Agreement 
M  Financial Statements 

E Start-up Loan Documents: Promissory Note, Guaranty 
& Security Agreement  

N  Franchisee Compliance Certification 

F Workers’ Compensation Loan Documents: Promissory 
Note, Guaranty & Security Agreement 

O  State Specific Addenda 

G Confidentiality Agreement P  Overlap Acknowledgment Agreement 
H  Assignment of Spherion Franchise Agreement Q State Effective Dates 
I  Agreement and General Release R  Receipt 

Date:
(Do not leave blank) 

By:
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 
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RECEIPT 

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information 
in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 

If Spherion offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar-days before 
you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the 
proposed franchise sale.  

New York and Rhode Island require that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first 
personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of 
any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. 

Michigan, Oregon, and Wisconsin require that we give you this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days 
before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever 
occurs first. 

If Spherion does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, 
or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the 
Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580 and the state agency listed on Exhibit L. 

The franchisor is Spherion Staffing, LLC, located One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd., Suite 500, Atlanta, 
GA 30339. Its telephone number is (770) 303-6770. 

The date of issuance of this Franchise Disclosure Document is: April 29, 2024. The effective date in states 
where registration is required is listed in the chart State Effective Dates included in Exhibit R this Disclosure Document. 

The franchise seller for this offering is Bill Tasillo, Regional Vice President of Franchise Sales and Operations 
for Spherion Staffing, LLC, and Dan Brunell, Regional Vice President of Franchise Development for Spherion Staffing, 
LLC, located at One Overton Park, 3625 Cumberland Blvd., Suite 500, Atlanta, GA 30339 (770) 303-6770. Any franchise 
sellers other than Bill Tasillo and Dan Brunell involved in this offering are: __________________________________ 

Spherion authorizes the respective state agent identified on Exhibit M to receive service of process for it in 
the particular state. 

I received a Disclosure Document dated April 29, 2024, that included the following Exhibits: 

A Spherion General Staffing Franchise Agreement J  Table of Contents for Manual 
B  Professional Services Addendum K  List of Administrators 
C Territory Development Agreement L  Agents for Service of Process 
D Purchase Loan Documents: Promissory Note, 

Guaranty, Security Agreement & Asset Sale Agreement 
M  Financial Statements 

E Start-up Loan Documents: Promissory Note, Guaranty 
& Security Agreement  

N  Franchisee Compliance Certification 

F Workers’ Compensation Loan Documents: Promissory 
Note, Guaranty & Security Agreement 

O  State Specific Addenda 

G Confidentiality Agreement P  Overlap Acknowledgment Agreement 
H  Assignment of Spherion Franchise Agreement Q State Effective Dates 
I  Agreement and General Release R  Receipt 

Date:
(Do not leave blank) 

By:
     (Signature) 

     (Print Name) 


